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Espanola Reglonal Hydro Distributlon Corporatlon (ERHDC)

ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD

IN THFE MATTFR (IF t1e (Ontano Frergy Board Art, 1988,
baing Schedula B to the Enargy Compelition Act, 1988,
$.0, 19088 15

AMD IM THE MATTER OF an Application by Espancla
Regienal Hydre Distrbution Corparation (ERHDC) ta the
Ontario Erergy Board for an Order or Orders approving or
fixing just and reasonable rates and other servize chames
for the distribution of eleclricly as of May 1. 2008,

APPLICATION

The Applicant is Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corparation. The
Applicant is an Ontario carparation with ts office in the Town of Ezspancla
The Applicant carries on the businass of distributing slectricity within the
former Town of Massey and the farmer Town of Webbwood as of June
31, 1928, now within the Township of Sakbles-Spanizh Rivers and the
Town of Espancla as &t Janeary 1, 1993

The Apclicant hereby applies to the Ontaric Energy Board (the "OEB")
pursuarnt ta section 78 of tha Ontario Energy Board Act 1008 for appraval
of itz propoeged digiribulicn ratee and other charges, effective May 1. 2008,

Except where specifically idenfified in the Applicatior, the Applicant
follewed Chapter 2 of the [ling Reguirements for Transmissicn and
Listibution  Applcations dated MNovember 14, z00G {the “Filing
Reguiterments®) in urden o prepare this application

The Schecule of Rates and Charges propssed in this Application i1s
icertifiad in Exhibit 9.

The Applicant requests that the OEB make itz Rate Orger effective May 1,
2003 in accordance with the Filing Requiremeants. The apalicant reguasts,
that if for any reason final rates are not approved and effsctive May 1,
2008 that interim rates be approved effective May 1, 2008 untl final rates
are approved by the Board. The Applicant requests the intenm rates
would be those proposed in this epplication.

The Applicant submis the propased distribution rates contained in this
Application ars just and reasonable on the following grounds:

11

11

Exhibit: 1

Exhibit: 1



Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

Exhilrit: 1

Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

(i the proposed rates for the cistribution of electricity have asan
prepared in accordance with the Filing Requirsments;

{i the proposed adusted rates are necessary to meet the
Applicant’s Markst Based Rate of Rstum anc Pils
requirgrmerts,

{iii) there are nc impacts to anv of the customer classes or
consumplion level subgroups that are so significant as (o
warrant the deferral of any adjustments being requested by
the Applicant; and

() ather groundz as may be set out 0 the material accompanying
this Applicetion Summary,

The Applicart applies for an Qrder or Orders approving the proposed
dist-ipation rates and other chargss sat out in this Application ta b
effective May 1 2008, or as soon as possible thereaftter. The Applicant
gubmite these rates and charges are just and reasonable pursuart fo
gzotion 78 of the Ontario Ensrgy Board Act 1988 being Schadule B fo the
Energy Competition Act, 1098, 5.0, 15098, c.15,

The add-ess of service for the ERHDC is 598 Second Avenue, Espanala, Ontarig,
PSE 104

DATED at Saul Ste. Maria Ontario, this bth day of Navember, 2007,

|

—— _‘_," ok E_.-ﬂ.—
Terrance F, Graco
On behall of Espancia Regional fivdro Corporafion
Vice Prasidan! Einance

PLIC Distrbution Ine
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X2

1E=ar
Ontario

Electricity Distribution Licence

ED-2002-0502

Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution
Corporation

Valid Until

March 31, 2023

Mark C. Garner
Director of Licensing
Ontario Energy Board

Date of Issuance: June 10, 2003

Outario Evergy Board Conunission da ]']-fnergied.e I'Otario
P.O. Box 2319 C P 2319 2300, e Yonze 28e ataze
2300 Yonge Smeat Toronto O07 M4P 1E4

26t Floor

Toront, 0N M4ER 1E4
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Ezpancla Begional Hydro Distribution Corporation Electricity Distribution Licence ED-2002-0502

Electricity Distribution Licence

1 Definitions

Inm this Licence:

"Accounting Procedures Handbook™ means the handbeok, approved by the Beard which specifies the
accountmz records, accountmg prnciples and accounting separation standards to be followed by the
Licensea;

"Act” means the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1993, 5.0, 1593, ¢, 15, Schedule B, a5 amended;

“Affiliate Belationships Code for Electricicy Dizstributors and Transmitters” means the cods,
approved by the Board which, ameng other things, establizhes the standards and conditions for the
inferaction betwesn electnieity distbutors or transnutters and their respective affiliated companes;

‘Board “mazans the Ontario Ensrzy Board;

‘Director” means the Dactor of Licensing appomted under section 5 of theder;

“distribution services means services related to the dismbution of electiicity and the services the Board
has required distmbuters fo carry out, mehiding the sales of electnicity to consumers undar section 29 of
the Acr, for which a charge or rate has been established in the Fate Crder;

‘Diztribution Svstem Code” means the code approved by the Board which, among other things,
astablishes the oblizations of the distributor with respect to the services and terms of service to be offered
to customers and retailers and provides momrenm, techmical operating standards of distobution systems:

"Electricity Act” means the Elecrricigy der, 1093, 5.0, 1993 ¢ 15, Schaduls & as amended;

‘Licensee” means Espancla Fezional Hvdro Dhstribution Corporation:

"‘Market REules” means the rules mads under saction 32 of the Elscmiciny der;

‘Performance Standard:” means the performance targets for the distribution and connection activities of

17
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Ezpancla Begional Hydro Distribution Corporation Electricity Distribution Licence ED-2002-0502
the Licensee as established by the Board m accordance with section 83 of the dei;

"Rate Order” maans an Order or Orders of the Board establishing rates the Licensee 15 permatted to
charge;

‘Retail Seitlement Code™ means the code approved by the Board which, among other things, establishes
a distributor’s obligations and responstbilitiss associated with fnancial settlement among retalers and
consumers and provides for tracking and facilitating consumer fansfers among competitive retatlers;

“service area’ with respect to a distributor, means the area i which the distibuter is anthonzed by 1ts
Licance to dishibute elechicity;

“Standard Supply Service Code” means the code approved by the Board which, among other things,
astablishes the minirenm conditions that a distributor must meet m carymz out 1ts obligations to sell
alecmicity wmder saction 29 of the Elecrricity Aer,

“wholesaler” means 2 person that purchases electricity or ancillary services in the IMO-adonmistered
miarkets or divectly from a generator or, a person who sells electicity or ancillary services through the
IMO-administerad markets or directly to another person other than a consumer.

2 Interpretation

21 In thiz Licence words and plrases shall have the meaning azcribed to them m the der or the
Elecmicity Aer. Words or phrases importing the singular shall ineluda the phual and vice versa.
Haadmgs are for convenience only and shall not affect the misrpretation of the licence. Amy
reference to a docwment or a provision of 2 decument mecludes an amendment or supplement to,
or a replacement of, that decument or that provision of that document. In the computation of ttme
under this Lcence where thers i3 a referance to a mumber of days between two events, they shall
be comnted by excluding the day on which the first svent happens and inchuding the day on wlich
the second event happens and where the time for domg an act expires on a holidaw, the act may
be done on the next day.

3 Authorization Granted under this Licence

31 The Licenses iz autherized, under Part V' of the der and subject to the terms and conditions sat out
i this Licence:

a) To own and operate a dishibution system in the service area deseribed m Schedula 1 of
flus Licence;
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Ezpancla Begional Hydro Distribution Corporation Electricity Distribution Licence ED-2002-0502

el

To retail electneity for the purposas of fulfilling i#s obhization under section 29 of the
Electriciny Acr i the manmer specified in Schedule 2 of thiz Licence; and |

To act as 2 whelesaler for the puwpeses of fulfillmg 1t= obhgations wmder the Fetail
Sattlemnent Code or umder section 29 of the Elscniciny der.

Obligation to Comply with Legislation, Regulations and Market Rules

The Licenses shall comply with all applicable provisions of the der and the Elecmricify Aer and
regulations under thase Acts axcapt whers the Licenses has been exempied from such compliznce
by regulation

The Licenzes shall comply with all applicable Market Fules.

Obligation to Comply with Codes

The Licenzae shall at all timees comply with the following Codes {collectively the "Codes™)
approved by the board, except where the Licensee has been specifically exempted from such
compliance by the Board. Anv exsmpiions to this requirement are set out in Schedule 3 of this

Licanca:

a) the Afiliate Felationships Code for Electiicisy Dhstributors and Transmitters;

bl the Distribution Svstem Code;

c) the Retail Settlement Code, and;

d) the Standard Supply Service Code.

The Licenssa shall

a) Make a copv of the Codes available for inspection by members of the public at its head
office and regional offices durmg normeal busmess hours and;

b} Prowide a copy of the Codes to any persen whe requests it. The Licanses may impose a

fair and reasomzbls charge for the cost of providing copies.

19
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Obligation to Provide Non-discriminatory Access

The Licenzes shall, upon the request of 2 consumer, gensrator or rataller, provide such consumer,
generator or retatler with acesss to the Licensse’s distibution svstem and shall convey alecticity
on behalf of such consumer, gensrator or retaller m accordance with the termes of this Licence.

Obligation to Connect

The Licenses shall connect a building to its distiibution system if:

a) The building lies along any of the lnss of the distibuter’s distribution system, and
b} The owner, occupant or other person in charge of the bullding requests the connection in
wiiting.

The Licenzes shzll make an offer to connect a building to itz distnbution system if:

a) The building 15 within the Licensee's service area as desenbad m Schedule 1, and
b} The owner, occupant or other person in charge of the buillding requests the connection in
wilting.

The terms of such connection or offer to connect shall be farr and reasonable and made m
accordance with the Distribution System Code, and the Licensee’s Eate Order as approved by the
Board.

The Licenses shall not refuss to connect or refuse to make an offer to conmect unless it 15
permutted to do so by the det or any Codas to whoch the Licensee 15 obligated to comply with as a
condition of this Licenca.

Obligation to Sell Electricity

The Licenses shall fulfill its obligation umder section 29 of the Elscmiciny Act to sell electicity m
accordance with the requiraments establizhed m the Standard Supply Service Code, the Retail
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Ezpancla Begional Hydro Distribution Corporation

13.2

Sattlernent Code and the Licensee’s Bate Order as approved by the Beard.

Obligation to Maintain System Integrity

The Licenzea shall mamtain 1tz distnbution svstem to the standards established in the Distribution

Swstem Code, Market Fules and have regard to any other recogmized industry operating or
plannmng standards adopted by the Board.

Market Power Mitigation Rebates

The Licenzaa shzll comply with the pass through of Ontano Power Gensration rebate conditions
set out in Appandix A of this Licence.

Distribution Rates

The Licenses shall not charge for connection to the distribution svstem, the distibution of
elactricity or the retailing of electncity to mest its obligation under section 29 of the Electricin
Act except in accordance with a Bate Order of the Board.

Separation of Business Activities

The Licenssa shall keep fi

neial records asseciated with dishibuting electricity separate from its

financial racords associated with transmtting electricity or other actrvitias mn accordance with the
Accountmz Procedures Handbock and as otherwize requred by the Board.

Expansion of Distribution System

The Licenzes shall not construct, expand or remforce an elscticty distnbution system or make
and mmterconnection except m accordance with the 4« and Regulations, the Distmbution System
Code and appliczble provizions of the Market Eules.

In order to ensure and maintam system integrity or reliable and adsquate capacity and supply of
elecmicity, the Board may order the Licensee to expand or reinforce s distbution svstem m
accordance with Market Eulas and the Distnbution System Code, or i such 2 manner as the

Board may determine.

21
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14  Provision of Information to the Board and Director of Licensing

&5
141  The Licenses zhall mamtain records of and provide, m the mammer and form determuned by the
Board or the Director, such information as the Board or the Disetor may require from timea to
e,
66
142 Without imuting the generality of condition 14.1 the Licensee shall notify the Director of any
material change n circumstances that adversely affects or 15 likely to adverzaly affect the
busimess, operations or assets of the Licensas as soon as practicable, but in any event no more
than twenty (20} days past the date upon which such changs sceurs.
&7
15  Restrictions on Provision of Information
&
1531  The Licenses shall not use mformation regardmg a consumer, retatler, wholesaler or generator
obtained for one pupose for any other purpese without the written consent of the consumer,
retziler, wholesaler or zenerator.
I

152 The Licenses shall not diselose mformation regarding a consumer, retailer, wholesaler or
genarator to any other party without the written consent of the consumer, retailsr, whelssalsr or
genarator, axcept where such information 15 requivad to be disclosed

a) to comply with any lezizlative or regulatory requirements, incloding the conditions of thiz
Licanca;

n
b} for billmg, settlement or market operations purposes;

i
c) for law enforcement puuposes; or

it
d) to a debt collection agency for the processing of past due accounts of the consumer,

retailer, wholasaler or generator.

153 The Licenses may disclose mfoomation regardms consumers, retailars, wholesalers or generators
whera the information has been sufficiently agzrezated such that their particular information
cannot reasonably be identified.

154 The Licenses shall mform consumers, refallers, whelesalers and generators of the conditions
under which thew mfermation may be released to a thid party without their consent.
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If the Licensee dizcloses mfoomation under this saction, the Licensee shall ensure that the
wformation provided will not be used for any other puaposs except the purpese for which it was

disclosed.

Customer Complaint and Dispute Resolution

The Licensasa shall

a) have a process for resolving disputas with customers that deals with disputes m 2 fair,

rezsonable and tmely manner;

b} publizh mfermation which will make 1ts customers aware of and help them to use its

dispute resolution process;

c) mizke a2 copy of the dispute resolution process available for nspaction by membars of the
public at sach of the Licensee’s premuzes durmgz normal busmess hours;

d) give or send fiee of charge a copy of the procass to any person who reascnably requests

it; and

2] refer wnresolved complaints and subscribe to an independent thurd party complaints
resolution service provider salacted by the Board. Thes condibon wall become effactive
on a date to be determuned by the Director. The Director will provide reasonzble notice to
the Licensee of the date this condition becomes effective.

Term of Licence

This Licence shall take effect on June 10, 2003 and ternunate on March 31, 2023,

Transfer of Licence

In accordance with subssction 18(2) of the Aet, this Licence 15 not fransferable or assignable

without leave of the Board.

Amendment of Licence
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9
191  The Board may amend this Licence in accordance with section 74 of the Acf or section 38 of the
Electricity Act.

20 Fees and Assessments
Ly
20.1  The Licenses zhall pay all fees charzed and amounts assessad by the Board.

21 Communication

21.1  The Licensess shall desiznate a person that will act as a primary contact with the Director of
Licenzing on matters related to this Licence. The Licensee shall notify the Director prompthy

should the contact details change.

21.2 Al official commmmieation relating fo this Licence shall be in writing.

a5
21.3 Al wmtten communication 15 to be rezarded as havmg been zrven by the sender and recervad by

the addreszes:

95
a) when delivered m perzon to the addressee by hand, by registered mail or by couner;

97
b seven {7) business days after the date of posing if the cormmmmication 1= sent by regular

manl; and,

%

c) when recerved by facsimile transmission by the addressee, according to the sender’s

transmission raport.

@

22 Copies of the Licence

100
221  The Licenszsa zhall

1M

a) mizke a copy of this Licence available for mspaction by members of the public ¢ 1ts head
office and regional offices durmgz normeal busmess hours and;
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b provide a copy of the Licence to any person who requests it. The Licensee may mmpose a
fair and reasonzble charge for the cost of providing copies.
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Schedule 1 Definition of Distribution Service
Area

104
Thas Schedule spacifies the area in which the Licenses 15 authonized to dishabute and sell electicity m
accordance with condition & of this Licenca.
108
1 The former Town of Maszey and the former town of Webbwood as of Tuns 30, 1998, new within
the Township of Sables-Spamsh Ervers.

w05
2 The Town of Espanola as at Januwary 1, 1998,

26

Exhibit:



Exhibit:

Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

Ezpancla Begional Hydro Distribution Corporation Electricity Distribution Licence ED-2002-0502

Schedule 2 Provision of Standard Supply
Service

108
Thas Schedule specifies the mammer in which the Licensee 15 anthonzed to retail elechicity for the
puposes of fulfilling its obligation under section 29 of the Electriciny Act.
109
The Licenzesa 15 authorized to ratail alectricity directly to consumers within it sarvice area in
accordance with condition 8 of this Licence, any applicabls exemptions to this Licence, and at the
rates set cut m the Rate Orders.
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10

Schedule 3 List of Code Exemptions

m
Thas Schedule spacifies any specific Code requirements from which the Licensee has been exempt.

The Licenses 13 exempt from the requirements of section 2.5.3 of the Standard Supply Service
Code with respect to the prace for zmall vohume residential consumers, subject to the Licenses
offermng an equal billing plan as descnibed in 1tz application for exsmption from Freed Faference
Price, and mesting all other undertakings and material 1epresentations contamed in the
apphcation and the materials filed in connection with 1it.
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Appendix A  Market Power Mitigation Rebates

Definitions and Interpretation

In this Licence,

“embedded distmbuter” means a disaibutor who 13 not a market participant and to whom a host distnbuter
distiabutes electricity;

“embedded zenerator” means a generator whe s not a2 market participant and whose generation facility iz
connected to a distibution svstem of a distnbutor, but dees not include a generator who consumes more
alacmicity than it generates;

“hest distibutor” means 3 distiibutor who 15 2 market participant and who distribuates slactiesty to
another distnibutor who 15 not a market participant.

In thos Licence, a reference to the pavment of a rebate amount by the IMO melodes interim payviments
mazde by the INO.

(]

Information Given to IMO

Frior to the payment of a rebate amount by the IMO to 2 distizbutor, the distnibutor shall provide
the MO, mn the form specifiad by the IMO and before the sxpury of the pertod specified by the
IMO, with mformation in respect of the volumes of slachzemy withdrawn by the distibutor from
the IO-controlled ziid duing the rebate period and distbuted by the distributor in the
distiibutor’s sarvics avea to:

1 consumers sarved by a retailer where a service transaction request as defined i the Betail
Sattlernent Coda has been implemented; and

1 consumsrs other than consumers referred to m clause (1) whe are neot receiving the fived
price under sections 794 and 795 of the Onrario Energy Board Acr, 1093,

Frior to the payment of a rebate amount by the IMO to 2 distibutor which relates to alectricrty
consumed m the sarvice area of an embedded distributor, the embeddad dishibutor shall provide
thie host distributor, in the form specified by the IMO and before the expiry of the periad
specified mn the Betail Settlement Code, with the volumes of electnicrty distributed durms the
1ebate peniod by the embedded distibutor’'s hest distibutor to the embeddad distubutor net of

29
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Ezpancla Begional Hydro Distribution Corporation Electricity Distribution Licence ED-2002-0502

any electricity distributed to the swbedded distnbuter which 15 attnbutable to embeddad
genaration and dizaibuted by the embedded distiibutor m the embedded distmibutor’s service area

to-
125
1 consumears sarved by a retailer where a service transaciion request as defined in the Retazl
Sattlernent Code has been implemented; and
125
u consumers other than consumers referrad to m clanse (1) whe are net receiving the fixed
price under sactions 794 and 79.5 of the Onrario Energy Board Act, 1003,
127
c Prior to the payment of a rebate amount by the IMO to a distmbutor which relates to alectricrty

consumed m the sa1vice area of an embedded distnbutor, the host distributor shall provide the
IMO, m the form specified by the IMO and before the expiry of the peniod spectfied by the MO,
with the mformation providad to the host distnbutor by the embedded distnbutor i accordancs
with section 2.

The IMO mav 1zsue mstuctions or directions providing for any mmformation to be given under this
section. The IMO shall rely on the mfeamation provided to it by distnibutors and there shall be no
opporthumity to correct any such information or provide any addrional nformation and all ameunts paid
shall be final and binding and not subject to any adjustment.

For the puposes of atibuting electnoty distnbuted to an embedded distnbuter to embedded generation,
the volume of elactnierty distributed by a host distnbutor to an embeddad distibutor shall be deemead to
constst of electricity withdrawm from the IMO-controlled z1id or supplied to the host distribator by an
embedded zenerator m the same proportien as the total volume of electicity wathdrawn from the
IMO-controlled giid by the distibutor in the rebate period bears to the tofal volume of alaciieity supplied
to the distnibutor by esmbedded zenerators durmg the rebate penod.

130

3 Pasz Through of Rebate

131
A distributor shall promptly pass twough, with the next regular bill or settlement statement after the

rebate amount s recelved, auy rebate received from the IMO, together with mterest at the Pime Fate,
caleulated and accrued daily, on such amount from the date of racerpt, to:

132
a retailers who serve one or more consumers in the distmibutor’s service area where a
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service tansaction request as defined m the Fetail Settflement Code has bean
implemented;

b consumars who are not receiving the fixed price undsr sections 79 4 and 79.5 of the
Cnrario Energy Board Acr, 1998 and who are not ss1ved by a retatler where a se1vice
fransaction request as defined m the Fatail Settlement Code has besn mplementad; and

134

c embedded distibuters fo whem the distibuter distibutes elactricity.

135
The amoumts patd out to the recipients Lsted above shall be based on energy consumed and calculated in
accordance with the mlss sat out in the Eetail Settlement Code. Thesa payments may be made by way of

set off at the option of the distnbutor.

135
If requested i writing by OPGI, the distributor shall ensure that all rebates are idenfified as comung from
OPGI m the following form on or with each applicable ball or settlement statement:

137

"ONTARIO POWER. GENERATION INC. rebate™

138
Any rebate amount which cannot be distmibuted as provided abovre or which 15 retwmed bv a ratailer to the
distiabuter in accordance with s licence shall be promptly retimed to the host distibutor or IMO as
applicable, together with interast at the Prime Fats, caleulated and zecrued daily, on such amount from

the date of recempt.

139
Mothing shall preclude an agresment whereby a consumer assizns the benefit of a rebate payvment to 2
retailer or another paity.

140
Pending pass-through or retum to the IMO of any rebate recaived, the distibutor shall hold the funds

recerved m trust for the beneficianes thereof m 2 segregated account.
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

CONTACT INFORMATION

TITLE: Vice President Finance Direct line: 705-759-6566
NAME: Terrance P. Greco Direct Fax: 705-759-6553
E-mail: Terry.Greco@ssmpuc.com

TITLE: Rates & Regulatory Officer Direct line: 705-759-3009
NAME: Jennifer Uchmanowicz Direct Fax: 705-759-6553
E-mail: Jennifer.Uchmanowicz@ssmpuc.com

TITLE: Chief Financial Officer Direct line: 705-869-0378 ext 210
NAME: Noreen Clement Direct Fax: 705-869-2433
E-mail: nclement@erhydro.com
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

SPECIFIC APPROVALS REQUESTED

Approval to charge rates effective May 1, 2008 to recover a service revenue
requirement of $1,340,404.

ERHDC has a deemed capital structure of 50% debt, 50%, equity as approved by the
Ontario Energy Board in RP-2005-0020, and a return on equity of 9.00%, consistent
with the return specified in the Board’s Decision in EB-2005-0362, dated October 18,
2006. ERHDC is requesting Board approval of a capital structure of 53% debt, 47%
equity.

The change in the capital structure complies with the Ontario Energy Board’s Report on
Cost of Capital and 2™ Generation Incentive Regulation for Ontario’s electricity
Distributors dated December 20, 2006. The OEB report indicates that Distributors will be
required to phase-in a 60% debt and 40% capital structure that must be completed by
2010.

Approval to establish two new variance accounts for the Late Payment Class Action Suit
and the MDMR (Meter Depository Management Repository).

Approval to continue the following deferral/variance accounts after May 1, 2008 (Exhibit
5).

COMMODITY ACCOUNTS ARE CLASSIFIED AS FOLLOWS:
1588 Retail Settlement Variance Account — Power
1588 RSVA Power, Sub-account Global Adjustments

NON-COMMODITY ACCOUNTS ARE CLASSIFIED IN TWO CATEGORIES AS FOLLOWS:

Wholesale and Retail Market Variance Accounts

1518 Retail Cost Variance Account — Retail

1548 Retail Cost Variance Account — STR

1580 Retail Settlement Variance Account - Wholesale Market Service Charges

1582 Retail Settlement Variance Account - One-time Wholesale Market Service

1584 Retail Settlement Variance Account - Retail Transmission Network Charges

1586 Retail Settlement Variance Account - Retail Transmission Connection
Charges

1588 Retail Settlement Variance Account - Power

1588 Retail Settlement Variance Account - Power Sub-Account Global
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

Utility Deferral Accounts
1508 Other Regulatory Assets

1508 Other Regulatory Assets - Sub-account OEB Cost Assessments

1508 Other Regulatory Assets - Sub-account Pension Contributions

1525 Miscellaneous Deferred Debits

1550 LV Variance

1555 Smart Meter Capital and Recovery Offset Variance

1555 Smart Meter Capital and Recovery Offset Variance — Sub-Account Stranded
Meter Costs

1556 Smart Meter OM&A Variance

1562 Deferred Payments in Lieu of Taxes

1563 PILs contra account

1565 Conservation and Demand Management Expenditures and Recoveries

1566 CDM Contra

1572 Extraordinary Event Losses

1574 Deferred Rate Impact Amounts

1590 Recovery of Regulatory Asset Balances

1592 PLS & Tax Variance

2425 Other Deferred Credits

= Approval of the proposed lost factor 1.0543 (Exhibit 4)
= Approval of rate riders for disposition of Deferral and Variance Accounts (Exhibit 5)

= Approval for continuation of 2007 smart meter rate adder that reflects $0.30 per
residential customer per month.
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

DRAFT ISSUES LIST

Smart Metering

In this rate application ERHDC has not included any costs related to Smart Metering. ERHDC'’s
smart meter plan for installation is to commence in 2009. ERHDC is applying for a continuance
of the smart meter rate adder for 2008 that reflects $0.30 per residential customer per month.
ERHDC has added $0.26 to the monthly service charge for Residential, GS<50 and GS>50
rate classes (Exhibit 9).

To cost-effectively plan for the deployment of smart meters and ensure due diligence, ERHDC
has come together with other Northern Ontario LDC’s and through a concentrated effort along
with the assistance of Ulit-Assist Inc. has examined the benefits of a collaborative approach to
planning as well as procurement of AMI and Installation services.

ERHDC will address the recovery of capital and operating costs for smart meter implementation

in a future rate application. The method of recovery in rates for LDC’s rebasing in 2008 with
smart meter implementation in 2009 is uncertain at the time of this application.

Historical Board Approved Year 2004

Prior to 2006, ERHDC operated as part of an affiliated group of companies providing electric
services. All employees were in the employ of Espanola Regional Hydro Services Corporation
(Services Company). ERHDC was charged by the Services Company for the management,
operations, maintenance and administrative services necessary to operate the distribution
utility. During the review of a 2005 rate application initiated by ERHDC (file number EB-2005-
0243) the Board expressed concerns regarding the financial information provided by ERHDC
and transactions with its affiliated Services Company. Subsequent to 2005, the Services
Company is no longer active; all employees are now members of ERHDC. Forming part of this
rate application is information for the Historical Board Approved Year of 2004. As noted above
there are concerns with the financial data, in particular, the allocations between affiliated
companies. The Historical Actual Year of 2006 is the first year of operating after the
reorganization and provides a more accurate picture for comparative purposes of total utility
costs.
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

PROCEDURAL ORDERS/MOTIONS/NOTICES

There are no procedural orders or notices at this time.
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

ACCOUNTING ORDERS REQUESTED

ERHDC does not request any accounting orders at the time of submission.
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

NON-COMPLIANCE WITH UNIFORM SYSTEM OF ACCOUNTS

ERHDC follows the categories and accounting guidelines as stated in the Uniform System of Accounts.
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MAP OF DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

LIST OF NEIGHBORING UTILITIES

LIST OF ADJACENT
DISTRIBUTORS

Hydro One Networks Inc.

483 Bay Street

Toronto ON

M5G 2P5

Direct line: 416-345-5000
Website: www.HydroOne .com

DESCRIPTION OF DISTRIBUTOR

COMMUNITY SERVED:

TOTAL SERVICE AREA
RURAL SERVICE AREA
DISTRIBUTION TYPE
SERVICE AREA POPULATION
MUNICIPAL POPULATION

TOWN OF ESPANOLA
BOUNDARIES

TOWN OF MASSEY
BOUNDARIES

TOWN OF WEBBWOOD
BOUNDARIES

The former Town of Massey and the former Town of
Webbwood as of June 30, 1998, now within the Township of
Sables-Spanish Rivers.

The Town of Espanola as at January 1, 1998.

99 sq km
73 sq km
Directly connected and embedded with Hydro One Networks

7,138
8,700

West:

North:

East:

South:

West:

North:

East:

South:

West:

North:

East:

South:

Pleasant Valley Road & Lee Valley Road
Faraway Road & Jacklin Road

Dupuis Road

Birch Lane, Highway #6

Toronto Street

Water Treatment Plant
Bell Street
Government Road

Third Street
Minto Street
Bolton Street
Young Street
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

EXPLANATION OF HOST AND EMBEDDED UTILITIES

Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation does not host any utilities within its service area.

Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation is embedded within Hydro One.
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UTILITY ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

Espanola Regional
Hydro Distribution
Corporation

[ Board of Directors (6) ]

[ Management Service ]

|
Union Trade Chief Financial Officer

Supervisor (1) )

I~ : R
Power line Maintainer

©)

Management Services

ERHDC has a management services agreement with PUC Services Inc. which commenced in
2006. It includes participation in Board Meetings, supervision of all staff,
oversight/awareness/monitoring of daily operations, regulatory & legislative requirements, contract
administration, purchasing, customer service, billing and collecting, financial requirement, revenue
requirements including rate setting, human resources, preparation of annual budgets and
forecasts. A billing/customer service agreement with PUC Services has been in place since

December 1, 2001.
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

CORPORATE ENTITIES RELATIONSHIP CHARTS

Structure

Town of Espanola
(819% of the shares of Espanola
Regional Hydro Holdings Corporation)

Township of Sables-Spanish Rivers
(19% of the shares of Espanola
Regional Hydro Holdings Corporation)

Espanola Regional Hydro
Holdings Corporation

Espanola Regional Hydro Espanola Regional Hydro
Distribution Corporation Services Corporation
(Subsidiary) (Subsidiary)

Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation
ERHDC is the local distribution company which provides regulated electrical power distribution in its
service territory.

Espanola Regional Hydro Services Corporation
ERHSC has been inactive since December 31, 2005.
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

Board of Directors

Holdings Corporation Distribution Corporation
Bernard Gagnon Bernard Gagnon

Leslie Gamble Leslie Gamble

Frank Gillis Clive Fitzjohn

Clive Fitzjohn Doug Bois

Doug Bois Don Sunstrum

Alex Poikkimaki

47

Service Corporation

Bernard Gagnon
Leslie Gamble
Frank Gillis
Clive Fitzjohn
Doug Bois
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

PLANNED CHANGES IN CORPORATE AND OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE

ERHDC does not have any current changes planned for the Corporate and Operational Structure.
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STATUS REPORT ON BOARD DIRECTIVES

ERHDC has no board directives at this time.
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CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

HYDRO

DISTRIBUTION CORPORATION

CONDITIONS
OF
SERVICE
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June 2004
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation

Section 1

Section 2

Section 3

Section 4

Section 5 — Schedule 1

Section 5 — Schedule 2

Section 5 — Schedule 3

Section 5 — Schedule 4

Section 5 — Schedule 5

Conditions of Service

Table of Contents

General

Distribution Activities (General)

Customer Class Specific

Glossary of Terms

Standard Residential Service Connection Fees

Standard General Service Connection Fees (Single Phase)
Standard General Service Connection Fees (Three Phase)
Miscellaneous Cost

Appendix
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11
1.2
1.3
1.4
1.5
1.6
1.7

1.8

1.7.1
1.7.2
1.7.3
1.7.4
1.7.5
1.7.6
1.7.7
1.7.8

18.1
1.8.2
1.8.3

Section 1 - General

Table of Contents

Name and Effective Date

Distribution Service Area

Related Codes and Governing Laws
Definitions/Interpretations

Amendments and Changes

Contact Information

Customer Rights

Distributor Rights

Access to Property

Safety of Equipment

No Obstructions

Operating Control

Repairs to Defective Customer Owned Electrical Equipment
Repairs to Customer Owned Structures

Force Majeure

Distribution System Installed by Customer’s Contractor
Disputes and Resolutions

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3 — Referral of Unresolved Disputes
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Section 1 — General

Name and 1.0
Effective Date

Distribution 1.1
Service Area

Related Codes 1.2
And
Governing Laws

Definitions/ 1.3
Interpretations

The following provisions found in Sections1-5 shall be called the

Conditions of Service adopted for use by Espanola Regional Hydro
Distribution Corporation (ERHDC). These Conditions of Service shall be
effective on June 1, 2004.

The Service Area of ERHDC includes the Town of Espanola, and the

Towns of Massey & Webbwood (both of which are part of the Township
of Sables—Spanish Rivers).

The supply of electricity or related services by ERHDC to any Customer
shall be subject to various laws, including the provisions of the latest
editions of the following legislation, regulations and documents:

Electricity Act, 1998

Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998
Distribution License.

Affiliate Relationships Code
Transmission System Code
Distribution System Code

. Retail Settlement Code
Standard Supply Service Code
Environmental Protection Act

~IeMmMUOwy

In the event of a conflict between this document and the Distribution
License or regulatory codes issued by the Board, or the Electricity Act,
1998 (the “Act”), the provisions of the Act, the Distribution License and
associated regulatory codes shall prevail in the order of priority
indicated above. If there is a conflict between a Connection Agreement
with a Customer and these Conditions of Service, the Connection

Agreement shall govern.

In these Conditions of Service, unless the context otherwise requires:

e Headings, paragraph numbers and underlining are for convenience
only and do not affect the interpretation of these Conditions of
Service;

e Words referring to the singular include the plural and vice versa;

e  Words referring to a gender include any gender.
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

Amendments 1.4 The provisions of the Conditions of Service and any amendments made

& Changes and changes from time to time shall form part of any Contract made
between ERHDC and any connected Customer, Retailer, or Generator.
The Conditions of Service supercedes all previous Conditions of Service,
oral or written, of ERHDC or any of its predecessor municipal electric
utilities as of its effective date. ERHDC reserves the right to amend the
Conditions of Service. The public will be notified of any significant
change (as judged by ERHDC) in local newspapers or by means of a
note on and/or included with the Customer’s bill.

A current copy of this document is filed with the Board as is required by
the Distribution System Code (DSC). The Customer is responsible for
contacting ERHDC to ensure that the Customer has, or to obtain the
current version of this Conditions of Service.

Contact 15 ERHDC'’s normal office hours are from 8:30 am to 4:30 pm.

Information These hours are from Monday to Friday, excluding Holidays.
ERHDC can be contacted at (705)869-2771 or by fax at
(705)869-2433.

Customer Rights 1.6 In those instances where the Customer will own their secondary or
primary service, the Customer has the right to hire a contractor
to supply and install the service according to the layout supplied by
ERHDC.

The Customer has the right to demand identification from any person
purporting to be an authorized agent or employee of ERHDC.

ERHDC shall only be liable to a Customer and a
Customer shall only be liable to ERHDC for any damages that arise
directly out of the willful misconduct or negligence:

o of ERHDC in providing Distribution Services to the Customer

o of the Customer in being connected to ERHDC'’s Distribution System
or

o of ERHDC or Customer in meeting their respective obligations under

the Conditions of Service, their licenses and any other applicable
law.
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Distributor Rights

Access to
Property

Safety of
Equipment

No Obstructions

1.7.1

1.7.2

1.7.3

For further clarity, neither ERHDC nor the Customer shall be liable
under any circumstances whatsoever for any loss of profits or revenues,
business interruption losses, loss of contract or loss of goodwill, or for
any indirect, consequential, incidental or special damages, including
but not limited to punitive or exemplary damages, whether any of the
said liability, loss or damages arise in contract, tort or otherwise.

The Customer shall indemnify and hold harmless ERHDC, its directors,
officers, employees and agents from any claims made by any third
parties in connection with the construction and installation of a
generator by or on behalf of the Customer.

ERHDC shall have access to all Customer real property in accordance
with section 40 of the Electricity Act, 1998, as amended from time to
time.

The Customer will comply with all aspects of the Ontario Electrical Safety
Code with respect to insuring that equipment is properly identified and
connected for metering and operation purposes and will take whatever
steps necessary to correct any deficiencies. If the Customer does

not take such action within the time set by the Electrical Safety Authority
(ESA), it may result in the Disconnection of the supply of power to the
Customer.

The Customer shall not build, plant or maintain or cause to be built,
planted or maintained any structure (driveway, patio, shed, etc..), tree,
shrub or landscaping that would or could obstruct the placement of new
or repair of existing Distribution System, endanger the equipment of

of ERHDC, interfere with the proper and safe operation of ERHDC'’s
Distribution System or adversely affect compliance with any applicable
legislation in the sole opinion of ERDCH. ERHDC may remove any or all
afore mentioned obstructions without the Customer having any claim for
damages against ERHDC.

The Customer shall not use or interfere with the Distribution System of
ERHDC except in accordance with a written agreement with ERHDC.
Such action may result in the Disconnection of the supply of power to
the Customer. The Customer must also grant ERHDC the right to seal
any point where an electrical connection may be made on the line side of
the metering equipment.

57



Operating Control

Repairs to
Defective
Customer
Owned Electrical
Equipment

Repairs to
Customer
Owned Structures

Force Majeure

1.7.4

1.7.5

1.7.6

1.7.7

The Customer will provide a convenient and safe place, satisfactory to
ERHDC, for installing, maintaining and operating its equipment in, on, or
about the Customer’s real property. ERHDC assumes no risk and will not
be liable for damages resulting from the presence of its equipment on the
Customer’s real property or approaches thereto, or action, omission

or occurrence beyond its control, or negligence of any persons over
whom ERHDC has no control. Unless an employee or an agent of
ERHDC, or other person lawfully entitled to do so, no person shall
remove, replace, alter, repair, inspect or tamper with ERHDC'’s
equipment. Customers will be required to pay the cost of repairs or
replacement of ERHDC's equipment that has been damaged or lost by
the direct or indirect act or omission of the Customer or its agents. The
physical location on Customer’s real property at which a Distributor’s
responsibility for operational control of distribution equipment ends is
defined by the DSC as the “Operational Demarcation Point”.

The Customer will be required to repair or replace any equipment owned
by the Customer that may effect the integrity or reliability of ERHDC'’s
Distribution System. If the Customer does not take such action within the
time set out by the ESA, ERHDC may disconnect the supply of

of power to the Customer.

Construction and maintenance of all Customer owned structures relating
to or affecting the ERHDC Distribution System including to but not limited
to such items as transformer vaults, transformer rooms, transformer
pads, cable chambers, cable pull rooms and underground conduit, will be
the responsibility of the Customer. All such improvements must be
inspected and accepted by the ESA. Subject to the ESA’s requirements,
the Customer is responsible for the maintenance of all such structures.
Failure to do so may result in Disconnection as per Section 2.2.

In this Conditions of Service, force majeure shall include, but not be
limited to an act of God, strikes, lockouts, or other labour or industrial
disturbances, civil disturbances, interruptions by Government or

Court Orders, power failure, telecommunication line failure, delay in
transmission, future valid orders of or delay in obtaining the approval or
consent of any regulatory body having jurisdiction, acts of the public
enemy, wars, riots, sabotage, epidemics, landslides, lightning,
earthquake, fire, storm, flood, washout and inclement weather including
without limiting the generality of the foregoing rendering the roads
dangerous or hazardous, to men or equipment, or impassable to vehicles
of the kind necessary to carry out the work or undertaking, or blockage or
stoppages of road traffic over the route specified caused by events
beyond the reasonable control of the parties hereto, or explosions and
any other event or occurrence beyond the reasonable control of the
parties hereto whether or not the nature of those herein above
mentioned.
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Distribution
System Installed
by Customer’s
Contractor

1.7.8

Other than for any amounts due and payable by the Customer to
ERHDC or by ERHDC to the Customer, neither ERHDC nor the
Customer shall be held to have committed an event of default in respect
of any obligation under these Conditions of Service if prevented from
performing that obligation, in whole or in part, because of a Force
Majeure Event. If a Force Majeure Event prevents either party from
performing any of its obligations under these Conditions of Service, that
party shall:

e other than for Force Majeure Events related to acts of God, promptly
notify the other party of the Force Majeure Event and its assessment
in good faith of the effect that the event will have on its ability to
perform any of its obligations. If the immediate notice is not in writing,
it shall be confirmed in writing as soon as reasonably practical;

e use its best efforts to mitigate the effects of the Force Majeure Event;
remedy its inability to perform, and resume full performance of its
obligations;

e keep the other party continually informed of its efforts; and

o other than for Force Majeure Events related to acts of God, provide
written notice to the other party when it resumes performance of any
obligations affected by the Force Majeure Event;

e if the Force Majeure Event is a strike or a lock out of ERHDC's
employees or authorized agents, ERHDC shall be entitled to
discharge its obligations to notify it's Customers in writing by means
of placing an ad in the local newspaper.

In those instances where the Customer has the authority to hire

a contractor to construct plant which will become part of ERHDC's
Distribution System, the plant must conform to ERHDC's standards
and the conditions set out in the staking data and/or service layout.
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Disputes and
Resolutions

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

1.8

181

1.8.2

1.8.3

For the purposes of the ERHDC Conditions of Service a dispute is
defined as a claim or complaint with respect to the interpretation of the
Conditions of Service.

ERHDC shall make a copy of the complaints resolution procedure
available during normal business hours listed in section 1.5.

ERHDC shall give or send a copy free of charge of the procedure to any
person who reasonably requests it.

ERHDC shall keep a record, for a period of up to seven (7) years, of all
complaints whether resolved or not including the name of the
complainant, the nature of the complaint, the date resolved or deferred
and the result of the dispute resolution.

Customers and Retailers will direct any disputes in writing to the
General Manager of ERHDC.

A meeting between the Customer or Retailer and the General Manager
of ERHDC will be scheduled in an attempt to resolve the dispute.

A written response by the General Manager of ERHDC will be given to
the Customer or Retailer within ten (10) working days of the meeting.

Failing settlement at stage one (1), the General Manager and the
ERHDC Board of Directors will schedule a meeting to address any
outstanding issue and respond further with the Customer or Retailer in
writing within fifteen (15) business days of their meeting.

Disputes of this nature include complaints that have not been or cannot
be resolved through the above processes. In these cases, the Customer
or Retailer is to contact the Ontario Energy Board at:

PH: 1-888-638-6273 (toll free)
FX: 416-440-7656

WEB: www.oeb.gov.on.ca
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2.5 Customer Information
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Section 2 - Distribution Activities (General)

Building that Lies 211 A For the purpose of the Conditions of Service, “Lies Along” means

Along a parcel of land that shares a common boundary with a public road
allowance where ERHDC has a Distribution System of the appropriate
voltage and capacity.

Under the terms of the Distribution System Code, ERHDC has the
obligation to connect (under Section 28 of the Electricity Act, 1998) a
building or facility that “Lies Along” its distribution line, provided:

¢ the building can be connected to ERHDC'’s Distribution System
without an Expansion or Enhancement and,

e the service installation meets the conditions listed in the Conditions
of Service of ERHDC. The location of the Customer’s Service
Entrance equipment will be subject to the approval of ERHDC and
the Electrical Safety Authority.

Service Connection (B) Normally there shall be only one service Connection to ERHDC's
Distribution System and one set of service wires to each lot, block or
parcel.

Expansions/Offers 2.1.2 ERHDC has the obligation to make an offer to connect any building

to Connect that is in the Service Area defined in Section 1.1. but ERHDC

may deny Connection for the reasons described in subsection 2.1.3.

Where the Connection would require an Expansion or Enhancement and
where the cost of an Expansion or Enhancement exceeds revenues
received, the Customer(s) may be required to pay a capital contribution
that does not exceed the difference. Theamount of capital contribution
for each customer class shall be defined for an Expansion or
Enhancement as further described in this section.

Application for (A) The Customer shall submit in writing an Application for Customer
Customer Connection, hereafter called the Application, on the form prescribed
Connection from time to time by ERHDC. The Application form shall be available at

the ERHDC office in Sault Ste-Marie listed in 1.5 of Section 1.
The customer shall present certain facts and information with the
Application. The Application shall not be considered complete until
all facts and information listed on the Application are submitted to

ERHDC.
Response to (B) ERHDC shall respond within fifteen (15) calendar days of receipt of
Application an Application.
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Offer to Connect — ©
Required
Information

Offer to Connect — (D)
Information

Provided to

Customer

Provided all required information has been submitted with the
Application and none of the conditions of Section 2.1.3 Connection
Denial apply, ERHDC shall make an offer to connect within 60
calendar days of receipt of the Application. If the Application is
incomplete or if any of the conditions of Section 2.1.3

apply; ERHDC's response shall so indicate. The Customer shall have 30
calendar days from the date of ERHDC'’s response to complete the
Application and/or remove the Section 2.1.3 condition, failing which the
Application shall be null and void. If the customer completes the
Application and/or removes the Section 2.1.3 condition within the 30
calendar days, ERHDC shall make an offer to connect within 60
calendar days of the date of receipt of the last piece of required
information.

An offer to connect shall provide the following information to the
Customer:

e identification of work for which the Customer may seek alternative
bids;

e terms and conditions for payments and deposits required; and

e any additional information pertinent to the offer.

If the offer includes an Expansion or Enhancement;

e adescription of material and labour required to build the Expansion
or Enhancement to connect the Customer if a capital contribution is
required from the Customer;

e an estimated cost of the Expansion or Enhancement that would be
revised based upon the actual costs incurred;

e an estimate of the capital contribution to be charged to the Customer
to construct the Expansion or Enhancement. The estimate shall
delineate costs attributed to engineering design, materials, labour,
equipment, and administrative activities;

If the offer includes a Connection;
e adescription and estimate of the connection charges that would
apply.
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Capital Contribution

Policy Residential
Rate Class

Residential Rate
Class Connection

Utilization Voltage

Primary Voltage

(E)

(F)

(G)

(H)

For capital contribution purposes, residential rate class Customers

are defined as those residential rate class Customers connected

as detached, semi-detached or duplex dwelling units. It does not

include residential rate class Customers in apartments, condominiums,
row housing or any other abode that is not a detached, semi-detached or
duplex dwelling unit. The definition does not include the installation of
primary, transformation and secondary to the hand holes in a new
subdivision. All items excluded from the residential rate class definition,
as above, shall be treated as general service rate class Customers for
capital contribution purposes.

Basic Residential Service Allowance (BRSA) — The BRSA is a
requirement under the DSC. ERHDC shall calculate the BRSA

by using 100% of the estimated cost to supply and install a 50-kVA
transformer on an existing pole complete with primary and secondary
connection. The standard 50-kVA transformer can feed approximately 25
Customers with an average demand of 2 kilowatts per home. The BSRA
shall be subject to annual revision as overheads, labour, truck,

material and sundry costs change. The BSRA in effect is found in
Section 5 Schedule 1.

A residential rate class Customer who accepts an offer to connect for
Connection at Utilization Voltage shall be subject to the following.
ERHDC shall supply and install all overhead transformation as part of a
basic connection, as defined in Section 3.1.4 and will recover the cost of
said basic connection as part of its revenue requirement. ERHDC shall
supply and install overhead or underground service conductor for a
fixed capital contribution as found in Section 5, Schedule 1 less the
BRSA. All overhead or underground service conductors in excess the
length indicated in Section 5, Schedule 1 shall be charged to the
Customer as a variable capital contribution at the rate found in Section 5,
Schedule 1.

A residential rate class Customer who accepts an offer to connect for
connection at Primary Voltage shall be subject to the following; the
Customer shall supply, install, own and maintain all primary and
secondary conductor. A capital contribution is required for the primary
and secondary Connections at the fixed rate found in Section 5,
Schedule 1.

Overhead -- ERHDC shall supply and install all overhead transformation
on a Customer owned pole as part of a basic connection as defined in
Section 3.1.4 and will recover the cost of this basic connection, including
the BRSA, as part of its revenue requirement. The Customer shall
supply, install, own and maintain all poles on the Customer’s own real

property.
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Underground -- ERHDC shall supply and install pad mounted
transformation and the Customer shall pay a capital contribution towards
connection and transformation at the fixed rate found in Section 5,
Schedule 1.
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Residential Rate ()
Class

Enhancement

Residential Rate (J)

Class Expansion

Capital Contribution (K)
Policy General
Service Rate Class

Utilization Voltage (L)
Up to and Including

150kW For a New or

Upgraded Service

Primary Voltage (M)
150kW Up to and

Including 3000kW

For a New or

System Enhancements required to connect a residential rate class
Customer as defined in this section do not require a capital contribution.

ERHDC shall collect contributed capital to the maximum amount
permissible for an Expansion under the economic evaluation formula
stipulated in Appendix B of the DSC. A capital contribution equal to the
total estimated cost shall be collected prior to construction commencing.
A refund or request for further monies shall be made when the actual
cost is determined. The actual cost shall be held and some, none or all
monies refunded based on an annual calculation of actual distribution
revenues received, as per the economic evaluation of Appendix B of the
DSC. If, in accordance with Section 3.3 of the DSC, the Customer
chooses to obtain alternative bids from qualified contractors, the
Customer shall pay the Distributor a capital contribution equal to the total
estimated cost for all engineering, inspection, other services, applicable
materials and all other associated costs and expenses. A refund or
request for further monies shall be made when the actual cost is
determined. The Customer shall provide invoices for all contract

labour, trucking, sundry and material costs to construct the Expansion.
The Distributor shall place a total amount on the capital books of the
Distributor equal to the sum of the invoices provided plus the

actual internal cost. This amount shall be offset by an equal amount of
capital contribution. The capital contribution shall be held and some,
none or all monies refunded based on an annual calculation of

actual distribution revenues received, as per the economic evaluation of
Appendix B of the DSC.

For capital contribution purposes the general service rate class includes
those residential rate class Customers that are not in detached,
semi-detached or duplex dwelling units. The general service rate class
also includes subdivision developments and all Customers not defined
as residential rate class Customers.

A general service rate class Customer who accepts an offer to

connect for Connection at Utilization Voltage shall be subject to

the following; for a New or Upgraded Service up to and including

a maximum of 150 kilowatts, ERHDC shall supply and install overhead
transformation and overhead or underground service conductor for a
fixed capital contribution as found in Section 5, Schedule 2. All overhead
or underground service conductors in excess the length indicated in
Section 5, Schedule 2 shall be charged to the Customer as a variable
capital contribution found in Section 5, Schedule 2.

A general service rate class Customer who accepts an offer to
connect for Connection at Primary Voltage shall be subject to the
following. For a New or Upgraded Service normally greater

than 150 kilowatts up to an including 3000 kilowatts, the Customer
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Upgraded Service

Primary Voltage (N)
150kW to 3000kW

Alternate Bid For a

New or Upgraded

Service

Sub-transmission (O)
Voltage

shall provide a capital contribution for the supply and installation

of an underground or overhead primary supply and a transformer on
Customer real property. In addition to the aforementioned capital
contribution, a substation capital contribution equal to a fixed rate

(see Section 5, Schedule 3) times the rated capacity of the
transformer(s) in kVA, is required when the transformer capacity on site
exceeds 1,500 kVA. The alternative to paying the substation capital
contribution is for the Customer to supply and install a Customer owned
22 or 44 kV substation with primary metering.

If the Customer chooses to take supply at primary voltage and obtain
alternative bids from qualified contractors, in accordance with

Section 3.3 of the DSC, the Customer shall pay the Distributor

a capital contribution equal to the total estimated cost for all

engineering, inspection, other services, applicable materials and all other
associated costs and expenses. A refund or request for further monies
shall be made when the actual cost is determined.

The Customer shall provide invoices for all contract labour, trucking,
sundry and material costs to construct the Expansion. The Distributor
shall place a total amount on the capital books of the Distributor

equal to the sum of the invoices provided plus the actual internal cost.
This amount shall be offset on the books of the Distributor by an equal
amount of capital contribution. The capital contribution shall be held and
some, none or all monies refunded based on an annual calculation of
actual distribution revenues received, as per the economic evaluation of
Appendix B of the DSC.

A general rate class Customer who accepts an offer to connect for
Connection at Sub-transmission Voltage shall be subject to the
following. The Customer will pay a capital contribution for all metering
and Connections. The Customer will supply, install, own and maintain all
overhead and underground lines on real property and shall supply,
install, own and maintain a 44 kV substation.
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General Service
Rate Class
Enhancements

General Service
Rate Class
Expansion

(P)

Q)

System Enhancements required to connect a general rate class
Customer as defined in this section include conversion of an

existing single or two phase primary line to a three phase line and/or
upgrades to an existing single, two or three phase line. These and other
Enhancements require a capital contribution from the general class
Customer. ERHDC shall collect contributed capital to the maximum
amount permissible under the economic evaluation formula stipulated in
Appendix B of the DSC. A capital contribution equal to the total
estimated cost shall be collected prior to construction commencing. A
refund or request for further monies shall be made when the actual cost
is determined. The actual cost shall be held and some, none or all
monies refunded based on an annual calculation of actual distribution
revenues received, as per the economic evaluation of Appendix B of the
DSC. If, in accordance with Section 3.3 of the DSC, the customer
chooses to obtain alternative bids from qualified contractors, the
Customer shall pay the Distributor a capital contribution equal to the total
estimated cost for all engineering, inspection, other services, applicable
materials and all other associated costs and expenses. A refund or
request for further monies shall be made when the actual cost is
determined. The Customer shall provide invoices for all contract labour,
trucking, sundry and material costs to construct the Expansion. The
Distributor shall place a total amount on the capital books of the
Distributor equal to the sum of the invoices provided plus the actual
internal cost. This amount shall be offset on the books of the Distributor
by an equal amount of capital contribution. The capital contribution shall
be held and some, none or all monies refunded based on an annual
calculation of actual distribution revenues received, as per the economic
evaluation of Appendix B of the DSC.

ERHDC shall collect contributed capital for an Expansion to the
maximum amount permissible under the economic evaluation

formula stipulated in Appendix B of the DSC. A capital contribution
Equal to the total estimated cost shall be collected prior to construction
commencing. A refund or request for further monies shall be made when
the actual cost is determined. The actual cost shall be held and some

or all monies refunded annually based on actual distribution revenues
received, as per the economic evaluation of Appendix B of the DSC.

If, in accordance with Section 3.3 of the DSC, the Customer chooses to
obtain alternative bids from qualified contractors, the Customer shall pay
the Distributor a capital contribution equal to the total estimated cost for
all engineering, inspection, other services, applicable materials and all
other associated costs and expenses. A refund or request for further
monies shall be made when the actual cost is determined. The Customer
shall provide invoices for all contract labour, trucking, sundry and
material costs to construct the Expansion. The Distributor shall place a
total amount on the capital books of the Distributor equal to the sum of
the invoices provided plus the actual internal cost. This amount shall be
offset on the books of the Distributor by an equal amount of capital
contribution. The capital contribution shall be held and some, none or all
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Connection Denial

Inspection Before
Connection

2.13

214

monies refunded based on an annual calculation of actual distribution
revenues received, as per the economic evaluation of Appendix B of the
DSC.

The Distribution System Code provides for the ability of ERHDC as a

Distributor to deny Connections. As a Distributor, ERHDC is not

obligated to connect a building within its Service Area if the Connection

would result in any of the following:

e Contravention of existing laws of Canada and the Province
of Ontario;

¢ Violations of conditions in ERHDC's Distribution License;

e Use of a Distribution System line for a purpose that it does not serve
and that the Distributor does not intend to serve;

e Adverse affect on the reliability or safety of the Distribution System;

e Public safety reasons or imposition of an unsafe work situation
beyond normal risks inherent in the operation of the Distribution
System

e A material decrease in the efficiency of the Distributor’s Distribution
System

e A materially adverse effect on the quality of
Distribution Services received by an existing Customer;

o Discriminatory access to Distribution Services.

. If the customer requesting the Connection owes ERHDC money;

o If an electrical Connection to the ERHDC Distribution System

does not meet ERHDC design requirements;
. Breaches of any other conditions documented in the Conditions of
Service.

If ERHDC refuses to connect a building in its Service Area that lies along
one of its distribution lines, ERHDC shall inform the person requesting
the Connection of the reasons for the denial, and where ERHDC is able
to provide a remedy, make an offer to connect. If ERHDC is unable to
provide a remedy to resolve the issue, it is the responsibility of the
Customer to do so before a Connection can be made.

All Customer electrical installations shall be inspected and approved by
the Electrical Safety Authority and must also meet ERHDC requirements.
ERHDC requires notification from the Electrical Safety Authority of this
approval prior to the energization of a Customer’s supply of electricity.
Services that have been disconnected for a period of six months or
longer must also be re-inspected and approved by the Electrical Safety
Authority, prior to reconnection.

Customer owned substations must be inspected by the Electrical Safety
Authority.

Transformer rooms shall be inspected and approved by the ESA prior
to the installation of ERHDC equipment.

Duct banks shall be inspected and approved by the ESA prior to the
pouring of concrete and again before backfilling. The completed ducts
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2.15

2.1.6

217

(A)

must be rodded by the site contractor in the presence of a ERHDC
inspector and shall be clear of all extraneous material. In the event of
blocked ducts, the owner’s representative will be responsible for clearing
the ducts prior to the cable installation.

Work on existing concrete duct banks or maintenance holes shall be
done only by a contractor approved by ERHDC or by the ERHDC work
force.

All work done on ERHDC'’s plant must be authorized by ERHDC and
carried out in accordance with all applicable safety acts and Regulations.
Provision for metering shall be inspected and approved by ERHDC prior
to energization.

When requested to relocate or change the elevation of the existing
Distribution System, ERHDC shall exercise its rights and discharge
its obligations in accordance with existing acts, by-laws and
Regulations including, but not limited to, the Public

Service Works on Highways Act, formal agreements,

easements and law.

In the absence of existing agreements, ERHDC is not obligated

to relocate the Distribution System. However, ERHDC shall

resolve the issue in a fair and reasonable manner. Resolution in a fair
and reasonable manner will include a response to the requesting party
that explains the feasibility or infeasibility of the relocation and a fair and
reasonable charge for relocation based on 100% cost recovery.

The Customer shall grant at no cost including preparation and
registration to ERHDC, where required, an easement to permit

the installation and maintenance of the Distribution System.
ERHDC shall determine the width and extent of this easement. The
easement shall be granted prior to Connection of the Customer.

Easements, agreements or reference plans must be approved by
ERHDC prior to registration or recording against title of the real

property.

ERHDC applicable contracts and agreements must be signed and
executed by the Customer before energizing the service.

Application for Customer Connection
Offer to Connect

Construction Agreement

Subdivision Agreement

Easement Agreement

Underground Distribution Agreement
Electrical Distribution Vault Agreement
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Implied Contracts

Disconnection
Business
Process

Disconnection
Without Prior
Notice

217

2.2

2.2

(B)

(A)

(B)

In all cases, notwithstanding the absence of a written contract,

ERHDC has an implied contract with any Customer that is connected to
ERHDC Distribution System and receives Distribution Services from
ERHDC. The terms of the implied contract are embedded in the
Conditions of Service, the Rate Handbook, ERHDC approved Rate
schedule, ERHDC distribution license and the Distribution System Code,
as amended from time to time.

Any Customer or Retailer who takes or uses electricity from ERHDC
shall be liable for payment for approved Rates applied to the sale and
conveyance of said electricity. Any implied contract for the supply and
conveyance of electricity by ERHDC shall be binding upon the heirs,
administrators, executors, successors or assigns of the Customer who
took and/or used Distribution Services supplied by ERHDC.

ERHDC reserves the right to disconnect the supply of electrical energy
for causes including but not limited to:

Contravention of the laws of Canada or the Province of Ontario;

. Adverse effect on the reliability and safety of the Distribution
System;

o Imposition of an unsafe worker situation beyond normal risks
inherent in the operation of the Distribution System;

o A material decrease in the efficiency of the Distributor’s
Distribution System;

. A materially adverse effect on the quality of Distribution Services
received by an existing Customer;

o Discriminatory access to Distribution Services;

. Inability of ERHDC to perform planned inspections & maintenance

° Failure of the Customer to comply with a directive of ERHDC that
ERHDC makes for purposes of meeting its license obligations;

) Non payment of overdue accounts;

Electrical disturbance propagation caused by Customer
equipment that is not corrected in a timely fashion;
. Energy diversion, fraud or abuse on the part of the Customer; and
o Breaches of any other conditions identified in this Conditions of
Service document.

ERHDC may disconnect the supply of electricity to a Customer
without prior notice in accordance with a court order, valid order
of any regulatory body having jurisdiction or for Emergency, safety
or system reliability reasons.
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Disconnection With ©
Prior Notice

Non Payment of

Overdue Account

Disconnection With (D)
Prior Notice
Planned Outage

Disconnection With (E)
Prior Notice

All Other

Circumstances

Conveyance of 231 (A

Outstanding bills are subject to the collection process and may
ultimately lead to the service being discontinued. No disconnect
action will be taken until the Customer has been issued a disconnect
notice. Reasonable efforts will be made to establish direct contact with
the Customer. Services will be restored once satisfactory payment has
been made. Discontinuance of service does not relieve the Customer of
the liability for arrears. Bills are normally due 16 days following the
mailing date. Collection actions may commence on the next business
day following the due date if an outstanding balance remains. These
actions include one or all of the following:
e The issuance of a Final Notice seven (7) days after the due date;
e Theissuance of a disconnect letter on the seventh (7”‘) day
following the Final Notice. Disconnect Letters are forwarded by
registered mail — and are considered received on the third day
regardless of whether or not they are accepted by the customer.
These letters specify the date the arrears must be paid (seven
(7) days from the date of the letter) — or the disconnect will occur
immediately there after. A “Disconnect Letter” charge is applied
to the account.
e Should a disconnect actually occur, all arrears must be paid in
full (including an additional “Reconnection” charge) before a
reconnection will be authorized.

The utility bears no responsibility for any damages incurred due
to a service disconnection for non-payment of arrears.

ERHDC will endeavor to provide Customers with reasonable notice
of Disconnection. Notice, if given, may include written, verbal or public
notice.

(iv) When ERHDC becomes aware of a situation that may result in
Disconnection for any reason other than that described in Section

2.2 (B) — (i), (ii) or (iii), ERHDC shall perform an appropriate
investigation and attempt to resolve the issue or problem with the
Customer(s) involved. If the issue or problem is not resolved within 30
calendar days of becoming aware of the issue or problem, ERHDC may
at its sole discretion send written notice to the Customer(s) describing
the issue or problem and set a 15 business day deadline for the
Customer(s) to resolve the issue or problem. If these actions do not
result in the resolution of the issue or problem, the service(s) may be
disconnected at any time after the deadline date without further notice.
Reconnection will require ESA approval. ERHDC shall not be liable for
damage to the Customer’s real property or the Customer’s equipment
resulting from such discontinuance of service.

ERHDC agrees to use reasonable diligence to provide a regular
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Electricity and uninterrupted service but does not guarantee constant service
Limitations on the or the maintenance of invariable frequency or voltage and will not be
Guaranty of Supply liable for damages occasioned by the failure to provide such services to

the Customer.

Customers requiring a higher degree of security than that of normal
supply are responsible to provide their own back-up or standby
facilities. Customers may require special protective equipment

at their premises to minimize the effect of momentary power
interruptions.

Customers requiring a three-phase supply should install protective
apparatus to avoid damage to their equipment, which may be caused by
the interruption of one phase, or non-simultaneous switching of

phases of the Distributor’s supply.

Powers of Entry 231 (B) ERHDC may enter on the Customer’s premises and remove meters,
lines, stations, plant, appliances and equipment owned and installed by
ERHDC when the Customer requests Disconnection in writing and all
associated contracts for the supply of power have been terminated.

To assist with Distribution System outages or Emergency response,
ERHDC may require a Customer to provide ERHDC with access to
Customer owned distribution equipment that normally is operated by
ERHDC or ERHDC owned equipment on Customer’s real property.

ERHDC shall have rights to access to a real property in
accordance with Section 40 of the Electricity Act,
1998 and any successor acts thereto.

Power Quality 232 (A ERHDC will respond to any power quality complaints. Should it be
determined that the fault lies within the Distribution System, ERHDC wiill
take all necessary measures to alleviate the problem provided such
correction is not detrimental to any other Customer. Should the concern
be on the Customer’s side of the Ownership Demarcation Point,
reimbursement of costs incurred for investigation purposes shall be
invoiced to the Customer.

Notification For (B) Although it is ERHDC's policy to minimize inconvenience to Customers,

Interruption it is necessary to occasionally interrupt a Customer’s supply to allow
work on the Distribution System. ERHDC will endeavor to provide the
Customers with reasonable notice of planned power interruptions. Notice
may not be given where work is of an Emergency nature involving the
possibility of injury to persons or damage to property or equipment.
However, during an Emergency, ERHDC may interrupt supply to a
Customer in response to a shortage of supply or to effect repairs on
ERHDC'’s Distribution System or while repairs are being made to
Customer owned equipment.
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Customers On
Life Support

Scheduled
Interruptions

Electrical 2.3.3
Disturbances

(©)

(D)

(A)

(B)

©

D)

(E)

Customers who require an uninterrupted source of power must provide
their own equipment for these purposes.

Customers with life support system are encouraged to inform ERHDC of
their medical needs and their available backup power. These Customers
are responsible for ensuring that the information they provide to ERHDC
is accurate and up-to-date. With planned interruptions, the same
procedure as prescribed in section 2.3.2(B) will be observed. For

those unplanned power interruptions that extend beyond two hours and
the time expected to restore power is longer than what was indicated by
Customers (registered on life support) as their available backup power,
ERHDC will endeavor to contact these Customers but will not be liable in
any manner to the Customers for failure to do so.

During construction ERHDC may require to interrupt sections of the
Distribution System usually isolated but not limited to a single
transformer and the Customers fed from it. The crew leader or crew
member may attempt to inform all affected Customers prior to the
interruption.

Electrical equipment shall not be connected to the Customer’s service,
which will produce an undesirable system disturbance on the Utility’s
circuits.

Customers should consult ERHDC to ensure that proposed equipment
will not cause undesirable system disturbances.

If, in the opinion of the Utility, an undesirable system disturbance is being
caused by existing Customer equipment, the Customer will be required
to cease operation of the equipment until remedial action has been
taken.

If the Customer does not take such action within a reasonable time, the
Utility may disconnect the supply of power to the Customer. See Section
2.2 (B) (iv).

ERHDC may require the installation of additional facilities to nullify the

undesirable effect. The additional facilities will be installed at the
Customer’s expense.
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Standard Voltage 234

Offering

Voltage
Guidelines

Back-up
Generators

2.3.5

2.3.6

Standard Service supply and nominal voltages supplied by ERHDC
are as follows:

e 120/240 volts, single-phase, three wire with
a solidly grounded neutral;

e 120/208volts, wye, three-phase, four wire
with a solidly grounded neutral;

e 347/600 volts, wye, three-phase, four wire
with a solidly grounded neutral;

e 7200/12,470 volts, wye, three-phase, four
wire, Customer owned substation with
primary metering in a 12kV distribution area
with a solidly grounded neutral;

e 44,000 volts Delta, three-phase, three wire,
Customer owned substation with primary
metering, in a 44kV distribution area.

ERHDC attempts to maintain voltage variation limits under normal
operating conditions at the Customer’s Service Entrance as specified
by the Canadian Standards Association, specification number C235,
as amended from time to time.

Customers requiring a higher degree of security than that of normal
supply are responsible for providing standby back-up facilities to meet
their security requirements at their own expense. It is recommended that
proper protective apparatus be installed to avoid damage to sensitive
electronic equipment.

Customers with portable or permanently connected Emergency Backup
capability shall comply with all applicable criteria of the Ontario Electrical
Safety Code and in particular, shall ensure that Customer Emergency
Backup does not back-feed on the Utility’s Distribution System.

Customers with permanently connected Emergency Backup equipment
shall notify ERHDC regarding the presence of such equipment.
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23.7.1

There shall be no obstruction, object, equipment or thing within one
metre in all directions of an electric meter excepting the wall to which
it is attached.

The top of a metering base shall be not less than 1.2 meters or greater
than 1.8 meters above grade.

Where there is a possibility of danger to workmen or damage to
equipment from moving machinery, dust, fumes, gas, heat, cold or
moisture, protective apparatus satisfactory to ERH shall be provided by
the Customer.

Where excessive vibration may affect metering equipment, shock-
absorbing devices, approved by ERHDC shall be provided and installed
by the Customer. The Customer shall contact ERHDC where such
conditions may occur.

Normal meter locations will be on the driveway side up to a maximum of
three (3) meters from the front corner of the dwelling unless otherwise
approved by ERHDC.

If and when a fence is constructed to enclose the property, the meter is
not to be enclosed within the fenced area.

The Customer will be responsible for costs incurred due to damage or
removal of meters, wires or equipment of ERHDC on the real property of
the Customer when caused by other than the Utility or when damage is
due to other than normal use.

All single phase, underground services shall have a minimum capacity of
200 amperes and shall be of an outdoor type meter base with a minimum
dimension of 300mm by 500 mm by 115 mm unless otherwise approved
by ERHDC.

Three-phase services up to 200 amperes at 120/208 volts and 347/600
volts can be provided with socket type meters.

Provision must be made to permit ERHDC to install outdoor socket-type

meters on all single-phase services up to and including 400 amperes, on
the line side of the fused disconnect.
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Current
Transformer
Cabinets

Interval Metering

23.7.2

2.3.7.3

Metering cabinets must be provided inside the Customer’s building

for all 120/240 volt services in excess of 400 amperes. These installations

will have outdoor meter sockets complete with a shorting device. The Customer
will also connect the socket to the cabinet with a 30 mm approved conduit
suitable for ERHDC's wiring.

Three-phase services in excess of 200 amperes at 120/208 volts and
three-phase services 200 amperes and above at 347/600 volts will
require an approved meter cabinet, at the Customer’s expense to house
instrument transformers.

Where metering cabinets are required, they shall have the following
minimum dimensions:

e 100 amperes and 200 amperes services:
500 mm x 750 mm x 250 mm
e 400 amperes to 1000 amperes services:
1200 mm x 1200 mm x 500 mm
When space for mounting instrument transformers is provided in the
Customer’s switchboard, a 500 mm x 750 mm x 250 mm cabinet is
required. A 30 mm conduit is also required from the switchboard to the
meter cabinet.

Metering cabinets must be fitted with a hasp to allow for locking using a
padlock.

Cabinets shall be equipped with removable steel subpanels to facilitate
shop wiring and testing of the metering equipment.

All Customers below 500KVA have the option of requesting Interval
Metering. All Customers above 500KVA shall have Interval Metering.

Customers that request or require Interval Metering will be responsible
for the following costs:

e Cost of the Interval Meter.

¢ All additional installation costs associated with the Interval Meter.
¢ Ongoing maintenance, including allowance for meter failure.

¢ Verification and re-verification of the meter.

¢ Installation and ongoing provision of communication line or
communication link.

79



Meter Reading

Final Meter
Reading

Faulty
Registration
of Meters

Over billing

Under billing

Exhibit: 1

Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

23.7.4

23.75

2.3.7.6

2.3.7.7

2.3.7.8

e Cost of metering made redundant by the Customer requesting
Interval Metering.
The Customer is responsible for incremental costs associated with
Interval Metering, regardless of whether the Interval Metering is installed
at the request of the Customer or in compliance with these Conditions of
Service.
Ownership of the meter shall remain with ERHDC.

All meters are read monthly provided access to the meter is possible.
Those meters that are not accessible are estimated.

The Customer shall allow employees or authorized agents of ERHDC
to have access to meter rooms between 8 am and 8 pm, seven (7) days
a week to read meters or to inspect, repair, install or remove meters,
wires and equipment of ERHDC.

Where such access is not readily available, the Customer must make
semi-annual arrangements at a mutually agreeable time to allow ERHDC
access to the meter.

Please see Section 2.4.4.2 for the process to be used if a meter reading
is not obtained.

When a Customer is moving or otherwise no longer requires service
from ERHDC, the Customer shall provide ERHDC with a minimum

of five (5) business days notice of the date of termination of service so
that ERHDC may obtain a final meter reading as close as possible to the
termination date.

Metering electricity usage for the purpose of billing is governed by
the Federal Electricity and Gas Inspection Act and associated
regulations, under the jurisdiction of Measurement Canada.
ERHDC revenue meters are required to comply with the accuracy
specifications established by the Electricity and Gas Inspection Act.

Where a billing error, from any cause, has resulted in a Customer or
Retailer being over billed and Measurement Canada has not become
involved in the dispute, ERHDC shall credit the Customer or Retailer
with the amount erroneously billed. The credit ERHDC remits to the
appropriate parties shall be the amount erroneously billed for up to a six
(6) year period.

Where a billing error, from any cause, has resulted in a Customer or
Retailer being under billed and Measurement Canada has not become
involved in the dispute, ERHDC shall charge the Customer or Retailer
with the amount not previously billed. The charges ERHDC bhills to the
appropriate parties shall be the amount not billed for up to a six (6) year
period.
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2.3.7.9

2.3.7.10

23.7.11

2.3.7.12

2.3.7.13

2.3.7.14

All metering disputes with respect to equipment verification will be
addressed and resolved through Measurement Canada. ERHDC,
the Customer or a Retailer can at any time request the services of
Measurement Canada or an accredited meter verifier in the process.

Customer owned primary Distribution Systems must be primary
metered with a fuse/interrupter combination switchgear approved
by ESA and built to ERHDC metering specifications.

Where primary switchgear and metering are required, 100% of the cost
will be paid by the Customer.

Primary metering cabinets on Utility poles will be supplied and installed
by the Utility at the Customer’s cost.

A pulse output meter will be installed where feasible in the reasonable
opinion of ERHDC, upon the Customer’s request. The Customer will pay
100% of the cost.

All electrical energy supplied to an office building or rental apartment
building may be bulk metered at the request of the Customer subject
to all applicable conditions.

Any building or complex may be individually metered.

Any building or complex may be converted from bulk metering
to individual metering subject to:

e The Customer making written application to ERHDC.

e Each unit has its own distinct partition/barrier and no two
meters are allocated to the same unit.

e The Customer supplying and installing meter sockets and
associated wiring, grouped in meter rooms, according to the
requirements of ERHDC and ESA.

e The metered voltage is 120/240 volts single phase or such other
voltage as may be approved by ERHDC from time to time.

e The Customer paying ERHDC for incremental capital cost of
meters and metering facilities for voltage other than 120/240 volt
single phase.

e The Customer being responsible for all costs associated with the
conversion from the main entrance switch to the secondary side
of ERHDC transformer when converting from 3 phase 3-wire
(delta) to a 3 phase 4-wire (Grounded Wye).
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2.3.7.15

2.4

2411

24.2

Internal renovations and/or expansions may require the
amalgamation of Service Entrance meters in order to comply with
ERHDC metering requirements at no cost to ERHDC.

When changing an existing residential service with inside meters,

all meters shall be relocated to the outside of the building, at no cost to
ERHDC. The meters must be relocated so that they are readily
accessible for meter reading.

Water, gas, sewer, other pipes or like equipment will not be permitted to
encroach on the safe working space requirements for a meter cabinet or
meter room.

ERHDC will only apply Board approved charges and tariffs. These
charges and tariffs are available from ERHDC upon request. ERHDC
may, from time to time, make application to the Minister or the Board as
appropriate for changes or adjustments to any or all charges or tariffs.
Customers shall be notified of the application in accordance with
legislation and Regulations in effect at the time of the application.

There will be a connection fee charged for new, upgraded or altered
services. These fees are not subject to Board approval. Service
connection fees are found in Section 5 and are subject to change
without notice.

ERHDC shall provide standard supply service to any Customer
Connected to its Distribution System along a municipal
Right-of-way, easement or private Distribution System:

e Who has not advised ERHDC in writing that they do not
wish to purchase electricity from ERHDC; or

e Who requests in writing to sell electricity to them; or

e Whose Retailer is unable for any reason to sell electricity
to them.

ERHDC shall discontinue to provide standard supply service to a
Customer who is connected to their Distribution System if:

e The Customer or Retailer acting on behalf of the Customer

informs ERHDC in writing that the Customer wishes to
purchase electricity from the Retailer; and
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Wheeling of
Power

Energy Security

2421

2.4.3

e The Customer or the Retailer acting on behalf of the
Customer informs ERHDC with the following information:
1) The date after which the Retailer is prepared to provide
service to the Customer, subject to the final meter reading date;
2) The Customer’s account number with the ERHDC; and
3) Other information necessary for implementing a change in
service that may be required by the Board, as amended from
time-to-time.

ERHDC shall begin to provide standard supply service to a Customer
who is connected to the ERHDC Distribution System and purchases
electricity from a Retailer if:

e The Customer or the Retailer acting on behalf of the Customer
informs ERHDC in writing that the Customer wishes to purchase
electricity from the Distributor;

e The Customer or the Retailer acting on behalf of the Customer
informs the Distributor that the Retailer is unable to sell electricity
to the Customer; and

e The Customer or the Retailer acting on behalf of the Customer
provides the Distributor with the following information:

1) The date after which the service will no longer be provided
by the Retailer, subject to the final meter reading date;

2) The Customer account number with ERHDC and;

3) Other information necessary for implementing a change in
service that may be required by the Board, as amended from
time to time

4) ERHDC may, at its discretion, refuse to process a service
transfer request for a Customer to switch to a Retailer if that
Customer owes money to ERHDC for Distribution Services and
or standard supply service.

Customers considering delivery of electricity through ERHDC's
Distribution System shall contact ERHDC for technical requirements and
current applicable Rates.

Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation requires the
following deposit and prudential requirements before providing a
Customer with Distribution Services, supply through Standard
Service Supply or through Distributor Consolidated Billing.

Except for Customers who meet the deposit waiver conditions
described below, all Customers are required to either pay a security
deposit or provide a guarantee to Espanola Regional Hydro
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Distribution Corporation for payment of all monies owing.
Security deposits must be in the form of (i) cash or cheque; or (ii)
an irrevocable (standby) letter of credit, a bond or a letter of
guarantee from a chartered bank, trust company or credit union; or
(iii) a letter of guarantee from a reputable third party (i.e. parent
company or customer of the Corporation whose account is in

good standing. Note: The following statement must be included on
the irrevocable letter of credit: “It is a condition of this Letter of
Credit that it shall be deemed to be automatically extended without
amendment from year to year from the present or any future
expiration date hereof, unless at least 30 days prior to the present
or any future expiration date, we notify you in writing by
registered mail that we elect not to consider this Letter of Credit to
be renewable for any additional period.”

The amount of the security deposit will be calculated as follows:

e Residential Customer — the average monthly bill for the
residence in question (over the most recent 12 consecutive
months within the past two years) multiplied by 2.5.

e Non Residential Customer — in any rate class other than a <50
kW demand rate who has a credit rating from a recognized
credit rating agency shall have the maximum amount of a
security deposit reduced according to the following table:

Credit Rating Allowable Reduction in Security Deposit
(Using Standard and Poor’s Rating Terminology)

AAA - and above or equivalent 100%
AA-, AA, AA+ or equivalent 95%
A-, From A, A + to below AA or equivalent 85%
BBB-, From BBB, BBB+ to below A or equivalent 75%
Below BBB- or equivalent 0%

A minimum of 25% of the required deposit must be paid before the
service is transferred into the new customer’s name. The remaining
75% will be billed on the first three regular utility bills and must be
paid by the due date of said bills or an immediate disconnection
will be ordered.
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Security deposits will be reviewed annually. Deposits will be
increased at that time if a recalculation warrants same. Deposits
will be returned to the Customer if it is proven that the Customer is
now in a position to be exempt from paying a Deposit. Returned
amounts will usually be credited to the Customer’s account.

Security deposits or guarantees may be waived for if the
following conditions are met:

a) Residential customers provide evidence of a good payment
record during the previous one (1) year which must have occurred
in the last twenty-four (24) months with another distributor or gas
distributor in Canada.

Non-Residential customers in a <50 kW demand rate class provide
a good record of five (5) years and customers in any other rate
class provide a good record of seven (7) years.

A good payment history excludes customers who have received
more than one disconnection notice from the distributor, who have
presented more than one cheque which has been returned for non-
sufficient funds, have more than one pre-authorized payment has
been returned for insufficient funds or a disconnect/collect trip has
occurred.

b) The Customer provides satisfactory credit check made at the
customer’s expense.

Security deposits shall not constitute payment of an outstanding
account, in whole or in part, and shall only be applied to amounts
owing on an Espanola Regional Hydro account when the account
is closed at which time any excess deposit funds will be refunded
to the Customer. However, the Utility reserves the right to
transfer a deposit credit to the customer’s new outstanding deposit
account. The Security deposit will be returned within six weeks of
the closure of the account.

The interest rate on cash deposits shall be at the Prime Business
Rate less 2% and will be applied to the deposit, on receipt of the
total deposit, on a yearly basis or on return or application of the
security deposit or closure of the account, whichever comes first.
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Billing

Prorating Bills and
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New Account
Setup Charge

Arrears Certificate

Transformer
Ownership Credit

Power Factor
Adjustments

Payment Plans

Monthly
Pre-Authorized Debit
(Budget PAD)

244

2441

2442

2443

24.4.4

2445

2446

245

2451

Non-cash security (i.e. letter of credit) will be applied after the
final-bill-due-date, if full payment is not received from the
Customer.

Service and demand charges will be prorated for first and final bills
only. Charges are based on a straight ratio calculation of the
number of days of occupancy by the Customer to a standard

30 day month.

Reasonable attempts will be made to obtain a meter reading for all
regular electricity bills. If a bill is estimated, it will be based on the
consumption history for the Customer, whenever possible.

When a Customer establishes a new account, a new account setup
charge, as approved by the Board from time to time, is applied to

their first bill. A new account is established and a new account setup
charge, as approved by the Board from time to time, applies to those
Customers who are new to the service area and those who have moved
locations within the service area.

A charge, as approved by the Board from time to time, is levied to
provide a certificate of arrears per service address. This is typically
provided to lawyers during a property purchase.

A credit will be provided for all demand billed to Customers owning their
own distribution transformer as approved by the Board, from time to time.

The Customer will be billed for demand based on the measured
kilowatts or 90% of the measured kilovolt amperes whichever is
greater. This provides an incentive for a Customer with a power
factor that is less than 90% lagging to improve their power factor.

ERHDC shall offer the following payment plans*:

A monthly, estimated amount shall be withdrawn automatically,
from the Customer’s bank account on due date of bill or either
the 1%, 10", 15", 20" day of a month. Throughout an 11 month
period, the estimated withdrawal amount may be adjusted
upwards or downwards, as actual billings warrant.

Customers shall be notified, in advance, of any required
adjustments.

The monthly payment plan shall be reconciled annually at which

time any residual amounts owing to ERHDC or the Customer shall

be paid, in full. Written notification of the outstanding balance shall be
provided on the settle-up invoice.
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Monthly 2452
Pre-Authorized Debit

(PAD)

Late Payment 2453
Charges

Disconnect/ 2454

Reconnect Charge

Returned Cheque 2455
Charge

If monthly payments are not maintained, Customers shall be
automatically removed from the plan by the subsequent withdrawal date,
if payment remains outstanding.

Upon request, Customers may opt out of this plan at any time, at which
point, standard billing and collection timelines shall apply.

Further terms and conditions are provided on the payment plan
application, which must be authorized and returned with a void cheque.

* This plan is available to Residential Customers on standard supply
service, only.

A pre-authorized bank debit of the net billed amount shall be withdrawn
from the Customer’s bank account on the due date of the bill, according
to their particular billing cycle.

If payments are not maintained or remain outstanding, Customers shall
be automatically removed from the plan within thirty (30) days of the due
date.

Upon request, Customers may opt out of this plan, at any time.

This plan is available to all Customers except those with Retailer
consolidated billing.

Further terms and conditions are provided on the payment plan
application, which must be authorized and returned with a void cheque.

Customers who default on their payments shall be required to

restore payment by the next months withdrawal date, in addition

to the current monthly payment. If the Customer cannot update

their payments, the plan will be suspended until the balance is cleared.

A late payment charge of 1.5% per month (19.56% annually) is
applied to all accounts not paid by the due date. Bills are due and
payable 16 days from the mailing date. This charge is levied on

any bill, including final bills. Where a partial payment has been made
by the Customer on or before the due date, the late payment
penalty will apply only to the outstanding amount of the bill at the
due date, inclusive of arrears from previous billings.

A disconnect/reconnect charge, as approved by the Board

from time to time, will be applied when the service is

reconnected. . Only one disconnect/reconnect charge will be
applied per billing period unless a partial payment has been made.

A charge, as approved by the Board from time to time, is applied
for each payment that cannot be processed.
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Credit Refunds 2.45.6 A refund, if applicable, for final accounts will be issued no sooner
than 10 days after the final payment has been received,
to allow sufficient time for clearing.

Customer 25 ERHDC will communicate general market and educational information
Information to Customers connected to it's Distribution System as required.

At the Customer’s request, ERHDC will provide a list of Retailers
who have service agreements in effect with ERHDC.

Upon a Customer’s written authorization, ERHDC will make the
Customer’s information available to the Customer, or third party,
as stated in chapter 11 of the Retail Settlement Code as
amended from time to time.
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Section 3 — Customer Class Specific

Table of Contents

3.0.1 Customer Classification for Rate Purposes
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(B) Utilization Voltage — Overhead Secondary Service, Clearance Pole Required

(C) Utilization Voltage — Overhead Secondary Service, Secondary Pole Line

Required

(D) Utilization Voltage — Underground Secondary Service, No Clearance Pole
Required

(E) Utilization Voltage — Underground Secondary Service, Clearance Pole
Required

(F) Primary Voltage — Overhead or Underground Primary Service

Basic Connection Residential Rate Class Customers

(A) Installation of Connection Assets in Excess of the Basic Connection

(B) Basic Connection Requiring More Than 30 Meters of Secondary Conductor

(C) Requirement for Customer Owned Clearance Pole — All Supply Voltages

(D) Requirement for Clearance Pole Not Owned by Customer — All Supply Voltages

(E) Maximum Single Phase Secondary Service Size

(F) Mandatory Underground Secondary Service Requirements in Subdivisions

(G) Underground Secondary Service Where Requested

(H) Underground Secondary Service Fed From an Overhead System — Clearance Poles

(1) Underground Secondary Service Fed From an Overhead System — Clearance Poles —
Requirement for Notice of Agreement

(J) Secondary Service Pole Line

(K) Primary Service Required to Serve Residential Rate Class Customer

(L) Customer Owned Secondary Service, Primary Service or Sub-transmission
Service — Requires a Connection Agreement

Meter Location

Metering Facilities Type and Size
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3.1.8 Customer Responsibilities Prior to a Service Connection
3.1.9 Customer Construction Requirements for up to 200 Ampere Underground Secondary Service
3.1.10 Customer Construction Requirements for 400 Ampere Underground Secondary
Service — up to 75 m (250°)
3.1.11 Construction Requirements for Secondary Service Pole Line
3.1.12 Construction Requirements for Primary Service Pole Line
3.1.13 Construction Requirements for Single Phase Underground Primary Service
3.1.14 Relocation or Adjustments of Underground Services — All Supply Voltages
3.1.15 Underground Service Wire Faults
3.1.16 Second Customer Fed From Existing Customer Owned Pole - Transfer of Ownership
3.2.0 General Service Rate Class
3.2.1 Early Consultation
3.2.2 Load Data
3.2.3 Standard Voltage
3.2.4 (A) Operational Demarcation Point — Secondary or Primary Voltage
3.2.4 (B) Operational Demarcation Point — Sub-transmission Voltage
3.2.5 Ownership Demarcation Point
3.2.5 (A) Utilization Voltage — Overhead Secondary Service, No Clearance Pole Required
3.2.,5 (B) Utilization Voltage — Overhead Secondary Service, Clearance Pole Required
3.2.5 (C) Utilization Voltage — Overhead Secondary Service, Secondary Pole Line Required
3.2.5 (D) Utilization Voltage — Underground Secondary Service, No Clearance Pole Required
3.2.5 (E) Utilization Voltage — Underground Secondary Service, Clearance Pole Required
3.2.5 (F) Primary Voltage — Overhead Primary Service
3.2.5 (G) Primary Voltage — Underground Primary Service
3.2.5 (H) Sub-transmission Voltage — Overhead Service
3.2.5 (I) Sub-transmission Voltage — Underground Service
3.2.6 Basic Connection General Service Rate Class under 50kW
3.2.6 (A) Installation of Connection Assets Above and Beyond the Basic Connection
3.2.6  (B) Basic Connection Requiring More than 30 Meters of Secondary Conductor
3.2.6 (C) Requirement for Customer Owned Clearance Pole — All Supply Voltages
3.2.6 (D) Requirement for Clearance Pole Not Owned by Customer —All Supply Voltages
3.2.6 (E) Mandatory Underground Secondary Service Requirements in Subdivisions
3.2.6 (F) Underground Secondary Service Where Requested
3.2.6 (G) Underground Secondary Service Fed From an Overhead System — Clearance Poles
3.2.6 (H) Underground Secondary Service Fed From an Overhead System — Clearance Poles —
Requirement for Notice of Agreement
3.2.6  (I) Secondary Service Pole Line
3.2.6  (J) Primary Service Required to Serve General Service Rate Class Customer
3.2.7 Meter Location
3.2.8 Metering Facilities Type and Size
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Customer Responsibilities

Customer Construction Requirements for up to 200 Ampere Underground Secondary Service
Construction Requirements for Secondary Service Pole Line

Construction Requirements for Primary Pole Line

Construction Requirements for Single Phase Underground Primary Service
Relocation of Underground Services — All Supply Voltages

Underground Service Faults

Second Customer Fed From Existing Customer Owned Pole - Transfer of Ownership
Residential Subdivisions

3.2.17.1 Developer’s Expense

3.2.17.2 Street Lighting

3.2.17.3 Maintenance Deposit

3.2.17.4 Pre-Servicing Agreements

3.2.17.5 Developer’s Responsibility

3.2.17.6 Distribution System Standard Subdivision Design

3.2.17.7 Construction

3.2.17.8 Road Crossings

3.2.17.9 Individual Service Entrances

Row Housing Services

331
3.3.2
3.3.2
3.3.3
3.34
3.35
3.3.6
3.3.7

Row Type Multiple Dwellings

(A) Early Consultation

(B) Load Data

Developer’s Expense

Area Lighting

Distribution System Standard Row Housing Design
Construction

Individual Service Entrances

General Service Rate Class Service (equal to or greater than 50kW)

3.4.1.

3.4.2
3.4.3

3.4.3
3.4.4
3.4.5
3.5.1

3.5.2
3.5.3

(A) Basic Service General Service Rate Class (Equal to or greater than 50kW and
up to but not including 150kW)

All Other Connection Asset Matters as per Section 3.2

(A) Basic Service General Service Rate Class (Equal to or greater than 150kW
and up to but not including 1500kw)

(B) Requirement for Vaults

All Other Connection Asset Matters as per Section 3.2

Construction Requirements for Three Phase Underground Primary Service

Basic Service General Service Rate Class (equal to or greater than 1500kW

and up to and including 3000kW)

Substation Transformer Capital Contribution (Equal to or exceeds 1500kW)

Customer Owned Substation as an Alternative to a Substation Transformer
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3.9
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3.11
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Capital Contribution
3.5.4 Major Customers (Greater than 3000 kW)
Embedded Generation
Embedded Market Participant Requirement to Inform in Writing
3.7.1 Requirement for Connection Agreement
3.7.2 Requirement for Independent Market Operator Compliant Metering
Embedded Distributor
Unmetered Connections
Temporary Services
3.10 (A) Temporary Services
3.10 (B) Supply Point Location
3.10 (C) Basic Service — Temporary Services
3.10 (D) Flat Rate Connect — Disconnection Fee for Basic Service
3.10 (E) Transformer Rental Fee
3.10 (F) Installation of Connection Assets Above and Beyond the Basic Connection
3.10 (G) Billing Continues Until Notified
3.10.1 Continuance of Distribution Services Beyond the Initial Twelve Month Period
3.10.2 Customer Responsibilities Prior to Service Connection
Signs & Non-Permanent Structures
3.11.1 (A) Metered Service Required Where None Exists
3.11.1 (B) Supply Point Location
3.11.1 (C) Basic Service — Signs and Non-Permanent Structures
3.11.1 (D) Billing Continues Until Notified

Section 3 - Customer Class Specific

Customer 3.01 Customers must be assessed by ERHDC, upon application
Classification for service to ensure the appropriate Rate Class is assigned
For Rate Purposes to the account.

There are four Rate Classes: Residential, General, General
(50kW or greater), and Unmetered Connections.

Residential (A) To qualify for residential Rates an electrical service shall meet
Rate Class all of the following conditions:
e The electricity shall be intended for and used
primarily for a residence in which one or more

person(s) reside.

e The electrical service shall be individually
metered, no bulk metering allowed.
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General Service (B)
Rate Class

General Service ©
Rate Class

(Equal To or

Greater Than

50kW)

Unmetered (D)
Connection

Residential Rate Class
Residential 3.1

Early Consultation 3.1.1

To qualify for general service Rates an electrical service shall
meet all of the following conditions:

e The electrical service shall not qualify as a
Residential Rate Class service.

e The electrical service shall have a peak demand less
than 50 kilowatts for seven or more months In any twelve
month period.

¢ New Connections will be classified based on the rating,
in amperes, of the main switch or sum of main switches.

To qualify for general service Rates (Equal To or Greater Than
50kW) an electrical service shall meet all of the following
conditions:

e The electrical service shall not qualify as a
Residential Rate Class service.

e The electrical service shall not qualify for General
Service Rate Class as defined in Section 3.0.1 (B).

o New Customers will be classified based on the
rating, in amperes, of the main switch or sum of
main switches.

Unmetered services shall only be permitted for streetlights
and sentinel lights.

For purposes of Section 3.1 and its related subsections,

Residential Rate Class customers are defined as those

Residential Rate Class customers connected as detached, semi-
detached or duplex dwelling units. It does not include Residential Rate
Class customers in apartments, condominiums, row housing or any other
abode that is not a detached, semi-detached or duplex dwelling unit. The
definition does not include the installation of primary, transformation and
secondary to the hand holes in a new subdivision. All items excluded
from the residential rate class definition, as above, shall be treated as
general service rate Class customers.

All Customers must supply ERHDC with a completed copy of the Town
of Espanola’s or Township of Sables-Spanish Rivers “Permit Approval
Form”, as amended from time to time, for all new or altered

service. To properly meet the Customer’s needs, the Customer or their
representative should consult with ERHDC in the early planning stages
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Operational 3.1.2
Demarcation Point —
All Supply Voltages

Ownership 3.1.3
Demarcation Point

Utilization Voltage — (A)
Overhead

Secondary Service,

No Clearance Pole

Required

Utilization Voltage — (B)
Overhead

Secondary Service,

Clearance Pole

Required

Utilization Voltage — (©)
Overhead

Secondary Service,

Secondary Pole

Line Required

Utilization Voltage — (D)
Underground

Secondary Service,

No Clearance Pole

Required

Utilization Voltage — (E)
Underground
Secondary Service,

to determine what facilities and voltages are required at the proposed
service location. ERHDC shall respond to the request for connection in
accordance with the terms and conditions of Section 2.1.2 — Offers to
Connect.

The Operational Demarcation Point for Residential Rate Class
Customers as defined in Section 3.1 shall be immediately
past the line side lugs (but not including the lugs)

on the meter base.

The Ownership Demarcation Point for Residential Rate Class
customers, as defined in Section 3.1, supplied by an overhead
Secondary Service shall be immediately past the connectors
at the top of the service mast, where no clearance pole is
required.

Where a clearance pole is the only pole required to meet the
standard in place and adopted by ERHDC from time to time and
the service extends only one span past the clearance pole,

the Ownership Demarcation Point for Residential Rate Class
customers, as defined in Section 3.1, supplied by an

overhead Secondary Service shall be immediately past

the connectors at the top of the service mast.

Where a Secondary Service on real property extends for

two or more poles, which may or may not include a

clearance pole, and;

Where a clearance pole is involved, the Ownership
Demarcation Point for Residential Rate Class customers,
as defined in Section 3.1, shall be immediately past the
connectors at the clearance pole, or;

Where no clearance pole is involved, the Ownership
Demarcation Point for Residential Rate Class Customers,
as defined in Section3.1, shall be immediately past the
connectors at the point of connection to ERHDC'’s
Distribution System.

The Ownership Demarcation Point for Residential Rate Class
customers, as defined in Section 3.1, supplied by an underground
Secondary Service shall be immediately past the line lugs

(but not including the lug) at the Customer’s Service Entrance,
where no clearance pole is required.

Where a clearance pole is the only pole required to meet the

standard in place and adopted by ERHDC from time to time
and the service extending beyond the clearance pole is an
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Clearance Pole
Required

Primary Voltage —
Overhead or
Underground
Primary Service

Basic Connection
Residential Rate
Class Customers

Installation of
Connection Assets
in Excess of the

Basic Connection
Basic Connection
Requiring More
Than 30 Meters of
Secondary
Conductor

Requirement for
Customer Owned
Clearance Pole — All
Supply Voltages

Requirement for
Clearance Pole Not
Owned by Customer
— All Supply

3.14

3.15

3.15

3.15

3.15

(F)

(A)

(B)

(©)

(D)

underground Secondary Service the Ownership Demarcation
Point for Residential Rate Class customers, as defined

in Section 3.1, shall be immediately past the line side lugs
(not including the lug) at the Customer’s Service Entrance.

The Ownership Demarcation Point for Residential Rate Class
Customers, as defined in Section 3.1, supplied by an overhead
or underground Primary Service shall be immediately past

the load side connector of the cutout switch. The distribution
transformer is owned by ERHDC and is installed on the
Customer owned Distribution System.

A basic connection for a Residential Rate Class customer as
defined in Section 3.1 shall be:

e Asingle-phase, 3-wire, 60 cycle, overhead secondary
service having a nominal voltage of 120/240 volts
and a maximum capacity of 200 amperes;

e The supply and installation of overhead transformation
sufficient to meet the needs of (a) and ;

e Up to 30 meters of secondary conductor, as measured
between the point of connection on ERHDC'’s
Distribution System and the Ownership Demarcation
Point of that Customer.

A basic connection shall require a capital contribution in
accordance with Section 2.1.2.

In all cases where a Customer requires Connection assets in
excess of the basic connection a capital contribution shall be
required in accordance with Section 2.1.2.

When a basic connection requires more than 30 meters of
secondary conductor the Customer shall pay a variable
connection fee in accordance with Section 2.1.2.

Where a Connection to the ERHDC's Distribution System
does not exist on the same side of a road allowance as the
Customer, the Customer shall supply and install on the
Customer’s real property, a clearance pole.

Where ERHDC or another corporate entity with whom ERHDC
has entered into an Agreement for Licensed Occupancy

(e.g. Bell Canada) has or desires to have a pole line on

the side of the road allowance on which the Customer’s
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Voltages

Maximum Single
Phase Secondary
Service Size

Mandatory
Underground
Secondary Service
Requirements in
Subdivisions

Underground
Secondary Service
Where Requested

Underground
Secondary Service
Fed From an
Overhead System —
Clearance Poles

Underground
Secondary Service
Fed From an
Overhead System —
Clearance Poles —
Requirement for

Notice of Agreement

Secondary Service
Pole Line

3.15

3.15

3.15

3.15

3.15

3.15

(E)

(F)

(G)

(H)

(0

()

real property exists, the Customer may not be required

to install a Customer owned clearance pole as per Section
3.1.5 (C). Specific conditions and costs may apply in this
instance. Customers are encouraged to initiate early
consultation, as per Section 3.1.1, so that the offer to
connect issued in accordance with Section 2.1.2, may
contain appropriate conditions and costs.

A single-phase, 3-wire, 60 cycle, Secondary Service having

a nominal voltage of 120/240 volts shall not exceed 400 amperes
in size. Service Entrances greater than 200 amperes and equal
to or less than400 amperes require service conductor

greater than that provided for in the basic connection

as described in 3.1.4 and therefore the Customer shall pay

a variable connection fee in accordance with Section2.1.2.

Consistent with the Town of Espanola and The Township of

Sables — Spanish Rivers “Official Plan” and related by-laws,
Residential Subdivisions, as described in Section 3.2.18, shall be
supplied by a ERHDC underground Distribution System. The
customer shall pay a connection fee in accordance with Section 2.1.2.

A Customer may request underground Secondary Service from
ERHDC. Where such a Connection is economically feasible
ERHDC shall make an offer to connect in accordance with
Section 2.1.2. The Customer shall pay a connection fee in
accordance with the appropriate subsection of Section 2.1.2.

Clearance poles to accommodate road crossings to an
underground Secondary Service will be required unless
otherwise agreed to in writing with ERHDC. Ownership
shall be as in accordance with Section3.1.5 (C) and 3.1.5 (D).

In addition to 3.1.5 (H) and 3.1.5 (C), the Customer is required

to sign an “Anchoring Agreement”, registered on title at 100%
cost to the Customer that will permit the installation of anchoring
and down guying on the Customer’s real property. The need

for the anchoring and guying or the “Anchoring Agreement”

will be at the sole discretion of ERHDC.

Refer to Section 5 Schedule 4 (Contracts and Other Agreements).

If a Secondary Service pole line or any other attachments,
which may or may not include a clearance pole, are

required on the Customer’s real property to support

the Secondary Service, these will be erected and maintained
by the Customer. This pole line shall be inspected and
approved by the ESA.
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Primary Service
Required to Serve
Residential Rate
Class Customer

3.15 (K)

Customer Owned
Secondary Service,
Primary Service or
Sub-transmission
Service — Requires a
Connection
Agreement

3.15 (L)

Meter Location 3.1.6

Metering Facilities 3.1.7

Type and Size

Where a Residential Rate Class customer, as defined in
section 3.1, is proposing to install a Service Entrance on the
Customer’s real property and the length of Secondary Service
required to feed the proposed Service Entrance, excluding any
road crossing, exceeds 50 meters, the Customer shall be
required to install a Customer owned Primary Service.

Where an overhead Distribution System exists, the Customer
may choose to install either an overhead or an underground
Primary Service. Where an underground Distribution System
exists, only an underground Primary Service may be installed.
In either situation, the installation shall be Customer installed,
owned and maintained. Primary Services installed as per this
Section shall be subject to the conditions of Section 2.1.4

-- Inspection Before Connection.

A Connection Agreement is required where a Customer is
served by Customer owned Service Wires.

The Connection Agreement shall be required to be
registered on the title of the Customer’s real property.

The Customer will arrange for a meter socket location

and service trench route by contacting ERHDC. The
Customer shall supply a survey plan or a site plan indicating
the proposed location of the Service Entrance equipment
with respect to the public right-of-way and lot lines.

For all metering facility types and sizes see all subsections
of Section 2.3.7 Metering.
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Customer 3.1.8
Responsibilities

Prior to a Service
Connection

Customer 3.1.9
Construction
Requirements for up

to 200 Ampere
Underground

Secondary Service

Prior to a service Connection, the Customer shall take
responsibility for the following :

e Obtain approval from the Electrical Safety
Authority

¢ Remit any and all deposits, fees, rates, securities
or other payments as may be required or
permitted by any Code, Board approved rate
or tariff, or these Conditions of Service.

e Complete and sign a “Contract for Service”.
Refer to Section 5 Schedule 4 (Contracts and
Other Agreements).

The Customer is responsible for supplying and installing a
75 mm Type Il P.V.C. conduit in a service trench, 1 m in
depth with service runs up to 53 m(175’) from the ERHDC's
supply point to a 50 mm (2”) riser pipe at the meter base
location. The Customer will also install a non-metallic pull
rope (400 kg or equivalent) in the service conduit to be
used by ERH to install underground Service Wires.

With a service run greater than 53m (175’) and less than
75 m (250), the conduit must be 100 mm (4") with a 75 mm
(3" riser pipe for an underground Service Wire.

The Customer is required to have the trench inspected and
approved by ERHDC prior to backfilling. Backfill must be granular
material (sand), void of scrap, rocks or debris.

If there is less than 915 mm (36”) cover available due
to bedrock then the conduit or duct shall be covered
by a minimum of 150 mm (6”) of 20mpa concrete.

It is the responsibility of the Customer to ensure the
service conduit is free of all debris, ice or blockage. If
the Service Wires cannot be installed due to ice,
debris or any other blockage the Customer shall clear
the conduit prior to the installation of the Service
Wires. A fee may be assessed for a return trip to
install the Service Wires.
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Customer
Construction
Requirements for
400 Ampere
Underground
Secondary Service
—up to 75 m (250')

Construction
Requirements for
Secondary Service
Pole Line

3.1.10

3.1.11

The Customer is responsible for supplying and installing a
100 mm (4”) Type Il P.V.C. conduit in a trench one meter

in depth. The trench must be as straight as possible with

a maximum of 3-90 degree bends. All bends are to be

a minimum of 915 mm36”) radius, not to exceed 90 degrees.

The Customer shall supply and install a non-metallic pull rope
with a minimum strength of 400 kg in the conduit run.

A transformer rated meter socket shall be supplied by
the Customer.

The Customer is required to have the trench inspected and
approved by ERH prior to backfilling. Backfill must be granular
material (sand), void of scrap, rocks or debris.

If there is less than 915 mm (36”) cover available due to
bedrock then the conduit or duct shall be covered by a
minimum of 150 mm (6") of 20 mpa concrete.

It is the responsibility of the Customer to ensure the service
conduit is free of all debris, ice or blockage. If the Service
Wires cannot be installed due to ice, debris or any other
blockage the Customer shall clear the conduit prior to the
installation of the Service Wires. A fee may be assessed
for a return trip to install the Service Wires.

The Customer shall supply, install and maintain the Secondary
Service pole line at their expense. ERHDC will provide an
estimate to construct the private pole line if requested.

Exhibit: 1

The Customer or their electrical contractor shall contact ERHDC
prior to commencement of the work to obtain approval for the location of
the Secondary Service pole line. Failure to do so may result in the pole

or poles having to be relocated at the Customer’s expense.

ERHDC will connect the Customer owned Secondary Service pole
line to the ERHDC Distribution System for a fee shown in Section 5

Schedule 3 (Secondary Connection Fee).

A clearance pole may be required for a Secondary Service pole
line. See Sections 3.1.5 (C) and 3.1.5(D) for details.

A Secondary Service pole line shall be installed according to ESA

and ERHDC requirements.

99



Exhibit: 1

Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

Construction
Requirements for
Primary Service
pole Line

Construction
Requirements for
Single Phase
Underground
Primary Service

3.1.12

3.1.13

The Customer shall supply, install, own and maintain the Primary
Service pole line at their expense. ERHDC will provide an
estimate to construct the Primary Service pole line if requested.

The Customer or their electrical contractor shall contact ERHDC

prior to commencement of the work to obtain approval for the location of
the Primary Service pole line. Failure to do so may result in the pole or
poles having to be relocated at the Customer’s expense.

An overhead Primary Service shall include a Customer owned
pole located within 20 meters of the road allowance as per standards
in place and adopted by ERHDC from time to time.

A primary fused cutout switch shall be installed by ERHDC on this
first Customer owned pole. The cost for the fused cutout switch
will be included in the private primary line connection fee as
shown in Section 5 Schedule 3.

ERHDC will connect the Customer’s Primary Service pole line to
the ERHDC Distribution System for a fee shown in Section 5 Schedule 3.

A clearance pole may be required for a Primary Service pole line.
See Sections 3.1.5 (C) and 3.1.5 (D) for details.

Primary Services installed as per this Section shall be subject to
the conditions of Section 2.1.4 — Inspection Before Connection.

The Customer shall supply and install two (2)-75 mm Type |l PVC
conduits in a concrete encased duct bank. The conduit shall
be supported by approved duct bank spacers located

no more than 1.5 m apart for the length of the duct bank.
The ducts shall have a minimum 50mm concrete
encasement and the top of the concrete encased duct

bank shall be a minimum of 1 m below grade. The
Customer shall install one (1)-50 mm Type Il PVC conduit
on top of the concrete encased duct bank. The Customer
shall install a non-metallic pull rope (400 kg or equivalent)

in all three conduits to be used by ERH to install a

Primary Service.

The Customer is required to have the trench inspected and

approved by ERHDC prior to backfilling. Backfill must be granular
material (sand), void of scrap, rocks or debris.
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Relocation or 3.1.14
Adjustments of
Underground

Services — All

Supply Voltages

Underground 3.1.15
Service Wire Faults

Second Customer 3.1.16
From Existing

Customer Owned

Pole Transfer of

Ownership

If there is less than 915 mm (36”) cover available due to bedrock
then the conduit or duct shall be covered by a minimum of 150 mm
(6”) of concrete.

It is the responsibility of the Customer to ensure the service conduit
is free of all debris, ice or blockage. If the Service Wires cannot

be installed due to ice, debris or any other blockage the Customer
shall clear the conduit prior to the installation of the Service

Wires. A fee may be assessed for a return trip to install the Service
Wires.

Requests for relocation of the Distribution System, including
but not limited to underground services shall be subject
to the conditions of Section 2.1.5 — Relocation of Plant.

Where the Service Wire is owned by ERHDC and a fault
arises out of the willful misconduct or negligence of a person
or persons other than ERHDC, the Customer shall be
responsible for the replacement or repair of the Service Wire.
ERHDC will repair or replace the Service Wire free of charge
for all other instances of an underground Service Wire fault.

If in the event a second Customer wishes supply from the
existing Customer owned pole, ERHDC shall assume
ownership of the Distribution System in question, subject
to the owner(s) of the Distribution System satisfying the
following conditions.

e Aregistered easement is granted to ERHDC at no
legal, registration or survey expense to the Ultility.
e The Distribution System in question has been

inspected by and approved by ERHDC.

e The Distribution System has been inspected
and approved by ESA.

Failing which, Connection of the second Customer shall be
denied.
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General Service Rate Class

General Service 3.2.0
Rate Class

Early Consultation 3.2.1

Load Data 3.2.2

Standard Voltage 3.2.3

Operational 3.24
Demarcation Point —
Secondary or

Primary Voltage

Operational 3.24
Demarcation Point —
Sub-transmission

(A)

(B)

For purposes of sections 3.2, 3.3 and 3.4 the General
Service Rate Class includes those Residential Rate
Class Customers that are not in detached, semi-detached
or duplex dwelling units. The General Service Rate

Class also includes subdivision developments and all
General Service Rate Class customers defined in
Sections 3.0.1 (B) and 3.0.1 (C).

See Section 3.1.1.

To assess the manner in which the Customer may be properly
served, the Customer shall provide ERHDC with the following:

e Estimated connected demand and future load;

e Specific listing of the types of loads for lighting, motor,
welding, heating, air conditioning, or other;

e Location of the site with a plot plan showing the
proposed location of the Service Entrance;

¢ Ampere and voltage rating and the interrupting
capacity of the main Secondary Service switch;

e Drawing of the main secondary Distribution
System showing the metering facilities;

e Where applicable, the number of suites, units,
retail outlets and areas of each.

The Customer has the option of selecting one of the standard
secondary voltages supplied by the ERHDC as indicated

in Section 2.3.4. If the Customer wants a Utilization Voltage
not found in Section 2.3.4 then the Customer shall supply
and install Customer owned transformation. Any such
installation shall be installed according to ESA and ERHDC
requirements as adopted from time to time.

The Operational Demarcation Point for General Service Rate
Class customers as defined in Section3.2.0, served at
Secondary or Primary voltage shall be immediately past the

lugs on the main breaker(s) and/or fused disconnect switch(es).

The Operational Demarcation Point for General Service Rate
Class customers as defined in Section3.2.0, served at
Sub-transmission Voltage shall be immediately past the
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Voltage Customer owned Sub-transmission air break or load break switch.
Ownership 3.25

Demarcation Point

Utilization Voltage— 3.2.5 (A) See Section 3.1.3 (A)

Overhead

Secondary Service,

No Clearance Pole

Required

Utilization Voltage— 3.25 (B) See Section 3.1.3 (B).
Overhead

Secondary Service,

Clearance Pole

Required

Utilization Voltage— 3.25 (C) See Section 3.1.3 (C).
Overhead

Secondary Service,

Secondary Pole

Line Required

Utilization Voltage— 3.25 (D) See Section 3.1.3 (D).
Underground

Secondary Service,

No Clearance Pole

Required

Utilization Voltage— 3.25 (E) See Section 3.1.3 (E).
Underground

Secondary Service,

Clearance Pole

Required
Primary Voltage — 3.25 (F) The Ownership Demarcation Point for General Service Rate
Overhead Primary Class Customers, as defined in Section3.2.0, supplied by
Service an overhead Primary Service shall be immediately past the cutout.
Primary Voltage — 325 (G) The Ownership Demarcation Point for General Service Rate
Underground Class Customers, as defined in Section 3.2.0, supplied by an
Primary Service underground Primary Service shall be immediately past the
secondary connectors at the transformer, save and excluding
the primary duct bank(s), transformer foundation(s) and
grounding. The Customer shall own and maintain all primary
duct bank(s), transformer foundation(s) and grounding.
Sub-transmission 3.25 (H) The Ownership Demarcation Point for General Service Rate
Voltage — Overhead Class Customers, as defined in Section3.2.0, supplied by an
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Service

Sub-transmission 3.25
Voltage —
Underground

Service

(1

General Service Rate Class <50

Basic Connection
General Service
Rate Class Under 50
kW

3.2.6

Installation of 3.2.6
Connection Assets
Above and Beyond
the Basic
Connection

Basic Connection 3.2.6
Requiring More
Than 30 Meters of
Secondary
Conductor
Requirement for 3.2.6
Customer Owned
Clearance Pole — All

Supply Voltages

(A)

(B)

(©)

overhead Sub-transmission Service shall be immediately
past the first dead-end found on a Customer owned pole

or structure located on the Customer’s real property.

The Ownership Demarcation Point for General Service Rate
Class Customers, as defined in Section3.2.0, supplied by
an underground Sub-transmission Service shall be
immediately past the live-line clamp.

A basic connection for a General Service Rate Class Customer
as defined in Section 3.2.0, who has a demand of less than 50 kwW
shall be:

e A single-phase, 3-wire, 60 cycle, overhead secondary
service having a nominal voltage 0f120/240 volts and a
maximum capacity of 200 amperes;

e The supply and installation of overhead transformation
sufficient to meet the needs of the above and ;

e Up to 30 meters of secondary conductor, as measured
between the point of Connection on ERHDC'’s
Distribution System and the Ownership Demarcation
Point.

A basic connection shall require a capital contribution
In accordance with Section 2.1.2.

See Section 3.1.5 (A).

See Section 3.1.5 (B)

See Section 3.1.5 (C).
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Requirement for
Clearance Pole Not
Owned by Customer
— All Supply
Voltages

Mandatory
Underground
Secondary Service
Requirements in
Subdivisions

Underground
Secondary Service
Where Requested

Underground
Secondary Service
Fed From an
Overhead System —
Clearance Poles
Underground
Secondary Service
Fed From an
Overhead System —
Clearance Poles —
Requirement for
Notice of Agreement

Secondary Service
Pole Line

Primary Service
Required to Serve
General Service
Rate Class
Customer

Meter Location

3.2.6

3.2.6

3.2.6

3.2.6

3.2.6

3.2.6

3.2.6

3.2.7

(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

(H)

(1

()

See Section 3.1.5 (D).

See Section 3.1.5 (F)

See Section 3.1.5 (G).

See Section 3.1.5 (H).

See Section 3.1.5 (I).

See Section 3.1.5 (J).

Where a General Service Rate Class customer, as defined in
section 3.2.0, is proposing to install a Service Entrance on the
Customer’s real property and the length of Secondary Service
required to feed the proposed Service Entrance, excluding
any road crossing, exceeds 75 meters, the Customer shall

be required to install a Customer owned Primary Service.

Where an overhead Distribution System exists, the Customer
may choose to install either an overhead or an underground
Primary Service. Where an underground Distribution System
exists, only an underground Primary Service may be installed.
A clearance pole may be required for a Primary Service. See
Sections 3.1.5 (C) and 3.1.5 (D) for details.

See Section 3.1.6.
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Metering Facilities
Type and Size

Customer
Responsibilities
Customer
Construction

Requirements for up

to 200 Ampere
Underground
Secondary Service

Construction
Requirements for
Secondary Service
Pole Line

Construction
Requirements for
Primary Pole Line

Construction
Requirements for
Single Phase
Underground
Primary Service

Relocation of
Underground
Services — All
Supply Voltages

Underground
Service Faults

Second Customer
Fed From Existing
Customer Owned
Pole Transfer of
Ownership

Residential
Subdivisions

Residential
Subdivisions

3.2.8

3.2.9

3.2.10

3.211

3.2.12

3.2.13

3.2.14

3.2.15

3.2.16

3.2.17

For all metering facility types and sizes see all subsections of
Section 2.3.7 Metering.

See Section 3.1.8.

See Section 3.1.9.

See Section 3.1.11.

See Section 3.1.12.

See Section 3.1.13.

See Section 3.1.14.

See Section 3.1.15.

See Section 3.1.16.

This section refers to the supply of Distribution Services to
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two or more residential lots, and may include land blocks developed
in combination with subdivisions developed on registered plans or

subdivisions developed under a pre-servicing agreement.
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3.217.1

3.2.17.2

3.2.17.3

3.217.4

3.2.17.5

Further, this section refers to the supply of Distribution Services

to and within a building project consisting of a number of
residential units to be built on a tract of land where a Subdivision
Agreement is required between the Town of Espanola or the
Township of Sables-Spanish Rivers and the developer.Further, this
section refers to the bringing of the necessary Distribution

System to the periphery of the land blocks within the subdivision,
which may be used for schools, churches, shopping centers, and
apartment complexes.

The developer will pay all costs associated with the installation of

the underground Distribution System within the subdivision and
necessary system Expansions and Enhancements to bring

ERHDC's supply at the Utility standards to the property line of

the subdivision. The developer is responsible for the preparation,
execution and registration of necessary easements and subdivision
servicing agreements. Costs will be based on ERHDC'’s approved capital
contribution policy (See Section 2.1.2)

The street light system is owned by the Town of Espanola and

The Township of Sables-Spanish Rivers. The developer will be
responsible for the cost of the street lighting system in the subdivision.
The street light system will be subject to approval by the Town of
Espanola, the Township of Sables-Spanish Rivers or their agent and
installed as per ESA requirements.

The developer will provide a two (2) year refundable maintenance
deposit equal to 10% of the total estimated capital cost of the
Distribution System within the subdivision. Interest on maintenance
deposits will be calculated and paid in the same

manner as energy deposits. (See Section 2.4.3.1).

Principle plus interest less maintenance expenses shall accrue over
a two year period effective the date of energization of the subdivision.
Any balance held on the second anniversary of the energization

of the subdivision will be refunded to the developer.

Subdivisions developed under a pre-servicing agreement will enter
into additional “Notice of Agreement” to protect ERHDC's future
easement and servicing requirements. Refer to Section 5 Schedule 4.
The developer shall provide ERHDC with the following information:

e Plan of subdivision; and

e Schedule of power requirements at defined stages of
development; and
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Distribution 3.2.17.6
System Standard
Subdivision Design

Construction 3.2.17.7

Road Crossings 3.2.17.8

Individual Service 3.2.17.9
Entrances
Row Housing Services 3.3

Row Type Multiple 3.3.1
Dwellings

e Type of heating and air conditioning for each dwelling unit; and

e One set of detailed engineering plans that will include driveway
locations; and

e Information regarding required electrical supply to all other types
of buildings or recreational facilities that may be constructed in
addition to detached or semidetached dwellings.

The Distribution System installed in a subdivision shall be an
underground, front lot on-street system, utilizing concrete

encased duct structures and direct buried duct structures for the
ERHDC cables. The Town of Espanola’s or the Township of Sables-
Spanish Rivers’ street lighting system shall be installed at the same time
as well as cable and telephone systems. Joint use trenching will be used
wherever possible to minimize construction costs.

Should the developer decide to have the Distribution System installed
by ERHDC, in accordance with Section2.1.2, the fabrication, material
ordering and installation of any plant will not commence until the
following conditions have been met:

¢ Allfinancial securities are deposited in accordance with the
ERHDC's “Subdivision Agreement”.

o All easements have been transferred and registered in favour of
ERHDC or “Notice of Agreement” for preserviced subdivisions.

e An executed “Subdivision Agreement” or “Notice of Agreement”
for servicing a subdivision has been received by ERHDC (in the
ERHDC form).

e One copy of the ERH design drawings has been approved,
signed by the developer and returned to ERHDC.

Upon compliance with the conditions of Section3.2.18.7,

the developer shall proceed with the installation of the road crossings.
To avoid costly delays and/or relocations, a high priority should be
placed on the co-ordination of this installation. Advanced notice

shall be given to ERHDC, as to the completion date of rough road —
grade, curbs and sidewalks within the subdivision.

Socket type 200 amperes minimum, underground meter bases
must be supplied and installed by the builder in accordance with
ERHDC's standard requirements as adopted from time to time.

For the purpose of this section Row Housing refers to row type
multiple family dwellings having three or more dwelling units
generally termed as Row Housing, Town Housing, or Row Type
Condominiums.
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Early Consultation

Load Data

Developer’s
Expense

Street Lighting

Distribution System

3.3.2

3.3.3

3.34

3.3.5

(A)

(B)

All customers must supply ERHDC with a completed copy of the

Town of Espanola or Township of Sables-Spanish Rivers “Permit

Approval Form”, as amended from time to time, for all new or altered

service. To properly meet the Customer’s needs, the Customer or their

representative should consult with ERHDC in the early planning

stages to determine what facilities and voltages are required at the

proposed service location. ERHDC shall respond to the request for

connection in accordance with the terms and conditions of Section 2.1.2
— Offers to Connect.

In addition to completing the Town of Espanola or Township of

Sables-Spanish Rivers Building Controls “Permit Approval Form”, as

amended from time to time, the Customer shall provide ERHDC with the

following information.

e Estimated future maximum kilowatt demand; and

e Specific listing of the types of loads for lighting, motor,
heating, air conditioning or other; and

e Scaled plot plan showing the buildings, parking areas, patios,
sidewalks, driveways and grading details in relationship with
property lines; and

e Scaled servicing plot plan showing the sewer, water, storm
sewer and any other buried services; and

e Scaled electrical plot plan showing the
proposed location of all meter bases and private
underground plant. i.e. plugs and lighting; and

o Expected kilowatt demand for common services (house service).

The developer will pay all costs associated with the installation of the
underground Distribution System within the development and

all other Distribution System Expansions and Enhancements
necessary to bring ERHDC's supply in accordance with ERHDC's
standards, as amended from time to time, to the property line of

the development. The developer is responsible for the preparation,
execution and registration of necessary easements and servicing
agreements. Costs will be based on ERHDC's approved capital
contribution policy (See Section 2.1.2).

The street lighting system will be owned and maintained by the
developer to the specifications set out by ESA and the municipality.
Once the street lighting system has been built, the system will be
transferred to the municipality at no cost.

The Distribution System installed in row housing shall be an
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Standard Row
Housing Design

Construction 3.3.6
Individual Service
Entrances 3.3.7

General Service Rate Class>50

General Service 3.4
Rate Class (equal to

or greater than

50kW )

Basic Service 3.4.1
General Service

Rate Class (equal to

or greater than

50kW and up to but

not including

150kW)

(A)

underground system, utilizing concrete encased duct structures and
direct buried duct structures for the ERHDC cables. Cable and

telephone systems should be installed in the same trench as per the joint

use trench used in subdivisions.

Should the developer decide to have the Distribution System
installed by ERHDC, in accordance with Section2.1.2, the fabrication,
material ordering and installation of any plant will not commence

until the following conditions have been met:

All financial securities are deposited with ERHDC; and

o All easements have been transferred and registered
in favour of ERHDC; and

e One copy of the ERHDC design drawings has been
approved and signed by the developer and returned
to ERHDC.

Socket type 200 amperes minimum, underground meter bases
must be supplied and installed by the developer in accordance with
ERHDC's standard requirements.

All General Rate Class customers with an average peak demand
equal to or greater than 50 kW over the past twelve months are to be
classified as General Service Rate Class above 50 kW. For new
Customers without prior billing history, the peak demand will be
based on 90% of the proposed capacity or installed transformation.
General Service Rate Class customers in this section shall be
required to pay a capital contribution for all connection assets in
accordance with Section 2.1.2

All matters detailed in Sections 3.2.1 through 3.2.5
inclusive form part of this section.

General Service Rate Class customers having loads with an average
peak demand equal to or greater than 50 kW and up to but not
including 150 kW will be served by an overhead three-phase
Secondary Service from on street transformation. General

Service Rate Class customers shall be required to pay a capital
contribution for all connection assets in accordance with Section 2.1.2
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All Other 3.4.2
Connection Asset

Matters as per

Section 3.2

Basic Service 343 (A
General Service

Rate Class (equal to

or greater than

150kW and up to but

not including

1500kW)

Requirement for (B)
Vaults

All Other 3.4.4
Connection Asset

Matters as per

Section 3.2

Construction 345 (A
Requirements for

Three Phase

Underground

Primary Service

(B)

©

®)

Basic Service 3.5.1
General Service

Rate Class (equal to

or greater than

All other connection asset matters are handled in the manner described
in Sections 3.2.6 (A) through3.2.17 inclusive.

General Service Rate Class customers having loads with an average
peak demand equal to or greater than 150 kW and up to but not
including 1500 kW will be serviced by an underground Primary
Service to a transformer located on the Customer’s real

property. General Service Rate Class customers shall be

required to pay a capital contribution for all connection

assets in accordance with Section 2.1.2.

In some instances, the basic service transformation will be

located in a vault. Contact ERHDC for further details.

All other connection asset matters are handled in the manner
described in Sections 3.2.14 through 3.2.17 inclusive.

The Customer shall supply and install four (4)-75 mm Type Il PVC
conduits in a concrete encased duct bank. The conduit shall be
supported by approved duct bank spacers at 1.5m apart

for the entire length of the duct bank. The ducts shall have

a minimum50mm concrete encasement and the top of the

concrete encased duct bank shall be a minimum of 1 m below grade.
The Customer shall install one (1)-50 mm Type Il PVC conduit

on top of the concrete encased duct bank. The Customer

will also install a non-metallic pull rope (400 kg or equivalent)

in all four conduits.

The Customer is required to have the trench inspected by ERHDC
prior to backfilling. Backfill must be granular material (sand), void of
scrap, rocks or debris.

If there is less than 1m cover available due to bedrock then the conduit
or duct shall be covered by a minimum of 150 mm of concrete.

It is the responsibility of the Customer to ensure the service conduit
is free of all debris, ice or blockage. If the Service Wire cannot be
installed due to ice, debris or blockage the Customer shall clear the
conduit prior to the installation of the Service Wires. A fee may be
assessed for a return trip to install the Service Wires.

General Service Rate Class customers having loads with an average
peak demand equal to or greater than 1500 kW and up to and
including 3000 kW will be serviced by an underground Primary
Service to a transformer located on the Customer’s real property.
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1500 kW and up to
and including 3000
kW)

Substation 3.5.2
Transformer Capital
Contribution

(Equal to or exceeds

1500 KW)

Customer Owned 3.5.3
Substation as an
Alternative to a

Substation

Transformer Capital
Contribution

Major Customers 3.54
(Greater than 3000
KW)

General Service Rate Class customers shall be required to pay
a capital contribution for all connection assets in accordance with
Section 2.1.2.

The Customer will provide a substation transformer capital
contribution when the transformer capacity on a site equal to or
exceeds 1500 KW. This contribution will be the fee, as per
Section 5 Schedule 3, times the total transformer KW capacity.

In lieu of making a substation transformer capital contribution, as per
Section 3.5.6, the Customer may elect to build a Customer owned
substation fed from the Sub-transmission system, complete with
metering and isolation switches.

The Customer shall retain ownership and maintenance responsibility
of the substation.

The Customer will pay all costs associated with the necessary system
Expansions and Enhancements to bring ERHDC's supply at the Utility
standards as adopted from time to time to the property line of the
substation. The Customer is responsible for the preparation, execution
and registration of necessary easements and servicing agreements.
Costs will be based on ERHDC's approved capital contribution policy
(See Section 2.1.2)

General Service Rate Class customers having loads greater than
3000 KW are considered major Customers and will require the
installation of a Customer owned substation fed from the
Sub-transmission system, complete with metering and isolation
switches. All costs associated with this service installation will be
borne by the customer.

The Customer shall retain ownership and maintenance responsibility
of the substation.

The Customer will pay all costs associated with the necessary system
Expansions and Enhancements to bring ERHDC's supply at the Utility
standards as adopted from time to time to the property line of the
substation. The Customer is responsible for the preparation, execution
and registration of necessary easements and servicing agreements.
Costs will be based on ERHDC's approved capital contribution policy
(See Section 2.1.2)

Substations installed as per this section shall be subject to the
conditions of Section 2.1.4 — Inspection Before Connection.
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Embedded Generation

Embedded 3.6
Generation

Embedded Market
Participant

Requirement to 3.7
Inform in Writing

Requirement for 3.7.1
Connection
Agreement
Requirement for 3.7.2

Independent Market
Operator Compliant
Metering

Embedded Distributor

Embedded 3.8
Distributor

All new generators wanting to sell energy to the Independent Market
Operator or ERHDC must comply with the Market Rules, BOARD Codes
and Regulations, ESA requirements and ERHDC requirements as
amended from time to time.

Early consultation is encouraged as each generation situation is unique
and requires a review by ERHDC or its consultants. Costs for a review
of technical requirements shall be at the proponent’s expense.

The Customer must comply with the detailed requirements outlined in the
document “ERH General Requirements for Generation”, as amended
from time to time.

A Connection Agreement will be required between ERHDC and
Embedded Generation.

Embedded Generation shall pay for the installation of Independent
Market Operator compliant metering. If the Embedded Generation

is a market participant then the Embedded Generation shall own,
operate and maintain the metering in compliance with the

market rules. If the Embedded Generation is not a market participant
then ERHDC shall own the metering and the Embedded Generation shall
pay all costs associated with the operation and maintenance of the
metering.

All Embedded Market Participants within the service area of ERHDC,
once approved by the IMO are required to inform ERHDC of their
approved status, in writing, 60 days prior to their participation

in the IMO administered market.

A Connection Agreement will be required between an Embedded
Market Participant and ERHDC that will also include an operating
schedule.

An Embedded Market Participant will be responsible
for the ownership, installation and maintenance of
Independent Market Operator compliant metering and
contracting for the services of a registered Meter
Service Provider.

All Embedded Distributors within the service area of ERHDC
are required to inform ERHDC of their status in writing 30 days
prior to the supply of energy from ERHDC. The terms and
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Unmetered Connections

Unmetered
Connections

Temporary Services

Temporary
Services

Supply Point
Location

Basic Service —
Temporary Services

Flat Rate
Connection-
Disconnection Fee
for Basic Service

Transformer Rental
Fee

Installation of
Connection Assets
Above and Beyond
the Basic
Connection

Billing Continues
Until Notified

3.9

3.10

(A)

(B)

(©)

(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

conditions applicable to the connection of an Embedded
Distributor shall be included in the Connection Agreement with ERHDC.

Unmetered connections will be billed on the basis of the
connected load. Calculations to determine the connected load
will follow the Electrical Distribution Association latest published
guidelines as adopted from time to time.

This section refers to the supply of Distribution Services for
temporary services on a Temporary Basis for construction,
short term processing, or pending permanent installations.
Service shall be provided in accordance with Section

3.0, 3.1, 3.2 and 3.4 inclusive, as may apply. Where the delivery
point is 30 metres or less from the Point of Entry a private

pole is required as defined in Section 3.1.11, for that

portion in excess of 30 metres.

The Customer or Customer’s electrical contractor must obtain
a supply point location from ERHDC before proceeding with the
installation of any service. Failure to do so may result in the
service having to be relocated at the Customer’s expense.

A temporary service will be served by a single phase, 120/240 volt,
100 ampere overhead secondary service within one span (30 m) of the
Utility’s overhead secondary bus.

A flat rate charge will be made for Connection and Disconnection of
basic service to a temporary service. The charge will cover the
installation, Connection and removal of connection assets. Refer

to Section 5 Schedule 3.

In those instances where ERHDC must install a transformer that

is only used to serve the temporary service, a monthly rental fee shall
apply. The customer shall enter into a “Transformer Rental
Agreement” with ERHDC. See Section 5 Schedule 3 and 4.

In all cases where a temporary service Customer requires connection
assets above and beyond the basic connection, the Customer shall
be required to pay the actual cost of labour, equipment and non-
salvageable material for the complete installation and

removal. ERHDC must be contacted for an estimate.

ERHDC will continue to bill and supply energy to the temporary
service until notice is given by the Customer to the Utility

to disconnect the service. At this time, the Utility will remove

its meter, wires and other plant, and send a final bill to the Customer.
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Continuance of 3.10.1
Distribution
Services Beyond
the Initial Twelve
Month Period
Customer 3.10.2
Responsibilities

Prior to Service

Connection

Signs & Non-Permanent Structures

Signs & Non- 3.11
Permanent

Structures

Metered Service
Required Where

3.11.1 (A)

None Exists
Supply Point B)
Location

Basic Service — ©
Signs and Non-

Permanent

Structures

Billing Continues (D)
Until Notified

Normal maximum contract period for a temporary service
is 12 months — one (1) year. For significant construction projects,
the Utility may grant an extension on this period.

Prior to service Connection the customer shall:

Obtain approval from the Electrical Safety Authority; and

Remit any and all deposits, fees, rates, securities or other
payments as may be required or permitted by any Code,
Board approved rate or tariff, or these Conditions of
Service, all of which may be amended or

changed from time to time; and

Complete and sign a Connection Agreement.
Refer to Section 5 Schedule 4.

All signs located on the Customer’s real property shall be
connected to the existing metered service.

Signs located in remote areas, where no metered service exists,
require the installation of a metered service.

The Customer or Customer’s electrical contractor must obtain

a supply point location from ERHDC before proceeding with

the installation of any service. Failure to do so may result

in the service having to be relocated at the Customer’s expense.

See Section 3.2.6 and all related sections.

ERHDC will continue to bill and supply energy to the temporary
service until notice is given by the Customer to the Utility

to disconnect the service. At this time, the Utility will remove its meter,
wires and other plant, and send a final bill to the Customer.
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SECTION 4 - GLOSSARY OF TERMS

“Affiliate Relationships Code” means the code, approved by the Board and in effect at the relevant
time, which among other things, establishes the standards and conditions
for the interaction between electricity distributors or transmitters and their
respective affiliated companies;

“Application for Customer means the form or forms submitted in writing pursuant to Section 2.1.2 (A);
Connection” or “Application”

“Board” means the Ontario Energy Board,;
“Code” means the Distribution System Code (see Distribution System Code);
“Conditions of Service” means the document developed by a distributor in accordance with

subsection 2.3 of this Code that describes the operating practices
and connection rules for the distributor;

“Connection” means the process of installing and activating connection assets in order
to distribute electricity to a customer;

“Connection Agreement means an agreement entered into between a distributor and a person
connected to its distribution system that delineates the conditions of

the connection and delivery of electricity to that connection;

“Customer” means a person that has contracted for or intends to contract for
connection of a building, or a person who uses, for the person’s own
consumption, electricity that includes developers of residential or
commercial subdivisions, an Embedded Generator, an Embedded Distributor
and an Embedded Market Participant;

“Demand Meter” means a meter that measures a customer’s peak usage during a
specified period of time;

“Disconnection” means a deactivation of connection assets that results in cessation of
distribution services to a customer;

“Distribute” with respect to electricity, means to convey electricity at voltages of 50
kilovolts or less;

“Distribution Services” means services related to the distribution of electricity and the services
the Board has required distributors to carry out, for which a charge or rate
has been approved by the Board under section 78 of the Act;

“Distribution System” means a system for distributing electricity, and includes any structures,
equipment or other things used for that purpose. A distribution system
is comprised of the main system capable of distributing electricity to many
customers and the connection assets used to connect a customer to the
main distribution system;
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“Distribution System Code”
or “DSC”

“Distributor”

“Electrical Safety Authority”
or “ESA”

“Electricity Act”

“Embedded Market
Participant”

“Embedded Distributor”

“Embedded Generator”

“Emergency”

“Emergency Backup”

“Energy Competition Act”

“Enhancement”

“Expansion”

means the Code, approved by the Board, and in effect at the relevant
time, which, among other things, establishes the obligations of a
distributor with respect to the services and terms of service to be offered
to customers and retailers and provides minimum technical operating
standards of distribution systems;

means a person, licensed by the Board, who owns or operates a
Distribution System;

means the person or body designated under the Electricity Act
regulations as the Electrical Safety Authority;

means the Electricity Act, 1998, S.0. 1998, c. 15, Schedule A,
as amended from time to time;

means a market participant within the Independent Market Operator control
area whose facility is not directly connected to the Independent Market Operator
controlled grid but is instead connected to a distribution system;

means a distributor, licensed by the Board, who is not a wholesale market
participant and that is provided electricity by a host distributor;

means a generator, licensed by the Board, who is not a wholesale market
participant and whose generation facility is connected to the distribution
system but does not include a person that consumes more electricity
than it generates;

means any abnormal system condition that requires remedial action to
prevent or limit loss of a distribution system or supply of electricity
that could adversely affect the reliability of the electricity system;

means a generation facility that has a transfer switch that isolates it from
a distribution system;

means the Energy Competition Act, 1998, S.0O. 1998, c.15, as amended
from time to time;

means a modification to an existing distribution system that is made for
purposes of improving system operating characteristics such as reliability
or power quality or for relieving system capacity constraints resulting, for
example, from general load growth;

means an addition to a distribution system in response to a request for
additional customer connections that otherwise could not be made;
for example, by increasing the length of the distribution system;

“Four-quadrant Interval Meter” means an interval meter that records power injected into a distribution

“General Service Customer”

system and the amount of electricity consumed by the customer;

means any customer who operates a commercial or industrial enterprise,
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farm, government offices, medical facilities and educational institutions;
“Holiday” means a Saturday, Sunday, statutory holiday, or any day as defined
in the Province of Ontario as a legal holiday;

“Interval Meter” means a meter that measures and records electricity use on an hourly
or sub-hourly basis;

“Load Transfer” means a network supply point of one distributor that is supplied through
the distribution network of another distributor and where this supply
point is not considered a wholesale supply or bulk sale point;

“Load Transfer Customer” means a customer that is provided distribution services through a
load transfer;

“Measurement Canada” means the Special Operating Agency established in August 1996
by the Electricity and Gas Inspection Act, 1980-81-82-83, c. 87., and
Electricity and Gas Inspection Regulations (SOR/86-131), as amended
from time to time;

“Meter Installation” means the meter and, if so equipped, the instrument transformers, wiring,
test links, fuses, lamps, loss of potential alarms, meters, data recorders,
telecommunication equipment and spin-off data facilities installed to
measure power past a meter point, provide remote access to the metered
data and monitor the condition of the installed equipment;

“Meter Service Provider” means any entity that performs metering services on behalf of a
distributor;

“Metering Services” means installation, testing, reading and maintenance of meters;

“New Service” means the installation of connection assets to a building(s) or

property that have never received Distribution Services before
or a building(s) or property from which the Connection assets
have been removed,

“Ontario Energy Board Act” means the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, S.0. 1998, c.15, Schedule B,
as amended from time to time;

“Operational Demarcation means the physical location at which a distributor’s responsibility for operational

Point” control of distribution equipment including connection assets ends at the
customer;

“Ownership Demarcation means the physical location at which a distributor’s ownership of

Point” distribution equipment including connection assets end at the customer;

“Point of Entry” means the point at which the service conductors cross over from the

public right-of-way or utility easement to private property;

“Primary Service” means Service Wires operating at Primary Voltage;
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“Primary Voltage”
“Rate”

“Rate Handbook”

“Regulations”

“Retail”

“Retail Settlement Code”

“Retailer”
“Secondary Service”

“Service Area”

“Service Entrance”

“Service Wires”

“Sub-transmission Service”
“Sub-transmission Voltage”
“Temporary Basis”

“Upgraded Service”

“Unmetered Loads”

means a hominal voltage greater than 750 volts and less than 15,000 volts;
means any rate, charge or other consideration, and includes a penalty
for late payment;

means the document approved by the Board that outlines the regulatory
mechanisms that will be applied in the setting of distributor rates;

means the regulations made under the Energy Competition Act,
the Electricity Act, The Ontario Energy Board Act or the Electricity
and Gas Inspection Act;

with respect to electricity means:

a) to sell or offer to sell electricity to a customer

b) to act as agent or broker for a retailer with respect to
the sale or offering for sale of electricity, or

C) to act or offer to act as an agent or broker for a

customer with respect to the sale or offering for sale
of electricity;

means the code approved by the Board and in effect at the relevant

time, which, among other thinks, establishes a distributor’s obligations and
responsibilities associated with financial settlement among retailers and
customers and provides for tracking and facilitating customer

transfers among competitive retailers;

means a person, licensed by the Board, who retails electricity;

means Service Wires operating at Utilization Voltage;

with respect to a distributor, means the area in which the distributor is
authorized by its license to distribute electricity;

means the point and equipment at which the Service Wires enter
the customer’s building;

means the conductors from the Utility’s main circuits on public streets
or Utility easements to the customer’s premises;

means Service Wires operating at Sub-transmission Voltage;
means a nominal voltage of 22,000 volts delta or 44,000 volts delta;
means for a period of time not exceeding twelve (12) months;

means a building(s) or property in, on, to or upon which existing
connection assets change in either or both voltage and ampacity;

means electricity consumption that is not metered and is billed based
on estimated usage or connected load;
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“Utility” means Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation;
“Utilization Voltage” means a nominal voltage of 750 volts or less.

Section 5 — Schedule 1

Standard Residential Service Connection Fees

Service The basic residential service allowance for Customers
Connection Basic of ERHDC is calculated by using 100 % of the cost to
Residential supply and install a 50 KVA transformer on an existing

Service Allowance
(BRSA)

Utilization Voltage

Up to and
including 200 Amp
Overhead
Secondary Service

Up to and
including 200 Amp
Underground
Secondary Service
From Existing
Handholes *

pole complete with primary and secondary connection.
The standard 50 KVA transformer can feed approx.
25 Customers with an average consumption of

2 kW/home. The estimated cost(subject to revisions
on labour/material costs) is~$4100.00. Thus the basic
residential service allowance (BRSA) is

1/25 of $4100.00 = $164.00.

The standard overhead Secondary Service for Customers
requiring up to 200 Amp overhead service is based on
100% of the cost of 30 m of supplied and installed 1/0
triplex minus the basic residential service allowance
(BRSA)

$547.00 — $164.00 = $383.00 plus GST ($26.81) =
$409.81

Services beyond 30m will be charged an additional
$5.53 /m plus GST ($0.39) = $5.92/m

The standard underground Secondary Service for Customers
requiring up to a 200 Amp underground service from an
existing handhole is based on supply and installation

of 20 m of 3/0 aluminum underground cable minus the
BRSA.

$497.00 - $164.00 = $333.00 + GST ($23.31) =

$356.31

Services beyond 20m will be charged an additional

$7.83/m plus GST ($0.55) = $8.38/m

Fees stated in Section 5 are those in effect as of the date of this document. Fees are subject to

change from time to time as approved by the Board of Directors of ERHDC. Please contact ERHDC.
for the most current fee schedule.
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Up to and
including 200 Amp
Underground
Secondary Service
From Existing
Poles

Over 200 Amp to
400 Amp
Overhead
Secondary Service

Over 200 Amp to
400 Amp
Underground
Secondary Service
From Pole

Secondary Service
Connection Fee

The standard underground Secondary Service for
Customers requiring up to a 200 Amp underground
service from an existing pole is based on 20 meters of
3/0 aluminum underground conductor cable (including
underground rise at the pole) minus the BRSA.
$537.00 - $164.00 = $373.00 plus GST ($26.11) =
$399.11

Services beyond 20m will be charged an additional
$7.83/m plus GST ($0.55) = $8.38/m

The standard overhead Secondary Service for
Customers requiring greater than 200 Amp and up to
and including 400 Amp overhead service is based on
the supply and installation of 30 m of 3/0 aluminum
triplex minus the BRSA.

$582.00 - $164.00 = $418.00 plus GST ($29.26) =
$447.26

Services beyond 30m will be charged an additional
$6.72/m plus GST ($0.47) = $7.19/m

The standard underground Secondary Service for
Customers requiring greater than 200 Amp and up to
and including 400 Amp underground service is based
on the supply and installation of 20 m of 250 MCM
aluminum conductor cable (including underground
rise at the pole) minus the BRSA.

$654.00 — $164.00 = $490.00 plus GST (34.03) =
$524.30

Services beyond 20m will be charged an additional
$12.81/m plus GST ($0.90) = $13.71/m

See Section 5 — Schedule 3.

Exhibit: 1

Fees stated in Section 5 are those in effect as of the date of this document. Fees are subject to
change from time to time as approved by the Board of Directors of ERHDC. Please contact ERHDC
for the most current fee schedule.
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Primary Voltage Overhead see Section 5 — Schedule 3.
Underground see Section 5 — Schedule 3.

Primary Service

Connection Fee

(includes

Connection of

Customer Owned

Secondary Wire)

Transformation Fee Overhead — No charge.
Underground - $ 1405.00 plus GST

* Existing handhole refers to a handhole installed in a subdivision where the secondary bus and mole
bars are installed and paid for by the developer of the subdivision.

NOTE: (1) The Customer will pay 100% of the cost for the installation of a crossing pole and additional
overhead wire for services on the opposite side of the road of the Connection point.
An estimate for the installation will be provided by ERHDC at no cost to the Customer.

(2) A Customer requiring or requesting an underground service from an overhead Distribution
System will be required to provide an anchoring agreement to ERHDC at 100% cost to the
Customer for legal fees and registration of the agreement on the title of the land. The need for the
agreement or anchor will be at the discretion of ERHDC.

Fees stated in Section 5 are those in effect as of the date of this document. Fees are subject to
change from time to time as approved by the Board of Directors of ERHDC. Please contact ERHDC
for the most current fee schedule.
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Section 5 — Schedule 2

Standard General Service Connection Fees (Single Phase)

Utilization Voltage

Up To and The standard overhead service for General Service
including 200 Amp Rate Class customers requiring a service up to and
Overhead including a 200 Amp service is based on 100% of the
Secondary Service cost of 30 m of supplied and installed 1/0 triplex is

$547.00 + GST ($38.29) = $585.29

Services beyond 30m will be charged an additional
$5.53 /m plus GST ($0.39) = $5.92/m

Transformer The transformer charges for services up to 200 Amp
Charges are as follows:

15 Amp- $112.00/kva x 240v x 80% (rated fuse) x
50% (diversified load) x 15A/1000 = $161.28 plus
GST =$172.57

30 Amp- $112.00/kva x 240v x 80% (rated fuse) x
50% (diversified load) x 30A/1000 = $322.56 plus
GST =$345.14

60 Amp- $112.00/kva x 240v x 80% (rated fuse) x
50% (diversified load) x 60A/1000 = $645.12 plus
GST = $690.28

100 Amp- $112.00/kva x 240v x 80% (rated fuse) x
50% (diversified load) x 100A/1000 = $1075.20 plus
GST =$1 150.46

200 Amp- $112.00/kva x 240v x 80% (rated fuse) x
50% (diversified load) x 200A/1000 = $2150.40 plus
GST = $2 300.63

Fees stated in Section 5 are those in effect as of the date of this document. Fees are subject to
change from time to time as approved by the Board of Directors of ERHDC. Please contact ERHDC
for the most current fee schedule.
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Up To and
including 200 Amp
Underground
Secondary Service
From Existing
Pole

Transformer
Charges

Over 200 Amp to
400 Amp
Overhead
Secondary Service

Transformer
Charges

Over 200 Amp to
400 Amp
Underground
Secondary Service

Transformer
Charges

Secondary Service
Connection Fee

The standard underground service for General
Service Rate Class customers requiring up to and
including 200 Amp underground shall be Customer
owned and installed in accordance with the Ontario
Electrical Safety Code and inspected by the Electrical
Safety Authority

prior to connection.

Transformer charges for underground Secondary
Services up to and including 200 Amp are identical to
those charges applied to Overhead Services up to
200 Amp as shown above.

The standard overhead Secondary Service for
General Service Rate Class customers requiring
greater than 200 Amp and up to and including 400
Amp overhead service is based on the supply and
installation of 30 m of 3/0 triplex is $582.00 + GST
($40.74) = $622.74

Services beyond 30m will be charged an additional
$6.72/m plus GST ($0.47) = $7.19/m

The transformer charge for a 400Amp service is
$4300.80 plus GST ($301.06) = $4 601.86

The standard underground Secondary Service for
General Service Rate Class customers requiring
greater than 200 Amp and up to and including 400
Amp underground will be Customer owned and
installed in accordance with the Ontario Electrical
Safety Code and inspected by the Electrical Safety
Authority prior to connection.

The transformer charge for a 400Amp service is
$4300.80 plus GST ($301.06) = $4 601.86

See Section 5 — Schedule 3.

Fees stated in Section 5 are those in effect as of the date of this document. Fees are subject to
change from time to time as approved by the Board of Directors of ERHDC. Please contact ERHDC
for the most current fee schedule.
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Primary Voltage
Primary Service
Connection Fee
(includes Connection
of Customer Owned
Secondary Wire

Transformer Charges

Note: Q)

(2)

Overhead — See Section 5 — Schedule 3.
Underground — See Section 5 — Schedule 3.

ERHDC owned — Depends on Service Entrance rating in
Amperes — see above.
Customer owned — no charge.

The Customer will pay 100% of the cost for the installation of a crossing pole
and additional overhead wire for services on the opposite side of the road of

the Connection point. An estimate for the installation will be provided by ERHDC
at no cost to the customer.

A Customer requiring or requesting an underground service from an
overhead Distribution System will be required to provide an anchoring
agreement to ERHDC at 100% cost to the customer for legal fees and
registration of the agreement on the title of the land. The need for the
agreement or anchor will be at the discretion of ERHDC.

Fees stated in Section 5 are those in effect as of the date of this document. Fees are subject to
change from time to time as approved by the Board of Directors of ERDCH. Please contact ERHDC
for the most current fee schedule.
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Section 5 — Schedule 3

Standard General Service Connection Fees (Three Phase) 50 to 150 KW
600/347V and 120/208V From existing bus

Utilization Voltage

Up to 200 Amp
120/208V
Overhead
Secondary Service

Transformer
Charges

Up to 200Amp
600/347V
Overhead
Secondary Service

Transformer
Charges

Over 200 Amp and
up to 400Amp
120/208V
Overhead
Secondary Service

The standard overhead Secondary Service for General Service
Rate Class customers requiring up to

200 Amp, 120/208 volt, three-phase service is based

on 100% of the cost of 30 m of supplied and installed

1/0 quadraplex is $625.00+ GST ($43.75) = $688.75

Services beyond 30m will be charged an additional
$8.24 /m plus GST ($0.58) = $8.82/m

The transformer charge for up to 200 Amp, 120/208
volt, three-phase service is $78.00/kva 200a x 208v x
1.7321(RMS) x 80% (rated fusing) x 50% (diversified
Load) =28.8 kva x $78.00 = $2 246.40 plus GST
($157.25) = $2 403.65

The standard overhead Secondary Service for
General Service Rate Class customers requiring up to
200 Amp 600/347 volt, three-phase service is based
on 100% of the cost of 30 m of supplied and installed
1/0 quadraplex is $625.00+ GST ($43.75) = $688.75

Services beyond 30m will be charged an additional
$8.24 /m plus GST ($0.58) = $8.82/m

The transformer charges for a 200Amp 600/347 volt,
three-phase service is $78.00/kva 200a x 600v
1.7321(RMS) x 80% (rated fusing) x 50% (diversified
load) = 83kva x $78.00 =

$6 484.92 plus GST ($453.94) = $6 938.86

The standard overhead Secondary Service for
General Service Rate Class customers requiring
greater than 200 Amp and up to and including 400
Amp, 120/208 volt, three-phase overhead service is
based on the supply and installation of 30 m of 3/0
guadraplex is $713.00 + GST ($49.91) = $762.91
Services beyond 30m will be charged an additional
$10.59 plus GST ($0.74) = $11.33/m

Exhibit: 1

Fees stated in Section 5 are those in effect as of the date of this document. Fees are subject to
change from time to time as approved by the Board of Directors of ERHDC. Please contact ERHDC

for the most current fee schedule.
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Transformer
Charges

Up to 400AMP
120/208V

and including
200AMP 600/347V
Underground
Secondary
Service
Transformer
Charges

Secondary Service
Connection Fee

Primary Voltage

Primary Service
Connection Fee
(includes Connection
of Customer Owned
Secondary Wire)

Transformer Charges

The transformer charge for greater than 200 Amp and
up to and including 400 Amp, 120/208 volt, threephase
service is $78.00/kva 400a x 208v x 1.7321

(RMS) x 80% (rated fusing) x 50% (diversified load)
=57.65kva x $78.00 = $4 496.70 plus GST ($314.77)
=$4 811.07

The standard underground Secondary Service for
General Service Rate Class customers requiring up to
and including a 400A 120/208v or a 200Amp
600/347v underground service will be Customer
owned and installed in accordance with the Ontario
Electrical Safety Code and inspected by the Electrical
Safety Authority prior to connection.

The transformer charge for these services will apply
and are shown above.

See Section 5 — Schedule 3.

Overhead — See Section 5 — Schedule 3.
Underground - See Section 5 — Schedule 3.

ERHDC owned — fee depends on the voltage and
Service Entrance rating in amperes — see above.
Customer owned — no charge.

Note:

1. The Customer will pay 100% of the cost for the installation of a crossing
pole and additional overhead wire for services on the opposite side of the
road of the connection point. An estimate for the installation will be
provided by ERHDC at no cost to the customer.

2.A Customer requiring or requesting an underground service from an
overhead Distribution System will be required to provide an anchoring
agreement to ERHDC at 100% cost to the customer for legal fees and
registration of the agreement on the title of the land. The need for the
agreement or anchor will be at the discretion of ERHDC.

Exhibit: 1

Fees stated in Section 5 are those in effect as of the date of this document. Fees are subject to
change from time to time as approved by the Board of Directors of ERHDC. Please contact ERHDC

for the most current fee schedule.
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MISCELLANEOUS COST

Single Phase
Overhead Primary
Service
Connection Fee

Three Phase
Overhead Primary
Service
Connection Fee

Single Phase
Underground
Primary
Connection Fee

Three Phase
Underground
Primary
Connection Fee

Section 5 — Schedule 4

The cost to connect a single phase overhead
Customer owned primary line is based on 100% of the
cost to supply and install all material to connect the
Customer’s line to the ERHDC distribution line on the
road allowance or easement. The estimated cost
(subject to revisions on labour/material costs) is
$1700.00 plus GST. If the Customer is residential
then the BRSA is subtracted from the fee.

The cost to connect a three phase overhead
Customer owned primary line is based on 100% of the
cost to supply and install all material to connect the
Customer’s line to the ERHDC distribution line on the
road allowance or easement. The estimated cost
(subject to revisions on labour/material costs) is
$1900.00 plus GST. If the Customer is residential
then the BRSA is subtracted from the fee.

The cost to connect a single phase underground
Customer owned primary cable is based on 100% of
the cost to supply and install all material to connect

the Customer’s cable to the ERHDC distribution line on
the road allowance or easement. The estimated cost
(subject to revisions on labour/material costs) is
$2000.00 plus GST. If the Customer is residential

then the BRSA is subtracted from the fee.

The cost to connect a three phase underground
Customer owned primary cable is based on 100% of
the cost to supply and install all material to connect

the Customer’s cable to the ERHDC distribution line on
the road allowance or easement. The estimated cost
(subject to revisions on labour/material costs) is
$4500.00 plus GST. If the Customer is residential

then the BRSA is subtracted from the fee.

Exhibit: 1

Fees stated in Section 5 are those in effect as of the date of this document. Fees are subject to
change from time to time as approved by the Board of Directors of ERHDC. Please contact ERHDC

for the most current fee schedule.
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Customer Owned
Overhead and
Underground
Secondary Service
Connection Fee
Single Phase

Customer Owned
Overhead and
Underground
Secondary Service
Connection Fee
Three Phase

Substation
Transformer
Capital
Contribution
Over 1500kva

Locates

The cost to connect an overhead Customer owned
secondary service is based on 100% of the cost to
supply and install the necessary connection material
to connect the Customer’s wire to the ERHDC
distribution line on the road allowance or easement.
The estimated cost (subject to revisions on
labour/material costs) is $170.00 (plus GST of $11.90)
= $181.90. If the Customer is residential then the
BRSA is subtracted from the fee.

The cost to connect an overhead Customer owned
secondary service is based on 100% of the cost to
supply and install the necessary connection material
to connect the Customer’s wire to the ERHDC
distribution line on the road allowance or easement.
The estimated cost (subject to revisions on
labour/material costs) is $180.00 (plus GST of $12.60)
=$192.60. If the Customer is residential then the
BRSA is subtracted from the fee.

The substation transformer capital contribution is
based on the cost to rebuild Minnow Lake Substation.
In 2001 the total cost to rebuild the substation was
$1.02M for a 10MVA station therefore the substation
transformer capital contribution will be

$1.02M/10 000KVA = $102.00/KVA above 1500KVA
plus GST.

(A) The Town of Espanola and the Township of Sables-Spanish
Rivers Public Works Department will be charged $175.00 plus
GST per locate or relocate after normal business hours.

(B) Customers will be charged actual cost plus GST per locate or
relocate to locate private plant. The property owner
indemnifies ERHDC for incorrect locates.

© ERHDC will provide one free locate per year for
Residential Customers during ERHDC'’s normal working hours. If
the Customer requests a second locate within the year they will
be charged actual cost plus GST per locate.

Fees stated in Section 5 are those in effect as of the date of this document. Fees are subject to
change from time to time as approved by the Board of Directors of ERHDC. Please contact ERHDC

for the most current fee schedule.
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Temporary
Services

Flat Rate
Connection/
Disconnection Fee

Transformer
Rental Fee

Disconnect/
Reconnect

(No Conductor
Required)

The flat rate fee for Connection and Disconnection of
a temporary service as described in Section 3.10 shall
be based on a two man line crew for a minimum of 2
hours and 0.5 hours of engineering time during normal
business hours. The estimated cost for this service
(subject to revision on labour cost) is $396.29 (plus
GST of $27.74) = $424.03

The transformer rental fee as described in Section 3.9
(B) is based on 2% of the total cost of the
transformer(s). This fee will be calculated by ERHDC
upon request.

The estimated cost to Disconnect and Reconnect a
Customer which requires no conductor (subject to
revision on labour cost) during normal business hours
is $215.38 (plus GST of $15.08) = $230.46. If the
Customer is residential then the BRSA is subtracted
from the fee.

Exhibit: 1

Fees stated in Section 5 are those in effect as of the date of this document. Fees are subject to
change from time to time as approved by the Board of Directors of ERHDC. Please contact ERHDC

for the most current fee schedule.
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Connection Agreement

This Connection Agreement is made this day of , 20 ,

BETWEEN:
ESPANOLA REGIONAL HYDRO DISTRIBUTION CORPORATION, a corporation incorporated pursuant
to the laws of the Province of Ontario and licensed by the Ontario Energy
Board.
(hereinafter referred to as “ERHDC")
PARTY OF THE FIRST PART,;

-and —

(hereinafter referred to as the “Customer”)

PARTY OF THE SECOND PART.

From time to time, ERHDC and the Customer shall be individually referred to in this Agreement as

a “Party” and collectively as “Parties”.

Recital

In accordance with its License and the Distribution System Code, ERHDC has agreed to offer and
the Customer has agreed to accept Distribution Services, on the terms and conditions of this
Agreement;

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the foregoing, and of the mutual covenants,
agreements, terms and conditions contained herein, the Parties hereto agree as follows:
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Definitions

Throughout this Agreement, unless there is something in the subject matter or context
inconsistent therewith, the following words shall have the following meanings:

“A” means Ampere, unit of electrical current;

“Actual Cost” means ERHDC's charge for equipment, labour and materials at ERHDC's standard rates
plus ERHDC's standard overheads and interest thereon;

“Agent” means a Qualified person duly authorized by an Embedded Generator, Embedded Distributor
or Customer, to perform specific limited operations for the Controlling Authority;

“Applicable Laws” means any and all Applicable Laws, including environmental laws, statutes, codes,
licensing requirements, treaties, directives, rules, regulations, protocols, policies, by-laws, orders,
injunctions, rulings, awards, judgments, or decrees or any requirements or decision or agreement

with or by any government or government department, commission, board, court authority or agency;
“ANSI” means American National Standards Institute;

“Ancillary Services” means any electrical services that the Generator may provide to the Distribution
System other than real power deliveries (kWh) including but not limited to frequency control, voltage control,
and reactive power;

“Business Day” means a day other than a Saturday, Sunday, or any day designated pursuant to
subsection 1.3(g) of the Conditions of Service;

“CT” means Current Transformer, instrument transformer that is designed for the measurement of current;
“Code” means the Distribution System Code;

“Conditions of Service” means the document as developed by ERHDC in accordance with subsection 2.3 of
the Distribution System Code that describes ERHDC's operating practices and connection rules;

“Connection” means the process of installing and activating connection assets in order to Distribute
electricity to a Customer;

“Connection Service” has the meaning given in the Distribution Rate Order which is in effect at the
relevant time;

“Controlling Authority” means a person or officer responsible for performing, directing, or authorizing
changes in the conditions or physical position of specific apparatus or devices;

“CEA” means, Canadian Electrical Association;
“CSA” means Canadian Standards Association;

“Cure Period” has the meaning described in Schedule C of this Agreement;
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“Customer Equipment” means all electrical and mechanical equipment used by the Customer and does
not include any ERHDC Facilities and Equipment;

“De-energized” is a state in which the stored potential energy of an Isolated piece of equipment has been
discharged which in electrical apparatus, electrical energy is typically discharged through a connection
to an effective ground potential;

“Default Notice” means a notice concerning an Event of Default delivered in accordance with the procedures
set out in Section 23 of this Agreement from one Party to the other;

“Defaulting Party” means the Party who has committed an act of default under the Conditions of Service,
the Code or this Agreement;

“Demarcation Point” means the physical location at which ERHDC responsibility for operational control
and ownership of Distribution equipment including connection assets ends at the Customer;

“Distribution Services” means services related to the Distribution of electricity and the services the OEB has
required distributors to carry out, for which a charge or Rate has been approved by the OEB under Section 78 of
the Act;

“Distribution System” means ERHDC'’s system for distributing electricity, and includes any structures,
equipment or other things used for that purpose. The Distribution System is composed of the main system
capable of distributing electricity to many Customers and the connection assets used to connect

a Customer to the main Distribution System;

“Distribution System Code” means the code, approved by the Board, and in effect at the relevant time,
which, among other things, establishes the obligations of a distributor with respect to the services

and terms of service to be offered to Customers and Retailers and provides minimum technical operating
standards of Distribution System;

“Electrical Safety Authority” or “ESA” means the person or body designated under the Electricity Act
Regulations as the Electrical Safety Authority;

“Electricity System” means the integrated power system and all facilities connected to that system;

“Embedded Distributor or Load” means a distributor or load Customer who is connected to the Distribution
System;

“Embedded Generator” or “Embedded Generation Facility” means a Generator whose Generation Facility
is connected to the Distribution System;

“Embedded Market Participant” means an embedded Customer connected to the Distribution System
who has chosen to be a participant in the wholesale energy market by registering with the IMO;

“Embedded Retail Generator” means an Embedded Generator who is not participating in the IMO
Wholesale Market;

“Emergency” means any abnormal system condition that requires remedial action to prevent or limit loss of a
Distribution System or supply of electricity that could adversely affect the reliability of the Electricity System;
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“Event of Default” means either a Financial Default or a Non-Financial Default but does not include any
default caused by, arising out of, or in any way connected to, an Emergency;

“Financial Default” means failure by either Party to pay any amount when due under this Agreement,
including without limitation, failure to pay compensation or indemnification for loss or damage agreed to by
the Parties;

“Forced Outage” means the automatic or manual limitation of service by a party's controlling authority,
owing to de-rating or limitation of equipment, or the unavailability of equipment as a result of actual or
potential failure of that equipment or equipment related to it;

“Generate” or “Generating”, with respect to electricity, means to produce electricity or provide ancillary
services, other than ancillary services provided by a transmitter or distributor through the operation
of a transmission or Distribution System;

“Generation Facility” means a facility for generating electricity or providing ancillary services, other than
ancillary services provided by a transmitter or distributor through the operation of a transmission or
distribution system, and includes any structures, equipment or other things used for that purpose;

“Good Utility Practice” means any of the practices, methods and acts engaged in or approved by a
significant portion of the electric utility industry in North America during the relevant time period, or any of
the practices, methods and acts which in the exercise of reasonable judgment in light of the facts known
at the time the decision was made, could have been expected to accomplish the desired result at a
reasonable cost consistent with good practices, reliability, safety, and expedition. Good Utility Practice is
not intended to be limited to the optimum practice, method, or act to the exclusion of all others, but rather
to be acceptable practices, methods, or acts generally accepted in North America;

“ERHDC Facilities and Equipment” means ERHDC's meters, wires, poles, cables, transformers, any
other structures, equipment, all other appliances and equipment or other things used for Distributing electricity;

“IMO” means the Independent Electricity Market Operator established under the Electricity Act;

“IMO Controlled Grid” means the transmission systems with respect to which, pursuant to agreements,
the IMO has authority to direct operation;
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“Insolvency Event” means, with respect to the Customer, the occurrence of any one of
the following;
(a) the winding up, dissolution, liquidation, or bankruptcy of the Customer, except as

part of a bona fide corporate reorganization, unless its existence is immediately
reinstated or a resolution to that effect is passed, or it makes a general assignment for
the benefit of its creditors or a proposal under the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act
(Canada), as amended or re-enacted from time to time, or is adjudged bankrupt or
insolvent; or if it proposes a compromise or an arrangement under the Companies'
Creditors Arrangement Act,(Canada), as amended or re-enacted from time to time, or
files any petition or answer seeking any reorganization, arrangement, composition,
readjustment, liquidation, or similar relief for itself under any present or future law
relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, or other relief for or against debtors generally;

(b) a court of competent jurisdiction enters an order, judgment or decree against the
Customer seeking any reorganization, arrangement, composition, readjustment,
liquidation, dissolution, winding up, termination of existence, declaration of bankruptcy
or insolvency or similar relief under any present or future law relating to bankruptcy,
Insolvency or other relief for or against debtors generally, and such order, judgment or
decree remains unvacated and unstayed for 60 days (whether or not consecutive) from
the day of entry; or if any trustee in bankruptcy, receiver, receiver and manager,
liquidator or any other officer with similar powers is appointed for the Customer with its
consent or acquiescence and that appointment remains unvacated and unstayed for 60
days (whether or not consecutive); or

(©) the Customer becomes insolvent.

“Isolated” means the state in which a piece of equipment has been disconnected from any source of dynamic
energy. Typically, apparatus is isolated by means of devices such as valves or electrical switches;

“kVA” Kilovolt-ampere, apparent power (1000 volt-amperes);
“kVARhR” Kilovar-hour, (1000 volt-ampere reactive expended in one hour);
“kW” Kilowatt, practical unit of active power (1000 watts);

“kWh" Kilowatt-hour, practical unit of electric energy expended in one hour (1000 watt per hour with respect
to time);

“License” means the license issued by the OEB under Part V of the Act;

“Load Customer” means a Standard Customer (as that term is defined in the Conditions of Service) that
ERHDC, as a condition of the Customer’s connection, requires that it execute this Agreement or a Customer
that is an Embedded Market Participant(as that term is defined in the Conditions of Service);

“Load Shedding” means the deliberate Disconnection of pre-selected Customers’ load from a power

system (either manually or automatically) in response to an Emergency in order to maintain the integrity
of the system and minimize overall Customer outages;

135

1



Exhibit:

Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

“Market Participant” means a person who is authorized by the Market Rules to participate in the
IMO-administered markets or to cause or permit electricity to be conveyed into, through or out of the IMO-
controlled grid;

“Market Rules” means the rules made under section 32 of the Electricity Act;

“Measurement Canada” means the special Operating Agency established in August1996 by the
Electricity and Gas Inspection Act, 1980-81-82-83, ¢ 87., and Electricity and Gas Inspection Regulations
(SOR/86-131);

“Meter Installation” means the meter and, if so equipped, the instrument transformers, wiring, test links, fuses,
lamps, loss of potential alarms, data recorders, telecommunication equipment and spin-off data facilities
installed to measure power past a meter point, provide remote access to the metered data and monitor the
condition of the installed equipment;

“Metering Service Provider “ or “MSP” means Metering Service Provider registered and approved by the IMO;
“MV-90" - is a software system, marketed and produced by Itron, that is used to interrogate a wide variety of
meters and recorders using telephone communication and modems to obtain both meter readings and meter
interval data;

“Non-Defaulting Party” means the Party that is not the Defaulting Party;

“Non-Financial Default” means the following:

(@) any breach of a term or condition of the Code or this Agreement other than a
Financial Default unless the breach occurs as a direct result of an Emergency;

(b) a licensed Party’s ceasing to hold a Licence; or

(©) an Insolvency Event.

“OEB” means the Ontario Energy Board,;

“Planned Outage” means an outage that results when a component is deliberately taken out of service
at a pre-selected time, usually for the purpose of construction, preventive maintenance or repair;

“Power Factor” means the ratio of active to apparent power;

“Point of Supply”, with respect to an Embedded Generation Facility, means the connection point where
electricity produced by the Embedded Generation Facility is injected into a Distribution System;

“Professional Engineer” means a person licensed with the Professional Engineers of Ontario;

“Promptly” means performed in an expeditious manner and without undue delay, using due diligence,
and with the intent of completing a required act or task as quickly as practicable;

"Qualified" means assessed by a party as satisfactory in personal competency, familiarity with and
knowledge of all applicable rules, regulations, guidelines, policies, codes, procedures, apparatus and
equipment, and dangers of work and operation;

“Rate Order” means an order of the OEB that is in force at the relevant time which, among other things,
regulates distribution and distribution rates to be changed by a licensee;
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“Retail Settlement Code” means the code approved by the Board and in effect at the relevant time, which,
among other things, establishes a Distributor’s obligations and responsibilities associated with financial
settlement among Retailers and Customer and provides for tracking and facilitating Customer transfer
among competitive Retailers;

“Rotational Load Shedding” means a form of demand control whereby portions of load in an electrical
area are sequentially interrupted and restored, commonly on a 30 minute rotation;

“SCADA" means System Control and Data Acquisition, used to monitor and control the Distribution System;
“Settlement Hour” means a period of one hour which corresponds to a particular dispatch hour for which
metering data determined in accordance with Market Rules and physical market prices for services
calculates pursuant to Market Rules that are to be used to calculate the settlement debits and credits

of Market Participants;

“Sub-transmission Customer” or T-Class customer — comprise that group of large users that are typically
served from ERHDC'’s Sub-transmission system, and whose demand requirements is generally less than 5 MW;

“Supporting Guarantee” means a guarantee issued in support of a Work Protection guaranteeing
isolation/de-energizing at switches, or other devices, under the Operating Control of the issuer;

“Under Frequency Load Shedding” means automatic "Load Shedding" by a protective relay, when
frequency declines to preset levels on a time curve ;“V” means volt, a measure of electrical voltage;

“VT" means Voltage transformer, instrument transformer that is designed for the measurement of voltage;

“VEE” means the process used to validate, estimate and edit raw metering data to produce final metering
data or to replicate missing metering data for settlement purposes;

“Wholesale Market Participant” or “Market Participant” means a party that sells or purchases electricity
or ancillary services through the IMO administered markets;

“Wholesale Metering” means metering that complies with Chapter 6 of the Market Rules;
“Work Protection” means the provision of a safe environment for work. A guarantee that an Isolated,
or Isolated and De-energized condition has been established for work and will continue to exist, except for

approved tests; and

“Wye"” means the electrical configuration that supports a system neutral.
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Purpose of Agreement

This Agreement sets out the terms and conditions upon which ERHDC has agreed to offer, and the Customer has
agreed to accept, Distribution Service.

Entire Agreement

The Code, Conditions of Service and this Agreement establish ERHDC's operating practices and connection
policies in respect of the Connection and Distribution Services. This Agreement together with the Distribution
System Code, and all attachments thereto and hereto, and the Conditions of Service, and all attachments

thereto and hereto, constitute the entire Agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter
covered therein and supercedes all communications, representations or agreements, verbal or written. The
Parties hereto hereby agree to be bound by, and to act at all times in accordance with the Code and the
Conditions of Service, in effect at the relevant time, which are hereby incorporated in its entirety by reference into,
and which hereby forms part of, this Agreement.

Applicable Laws, Related Codes and Conditions of Service
ERHDC and the Customer shall comply with all Applicable Laws including the following in order of priority:

(a) The Affiliate Relationships Code for Electricity Distributors and Transmitters;
(b) The Distribution System Code;

(c) The Retail Settlement Code; and

d) The Standard Supply Service Code.

If there is a conflict between this Agreement and any of the above, the documents listed above shall govern in

order of priority. If there is a conflict between the Conditions of Service and this Agreement, this Agreement will
govern. The fact that a condition, right, obligation, or other term appears in the Conditions of Service but not in
any of the documents listed above or in this Agreement shall not be interpreted as, or be deemed

grounds for finding conflict.

Applicable Standards

The Customer shall ensure that their respective new or altered Customer Equipment connected to or to be
connected to the Distribution System:

(1) meets requirements of the Ontario Electrical Safety Code;

(2) meets requirements of all Applicable Laws including, but not limited to, the Occupational Health and Safety
Act;

(3) conforms to relevant industry standards including, but not limited to, CSA International, the Institute of
Electrical and Electronic Engineers (IEEE), the American National Standards Institute (ANSI), the International
Electrotechnical Commission (IEC), Northeast Power Coordinating Council and North American Electric Reliability
Council;

(4) conforms to Good Utility Practice.
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Representations and Warranties

1.1 Customers’ Representations and Warranties
The Customer represents and warrants to ERHDC as follows, and acknowledges that ERHDC has relied
upon such representations and warranties in entering into this Agreement:
(a) all information conveyed to ERHDC is correct and accurate;
(b) it is unaware of any situation which would alter its financial abilities and have not filed or have not
planned to file, any bankruptcy proceedings;
(c) it is authorized to enter into this Agreement;
(d) where applicable, that the execution of this Agreement and compliance with and performance of the
terms, conditions and covenants contemplated herein have been duly authorized by all necessary
corporate action on the part of the Customer;

1.2 ERHDC’s Representations and Warranties
ERHDC represents and warrants to the Customer as follows, and acknowledges that the Customer is
relying upon such representations and warranties in entering into this Agreement:
(a)all information conveyed to the Customer is correct and accurate;
(b) that it has all the necessary corporate power, authority and capacity to enter into an
Agreement and to perform its obligations hereunder;
(c) the execution of this Agreement and compliance with and performance of the terms, conditions
and covenants contemplated herein have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate
action on the part of ERHDC;
(d) this Agreement constitutes a valid and binding obligation of ERHDC enforceable against it
in accordance with its terms and conditions, and ERHDC is not a party to, bound or
affected by or otherwise subject to any indenture, mortgage, lease, charter or by-law provision,
agreement or other instrument, or any statute, rule, regulation, judgment or other order which would be
violated, contravened or breached by, or under which default would occur as a result of
the execution of this Agreement or the compliance with and performance of any of the terms, conditions
and covenants contemplated herein; and
(e) that it's Licence is in full force and effect

Requirements for Operations and Maintenance

1.3 Work by ERHDC's Staff on the Customer’s Site and Facilities

1.3.0 When ERHDC's staff, its contractors, or Agents work at the Customer’s site, such staff,
contractors and agents shall observe the Customer’s safety and environmental requirements.

1.3.1 Notwithstanding 8.1.1 above, when ERHDC can demonstrate to the Customer’s satisfaction,
acting reasonably that ERHDC's safety and environmental practices provide for an
equivalent or better level of safety or environmental protection, the Customer shall permit ERHDC
to use its safety and environmental practices. As a minimum, all Applicable Laws shall govern
such work.
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1.4 Work by the Customer’s Staff on ERHDC's Site

1.4.0

14.1

When the Customer’s staff, its contractors, or Agents work at

ERHDC's site, ERHDC's safety and environmental requirements shall be observed by such staff,
contractors and Agents.

Notwithstanding 8.2.1 above, when the Customer can demonstrate to ERHDC's satisfaction, that
the Customer’s safety and environmental practices provide for an equivalent or better level of
safety or environmental protection, ERHDC shall permit the Customer to use its safety and
environmental practices. As a minimum, all Applicable Laws, shall govern such work.

1.5 Day to Day Operations & Maintenance

150
151

15.2

Only Qualified persons shall perform operations and maintenance.

The Customer shall be responsible for operating and maintaining its Customer Equipment in
accordance with Good Utility Practice, all Applicable Laws, the Code and this Agreement.
ERHDC shall be responsible for operating and maintaining ERHDC Facilities and
Equipment in accordance with Good Utility Practice, all Applicable Laws, the Code and this
Agreement.

1.6 Communication Between the Parties

1.6.0

161

1.6.2

1.6.3

1.6.4

1.6.5

Upon planning any changes that could affect the reliability of the Distribution System, the
Customer shall promptly submit a written report to ERHDC describing any and all changes in the
information that it submitted as registered system planning data in the connection application
form, including, without limitation, changes to Customer Equipment, and associated protective
relaying or protective relaying settings, or any other changes of any kind

whatsoever that might affect the reliability of Distribution System. The portion of this protection
that affects the Distribution System must be designed, and installed in a manner that is
acceptable to ERHDC in order for the Customer to remain connected.

All communications between the Parties about day-to-day operating and maintenance matters
shall at all times go through the controlling authorities, or those other persons to whom a
Controlling Authority has delegated the communication authority.

Each Party shall provide the other with the name of a current 24- hour contact to respond

to operating and maintenance matters, which shall be listed in a schedule to the Agreement.
Each Party shall provide the other with all necessary instructions for Emergency responses,
including reporting procedures and the names of site Emergency coordinators as and when
necessary.

Each Party shall provide the other with all required Work Protection documentation and written
notices.

Where one Party’s work requires the other’s participation or cooperation, or in the

other’s opinion could adversely affect normal operation of its facilities and equipment, the Parties
shall establish procedures and cost sharing criteria for the work and adhere to them in performing
the work unless they agree otherwise in writing.
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1.7 Switching
1.7.0 A Party’s Controlling Authority shall be responsible for establishing the appropriate
conditions for and the coordination of switching on the equipment under its control from time to
time throughout the term of this Agreement.

1.8 Isolation of Customer Equipment

1.8.0 If the Customer requires isolation of its Customer Equipment or ERHDC Facilities and
Equipment, then the Customer’s Controlling Authority shall deliver a written notice to ERHDC's
Controlling Authority to ask for isolation.

1.8.1 Upon the request of one Party’s Controlling Authority, the other Party’s Controlling Authority
or its designate shall provide the required timely isolation of equipment as required for
Emergency switching or to establish work protection.

1.8.2 ERHDC shall provide to the Customer the isolation and reconnection of Customer Equipment
at the Customer’s request at no cost to the Customer, once per year, during normal business
hours. The Customer shall pay ERHDC's Actual Costs for isolating and reconnecting Customer
Equipment if the requested isolation and reconnection is for a time outside of normal business
hours.

1.8.3 ERHDC shall charge the Customer, and the Customer shall pay, ERHDC’s Actual Costs
for isolating and reconnecting Customer Equipment for any isolation and reconnection request in
excess of one per calendar year as specified in this Agreement.

1.9 Isolation of ERHDC Facilities and Equipment
1.9.0 If ERHDC requires isolation from Customer Equipment then ERHDC shall request
the Customer’s Controlling Authority to provide isolation.

1.10 Alternative Method of Isolation
1.10.0 Either Party may establish its own Work Protection.
1.10.1 The Controlling Authority of the facilities and equipment required to establish the Work
Protection shall provide the other Party with access to such facilities and equipment.
1.10.2 Establishing Work Protection shall be limited to hanging tags and
locking of devices.

1.11 Forced Outage
1.11.0 When a Forced Outage by one Party adversely affects the others facilities, the first Party’s
Controlling Authority shall give prompt notice to the Controlling Authority of the second Party.
1.11.1 Each Party’s Controlling Authority shall have sole authority to identify the need for and
initiate a Forced Outage on equipment under its control.
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1.12 Planned Outages

1.12.0 The Customer shall schedule all planned work with ERHDC’s Controlling Authority
to co-ordinate Planned Outages that directly affect ERHDC Facilities and Equipment.

1.12.1 At least ten Business Days in advance of planned work that requires a feeder
breaker to be opened or operated and at least thirty Business Days in advance of planned work
that requires operations of multiple feeder breakers, station bus or a whole transformer station,
the Customer’s Controlling Authority shall provide written requests to the appropriate ERHDC
contact.

1.12.2 At least ten Business Days in advance of planned work, the Customer’s Controlling Authority
shall provide written requests to the appropriate ERHDC if the planned work involves:

1.12.2.1 any Disconnection from the Distribution System e.g. Disconnection from a feeder
breaker owned by ERHDC or by the Customer

1.12.2.2 load changes, transfers or switching operations that directly affect ERHDC Facilities
and Equipment.

1.12.3 ERHDC'’s Controlling Authority shall notify the Customer’s Controlling Authority at least
ten Business Days in advance of any planned work that requires a feeder breaker to be opened
or operated and at least thirty Business Days in advance of planned work that requires operations
of multiple feeder breakers, station bus or a whole transformer station that directly affects
Customer Equipment, by contacting the appropriate Customer contact.

1.12.4 Either Party's Controlling Authority shall provide written notice of a change in the date
and time of preplanned work.

1.12.5 Notice of the requested change shall be given at least four Business Days in advance
of the planned date.

1.12.6 If the change can be reasonably accommodated, both Parties shall establish a new date.
If the Parties cannot agree, ERHDC will have the right to set the date of the Planned Outage
upon providing the Customer with not less than ten Business Days prior written notice.

1.13 Emergency Operations -- ERHDC may be required from time to time to interrupt the provision of
Connection Service to the Customer during an Emergency to protect the stability, reliability, and integrity
of ERHDC Facilities and Equipment, or to maintain its equipment availability. This section only
covers manually initiated interruptions. During an Emergency, either Party may take whatever immediate
action it deems necessary and is Qualified to perform to safeguard public safety, life, and property without
first notifying the other Party.

1.13.0 The Party taking such actions shall promptly report them to the other Party’s Controlling Authority.
1.13.1 ERHDC may be required from time to time to implement Load Shedding at the direction of the
IMO.
1.13.2 ERHDC may review rotational load-shedding schedules with the Customer whenever
schedules are revised or when required.
1.13.3 The Customer shall comply with all requests by ERHDC's Controlling Authority to shed
load. Such requests shall be initiated to protect Distribution System security and reliability in
response to a request by the IMO. When the IMO Controlled Grid returns to normal,
ERHDC's Controlling Authority shall notify such Customer’s Controlling Authority to re-energize
Customer Equipment.
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1.14 Telemetry, Monitoring, and Telecommunications
1.14.0 ERHDC shall advise Customers of the performance and details of required telemetering
facilities that serve them. Some requirement depend on the size and specific location of the
connection to the Distribution System. ERH shall determine the requirements for
telemetry.

1.15 Access and Security of Facilities

1.15.0 Each Party shall co-operate with the other to ensure that its respective facilities and
assets are secure at all times.

1.15.1 Each Party shall follow all applicable procedures and staff training procedures required
for expeditious access to the other Party’s equipment or premises, including, without limitation,
any procedures regarding access codes and keys.

1.15.2 Certain of each Party’s facilities and equipment may, at the date of this Agreement
or later, be on one or more of the other Party’s sites, in accordance with each Party’s policies and
procedures.

1.15.3 Either Party and its representatives shall be entitled to access to the other’s facilities,
equipment or site, and the host Party shall grant such access as required for operation,
maintenance, disconnection or reconnection of that Party’s facilities and equipment, to carry out
work at all reasonable times on reasonable prior notice to the host Party, subject to each Party’s
policies and procedures. The other Party shall not unreasonably withhold access to its facilities
and equipment.

1.15.4 At any time when the accessing Party or its representatives are on or in the host Party’s site,
the accessing Party and its representatives shall:

1.15.4.1 use all reasonable precautions not to damage or interfere with the host Party’s site,
facilities and equipment;

1.15.4.2 observe the host Party’s requirements for reporting occupational health and safety,
electrical safety, environmental requirements, technical requirements, and matters of industrial
relations; and

1.15.4.3 neither ask questions, nor give any direction, instruction or advice to any person
involved in operating or maintaining the site, facilities or equipment of the host Party,
other than the person whom the host Party has designated for that purpose.

1.15.5 If the accessing Party or its representatives cause any loss or damage when given
access to the host Party’s site, the accessing Party shall promptly advise the host’'s Controlling
Authority of the loss or damage.

1.15.6 Subject to subsection 8.13.6, a Party shall not, and shall ensure that its representatives do not,
intentionally interfere with any of the other Party’s facilities and equipment in or on its sites.

1.15.7 In an Emergency a site owner may, as far as reasonably necessary in the circumstances,
have access to and interfere with the other Party’s facilities and equipment.
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2 Communication

2.3

2.1 In the event that either Party undergoes any change in business circumstance or load which
affects it's qualifications or requirements in association with the Code, the Conditions of Service
or this Agreement, or changes which require or inhibits work to be done, shall be communicated
to the other Party in writing.

2.2 All notices communicated between the Parties shall be delivered by hand, fax or registered
mail, and addressed as follows:

2.2.0 To contact Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation:

ESPANOLA REGIONAL HYDRO
DISTRIBUTION CORPORATION
765 Queen Street East,

Sault Ste Marie, Ontario

P6A 6P2

221

Notice sent in accordance with this section shall be deemed to have been

delivered and received:

2.3.1 If delivered by hand, upon receipt;

2.3.2 If delivered by fax, 48 hours after the time of distribution, excluding from the calculation
weekends and public holidays;

2.3.3 If delivered by registered mail, six Business Days after the mailing thereof, provided that
if there is a postal strike such notice shall be delivered by hand.

3 Force Majeure

"Force Majeure Event” shall include, but not be limited to an act of God, strikes, lockouts, or other labour
or industrial disturbances, civil disturbances, interruptions by Government or Court Orders, power failure,
telecommunication line failure, delay in transmission, future valid orders of or delay in obtaining the
approval or consent of any regulatory body having jurisdiction, acts of the public enemy, wars, riots,
sabotage, epidemics, landslides, lightning, earthquake, fire, storm, flood, washout; and inclement
weather including without limiting the generality of the foregoing rendering the roads dangerous or
hazardous, to men or equipment, or impassable to vehicles of the kind necessary to carry out the work or
undertaking, or blockage or stoppages of road traffic over the route specified caused by events beyond
the reasonable control of the parties hereto, or explosions and any other event or occurrence beyond the
reasonable control of the parties hereto whether or not the nature of those hereinabove mentioned.

Other than for any amounts due and payable by the Customer to ERHDC neither ERHDC nor the
Customer shall be held to have committed an event of default in respect of any obligation under
these Conditions of Service if prevented from performing that obligation, in whole or in part, because
of a Force Majeure Event.

If a Force Majeure Event prevents either party from performing any of its obligations under this
Agreement that party shall:
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» other than for Force Majeure Events related to acts of God, promptly notify the other party of the
Force Majeure Event and its assessment in good faith of the effect that the event will have on its ability to
perform any of its obligations. If the immediate notice is not in writing, it shall be confirmed in writing as
soon as reasonably practical;

* not be entitled to suspend performance of any of its obligations under this Agreement to any

greater extent or for any longer time than the Force Majeure Event requires it to do;

* use its best efforts to mitigate the effects of the Force Majeure Event, remedy its inability to

perform, and resume full performance of its obligations;

* keep the other party continually informed of its efforts;

« other than for Force Majeure Events related to acts of God, provide written notice to the other party
when it resumes performance of any obligations affected by the Force Majeure Event; and

« if the Force Majeure Event is a strike or a lock out of ERHDC's employees, ERHDC shall be

entitled to discharge its obligations to notify its Customers in writing by means of placing

an ad in the local newspaper.

4 Liability
ERHDC shall only be liable to a Customer and a Customer shall only be liable to ERHDC for any damages
that arise directly out of the willful misconduct or negligence:

o of ERHDC in providing Distribution Services and/or Connection Services to the
Customer;

. of the Customer in being connected to the Distribution System; or

. of ERHDC or the Customer in meeting their respective obligations under the Conditions

of Service, this Agreement, the Code, their licences and any other Applicable Laws.

Neither ERHDC nor the Customer shall be liable under any circumstances whatsoever for any loss of profits or
revenues, business interruption losses, loss of contract or loss of goodwill, or for any indirect, consequential,
incidental or special damages, including but not limited to punitive or exemplary damages, whether any of the said
liability, loss or damages arise in contract, tort or otherwise.

5 Term and Termination of Connection Agreement
5.1 Coming into Force

The term of this Agreement shall commence on the later of the date that this Agreement was executed by both
Parties; or the date that subsection 26(1) of the Electricity Act is proclaimed, and shall remain in full force and
effect until terminated in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.

5.2 Termination by Either Party

Either Party may terminate the Agreement at any time during the term or any renewal thereof by giving the other
Party six month’s prior written notice setting out the termination date. Termination in the event of Disconnection
shall follow the procedures set out in Section 12.5 of this Agreement.

5.3 Right to Disconnect and Remove Assets

Upon termination of this Agreement, ERHDC may disconnect at the Ownership Demarcation Point or Point of
Supply and shall be entitled to de-commission and remove any of its ERHDC Facilities and Equipment associated

with the connection and the Demarcation Point. ERHDC shall notify the Customer in writing of the days the
decommissioning and removal of its ERHDC Facilities and Equipment shall occur, and the Customer shall provide
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ERHDC with any and all access to the Customer’s site, provided such dates and times are reasonable, that may
be required by ERHDC to de-commission and remove its ERHDC Facilities and Equipment.

Events of Disconnection and Termination
5.4 Occurrence of a Disconnection

Disconnection of a Customer may occur for the reasons and by the processes described in the Conditions of
Service.

5.5 Right to Terminate and Disconnect

In the event a Customer is disconnected for any reason, ERHDC shall have the right to terminate this Agreement
by written notice to the Customer.
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6 Treatment of Currently Connected Customer Equipment

6.1 ERHDC may require that Customer Equipment that is now or hereafter connected to the Distribution
System be brought into compliance with the performance standards specified in the Conditions of Service
within a period of time acceptable to ERHDC not exceeding five years where it has been
identified that:

6.1.1 there is a material deterioration of Distribution System reliability resulting from
the performance of the Equipment; or

6.1.2 there are material negative impacts on an existing or a new Customer’s power
quality resulting from the performance of the Customer Equipment; or

6.1.3 there is a material increase in capacity or load at the site where the Customer
Equipment is located.

6.2 The Customer shall indemnify and hold harmless ERHDC, its directors, officers,
employees and agents from any claims made by any third parties related to
the construction, installation, or connection of a Generation Facility by or on
behalf of the Customer.

7 Ownership of Facilities and Equipment
7.1 All right, title and interest in and to ERHDC Facilities and Equipment shall continue to be
vested in ERHDC, unless the Parties have specified otherwise in this Agreement.
7.2 All right, title and interest in and to Customer Equipment shall continue to be vested in the
Customer, unless the Parties have specified otherwise in this Agreement.

8 Incorporation of Schedules

Set out below are the schedules and appendices that form a part of, and that are hereby incorporated by
reference into, this Agreement:

Schedule “A” - Single Line Diagram and Description of the Customer’s Connection Point

Schedule “B” - Future Use

Schedule “C” — Future Use

9 Waiver

The failure of any Party to exercise any right, power or option or to enforce any remedy or to insist upon the strict
compliance with the terms, conditions and covenants of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of the terms,
conditions and covenants herein with respect to that or any other or subsequent breach thereof nor a waiver by
the Party at any time thereafter to require strict compliance with all terms, conditions and covenants hereof,
including the terms, conditions and covenants with respect to which the Party has failed to exercise such right,
power or option. Nothing shall be construed or have the effect of a waiver except an instrument in writing signed
by a duly authorized officer of the Party which expressly or impliedly waives a right, power or option under this
Agreement.

10 Entire Agreement

This Agreement, together with the schedules attached hereto, constitutes the entire agreement between the
Parties and supersedes all prior oral or written representations and agreements of any kind whatsoever with
respect to the matters dealt with herein.
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11 Amendments

Except as otherwise provided herein, no amendment, modification or supplement to this Agreement shall be valid
or binding unless set out in writing and executed by the Parties with the same degree of formality as the execution
of this Agreement. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the OEB may require amendments to this Agreement
or the Schedules hereto in which case the Parties shall forthwith, upon receipt of notice from the OEB, do all
things and take all actions necessary to amend this Agreement so as to meet the OEB’s requirements.

12 Severability

If any provision of this Agreement is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal or
unenforceable in any respect, such provision shall be deemed severed and shall not affect the validity, legality or
enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement, unless such invalidity or unenforceability renders the
operation of this Agreement impossible.

13 Applicable Laws
This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with, and the rights of the Parties shall be
governed by, the laws of Ontario and the laws of Canada applicable therein.

14 Interpretation

In this Agreement:

(a) the singular includes the plural and vice versa,;

(b) the use of one gender includes the other;

(c) the word person includes a firm, a body corporate, an unincorporated association or an authority;

(d) a reference to a person includes a reference to the person’s executors, administrators, successors, substitutes
(including, but not limited to, persons taking by novation) and assigns;

(e) an agreement, representation or warranty on the part of or in favour of two or more persons binds or is for the
benefit of them jointly and severally;

(f) specified periods of time refer to business days, and dates from a given day or the day of an act or event is to
be calculated exclusive of that day;
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Customer has set his hand and seal, and ERHDC has caused this Agreement to be
executed by the signature of its proper officer duly authorized in that behalf as of the day and year first above
written.

SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED

in the presence of:

Witness (Insert Customer Name)

ESPANOLA REGIONAL HYDRO DISTRIBUTION CORPORATION

Name:
Title:
I have the authority to bind the Corporation
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[WHERE CUSTOMER IS A CORPORATION]
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, have caused this Agreement to be
executed by the signatures of their proper officers duly authorized in their behalf.

ESPANOLA REGIONAL HYDRO DISTRIBUTION CORPORATION

Name:
Title:
| have the authority to bind the Corporation

INSERT CUSTOMER'’S FULL CORPORATE NAME

Name:
Title:
| have the authority to bind the Corporation
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Section 5 — Schedule 5 Appendix

(A) Connection Agreement

(B) Construction Agreement

(C) Easement Agreement

(D) Application for Customer Connection
(E) Subdivision Agreement

(F) Prequalification Form

*Please contact Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation for updated
information
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PLANNED CHANGES IN CONDITIONS OF SERVICE AND SERVICE CHARGES

ERHDC has no planned changes in Conditions of Service document.
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LIST OF WITNESSES

To be provided if oral hearing occurs
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SUMMARY OF THE APPLICATION

PURPOSE AND NEED

ERHDC self-nominated for 2008 rate rebasing. We have calculated a Revenue Requirement of
$1,340,404 and our present rates will produce a deficiency of $240,637 distribution revenue for the 2008
Test year. ERHDC therefore seeks the Ontario Energy Board’s approval to revise its rates applicable to its
distribution of electricity. The issues to be reviewed in this case, as ERHDC sees them, are discussed
below.

Through this application, ERHDC seeks:

To recover:

o Deficiency arising from changes in OM&A, Amortization, and the Rate of Return.

o Deferral and Variance Account Balances.

e Continuation of the $0.30 per residential customer per month rate adder for smart meters.

To change:
e Distribution Loss Factor

To reflect:
¢ Just and Reasonable Distribution Rates that have been modeled in accordance with the
Ontario Energy Board Filing requirements for Distribution Rate Applications.

ERHDC has been assisted in this rate application by Elenchus Research Associates who provided the
model used in determination of just and reasonable 2008 Distribution Rates and have reviewed this
application.

The information used in this Application is ERHDC's forecasted results for its 2008 Test Year. With the
rates presently in effect, the ERHDC estimates that its revenue for 2008 would not be sufficient to provide
a reasonable return. ERHDC is also presenting the historical actual information for fiscal 2006,
information for the current approved test year and a forecast for the fiscal 2007 bridge year.

TIMING

The financial information supporting the test Year for this Application will be ERHDC's fiscal year ending
December 31, 2008 (the “2008 Test Year”). However, this information will be used to set rates for the
period May 1, 2008 to April 30, 2009. The Test Year revenue requirement is that forecast by ERHDC as
needed to enable it to earn a reasonable return for fiscal 2008.

CUSTOMER IMPACT

ERHDC proposed rates will not have unacceptable impacts on total customer bills and therefore ERHDC
iS not proposing any rate mitigation measures.

The impacts below include $0.26 rate adder to the monthly service charges for Residential, GS<50 and
GS>50 rate classes. In this rate application ERHDC request continuation of the 2007 approved smart
meter rate adder. ERHDC will not be implementing their smart meter plan until 2009.
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Residential
Residential
1,000 Kih Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric | Volume Rate Charge Volume Rate Charge Change Change o of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ $ Yo
Waonthly Service Charge 10,29 10.29 0.00 0.0% 0.0%
Distribution kih 1,000 0.01350 13.50 1,000 0.01430 14.30 0.80 58% 0.7%
Sub-Total 23.89 24.69 0.80 3.3% 0.7%
Regulatory Asset Recovery linih 1,000 0.00300 3.00 1,000 0.00180 1.90 (1.10) -367% -1.0%
Retail Transmission - Network kih 1,072 0.00530 568 1,054 0.00530 5.59 (0.10) -1.7% -0.1%
Retail Transmission - Ling and kivh 1072 000390 418 1054 0.00380 41 007 -17% -01%
Wholesale Market Service kih 1,072 0.00520 558 1,054 0.00520 548 (0.09) -1.7% -0.1%
Rural Rate Protection Charge lath 1,072 000100 107 1,054 000100 1.05 (002) -1.7% 0 0%
Debt Retirement Charge kih 1,000 0.00700 7.00 1,000 0.00700 7.00 0.00 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Commodity linh 1,072 005704 5117 1,054 005704 5014 (1.03) -1.7% -09%
Total Bill 111.57 109.96 (1.61) -1.4% -1.5%

ERHDC proposes to maintain the current monthly service charge which falls within the minimum system
fixed charge approach plus 20% in the cost allocation study. ERHDC proposes a volumetric increase of
5.9%. The impact on a typical residential customer with consumption of 1000kWhs is an increase of 3.3%
on the delivery component of the bill. The overall bill impact on a typical Residential Customer is -1.4%.
The overall decrease is a combination of a decreased loss factor from 1.0724 to 1.0543 and a decrease in

the regulatory asset rate rider for Residential Customers from 0.00300 to 0.00190 per kWh.

GS<50
GS <50
2,000 kyvh Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume R;te Ch:;rge Volume R:;te Ch:;rge Cha$nge Ch;nge % of Total Bill
‘o
Wonthly Service Charge 1319 1843 5.24 397% 24%
Distribution kb 2000 0.02030 40,60 2000 001670 3340 (7200 17 7% -3.3%
Sub-Total 53.79 51.83 (1.96) -3.6% 0.9%
Requlatory Asset Recovery Ik 2,000 000150 3.00 2,000 0.00200 4.00 1.00 333% 05%
Retail Transmission - Metwark itk 2145 0.004380 10.51 2109 0.00480 10.33 (018) -1.7% -0.1%
Retail Transmission - Line and laih 2145 000350 751 2109 000350 738 13 -17% -0.1%
Wholesale Market Service lAh 2145 0.00520 1115 2109 000520 10.96 (0.19) -1 7% -0.1%
Rural Rate Praotection Charge lih 2145 0.00100 214 2109 0.00100 211 {0.04) -1.7% 0.0%
Deht Retirement Charge Ik 2000 000700 14.00 2000 000700 14.00 0.00 00% 00%
Zost of Power Commodity JEatinl 2145 0.05704 122.34 2109 005704 120.27 (2.06) -17% -(1.9%
Total Bill 224.44 220.89 (3.55) -1.6% -1.6%

ERHDC proposes an increase in the monthly fixed service charge of $5.24 to move toward the minimum
system fixed charge approach in the cost allocation study. ERHDC proposes a volumetric decrease of
17.7%. The impact on a GS<50 customer with a 2000kWhs is decrease of -3.6% on the delivery
component of the bill. The overall bill impact of a customer with 2000 kWhs consumption is -1.6%.
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GS>50

GS>50-Regular

100 Ky Consumption
40,000 K¥Wh Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume R;te Ch;rge Volume R:;te Ch;rge Cha$nge Choa/nge % of Total Bill
o

MWonthly Service Charge 12337 12337 0.00 0.0% 0.0%
Distribution ke 100 174240 17424 100 380880 38089 20665  1186% 53%
Sub-Total T 29761 " 50426 206.65 69.4% 5.3%
Requlatory Asset Recovery by 100 048220 4822 100 063220 53.22 15.00 311% 0.4%
Retail Transmission - Netwaork by 107 198020 21343 105 1.98020 20883 (360 -1.7% -0.1%
Retail Transmission - Line and Jewty 107 1.39680 149.79 105 1.39680 147.26 (253) -1.7% -01%
Wholesale Market Service lh | 42,896 0.00520 22306 42172 0.00520 219.29 (3.78) 1.7% -0.1%
Rural Rate Protection Charge kih | 42,896 000100 4280 42172 000100 4217 072 -1.7% 0.0%
Debt Retirement Charge liwvh [ 40,000 0.00700 28000 [ 40000 0.00700 28000 0.00 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Commodity kv | 42 896 005704 2448 79 42172 0.05704 240549 (41.30) -1.7% -1.1%
Total Bill 3.701.79 3.871.53 169.73 4.6% 4.4%

ERHDC proposes to maintain the fixed monthly service charge in order to minimize the reduction in the
percentage of class revenue derived from the fixed charge. A General Service > 50 kW customer with a
consumption level of 100kwW would have a distribution increase of 69.4 % and an overall bill impact of a
4.6% increase. Refer to the draft issues list in Exhibit 1, page 35 for further explanation on Historical Board

Approved year 2004.

Street Lights

Street Light

143 KW Consumption
48489 kh Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume R;te Cha$rge Volume R;te Cha$rge Cha$nge Ch:{l:ge % of Total Bill

Monthly Service Charge 041 082 0.41 100.0% 00%
Distribution bty 143 297110 425 36 143 547930 78445 35909 84.4% 73%
Sub-Total " 42577 © 78527 359.50 84.4% 71.3%
Reqgulatory Asset Recovery bty 143 018730 26 90 143 1.14050 163 .28 13638  5070% 2 8%
Retail Transmission - Network bty 154 1.50080 23044 151 1.50080 22655 (3.69) -1.7% -0.1%
Retail Transmission - Line and by 154 1.07980 165.78 151 1.07980 162.99 (280 -1.7% -01%
Wholesale Market Service kih 52,000 000520 27040 51122 000520 26584 4 58) -1.7% -0.1%
Rural Rate Protection Charge lanh 52,000 0.00100 52.00 51,122 0.00100 5112 (0.58) -1.7% 0.0%
Debt Retirement Charge vh [ 48489 0.00700 33942 [ 48489 0.00700 33042 0.00 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Commodity Kb 52,000 0.05704 296607 51122 0.05704 2916.01 (50.08) -1.7% -1.0%
Total Bill 4.476.78 491047 433.69 9.7% 8.8%

ERHDC proposes an increase in the monthly fixed service charge of $0.41 to move toward the minimum
system fixed charge approach in the cost allocation study. A volumetric rate increase is proposed at

84.4%. An overall bill impact for the street lights rate class is an increase of 9.7%.
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Sentinel
Sentinel
285 & Consumption
1033 kyvh Consurmption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume R;te Cha$rge Volume R;te Cha$rge Cha$nge CI1;nge % of Total Bill
‘o
Wonthly Service Charge 045 0.90 0.45 100.0% 0.4%
Distribution kv ) 8.55730 24.39 3] 771300 21.98 241 -9.0% -22%
Sub-Total " 2484 22.88 (1.96) 1.9% -1.8%
Regulatory Asset Recovery vty %) 12.05030 3434 3 010170 0.29 (3402 -992% -31.8%
Retail Transmission - Network by ) 1.50850 461 ) 1.50850 453 (0.08) 1.7% -01%
Retail Transmission - Ling and ly ) 110240 337 ) 110240 SE] (0.08) -17% -0.1%
Wholesale Market Service lith 1,108 0.00520 576 1,089 0.00520 268 {0.10) -1.7% -0.1%
Rural Rate Protection Charge linh 1,108 0.00100 11 1,089 0.00100 1.09 (0.02) -1.7% 0.0%
Debt Retirernent Charge lissh [ 1,033 000700 723 1,033 000700 723 0.00 00% 0.0%
zost of Power Commodity Kh 1.108 0.05704 5319 1.089 005704 5212 (107 “17% -1.0%
Total Bill 144.45 107.12 (37.33) -258% -34.8%

ERHDC proposes an increase in the monthly fixed service charge of $0.45 to move toward the minimum

system fixed charge approach in the cost allocation study. A volumetric rate decrease is proposed at -

9.9%. The impact on the distribution portion of the bill is a -7.9% decrease and a total bill impact of -25.8%

for a sentinel light customer.

Unmetered Scattered Loads

Unmetered Scattered Load

5 WY Consumpno
1000 kh Consumption

2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume R;te Cha$rge Volume R;te Cha$rge Cha$nge Ch:nge % of Total Bill
Wonthly Service Charge 6547 3.503 2.06 31.8% 2.5%
Distribution Ly S 0.01350 0.07 5 0.01310 007 (000 -30% 0.0%
Sub-Total 6.54 8.60 2.06 31.5% 25%
Regulatory Asset Recovery b 5 0.00150 0.01 5 0.00180 0.01 0.00 26.7% 0.0%
Retail Transmission - Metwark ki 5 0.00430 0.03 5 0.00490 0.03 {0.00) -1.7% 0.0%
Retail Transmission - Line and liy 5 0.00350 002 5 000350 0.02 [0.00) -1.7% 0.0%
Wholesale Market Service lanh 1,072 0.00520 5.58 1,054 0.00520 048 (0.09) 1.7 % -0.1%
Rural Rate Protection Charge Itk 1,072 0.00100 1.07 1,054 0.00100 1.05 {0.02) -1 7% 0.0%
Debt Retirement Charge ki [ 1,000 0.00700 7.00 1,000 0.00700 7.00 0.00 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Cormmodity kb 1072 005704 5117 1.054 005704 5014 (103 S17% -13%
Total Bill 81.41 82.32 0.91 1.1% 1.1%

ERHDC proposes an increase in the monthly fixed service charge of $2.06 to move toward the minimum

system fixed charge approach in the cost allocation study. The impact on the distribution portion of the bill

is a 31.5% increase. The overall bill impact for USL is 1.1%.
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MAJOR ISSUES
There are a number of issues that, although they may not all be defined as major, are anticipated to be
examined in this case. These issues are listed below.

Capital Structure

ERHDC has a deemed capital structure of 50% debt, 50%, equity as approved by the Ontario Energy
Board in RP-2005-0020, and a return on equity of 9.00%, consistent with the return specified in the
Board’s Decision in EB-2005-0362, dated October 18, 2006. ERHDC is requesting Board approval of a
capital structure of 53% debt, 47% equity.

The change in the capital structure complies with the Ontario Energy Board’s Report on Cost of Capital
and 2" Generation Incentive Regulation for Ontario’s electricity Distributors dated December 20, 2006.
The OEB report indicates that Distributors will be required to phase-in a 60% debt and 40% capital
structure that must be completed by 2010.

Return on Equity

In addition, ERHDC has assumed a return on equity of 8.69% consistent with the methodology outlined in
Appendix B of the Report of the Board on Cost of Capital and 2" Generation Incentive Regulation for
Ontario Electricity Distributors dated December 20, 2006 ERHDC understands the OEB will be finalizing
the return on equity for 2008 rates based on January 2008 market interest rate information.

Operating and Maintenance Costs

Operating and maintenance costs have been updated to reflect the impact of inflation and expected
change in costs. Comparison to the 2006 approved costs (2004 actual) may not be meaningful as a result
of corporate restructuring which was effective subsequent to December 31, 2005.
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BUDGET DIRECTIVES

ERHDC compiled budget information for the three major components of the budgeting process: revenue
forecasts, operating and maintenance expense forecast and capital budgets. This budget information is
compiled for both the bridge and test years.

Revenue Forecast

The energy sales and revenue forecast model was updated to reflect more recent information. This model
was then used to prepare the revenues sales and throughput volume and revenue forecast at existing
rates for fiscal 2007 and 2008. The forecast is weather normalized and considers such factors as new
customer additions and load profiles for all classes of customers.

Operating and Maintenance Expense Forecast

The operating and maintenance expenses for fiscal 2007 bridge year and the 2008 test year have been
forecast using a zero based methodology and is strongly influenced by prior year experience. Each item is
reviewed account by account for each of the forecast years.

Capital Budget
The capital budgeting process begins with a review of all the accounts.
All other capital expenditures are budgeted on a line by line basis based on need and forecasted customer

growth.
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CHANGES IN METHODOLOGY

The following is a summary of the changes in methodology requested by the ERHDC in the current
proceeding:

a) Capital Structure
ERHDC has no current request to change the methodology addressing the capital structure. There is
potential for future changes, however, the changes have not been finalized at the time of application.

b) Return on Equity
ERHDC has no current requests to change the methodology addressing Return on Equity. There is
potential for future changes, however, the changes have not been investigated at this time.

c) Interest Rate Applicable to Deferral/Variance Accounts

ERHDC has not current request to change the methodology relating to the Interest Rates Applicable to
Deferral/Variance Accounts.
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NUMERICAL DETAILS OF CAUSES OF DEFICIENCY/SUFFICIENCY

2008 TEST YEAR

2008 Test at 2007
Existing Rates
Revenue
Distribution Revenue 1,064,527
Other Operating Revenue (Net) 156,075
Total Revenue 1,220,602
Costs and Expenses
Distribution Costs
Operation & Maintenance 964,229
Depreciation & Amortization 179,455
Property & Capital Taxes 0
Interest 120,835
Total Costs and Expenses 1,264,519
Utility loss Before Income Taxes 43,917
Income Taxes 0
Utility loss 43,917
Utility proposed rate base 2,763,963
Required Return @7.12% 196,720
Required Return 196,720
Utility loss 43,917
Revenue Deficiency 240,637
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CAUSES OF REVENUE DEFFICIENCY

ERHDC'’s revenue deficiency is a result of normal operating expenses plus inflation.
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AT
DECEMBER 31 2006
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gﬁm {‘ — EELANDT CALDWELL REILLY LLP Bernie R. Freelandt, FCA
F. R .

w CHAHTEH ED ACCOUNTANTS Edwin P. Reilly, CA

% Sam P. Lolas, CA

Kirby W. Houle, CA

AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholder of the Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation

We have audited the balance sheet of the Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation
as at December 31, 2006 and the statements of operations, retained earnings (deficit) and cash
flow for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporation’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on

our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

position of the Corporation as at December 31, 2006, and the results of operations for the year
then ended, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles..

Gl il

FREELANDT CALDWELL REILL
Chartered Accountants

Espanola, Ontario
March 14, 2007

62 Frood Road — Suite 301 30 McCulloch Drive

Sudbury, Ontario P3C 423 Espanola, Ontario P5E 1J1

(705) 675-2200 Fax: (705) 675-2515 (705) 869-3351 Fax: (705) 869-4601

www.fcrea.com
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ESPANOLA REGIONAL HYDRO DISTRIBUTION CORPORATION

BALANCE SHEET

As at December 31, 2006

ASSETS

Current
Cash
Accounts receivable (note 4)
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Unbilled revenue - energy sales
Unbilled revenue - distribution

Capital assets (note 6)

Payment in lieu of future taxes (note 13a)
Regulatory assets (note 8)

Other assets

Organization costs (note 7)

LIABILITIES
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Payable for energy purchases
Current portion of Icng-term debt
Current portion of retail settlement variances (note 8)

Long-term obligations (note 9)

Due to Town of Espanola (note 5)

Due to Township of Sables-Spanish Rivers (note 5)
Long-term debt (note 10)

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Share capital (note 11)

Retained earnings (deficit)

Approved on behalf of the Board of Directors:

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

2006 2005

$ 304,645 $ 1,367,599
919,921 403,179
81,196 62,938
22,314 37,731
445,399 436,718
96,835 77,493
1,870,310 2,385,658
2,180,817 2,354,063
13,078 13,078
85,432 387,047
117,031 63,685
29,782 35,744

$ 4,296,450 $ 5,239,275
$ 536,975 $ 490,573
553,564 1,330,429

N 8,400

66,888 66,888
1,157,427 1,896,290
257,369 333,723
2,680,649 2,552,999
770,154 733,480

—~ 19,600
4,865,599 5,536,002
1,000 1,000
(570,149) (297,817)
(569,149) (296,817)

$ 4,296,450 $ 5,239,275
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ESPANOLA REGIONAL HYDRO DISTRIBUTION CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT)

For the year ended December 31, 2006

REVENUE
Energy sales
Distribution

Cost of energy
Gross profit

EXPENSES
General administration
Billing and collecting
Amortization
Interest
Distribution - operation
Distribution - maintenance

Loss before other income and payment in lieu of taxes

Other income
Labour, rental and other charges
Interest

Loss before payment in lieu of taxes

Payments in lieu of taxes - future recovery (note 13b)
Net loss

Deficit, beginning of year

Deficit, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement,

2006

$ 4,585,854
947,535

5,633,389
4,585,854

947,535

340,188
267,466
188,561
170,737
233,568
163,899

1,364,419

(416,884)

104,569
39,983
144,552

(272,332)

(272,332)
(297,817)
$ _(570,149)

2005

$ 4,835,265
919,713

5,754,978
4,835,265

919,713

303,102
201,226
180,866
172,506
180,233
101,193
1,139,126

(219,413)

73,497
22,407
95,904

(123,509)
13,078

(110,431)
(187.386)
$_(297,817)
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ESPANOLA REGIONAL HYDRO DISTRIBUTION CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

For the year ended December 31, 2006

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss
Adjustments for:
Amortization - organization costs
Amortization - capital assets
Amortization - transition costs

Change in non-cash working capital items
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Unbilled revenue - energy sales
Unbilled revenue - distribution
Payment in lieu of future taxes
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Payable for energy purchases
Payment in lieu of taxes

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Transfer of capital assets
Purchase of capital assets
Construction in progress
Regulatory assets
Other assets

Payment of long-term debt

Decrease in notes payable to municipal shareholders
Advances from (to) related corporations

Assumption of long-term debt

Proceeds of long-term obligations

INCREASE IN CASH
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH, END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

2006

$ (291,696)

5,962
182,599

(103,135)

(516,742)
(18,258)
15,417
(8,681)
(19,342)

46,402
(776,865)

(1,278,069)

51,166
(97,841)
(29,566)
387,867

53‘346!
258,280
(28,000)

164,324

(76,354)
59,970

(1,062,954)
1,367,599

$ 304,645

2005

$ (110,431)

5,952
167,784
17,130
70,435

358,217
(62,938)
(30,561)
18,874
3,316
(13,078)
56,250
819,321
39,685
1,189,086

(280,346)
(57,595)
(237,638)
(348,721)
(51,212)
(975,512)

(138,069)
617,473
28,000
63,017
570,421

854,430

513,169

$1,367,599
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ESPANOLA REGIONAL HYDRO DISTRIBUTION CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2006

1. Nature of operations

Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution corporation was incorporated on November 1, 2000,
The Corporation is a wholly owned subsidiary of Espanocla Regional Hydro Holdings
Corporation incorporated for the purpose of providing regulated electric distribution services
to customers.

2. Significant accounting policies

(a)

General

These financial statements are the representation of the Corporation's management and
are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as set forth in the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants Handbook,
including policies set forth in the Accounting Procedure Manual issued by the Ontario
Energy Board ("OEB”) under the authority of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998 ("OEBA").
The OEB is charged with the responsibility of approving or setting rates for the transmission
and distribution of electricity and the responsibility for ensuring that distribution companies
fulfill obligations to connect and service customers.

(b) Effects of rate regulation

(c)

The accounting for certain transactions or events are affected by rate regulation by the
OEB. Regulatory assets represent future revenues associated with certain costs, incurred
in the current period or in prior periods, that are expected to be recovered from customers
in future periods through the rate-setting and approval process. Regulatory liabilities
represent future reductions or limitations of increases in revenues associated with amounts
that are expected to be refunded to customers as a result of the rate-setting and approval
process.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during
the reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The most significant
estimates relate to the estimation of unbilled distribution revenue, unbilled revenue for
energy sales, regulatory assets and allowances for uncollectible accounts at the balance

sheet date.

(d) Cash

Cash consists of cash on hand and in banks and readily convertible investments. Readily
convertible investments are carried at the lower rate of cost or market.

(e} Accounts receivable:

Accounts receivable are recorded net of an allowance for doubtful accounts.
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2. Significant accounting policies, continued

(f)

inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined
using the average cost method.

(g9) Unbilled revenues

Revenue is recorded in the accounts to various dates on the basis of monthly meter
readings. At the end of an accounting cycle, there is energy used by consumers for
which meter readings are not available and no bills have been issued. This unbilled
revenue is estimated and recorded in the accounts at the end of each fiscal year. The
related cost of energy is recorded on the basis of energy used.

(h) Capital assets

(i)

Capital assets are recorded at cost less government grants received and contributions
in aid of construction and include an allocation of engineering and other overhead.
Amortization is provided annually, on a straight line basis, in accordance with the
following rates.

Buildings 25 - 40 years
Distribution systems 25 years
Automotive 4 - 8 years
Office and other equipment 5-10 years
Computer equipment 5 years

Payment in lieu of taxes

Effective October 1, 2001 and pursuant to the EA, the Corporation is required to
compute taxes under the Income Tax Act (Canada) (“ITA") and the Ontario Corporations
Tax Act (“OCTA") and remit such amounts computed thereunder to the Ontario
Electricity Financial Corporation (“OEFC”). These amounts, referred to as payments in
lieu of taxes (“PILs") under the EA, are applied to reduce certain debt obligations of the
former Ontario Hydro now owing by the OEFC.

As prescribed by a regulatory rate order, payment in lieu of taxes are recovered through
customer rates based on the taxes payable method. Therefore, rates do not include the
recovery of payment in lieu of future taxes related to temporary differences between the
tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for accounting purposes.

Payment in lieu of future income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future
tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying
amount and their tax bases. Payment in lieu of future tax assets are recognized for the
benefit of any deductions or losses available to be carried forward to future periods for
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2. Significant accounting policies, continued

(i

)

(k

~—

U}

Payment in lieu of taxes, continued

tax purposes that are likely to be realized. These amounts are measured using enacted
or substantively enacted tax rates and are re-measured annually for changes in these
rates. Any payment in lieu of future income tax assets are reassessed each year to
determine if a valuation allowance is required. Any effect of the re-measurement or
reassessment is recognized in the period of the change.

Contributions in aid of construction

In certain cases, non-refundable contributions are received in aid of construction or
acquisition of capital assets. Contributions in aid of construction are classified as contra-
assets and are being amortized at the same rate as the assets to which they relate.

Future employee benefits

Actuarial gains or losses on employee future benefits arise when the expected amounts
of the Accrued Post-retirement Benefit Obligation (APBQ) differs from the amount
recorded in the accounts. These gains or losses are recognized in the year that they
are determined.

Deferred transition costs
The Corporation has incurred costs related to the transition to a competitive electricity

market mandated by the Electricity Act, 1998. The OEB has established rules in respect
of transition costs which qualify for deferral and amortization against future revenue.

(m) Financial instruments

Short-term financial assets and liabilities, including cash, accounts receivable,
advances to related parties, unbilled revenue, accounts payable and accrued liabilities,
payable for energy purchases, interest payable on promissory note, and payment in
lieu of taxes are valued at their carrying amounts as presented in the balance sheet.

- The carrying values are reasonable estimates of fair value due to the short period to
maturity of the financial instruments.

It is management's estimate that the fair value of the Company’s long-term obligations,
promissory note payable and preferred shares are not materially different from the
carrying value based on current rates for instruments with similar terms and maturities.
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For the year ended December 31, 2006

Significant accounting policies, continued
(n) Asset retirement obligations

During 2004, the company adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
Handbook Section 3110, Asset Retirement Obligations. This accounting standard requires
the company to determine the fair value of future expenditures required to settle legal
obligations to remove capital assets. |freasonably estimable, a liability is recognized equal
to the present value of the estimated future removal expenditures.

An equivalent amount is capitalized as an inherent cost of the associated capital asset.

Some of the company's distribution system assets may have asset retirement obligations.
As the company expects to use the majority of its installed assets for an indefinite period,
no removal date can be determined and consequently a reasonable estimate of the fair
value of nay related asset retirement obligation cannot be made at this time. If, at some
future date, it becomes possible to estimate the fair value cost of removing assets that the
company is legally required to remove an asset retirement obligation will be recognized at

that time.
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized in the period of energy consumption.

Accounts receivable

2006 2005

Electrical energy receivables $ 685,524 $ 268,524
Other receivables 234,397 150,655
919,921 419,179

Allowance for doubtful accounts — (16,000)
$ 919,921 $ 403,179

Related parties transactions

(a) The company is related to the Town of Espanola by virtue of the fact that the Town is a
81% owner of the company'’s sole shareholder. Likewise, the Township of Sables-Spanish
Rivers is a 19% owner of the Company’s sole shareholder.

The Company provides electrical energy to the Town of Espancla and the Township of
Sables-Spanish Rivers at the same price protected rates and terms as other similar
customers based on the amount of electricity consumed.

Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities is $259,024(2005 - $251,257) relating
to amounts collected by the Company on behalf of the Town of Espanola for water and
sewer biling. Correspondingly, included in accounts receivable is $143,529(2005 -
$142,551) relating to amounts receivable for water and sewer.
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5. Related parties transactions, continued

(b) Advances from related parties:

2006 2005
Town of Espanola $2,680,649 $2 552,999
Township of Sables-Spanish Rivers $ 770,154 $ 733,480

Amounts due to municipalities represent notes payable without security or specified terms of
repayment. Interest at 5% per annum is paid on the notes payable.

6. Capital assets 2006 2005
Accumulated Net Book  Net Book

Cost Amortization Value Value

Land $ 69945 - $ 69945 $ 129,441
Buildings 324,350 97,978 226,372 228,156
Transmission and distribution 4,597 377 3,044,792 1,552,585 1,620,489
Vehicles 454,606 380,506 74,100 125,344
Equipment 394,980 324,501 70,479 88,967
Engineering standards - = - 6,539
Construction in progress 267,204 267,204 237,638

Contributions in aid of construction _ (106,018) (26,150)  (79,868)  (82,511)
$6,002,444 3,821,627 $2,180,817 $2,354,063
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7. Organization costs

2006 2005

Accumulated Net Book  Net Book

Cost Amortization Value Value

Organization costs $59,567 29,785 $29,782 $35,744

These costs are being amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of ten years.

8. Regulatory assets

2006 005

Recovery of regulatory assets $ 226,048 $ -
Deferred transition costs (a) 179,743 154,220
Retail settlement variances (b) (107,226) 316,435
Hydre One LV costs payable (c) (280,021) (150,496)
18,544 320,159

Current portion of costs payable 66,888 66,888
$ 85432 $ 387,047

The regulatory assets arise as a result of the rate setting and approval process by the OEB.
In 2004, the Minister of Energy authorized the recovery of regulatory assets through the

distribution rate application.

(a) The OEB had established a process for the recording of costs incurred by the Corporation

to be market ready, including related carrying costs, as deferred transition costs to be
recovered in the future through the regulatory rate setting process. In accordance with an
OEB decision these amounts cannot be recovered through the rate setting and approval
process, rather they are being charged to operations on a straight line basis over a period
of 10 years. In the absence of rate regulation, generally accepted accounting principles
would require that the costs be recognized as an expense or capital asset, as applicable,
when incurred.

The OEB requires the Corporation to track variances for the following, that are to be
disposed of pending further direction from the OEB.

(b) The difference between the amount paid by the company to the Independent Electricity

System Operator (“IESQ") for the cost of energy and the amount billed by the company to
its customers as energy sales, as well as other deregulation costs incurred by the company
and related carrying costs, are recorded on the balance sheet as retail settlement variance
until their final disposition is decided by the OEB. The company recognizes retail
settlement variances as an asset or liability based on the expectation these amounts will
be approved by the OEB for future collection from, or refund to, customers through the rate
setting and approval process. The retail settlement variance asset (liability) represents the
excess (deficiency) of amounts billed by the IESO for the cost of energy over the amounts
charged to customers as energy sales. In the absence of rate regulation, generally
accepted accounting principles would reguire that the total cost of energy be charged to
operations when incurred.




Exhibit: 1

Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

ESPANOLA REGIONAL HYDRO DISTRIBUTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2006
8. Regqlatory assets, continued
(c) The amount payable is due to Hydro One for LV costs to be paid over three years.
For certain of the regulatory assets and liabilities identified above, the expected recover or

settlement period, or likelihood of recovery or settlement, is affected by risks and uncertainties
relating to the ultimate authority of the OEB in determining the item’s treatment for rate-setting

purposes.

9. Long-term obligations

2006 2005

Future benefits $ 50,764 $ 50,764
Customer deposits and credit balances 206,605 282,959
$ 257,369 $ 333,723

Employee future benefits

Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation pays certain benefits on behalf of its retired
employees. Effective November 1, 2000 the Corporation adopted the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants new accounting standards for employee future benefits which
recognizes these post-retirement costs in the period in which the employees rendered the
services. The accrued benefit liability of $50,764(2005 - $50,764) and the expense for the
period ended December 31, 2006 was determined using a discount rate of 6.0%.

Information about Regional Hydro Distribution’s benefit plans is as follows:

Accrued benefit liability transferred during the year $ 50,764
Expense for the period 8,350
Benefits paid for the period (8,350)

$ 50,764

The main assumptions employed for the valuations are as follows:

(a) General inflation:

Future general inflation levels as measured by changes in the Consumer Price index (CPI"),
were assumed at 3.0% in 2005 and thereafter.

(b) Interest (discount) rate:

The obligation of the present value of future liabilities and the expense for the year ended
December 31, 2005 were determined using an annual discount rate of 6.0%. This
corresponds to the assumed CPI rate plus an assumed real rate of return of 3.0%.
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10. Long-term debt 2006 2005
Mortgage payable $8,400
annually, without interest 3 - $ 28,000
Current portion - 8,400
3 - $ 19,600
11. Share capital
2006 2005
Authorized
Unlimited shares common stock
Stated
1,000 shares common stock $ 1,000 $ 1,000
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ESPANOLA REGIONAL HYDRO DISTRIBUTION CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2006

Committments and contingencies

(a)

(b)

The company has issued a $350,000 Letter of Guarantee to the Independent Electricity
market Operator (IMO). This guarantee was a requirement of the IMO for market
opening on May 1, 2002. At December 31, 2006, no amounts have been drawn on this
financing arrangement.

Litigation:

A class action lawsuit claiming $500 million in restitutionary payments, plus interest,
was served on Toronto Hydro Electric Commission, continuing as Toronto Hydro
Corporation, on November 8, 1998. This action was initiated against Toronto Hydro-
Electric Commission as the representative of the defendant class consisting of all
municipal electric utilities in Ontario which have charged late payment charges on
overdue utility bills after April 1, 1981.

The claim is that late payment penalties result in the municipal electric utilities receiving
interest at effective rates in excess of 60% per year, which is illegal under section
347(1)(b) of the Criminal Code.

The Electricity Distributors Association has undertaken the defense of this class action.
At this time it is not possible to quantify the effect, if any, on the financial statements of
the Company.

Accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial statements with respectto any
possible losses that may arise as a result of this matter.
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13. Payment in lieu of future taxes

(a) The components of the payment in lieu of future tax balances are as follows:

2006 2005
Payment in lieu of future taxes
Effect of losses carrying forward $ 21,464 $ 48,228
Difference between tax basis of capital
assets and carrying amount 46,882 71,998
Difference between carrying value of regulatory
assets and tax basis (18,519) (58,920)
49,827 61,306
Valuation allowance (36,749) (48,228)
: $ 13,078 $ 13,078

(b) The provision for payments in lieu of taxes recorded in the financial statements differs
from the amount which would be obtained by applying the statutory income tax rate of
18.62% to the earnings (loss) for the years as follows:

2006 2005
Earnings (loss) before payment in lieu of taxes $ 9,509 $ (123,509)
Anticipated income tax expense (recovery) 1,770 (22,997)
Other (1,770) 9,919
Provision for payment in lieu of taxes b - $ !13,0782

14. Loss carry forwards

For payment in lieu of tax purposes, the company has losses which can be applied to reduce
future years taxable income.

These losses expire as follows:

2015 $ 115,272

Exhibit: 1
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[FinStmt [BS
OK? YES
Sum of Amount
GroupDesc AcctDesc Total
1050-Current Assets 1005-Cash 573,836
1010-Cash Advances and Working Funds 0
1060-Term Deposits 0
1100-Customer Accounts Receivable 662,000
1102-Accounts Receivable - Services 0
1104-Accounts Receivable - Recoverable Work 59,300
1110-Other Accounts Receivable 148,827
1120-Accrued Utility Revenues 550,000
1130-Accumulated Provision for Uncollectible Accounts--Credit 0
1180-Prepayments 20,000
1190-Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Assets 13,000
1050-Current Assets Total 2,026,963
1100-Inventory 1305-Fuel Stock 0
1330-Plant Materials and Operating Supplies 80,000
1100-Inventory Total 80,000
1150-Non-Current Assets [1490-Investment in Subsidiary Companies 0
1150-Non-Current Assets Total 0
1200-Other Assets and Deferred Charges 1508-Other Regulatory Assets 0
1518-RCVARetail 0
1520-Power Purchase Variance Account 0
1525-Miscellaneous Deferred Debits 0
1548-RCVASTR 0
1550-LV Variance Account 0
1555-Smart Meters Capital Variance Account 0
1556-Smart Meters OM&A Variance Account 0
1562-Deferred Payments in Lieu of Taxes 0
1563-Account 1563 - Deferred PILs Contra Account 0
1565-Conservation and Demand Management Expenditures and Recoveries 0
1570-Qualifying Transition Costs 0
1580-RSVAWMS 0
1582-RSVAONE-TIME 0
1584-RSVANW 0
1586-RSVACN 0
1588-RSVAPOWER 253,632
1590-Recovery of Regulatory Asset Balances 26,368
1200-Other Assets and Deferred Charges Total 280,000
1300-Intangible Plant 1606-Organization 29,787
1610-Miscellaneous Intangible Plant 0
1300-Intangible Plant Total 29,787
1450-Distribution Plant 1805-Land 69,945
1806-Land Rights 0
1808-Buildings and Fixtures 291,542
1820-Distribution Station Equipment - Normally Primary below 50 kV 267,520
1830-Poles, Towers and Fixtures 592,028
1835-Overhead Conductors and Devices 513,371
1840-Underground Conduit 257,740
1845-Underground Conductors and Devices 48,442
1850-Line Transformers 823,324
1855-Services 128,337
1860-Meters 226,979
1450-Distribution Plant Total 3,219,229
1500-General Plant 1905-Land 0
1906-Land Rights 0
1908-Buildings and Fixtures 0
1910-Leasehold Improvements 0
1915-Office Furniture and Equipment 5,607
1920-Computer Equipment - Hardware 58,639
1925-Computer Software 25,257
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1930-Transportation Equipment 215,337
1935-Stores Equipment 10,538
1940-Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment 127,588
1945-Measurement and Testing Equipment 7,962
1955-Communication Equipment 0
1960-Miscellaneous Equipment 0
1970-Load Management Controls - Customer Premises 0
1975-Load Management Controls - Utility Premises 0
1980-System Supervisory Equipment 0
1985-Sentinel Lighting Rental Units 10,121
1995-Contributions and Grants - Credit -106,018
1500-General Plant Total 355,032
1550-Other Capital Assets 2005-Property Under Capital Leases 0
2050-Completed Construction Not Classified--Electric 0
2055-Construction Work in Progress--Electric 267,204
1550-Other Capital Assets Total 267,204
1600-Accumulated Amortization 2105-Accum. Amortization of Electric Utility Plant - Property, Plant, & Equipment -1,691,901
2120-Accumulated Amortization of Electric Utility Plant - Intangibles 0
1600-Accumulated Amortization Total -1,691,901
1650-Current Liabilities 2205-Accounts Payable -2,993,720
2208-Customer Credit Balances 0
2210-Current Portion of Customer Deposits -200,127
2220-Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities -127,900
2250-Debt Retirement Charges( DRC) Payable -40,100
2290-Commodity Taxes 0
2292-Payroll Deductions / Expenses Payable -28,100
1650-Current Liabilities Total -3,389,947
1700-Non-Current Liabilities 2310-Vested Sick Leave Liability -51,000
2405-Other Regulatory Liabilities -223,600
2425-Other Deferred Credits 0
1700-Non-Current Liabilities Total -274,600
1800-Long-Term Debt 2520-Other Long Term Debt 0
2550-Advances from Associated Companies -1,473,979
1800-Long-Term Debt Total -1,473,979
1850-Shareholders' Equity 3005-Common Shares Issued -1,000
3030-Miscellaneous Paid-In Capital 0
3045-Unappropriated Retained Earnings 570,153
3046-Balance Transferred From Income 3,059
3055-Adjustment to Retained Earnings 0
1850-Shareholders' Equity Total 572,212
Grand Total -0
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Sum of Amount
GroupDesc AcctDesc Total
3000-Sales of Electricity 4006-Residential Energy Sales -1,800,000
4010-Commercial Energy Sales 0
4020-Energy Sales to Large Users 0
4025-Street Lighting Energy Sales -38,400
4030-Sentinel Lighting Energy Sales -1,500
4035-General Energy Sales -1,661,800
4040-Other Energy Sales to Public Authorities 0
4045-Energy Sales to Railroads and Railways 0
4050-Revenue Adjustment -47,300
4055-Energy Sales for Resale -355,000
4062-Billed WMS -356,000
4064-Billed-One-Time 0
4066-Billed NW -330,000
4068-Billed CN -200,000
4075-Billed-LV -119,393
3000-Sales of Electricity Total -4,909,393
3050-Revenues From Services - Distirbution 4080-Distribution Services Revenue -1,077,428
4082-Retail Services Revenues -5,760
4084-Service Transaction Requests (STR) Revenues -100
3050-Revenues From Services - Distirbution Total -1,083,288
3100-Other Operating Revenues 4210-Rent from Electric Property -38,900
4225-Late Payment Charges -12,200
4235-Miscellaneous Service Revenues -57,220
3100-Other Operating Revenues Total -108,320
3150-Other Income & Deductions 4325-Revenues from Merchandise, Jobbing, Etc. -9,414
4375-Revenues from Non-Utility Operations -29,900
4380-Expenses of Non-Utility Operations 25,319
4390-Miscellaneous Non-Operating Income 0
3150-Other Income & Deductions Total -13,995
3200-Investment Income [4405-Interest and Dividend Income -70,000
3200-Investment Income Total -70,000
3350-Power Supply Expenses 4705-Power Purchased 3,904,000
4708-Charges-WMS 356,000
4710-Cost of Power Adjustments 0
4712-Charges-One-Time 0
4714-Charges-NW 330,000
4716-Charges-CN 200,000
4720-Other Expenses 0
4730-Rural Rate Assistance Expense 0
4750-Charges-LV 119,393
3350-Power Supply Expenses Total 4,909,393
3500-Distribution Expenses - Operation 5005-Operation Supervision and Engineering 36,840
5012-Station Buildings and Fixtures Expense 14,168
5016-Distribution Station Equipment - Operation Labour 12,015
5017-Distribution Station Equipment - Operation Supplies and Expenses 11,000
5020-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Labour 30,102
5025-Overhead Distribution Lines & Feeders - Operation Supplies and Expenses 10,700
5035-Overhead Distribution Transformers- Operation 12,425
5040-Underground Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Labour 5,663
5045-Underground Distribution Lines & Feeders - Operation Supplies & Expenses 3,900
5055-Underground Distribution Transformers - Operation 13,142
5065-Meter Expense 14,492
5070-Customer Premises - Operation Labour 23,167
5075-Customer Premises - Materials and Expenses 2,000
5085-Miscellaneous Distribution Expense 13,302
5095-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Rental Paid 13,700
3500-Distribution Expenses - Operation Total 216,616
3550-Distribution Expenses - Maintenance |5105-Maintenance Supervision and Engineering 36,840
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5110-Maintenance of Buildings and Fixtures - Distribution Stations 5,863
5114-Maintenance of Distribution Station Equipment 14,580
5120-Maintenance of Poles, Towers and Fixtures 3,167
5125-Maintenance of Overhead Conductors and Devices 37,566
5130-Maintenance of Overhead Services 150
5135-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Right of Way 63,378
5145-Maintenance of Underground Conduit 1,450
5150-Maintenance of Underground Conductors and Devices 17,204
5155-Maintenance of Underground Services 0
5160-Maintenance of Line Transformers 2,567
5170-Sentinel Lights - Labour 789
5172-Sentinel Lights - Materials and Expenses 0
5175-Maintenance of Meters 789
3550-Distribution Expenses - Maintenance Total 184,343
3650-Billing and Collecting 5310-Meter Reading Expense 38,089
5315-Customer Billing 138,917
5320-Collecting 70,822
5325-Collecting- Cash Over and Short 0
5335-Bad Debt Expense 4,000
3650-Billing and Collecting Total 251,828
3700-Community Relations 5410-Community Relations - Sundry 2,000
5515-Advertising Expense 0
3700-Community Relations Total 2,000
3800-Administrative and General Expenses 5605-Executive Salaries and Expenses 16,700
5610-Management Salaries and Expenses 64,065
5615-General Administrative Salaries and Expenses 16,139
5620-Office Supplies and Expenses 57,819
5630-Outside Services Employed 100,411
5635-Property Insurance 5,200
5640-Injuries and Damages 7,991
5645-Employee Pensions and Benefits 9,000
5655-Regulatory Expenses 6,000
5660-General Advertising Expenses 0
5665-Miscellaneous General Expenses 1,000
5680-Electrical Safety Authority Fees 2,500
5685-Independent Market Operator Fees and Penalties 0
3800-Administrative and General Expenses Total 286,825
3850-Amortization Expense 5705-Amortization Expense - Property, Plant, and Equipment 178,061
5710-Amortization of Limited Term Electric Plant 0
5715-Amortization of Intangibles and Other Electric Plant 0
3850-Amortization Expense Total 178,061
3900-Interest Expense 6030-Interest on Debt to Associated Companies 84,625
6035-Other Interest Expense 48,400
6042-Allowance For Other Funds Used During Construction 0
3900-Interest Expense Total 133,025
3950-Taxes Other Than Income Taxes |6105-Taxes Other Than Income Taxes 25,964
3950-Taxes Other Than Income Taxes Total 25,964
4000-Income Taxes [6110-Income Taxes 0
4000-Income Taxes Total 0
4100-Extraordinary & Other Items [6205-Donations 0
4100-Extraordinary & Other Items Total 0
Grand Total 3,059
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[FinStmt [BS
OK? YES
Sum of Amount
GroupDesc AcctDesc Total
1050-Current Assets 1005-Cash 598,575
1010-Cash Advances and Working Funds 0
1060-Term Deposits 0
1100-Customer Accounts Receivable 662,000
1102-Accounts Receivable - Services 0
1104-Accounts Receivable - Recoverable Work 59,298
1110-Other Accounts Receivable 148,827
1120-Accrued Utility Revenues 550,000
1130-Accumulated Provision for Uncollectible Accounts--Credit 0
1180-Prepayments 20,000
1190-Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Assets 13,000
1050-Current Assets Total 2,051,700
1100-Inventory 1305-Fuel Stock 0
1330-Plant Materials and Operating Supplies 80,000
1350-Other Materials and Supplies 0
1100-Inventory Total 80,000
1150-Non-Current Assets 1460-Other Non-Current Assets 0
1490-Investment in Subsidiary Companies 0
1150-Non-Current Assets Total 0
1200-Other Assets and Deferred Charges 1505-Unrecovered Plant and Regulatory Study Costs 0
1508-Other Regulatory Assets 0
1510-Preliminary Survey and Investigation Charges 0
1515-Emission Allowance Inventory 0
1516-Emission Allowances Withheld 0
1518-RCVARetail 0
1520-Power Purchase Variance Account 0
1525-Miscellaneous Deferred Debits 0
1530-Deferred Losses from Disposition of Utility Plant 0
1540-Unamortized Loss on Reacquired Debt 0
1545-Development Charge Deposits/ Receivables 0
1548-RCVASTR 0
1550-LV Variance Account 0
1555-Smart Meters Capital Variance Account -11,877
1556-Smart Meters OM&A Variance Account 0
1560-Deferred Development Costs 0
1562-Deferred Payments in Lieu of Taxes 0
1563-Account 1563 - Deferred PILs Contra Account 0
1565-Conservation and Demand Management Expenditures and Recoveries 0
1566-CDM Contra Account 0
1570-Quialifying Transition Costs 0
1571-Pre-market Opening Energy Variance 0
1572-Extraordinary Event Costs 0
1574-Deferred Rate Impact Amounts 0
1580-RSVAWMS 0
1582-RSVAONE-TIME 0
1584-RSVANW 0
1586-RSVACN 0
1588-RSVAPOWER 253,632
1590-Recovery of Regulatory Asset Balances 80,021
1592-2006 PlLs/Taxes Variance 0
1200-Other Assets and Deferred Charges Total 321,775
1300-Intangible Plant 1606-Organization 29,787
1610-Miscellaneous Intangible Plant 0
1300-Intangible Plant Total 29,787
1450-Distribution Plant 1805-Land 69,945
1806-Land Rights 0
1808-Buildings and Fixtures 291,542
1820-Distribution Station Equipment - Normally Primary below 50 kV 287,313
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1820-Distribution Station Equipment - Normally Primary below 50 kV 287,313

1830-Poles, Towers and Fixtures 690,224

1835-Overhead Conductors and Devices 544,254

1840-Underground Conduit 299,384

1845-Underground Conductors and Devices 48,442

1850-Line Transformers 823,324

1855-Services 141,220

1860-Meters 226,979

1450-Distribution Plant Total 3,422,628
1500-General Plant 1905-Land 0
1906-Land Rights 0

1908-Buildings and Fixtures 0

1910-Leasehold Improvements 0

1915-Office Furniture and Equipment 6,607

1920-Computer Equipment - Hardware 58,639

1925-Computer Software 25,257

1930-Transportation Equipment 215,337

1935-Stores Equipment 10,538

1940-Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment 127,588

1945-Measurement and Testing Equipment 7,962

1955-Communication Equipment 0

1960-Miscellaneous Equipment 0

1970-Load Management Controls - Customer Premises 0

1975-Load Management Controls - Utility Premises 0

1980-System Supervisory Equipment 0

1985-Sentinel Lighting Rental Units 10,121

1990-Other Tangible Property 0

1995-Contributions and Grants - Credit -106,018

1500-General Plant Total 356,032
1550-Other Capital Assets 2005-Property Under Capital Leases 0
2050-Completed Construction Not Classified--Electric 0

2055-Construction Work in Progress--Electric 267,204

2070-Other Utility Plant 0

1550-Other Capital Assets Total 267,204
1600-Accumulated Amortization 2105-Accum. Amortization of Electric Utility Plant - Property, Plant, & Equipment | -1,871,355
2120-Accumulated Amortization of Electric Utility Plant - Intangibles 0

2160-Accumulated Amortization of Other Utility Plant 0

1600-Accumulated Amortization Total -1,871,355
1650-Current Liabilities 2205-Accounts Payable -3,016,290
2208-Customer Credit Balances 0

2210-Current Portion of Customer Deposits -200,127

2220-Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities -127,900

2250-Debt Retirement Charges( DRC) Payable -40,100

2260-Current Portion of Long Term Debt 0

2290-Commodity Taxes 0

2292-Payroll Deductions / Expenses Payable -28,100

1650-Current Liabilities Total -3,412,517
1700-Non-Current Liabilities 2310-Vested Sick Leave Liability -51,000
2320-Other Miscellaneous Non-Current Liabilities 0

2405-Other Regulatory Liabilities -173,600

2425-Other Deferred Credits 0

1700-Non-Current Liabilities Total -224,600
1800-Long-Term Debt 2505-Debentures Outstanding - Long Term Portion 0
2510-Debenture Advances 0

2515-Reacquired Bonds 0

2520-Other Long Term Debt 0

2525-Term Bank Loans - Long Term Portion 0

2530-Ontario Hydro Debt Outstanding - Long Term Portion 0

2550-Advances from Associated Companies -1,473,979

1800-Long-Term Debt Total -1,473,979
1850-Shareholders' Equity 3005-Common Shares Issued -1,000
3030-Miscellaneous Paid-In Capital 0

3045-Unappropriated Retained Earnings 573,212
mﬂw
3055-Adjustment to Retained Earnings 0

1850-Shareholders' Equity Total 186 453,325
Grand Total -0
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3046-Balance Transferred From Income -118,887
3055-Adjustment to Retained Earnings 0
1850-Shareholders' Equity Total ] 453,325
Grand Total -0
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[FinStmt [PL
Sum of Amount
GroupDesc AcctDesc Total
3000-Sales of Electricity 4006-Residential Energy Sales -1,639,000
4010-Commercial Energy Sales 0
4015-Industrial Energy Sales 0
4020-Energy Sales to Large Users 0
4025-Street Lighting Energy Sales -38,100
4030-Sentinel Lighting Energy Sales -1,500
4035-General Energy Sales -1,640,800
4040-Other Energy Sales to Public Authorities 0
4045-Energy Sales to Railroads and Railways 0
4050-Revenue Adjustment -40,600
4055-Energy Sales for Resale -340,000
4060-Interdepartmental Energy Sales 0
4062-Billed WMS -412,209
4064-Billed-One-Time 0
4066-Billed NW -334,165
4068-Billed CN -244,300
4075-Billed-LV -139,296
3000-Sales of Electricity Total -4,829,970
3050-Revenues From Services - Distirbution 4080-Distribution Services Revenue -1,193,752
4082-Retail Services Revenues -8,650
4084-Service Transaction Requests (STR) Revenues -125
3050-Revenues From Services - Distirbution Total -1,202,527
3100-Other Operating Revenues 4210-Rent from Electric Property -39,500
4215-Other Utility Operating Income 0
4225-Late Payment Charges -12,200
4235-Miscellaneous Service Revenues -57,220
3100-Other Operating Revenues Total -108,920
3150-Other Income & Deductions 4325-Revenues from Merchandise, Jobbing, Etc. 0
4375-Revenues from Non-Utility Operations -30,805
4380-Expenses of Non-Utility Operations 26,847
4390-Miscellaneous Non-Operating Income 0
3150-Other Income & Deductions Total -3,958
3200-Investment Income |4405-Interest and Dividend Income -68,000
3200-Investment Income Total -68,000
3350-Power Supply Expenses 4705-Power Purchased 3,700,000
4708-Charges-WMS 412,209
4710-Cost of Power Adjustments 0
4712-Charges-One-Time 0
4714-Charges-NW 334,165
4715-System Control and Load Dispatching 0
4716-Charges-CN 244,300
4720-Other Expenses 0
4725-Competition Transition Expense 0
4730-Rural Rate Assistance Expense 0
4750-Charges-LV 139,296
3350-Power Supply Expenses Total 4,829,970
3500-Distribution Expenses - Operation 5005-Operation Supervision and Engineering 37,392
5012-Station Buildings and Fixtures Expense 3,931
5016-Distribution Station Equipment - Operation Labour 12,815
5017-Distribution Station Equipment - Operation Supplies and Expenses 11,225
5020-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Labour 53,268
5025-Overhead Distribution Lines & Feeders - Operation Supplies and Expenses 10,915
5035-Overhead Distribution Transformers- Operation 14,203
5040-Underground Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Labour 6,039
5045-Underground Distribution Lines & Feeders - Operation Supplies & Expenses 3,980
5055-Underground Distribution Transformers - Operation 15,682
5065-Meter Expense 13,426
5070-Customer Premises - Operation Labour 25,085
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5075-Customer Premises - Materials and Expenses 2,040
5085-Miscellaneous Distribution Expense 13,726
5095-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Rental Paid 13,700
3500-Distribution Expenses - Operation Total 237,426
3550-Distribution Expenses - Maintenance 5105-Maintenance Supervision and Engineering 37,392
5110-Maintenance of Buildings and Fixtures - Distribution Stations 6,239
5114-Maintenance of Distribution Station Equipment 15,235
5120-Maintenance of Poles, Towers and Fixtures 6,972
5125-Maintenance of Overhead Conductors and Devices 38,288
5130-Maintenance of Overhead Services 150
5135-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Right of Way 59,944
5145-Maintenance of Underground Conduit 1,426
5150-Maintenance of Underground Conductors and Devices 17,301
5155-Maintenance of Underground Services 0
5160-Maintenance of Line Transformers 2,709
5170-Sentinel Lights - Labour 836
5172-Sentinel Lights - Materials and Expenses 0
5175-Maintenance of Meters 836
3550-Distribution Expenses - Maintenance Total 187,328
3650-Billing and Collecting 5305-Supervision 0
5310-Meter Reading Expense 39,276
5315-Customer Billing 142,446
5320-Collecting 68,965
5325-Collecting- Cash Over and Short 0
5335-Bad Debt Expense 4,000
3650-Billing and Collecting Total 254,687
3700-Community Relations 5410-Community Relations - Sundry 2,000
5515-Advertising Expense 0
3700-Community Relations Total 2,000
3800-Administrative and General Expenses 5605-Executive Salaries and Expenses 18,600
5610-Management Salaries and Expenses 67,229
5615-General Administrative Salaries and Expenses 7,555
5620-Office Supplies and Expenses 60,431
5630-Outside Services Employed 95,842
5635-Property Insurance 5,350
5640-Injuries and Damages 8,230
5645-Employee Pensions and Benefits 9,550
5655-Regulatory Expenses 6,000
5660-General Advertising Expenses 0
5665-Miscellaneous General Expenses 1,500
5680-Electrical Safety Authority Fees 2,500
5685-Independent Market Operator Fees and Penalties 0
3800-Administrative and General Expenses Total 282,788
3850-Amortization Expense 5705-Amortization Expense - Property, Plant, and Equipment 179,455
5710-Amortization of Limited Term Electric Plant 0
5715-Amortization of Intangibles and Other Electric Plant 0
5725-Miscellaneous Amortization 0
3850-Amortization Expense Total 179,455
3900-Interest Expense 6005-Interest on Long Term Debt 0
6010-Amortization of Debt Discount and Expense 0
6015-Amortization of Premium on Debt Credit 0
6020-Amortization of Loss on Reacquired Debt 0
6025-Amortization of Gain on Reacquired Debt--Credit 0
6030-Interest on Debt to Associated Companies 84,625
6035-Other Interest Expense 36,210
6042-Allowance For Other Funds Used During Construction 0
3900-Interest Expense Total 120,835
3950-Taxes Other Than Income Taxes [6105-Taxes Other Than Income Taxes 0
3950-Taxes Other Than Income Taxes Total 0
4000-Income Taxes [6110-Income Taxes 0
4000-Income Taxes Total 0
4100-Extraordinary & Other Items [6205-Donations 0
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|6225-Other Deductions 0
4100-Extraordinary & Other Items Total 0
Grand Total -118,887
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RECONCILIATION BETWEEN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL RESULTS FILED

Reconciliation between the results filed and the 2006 Audited Statements for ERHDC.

OEB Account # Difference Rational
1808 - Building and Fixtures (32,806) Fully depreciated fixed assets and the related
1820 — Distribution Station 26.000 accumulated depreciation were adjusted. No impact
Equipment (26,000) on net fixed assets or P&L.
1830 — Poles Towers and (871,250)
Fixtures
183_5 - Overhead Conductors and (414,167)
Devices
1840 — Underground Conduit (432,752)
1860 - Meters (138,131)
1915 — Office Furniture and (58.392)
Equipment
1920 — Computer Equipment (87,127)
Hardware
1930 — Transportation Equipment | (239,269)
Total reduction in Gross Fixed (2,299,894)
Assets
2105 — Accumulated Amortization | 2,299,894
Impact on Net Fixed Assets 0
4225 — Late Payment Charges (3,053) Reclassification in other operating income. No impact
4235 — Miscellaneous Service on P&L.
3,053
Revenues
Impact on P&L 0
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PROPOSED ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

ERHDC has not proposed any accounting treatment changes at the time of filing this application.
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

INFORMATION ON PARENT AND SUBSIDIARIES

Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation is an affiliate of Espanola Regional Services
Corporation that has been inactive since December 31, 2005. Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution
Corporation’s parent company is Espanola Regional Hydro Holdings Company. Espanola Regional Hydro
Holdings Company is 81% owned by the Town of Espanola and 19% owned by the Township of Sables-

Spanish Rivers.
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Page Overview

2 Rate Base Overview
3 Rate Base Summary Table
4 Variance Analysis on Rate Base Table

Gross Assets — Property, Plant and Equipment Accumulated

Depreciation

5-11 Continuity Statements

12-14 Gross Assets Table

15-17 Materiality Analysis on Gross Assets

18-20 Accumulated Depreciation Table

21-23 Materiality Analysis on Accumulated Depreciation

Capital Budget

24-26 Capital Budget by Project

27-28 Materiality Analysis on Capital Additions
29 System Expansions

30-31 Capitalization Policy

Allowance for Working Capital

32-33 Overview and Calculation by Account



Exhibit: 2
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RATE BASE OVERVIEW

A projection of ERHDC's rate base is provided for both the Bridge Year (2007) and the Test Year
(2008). Historical data pertaining to rate base is presented for 2006 Board Approved and 2006
Actual.

ERHDC's forecast rate base for the test year is $2,763,963. The rate base underlying the test year
revenue requirement included a forecast of net fixed assets plus a working capital allowance. Net
fixed assets are gross assets in service minus accumulated depreciation and contributed capital.
Details for ERHDC'’s working capital allowance calculation is provided in this exhibit.

Continuity Schedules for all fixed assets for the Historical Actual, Bridge and Test years are
provided in this exhibit.

Gross Asset — Property, Plant and Equipment and Accumulated Depreciation

The bridge and test year’'s gross asset balance reflects the capital expenditure programs forecast for
both years. These programs are described in detail in the pa written evidence in this exhibit. The
justification for capital projects in excess of 1% of the net fixed assets are in this exhibit.

Capital Budget

The Capital Budget for both the bridge year and the test year included in this Exhibit. This provides
all the relevant information pertaining to the Capital Program at ERHDC. The review for capital
projects in excess of 1% of the net fixed assets are included in this Exhibit.

Allowance for Working Capital
The detailed by account calculation of working capital is included in this exhibit.
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Variance ) .
2006 form Variance Variance
Board 2006 2006 2006 2007 form 2007 2008 Test form
Actual Actual Bridge 2006 Bridge 2007
Approved Board Actual Bridge
Approved 9
$'s) $'s) $'s) ($'s) $'s) $'s) $'s) ($'s) ®'s)
Gross Asset
'ézssft Values at 5,037,788 | 4,241,628 | (796,160) | 4,241,628 | 3,509,864 | (731,764) | 3,509,864 | 3,676,461 | 166,597
Accumulated (3.070.982) | (2.301.418) | 769,564 | (2,301.418) | (1,611,878) | 689,541 | (1,611,878) | (1,781,628) | (169,751)
Depreciation
Net Fixed Asset 1,966,806 | 1,940,210 | (26,596) | 1,940,210 | 1,897,987 | (42,223) | 1,897,987 | 1,894,833 | (3,154)
Allowance for
Working Ganital 757,948 837,147 79,199 837,147 877,651 | 40,504 877,651 869,130 |  (8,521)
Utility Rate Base 2,724,754 | 2,777,357 52,603 | 2,777,357 | 2,775,638 | (1,719) | 2775638 | 2,763,963 | (11,675)




Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

VARIANCE ANALYSIS ON RATE BASE SUMMARY TABLE

2008 Test Year

As shown in the above exhibit, the total rate base in the 2008 test year is forecast to be
$2,763,963. Net fixed assets accounts for $1,894,833 of this total. The allowance for
working capital totals $869,130.

Comparison to 2007 Bridge Year
The total rate base is expected to be $11,675 or 0.42% lower in the 2008 test year than in
the 2007 bridge year. The variance is not considered to be material.

2007 Bridge Year

Comparison to 2006 Actual
The total rate base is expected to be $1,719 or 0.06% lower in the 2007 Bridge year than
the 2006 Actual. The variance is not considered to be material.

2006 Actual

Comparison to 2006 Board Approved
The total rate base was $52,603 or 1.93% higher in 2006 actual than in the 2006 Board
approved rate base.

Exhibit: 2
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ACCOUNT: 1805 1805-Land
2006 ACTUAL BRIDGE YEAR TEST YEAR
Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated | Net Book
Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value
Opening Balance 69,945 0 69,945 69,945 0 69,945 69,945 0 69,945
Additions - - 0 0 0 0
Depreciation 4.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0
Retirements & Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other (specify) ARO 0 0
0 0
0 0
Closing Balance 69,945 0 69,945 69,945 0 69,945 69,945 0 69,945
Average Balance 69,945 0 69,945 69,945 0 69,945 69,945 0 69,945
Change in Year 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
ACCOUNT: 1808 1808-Buildings and Fixtures
2006 ACTUAL BRIDGE YEAR TEST YEAR
Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated | Net Book
Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value
Opening Balance 282,372 -53,693 228,679 291,542 -65,170 226,372 291,542 -76,831 214,710
Additions 9,170 9,170 0 0 0 0
Depreciation 4.0% -11,477 -11,477 -11,662 -11,662 -11,662 -11,662
Retirements & Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other (specify) ARO 0 0
0 0
0 0
Closing Balance 291,542 -65,170 226,372 291,542 -76,831 214,710 291,542 -88,493 203,048
Average Balance 286,957 -59,432 227,526 291,542 -71,001 220,541 291,542 -82,662 208,879
Change in Year -9,170 11,477 2,307 0 -11,662 -11,662 0 -11,662 -11,662
ACCOUNT: 1820 1820-Distribution Station Equipment - Normally Primary below 50 kV
2006 ACTUAL BRIDGE YEAR TEST YEAR
Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated | Net Book
Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value
Opening Balance 258,260 -175,416 82,844 258,260 -185,746 72,514 267,520 -196,262 71,259
Additions 9,260 9,260 19,793 19,793
Depreciation 4.0% -10,330 -10,330 -10,516 -10,516 -11,097 -11,097
Retirements & Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other (specify) ARO 0 0
0 0
0 0
Closing Balance 258,260 -185,746 72,514 267,520 -196,262 71,259 287,313 -207,359 79,955
Average Balance 258,260 -180,581 77,679 262,890 -191,004 71,886 277,417 -201,810 75,607
Change in Year 0 10,330 10,330 9,260 -10,516 -1,256 19,793 -11,097 8,696
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ACCOUNT: 1830 1830-Poles, Towers and Fixtures
2006 ACTUAL BRIDGE YEAR TEST YEAR
Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated | Net Book
Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value
Opening Balance 544,978 -213,849 331,129 544,978 -235,648 309,330 ] 592,028 -258,388 333,640
Additions 47,050 47,050 98,196 98,196
Depreciation 4.0% -21,799 -21,799 -22,740 -22,740 -25,645 -25,645
Retirements & Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other (specify) ARO 0 0
0 0
0 0
Closing Balance 544,978 -235,648 309,330] 592,028 -258,388 333,640 690,224 -284,033 406,191
Average Balance 544,978 -224,749 320,230 568,503 -247,018 321,485 641,126 -271,211 369,916
Change in Year 0 21,799 21,799 47,050 -22,740 24,310 98,196 -25,645 72,551
ACCOUNT: 1835 1835-Overhead Conductors and Devices
2006 ACTUAL BRIDGE YEAR TEST YEAR
Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated | Net Book
Cost Amortization Value Cost Amortization Value Cost Amortization Value
Opening Balance 513,371 -39,677 473,694 513,371 -60,217 453,154 ] 513,371 -80,752 432,619
Additions 0 0 30,883 30,883
Depreciation 4.0% -20,540 -20,540 -20,535 -20,535 -21,153 -21,153
Retirements & Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other (specify) ARO 0 0
0 0
0 0
Closing Balance 513,371 -60,217 453,154 513,371 -80,752 432,619 544,254 -101,905 442,349
Average Balance 513,371 -49,947 463,424 513,371 -70,485 442,887 528,813 -91,329 437,484
Change in Year 0 20,540 20,540 0 20,535 20,535 -30,883 21,153 -9,730
ACCOUNT: 1840 1840-Underground Conduit
2006 ACTUAL BRIDGE YEAR TEST YEAR
Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated | Net Book
Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value
Opening Balance 252,343 -19,790 232,553 257,740 -30,835 226,905] 257,740 -41,145 216,595
Additions 5,397 5,397 0 0 41,644 41,644
Depreciation 4.0% -11,045 -11,045 -10,310 -10,310 -11,142 -11,142
Retirements & Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other (specify) ARO 0 0
0 0
0 0
Closing Balance 257,740 -30,835 226,905] 257,740 -41,145 216,595| 299,384 -52,287 247,097
Average Balance 255,042 -25,313 229,729 257,740 -35,990 221,750 278,562 -46,716 231,846
Change in Year -5,397 11,045 5,648 0 -10,310 -10,310 41,644 -11,142 30,502
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ACCOUNT: 1845 1845-Underground Conductors and Devices
2006 ACTUAL BRIDGE YEAR TEST YEAR
Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated | Net Book
Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value
Opening Balance 48,442 -30,586 17,856 48,442 -32,524 15,918 48,442 -34,462 13,981
Additions 0 0 0 0
Depreciation 4.0% -1,938 -1,938 -1,938 -1,938 -1,938 -1,938
Retirements & Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other (specify) ARO 0 0
0 0
0 0
Closing Balance 48,442 -32,524 15,918 48,442 -34,462 13,981 48,442 -36,399 12,043
Average Balance 48,442 -31,555 16,887 48,442 -33,493 14,949 48,442 -35,431 13,012
Change in Year 0 1,938 1,938 0 -1,938 -1,938 0 -1,938 -1,938
ACCOUNT: 1850 1850-Line Transformers
2006 ACTUAL BRIDGE YEAR TEST YEAR
Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated | Net Book
Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value
Opening Balance 765,675 -483,028 282,647 784,608 -514,034 270,574 ] 823,324 -546,192 277,131
Additions 18,933 18,933 38,716 38,716 0 0
Depreciation 4.0% -31,006 -31,006 -32,159 -32,159 -32,933 -32,933
Retirements & Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other (specify) ARO 0 0
0 0
0 0
Closing Balance 784,608 -514,034 270,574 823,324 -546,192 277,131 823,324 -579,125 244,199
Average Balance 775,142 -498,531 276,611 803,966 -530,113 273,853 823,324 -562,659 260,665
Change in Year -18,933 31,006 12,073 38,716 -32,159 6,557 0 -32,933 -32,933
ACCOUNT: 1855 1855-Services
2006 ACTUAL BRIDGE YEAR TEST YEAR
Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated | Net Book
Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value
Opening Balance 57,407 -7,139 50,268 80,702 -9,901 70,801 ] 128,337 -14,082 114,256
Additions 23,295 23,295 47,635 47,635 12,883 12,883
Depreciation 4.0% -2,762 -2,762 -4,181 -4,181 -5,391 -5,391
Retirements & Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other (specify) ARO 0 0
0 0
0 0
Closing Balance 80,702 -9,901 70,801 128,337 -14,082 114,256 | 141,220 -19,473 121,747
Average Balance 69,055 -8,520 60,535 104,520 -11,991 92,528 134,779 -16,777 118,001
Change in Year -23,295 2,762 -20,533 47,635 -4,181 43,454 12,883 -5,391 7,492
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860

1860-Meters
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2006 ACTUAL BRIDGE YEAR TEST YEAR
Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated | Net Book
Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value
Opening Balance 217,482 -84,703 132,779 226,979 -93,592 133,388 ] 226,979 -102,671 124,308
Additions 9,497 9,497 0 0 0 0
Depreciation 4.0% -8,889 -8,889 -9,079 -9,079 -9,079 -9,079
Retirements & Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other (specify) ARO 0 0
0 0
0 0
Closing Balance 226,979 -93,592 133,387 226,979 -102,671 124,308 | 226,979 -111,750 115,229
Average Balance 222,231 -89,148 133,083 226,979 -98,131 128,848 226,979 -107,210 119,769
Change in Year -9,497 8,889 -608 0 -9,079 -9,079 0 -9,079 -9,079
ACCOUNT: 1915 1915-Office Furniture and Equipment
2006 ACTUAL BRIDGE YEAR TEST YEAR
Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated | Net Book
Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value
Opening Balance 5,607 -3,420 2,187 5,607 -3,981 1,626 5,607 -4,542 1,065
Additions 0 0 1,000 1,000
Depreciation 10.0% -561 -561 -561 -561 -611 -611
Retirements & Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other (specify) ARO 0 0
0 0
0 0
Closing Balance 5,607 -3,981 1,626 5,607 -4,542 1,065 6,607 -5,153 1,454
Average Balance 5,607 -3,701 1,907 5,607 -4,262 1,346 6,107 -4,848 1,260
Change in Year 0 561 561 0 -561 -561 1,000 -611 389
ACCOUNT: 1920 1920-Computer Equipment - Hardware
2006 ACTUAL BRIDGE YEAR TEST YEAR
Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated | Net Book
Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value
Opening Balance 50,560 -25,499 25,061 54,492 -35,807 18,685 58,639 -47,120 11,519
Additions 3,932 3,932 4,147 4,147 0 0
Depreciation 20.0% -10,308 -10,308 -11,313 -11,313 -11,519 -11,519
Retirements & Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other (specify) ARO 0 0
0 0
0 0
Closing Balance 54,492 -35,807 18,685 58,639 -47,120 11,519 58,639 -58,639 0
Average Balance 52,526 -30,653 21,873 56,566 -41,464 15,102 58,639 -52,880 5,760
Change in Year -3,932 10,308 6,376 4,147 -11,313 -7,166 0 -11,519 -11,519



Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

Exhibit: 2

ACCOUNT: 1925 1925-Computer Software
2006 ACTUAL BRIDGE YEAR TEST YEAR
Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated | Net Book
Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value
Opening Balance 25,257 -16,874 8,383 25,257 -21,925 3,332 25,257 -25,257 0
Additions 0 0 0 0
Depreciation 20.0% -5,051 -5,051 -3,332 -3,332 0 0
Retirements & Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other (specify) ARO 0 0
0 0
0 0
Closing Balance 25,257 -21,925 3,332 25,257 -25,257 0 25,257 -25,257 0
Average Balance 25,257 -19,400 5,858 25,257 -23,591 1,666 25,257 -25,257 0
Change in Year 0 5,051 5,051 0 -3,332 -3,332 0 0 0
ACCOUNT: 1930 1930-Transportation Equipment
2006 ACTUAL BRIDGE YEAR TEST YEAR
Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated | Net Book
Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value
Opening Balance 215,337 -114,320 101,017 215,337 -141,237 74,100 215,337 -168,154 47,183
Additions 0 0 0 0
Depreciation 12.5% -26,917 -26,917 -26,917 -26,917 -26,917 -26,917
Retirements & Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other (specify) ARO 0 0
0 0
0 0
Closing Balance 215,337 -141,237 74,100 215,337 -168,154 47,183 215,337 -195,071 20,266
Average Balance 215,337 -127,779 87,559 215,337 -154,696 60,642 215,337 -181,613 33,725
Change in Year 0 26,917 26,917 0 -26,917 -26,917 0 -26,917 -26,917
ACCOUNT: 1935 1935-Stores Equipment
2006 ACTUAL BRIDGE YEAR TEST YEAR
Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated | Net Book
Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value
Opening Balance 10,538 -1,054 9,484 10,538 -2,108 8,430 10,538 -3,162 7,376
Additions 0 0 0 0
Depreciation 10.0% -1,054 -1,054] -1,054 -1,054 -1,054 -1,054
Retirements & Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other (specify) ARO 0 0
0 0
0 0
Closing Balance 10,538 -2,108 8,430 10,538 -3,162 7,376 10,538 -4,216 6,322
Average Balance 10,538 -1,581 8,957 10,538 -2,635 7,903 10,538 -3,689 6,849
Change in Year 0 1,054 1,054 0 -1,054 -1,054 0 -1,054 -1,054



ACCOUNT: 1

Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

940

1940-Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment

Exhibit: 2

2006 ACTUAL BRIDGE YEAR TEST YEAR
Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated | Net Book
Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value
Opening Balance 126,507 -85,297 41,210 127,588 -98,003 29,585] 127,588 -110,762 16,826
Additions 1,081 1,081 0 0 0 0
Depreciation 10.0% -12,706 -12,706 -12,759 -12,759 -12,759 -12,759
Retirements & Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other (specify) ARO 0 0
0 0
0 0
Closing Balance 127,588 -98,003 29,585 127,588 -110,762 16,826 | 127,588 -123,521 4,067
Average Balance 127,048 -91,650 35,398 127,588 -104,383 23,206 127,588 -117,142 10,447
Change in Year -1,081 12,706 11,625 0 -12,759 -12,759 0 -12,759 -12,759
ACCOUNT: 1945 1945-Measurement and Testing Equipment
2006 ACTUAL BRIDGE YEAR TEST YEAR
Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated | Net Book
Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value
Opening Balance 7,962 -796 7,166 7,962 -1,592 6,370 7,962 -2,388 5,574
Additions 0 0 0 0
Depreciation 10.0% -796 -796 -796 -796 -796 -796
Retirements & Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other (specify) ARO 0 0
0 0
0 0
Closing Balance 7,962 -1,592 6,370 7,962 -2,388 5,574 7,962 -3,184 4,777
Average Balance 7,962 -1,194 6,768 7,962 -1,990 5,972 7,962 -2,786 5,175
Change in Year 0 796 796 0 -796 -796 0 -796 -796
ACCOUNT: 1955 1955-Communication Equipment
2006 ACTUAL BRIDGE YEAR TEST YEAR
Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated | Net Book
Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value
Opening Balance 18,014 -9,559 8,455 18,014 -15,563 2,451 0 0 0
Additions 0 0 0 0
Depreciation 33.3% -6,004 -6,004] -2,451 -2,451 0 0
Retirements & Sales -18,014 18,014 0 0 0 0
Other (specify) ARO 0 0
0 0
0 0
Closing Balance 18,014 -15,563 2,451 0 0 0 0 0 0
Average Balance 18,014 -12,561 5,453 9,007 -7,782 1,226 0 0 0
Change in Year 0 6,004 6,004 -18,014 15,563 -2,451 0 0 0
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

Exhibit: 2

ACCOUNT: 1985 1985-Sentinel Lighting Rental Units
2006 ACTUAL BRIDGE YEAR TEST YEAR
Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated | Net Book
Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value
Opening Balance 10,121 -8,856 1,265 10,121 -10,121 0 10,121 -10,121 0
Additions 0 0 0 0
Depreciation 12.5% -1,265 -1,265] 0 0 0 0
Retirements & Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other (specify) ARO 0 0
0 0
0 0
Closing Balance 10,121 -10,121 0 10,121 -10,121 0 10,121 -10,121 0
Average Balance 10,121 -9,489 633 10,121 -10,121 0 10,121 -10,121 0
Change in Year 0 1,265 1,265 0 0 0 0 0 0
ACCOUNT: 1995 1995-Contributions and Grants - Credit
2006 ACTUAL BRIDGE YEAR TEST YEAR
Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated | Net Book
Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value
Opening Balance (104,494) 21,941 (82,553)] -106,018 26,150 -79,868 | -106,018 30,391 -75,627
Additions (1,524) (1,524) 0 0 0 0
Depreciation 4.0% 4,209 4,209 4,241 4,241 4,241 4,241
Retirements & Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other (specify) ARO 0 0
0 0
0 0
Closing Balance -106,018 26,150 -79,868] -106,018 30,391 -75,627 | -106,018 34,631 -71,387
Average Balance -105,256 24,046 -81,211  -106,018 28,270 -77,748 -106,018 32,511 -73,507
Change in Year 1,524 -4,209 -2,685 0 4,241 4,241 0 4,241 4,241
ACCOUNT: 1610:2005 TOTAL FIXED ASSETS IN SERVICE
2006 ACTUAL BRIDGE YEAR TEST YEAR
Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated Net Book Gross | Accumulated | Net Book
Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value Cost | Amortization Value
Opening Balance 3,375,684 (1,351,615) 2,024,069 | 3,445,467 -1,531,854 1,913,613 ] 3,574,261 -1,691,901 | 1,882,361
Additions 69,781 - 69,781 146,808 0 146,808 204,399 0 204,399
Depreciation - (180,239) (180,239) 0 178,061 178,061 0 -179,455 | -179,455
Retirements & Sales - - - -18,014 18,014 0 0 0 0
Other (specify) ARO 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
Closing Balance 3,445,465 -1,531,854 1,913,611] 3,574,261 ~1,691,001 1,882,361 | 3,778,660 -1,871,355| 1,907,305
Average Balance 3,410,575 -1,441,735 1,968,840 3,509,864 -1,611,877 1,897,987 3,676,461 -1,781,628 1,894,833
Change in Year -69,781 180,239 110,458 128,794 -160,047 -31,253 204,399 -179,455 24,944
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

GROSS ASSETS TABLE
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Exhibit: 2

Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

GROSS ASSETS TABLE

Variance Variance
form 2006 form Variance
2006 Board 2006 Board 2006 2007 2006 2007 form 2007
Approved Actual Approved Actual Bridge Actual Bridge 2008 Test Bridge
$'s) $'s) ($'s) $'s) $'s) $'s)
Land and Buildings
1805-Land 69,945 69,945 - 69,945 69,945 - 69,945 69,945 -
1806-Land Rights
1808-Buildings and Fixtures 309,615 291,542 18,073 291,542 291,542 - 291,542 291,542 -
1905-Land
1906-Land Rights
1810-Leasehold Improvements
Sub-Total-Land and Buildings 379,560 361,487 18,073 361,487 361,487 - 361,487 361,487 -
TS Primary Above 50
1815-Transformer Station Equipment
- Normally Primary above 50 kV
Sub-Total-TS Primary Above 50
DS
1820-Distribution Station Equipment 280,363 258,260 22,103 A 258,260 267,520 (9,260) 267,520 287,313 (19,793) A
- Normally Primary below 50 kV
Sub-Total-DS 280,363 258,260 22,103 258,260 267,520 (9,260) 267,520 287,313 (19,793)
Poles and Wires
1830-Poles, Towers and Fixtures 1,387,694 544,978 842,716 B 544,978 592,028 (47,050) A 592,028 690,224  (98,196) &
1835-Overhead Conductors and Devict 924,109 513,371 410,738 C 513,371 513,371 - 513,371 544,254 (30,883) ¢
1840-Underground Conduit 685,588 257,740 427,848 D 257,740 257,740 - 257,740 299,384 (41,644) o
1845-Underground Conductors and De 41,068 48,442 (7,374) 48,442 48,442 - 48,442 48,442 -
Sub-Total-Poles and Wires 3,038,459 1,364,531 1,673,928 1,364,531 1,411,581  (47,050) 1,411,581 1,582,304 (170,723)
Line Transformers
1850-Line Transformers 753,024 784,608 (31,584) E 784,608 823,324  (38,716) B 823,324 823,324 -
Sub-Total-Line Transformers 753,024 784,608 (31,584) 784,608 823,324  (38,716) 823,324 823,324 -
Services and Meters
1855-Services 44,642 80,702 (36,060) F 80,702 128,337 (47,635) C 128,337 141,220 (12,883)
1860-Meters 343,676 226,979 116,697 G 226,979 226,979 - 226,979 226,979 -
Sub-Total-Services and Meters 388,318 307,681 80,637 307,681 355,316  (47,635) 355,316 368,199 (12,883)
General Plant
1908-Buildings and Fixtures
1910-Leasehold Improvements
Sub-Total-General Plant - - - - - - - - -
IT Assets
1920-Computer Equipment - Hardware 54,492 (54,492) H 54,492 58,639 (4,147) 58,639 58,639 -
1925-Computer Software 25,257 (25,257) | 25,257 25,257 - 25,257 25,257 -
Sub-Total-IT Assets - 79,749 (79,749) 79,749 83,896 (4,147) 83,896 83,896 -
Equipment
1915-Office Furniture and Equipment 5,607 (5,607) 5,607 5,607 - 5,607 6,607 (1,000)
1930-Transportation Equipment 215,337 (215,337) J 215,337 215,337 - 215,337 215,337 -
1935-Stores Equipment 10,538 (10,538) 10,538 10,538 - 10,538 10,538 -
1940-Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment 127,588 (127,588) K 127,588 127,588 - 127,588 127,588 -
1945-Measurement and Testing Equipment 7,962 (7,962) 7,962 7,962 - 7,962 7,962 -
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Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

1950-Power Operated Equipment

Exhibit: 2

1955-Communication Equipment 18,014 (18,014) 18,014 18,014
1960-Miscellaneous Equipment
Sub-Total-Equipment - 385,046 (385,046) 385,046 367,032 18,014 367,032 368,032 (1,000)

Other Distribution Assets

1825-Storage Battery Equipment

1970-Load Management Controls - Customer Premises

1975-Load Management Controls - Utility Premises

1980-System Supervisory Equipment

1985-Sentinel Lighting Rental Units 10,121 (10,121) 10,121 10,121 - 10,121 10,121 -

1990-Other Tangible Property

1995-Contributions and Grants - Credit (106,018) 106,018 L (106,018)  (106,018) - (106,018)  (106,018) -
Sub-Total-Other Distribution Assets - (95,897) 95,897 (95,897) (95,897) - (95,897) (95,897) -
GROSS ASSET TOTAL 4,839,724 3,445,465 1,394,259 3,445,465 3,574,259 (128,794) 3,574,259 3,778,658 (204,399)
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Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

MATERIALITY ANALYSIS ON GROSS ASSETS

The calculation of the Materiality Threshold on gross assets is shown in the following table:

Materiality threshold = 1% of net fixed assets

Exhibit: 2

2006 Actual 2007 Bridge 2008 Test
Gross Cost 3,445,465 3,574,259 3,778,658
Accumulated Amortization | (1,531,854) (1,691,901) (1,871,355)
Net Fixed Assets 1,913,611 1,882,358 1,907,303
1% of Net Fixed Assets 19,136 18,824 19,073

ERHDC has selected the lowest materiality threshold of $18,824 to allow for the most detailed review of gross

asset changes.
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Exhibit: 2

Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

VARIANCE ANALYSIS ON GROSS ASSETS TABLE

2006 Actual to Board Approved

A 1820 - Distribution Stations Equipment - $22,103 variance
Decrease in gross asset cost is a result of normal operating dispositions of fixed assets.

B 1830 - Poles, towers and Fixtures- $842,716 varianceC 1835 — Overhead Conductors and
- $410,738 variance
D 1840 — Underground Conduit - $427,848 variance
G 1860 — Meters - $116,697 variance
Variance in account 1830, 1835, 1840 and 1860 is the result of fully depreciated gross assets
cost and related accumulated depreciation being adjusted in 2006.

E 1850 — Line transformers - $31,584 variance
Line transformers variance is a result of normal system replacements.

F 1855 — Services - $36,060
Services variance is the result of installing new services to meet customer demand.

1920 - Computer Equipment — Hardware - $54,492 variance

1925 — Computer Software - $25,257 variance

1930 - Transportation Equipment - $215,337 variance

1940 — Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment $127,588 variance

1955 - contributions and Grants $106,018

Variance in accounts 1920, 1925, 1930, 1940, 1955 are due to the corporate structure in the
board approved year. The assets above were in Espanola Services Company in the Board
approved year.

mrxX~—T

2007 Bridge from 2006 Actual

A B,C 1830 - Poles, towers and Fixtures - $47,050 variance

1850 — Line transformers - $38,716 variance

1855 — Services - $47,635 variance
The materiality analysis on capital budgets in this exhibit provides explanation on the gross asset
additions in the 2007 Bridge year.

16



Exhibit: 2

Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

2008 Test from 2007 Bridge

A 1820 - Distribution Stations Equipment - $19,793 variance

B 1830 — Poles, Towers and Fixtures - $98,196 variance

C 1835 — Overhead Conductors - $30,883 variance

D 1840 — Underground Conductors - $41,644 variance

The materiality analysis on capital budgets in this exhibit provides explanation on the gross asset
additions from 2007 Bridge to 2008 Test.
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ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION TABLE
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Exhibit: 2

Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION TABLE

Variance Variance Variance
form 2006 form form
2006 Board Board 2006 2007
Approved 2006 Actual Approved 2006 Actual 2007 Bridge Actual 2007 Bridge 2008 Test  Bridge
($'s) ($'s) ($'s) ($'s) ($'s) ($'s)
Land and Buildings
1805-Land - - - - - - - - -
1806-Land Rights
1808-Buildings and Fixtures (71,143) (65,170) (5,973) (65,170) (76,831) 11,661 (76,831) (88,493) 11,662
1905-Land
1906-Land Rights
1810-Leasehold Improvements
Sub-Total-Land and Buildings (71,143) (65,170) (5,973) (65,170) (76,831) 11,661 (76,831) (88,493) 11,662
TS Primary Above 50
1815-Transformer Station Equipment
- Normally Primary above 50 kV
Sub-Total-TS Primary Above 50
DS
1820-Distribution Station Equipment (195,750) (185,746) (10,004) (185,746) (196,262) 10,516 (196,262) (207,359) 11,097
- Normally Primary below 50 kV
Sub-Total-DS (195,750) (185,746) (10,004) (185,746) (196,262) 10,516 (196,262) (207,359) 11,097
Poles and Wires
1830-Poles, Towers and Fixtures (858,005) (235,648) (622,357) A (235,648) (258,388) 22,740 A (258,388) (284,033) 25,645 A
1835-Overhead Conductors and Devici  (572,189) (60,217)  (511,972) B (60,217) (80,752) 20,535 B (80,752)  (101,905) 21,153 B
1840-Underground Conduit (414,826) (30,835) (383,991) C (30,835) (41,145) 10,310 (41,145) (52,287) 11,142
1845-Underground Conductors and De (30,319) (32,524) 2,205 (32,524) (34,462) 1,938 (34,462) (36,399) 1,937
Sub-Total-Poles and Wires ~ (1,875,339)  (359,224) (1,516,115) (359,224)  (414,747) 55,523 (414,747)  (474,624) 59,877
Line Transformers
1850-Line Transformers (438,310) (514,034) 75,724 D (514,034) (546,192) 32,158 C (546,192) (579,125) 32,933 C
Sub-Total-Line Transformers (438,310) (514,034) 75,724 (514,034) (546,192) 32,158 (546,192) (579,125) 32,933
Services and Meters
1855-Services (3,466) (9,901) 6,435 (9,901) (14,082) 4,181 (14,082) (19,473) 5,391
1860-Meters (214,955) (93,592) (121,363) E (93,592) (102,671) 9,079 (102,671) (111,750) 9,079
Sub-Total-Services and Meters (218,421) (103,493) (114,928) (103,493) (116,753) 13,260 (116,753) (131,223) 14,470
General Plant
1908-Buildings and Fixtures
1910-Leasehold Improvements -
Sub-Total-General Plant - - - - - - - - -
IT Assets
1920-Computer Equipment - Hardware - (35,807) 35,807 F (35,807) (47,120) 11,313 (47,120) (58,639) 11,519
1925-Computer Software - (21,925) 21,925 G (21,925) (25,257) 3,332 (25,257) (25,257) -
Sub-Total-IT Assets - (57,732) 57,732 (57,732) (72,377) 14,645 (72,377) (83,896) 11,519

19



Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

Exhibit: 2

Equipment

1915-Office Furniture and Equipment - (3,981) 3,981 H (3,981) (4,542) 561 (4,542) (5,153) 611

1930-Transportation Equipment - (141,237) 141,237 | (141,237) (168,154) 26,917 D (168,154) (195,071) 26,917 D

1935-Stores Equipment (2,108) 2,108 (2,108) (3,162) 1,054 (3,162) (4,216) 1,054

1940-Tools, Shop and Garage Equipm - (98,003) 98,003 J (98,003) (110,762) 12,759 (110,762) (123,521) 12,759

1945-Measurement and Testing Equipment (1,592) 1,592 (1,592) (2,388) 796 (2,388) (3,184) 796

1950-Power Operated Equipment - -

1955-Communication Equipment - (15,563) 15,563 (15,563) - (15,563) - -

1960-Miscellaneous Equipment -

Sub-Total-Equipment - (262,484) 262,484 (262,484) (289,008) 26,524 (289,008) (331,145) 42,137

Other Distribution Assets

1825-Storage Battery Equipment

1970-Load Management Controls - Customer Premises

1975-Load Management Controls - Utility Premises

1980-System Supervisory Equipment

1985-Sentinel Lighting Rental Units - (10,121) 10,121 (10,121) (10,121) - (10,121) (10,121) -

1990-Other Tangible Property - -

1995-Contributions and Grants - Credit - 26,150 (26,150) K 26,150 30,391 (4,241) 30,391 34,631 -
Sub-Total-Other Distribution Assets - 16,029 (16,029) 16,029 20,270 (4,241) 20,270 24,510 -
Accumulated Depreciation Total (2,798,963) (1,531,854) (1,267,109) (1,531,854) (1,691,900) 160,046 (1,691,900) (1,871,355) 183,695

20



Exhibit: 2

Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

MATERIALITY ANALYSIS ON ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

The calculation of the Materiality Threshold on Accumulated Depreciation is shown in the following table:

Materiality threshold = 1% of net fixed assets

2006 Actual 2007 Bridge 2008 Test
Gross Cost 3,445,465 3,574,259 3,778,658
Accumulated Amortization | (1,531,854) (1,691,901) (1,871,355)
Net Fixed Assets 1,913,611 1,882,358 1,907,303
1% of Net Fixed Assets 19,136 18,824 19,073

ERHDC has selected the lowest materiality threshold of $18,824 to allow for the most detailed review of gross

asset changes.
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Exhibit: 2

Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

VARIANCE ANALYSIS ON ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION TABLE

2006 Actual to Board Approved

mo w >

W)

Xe—om

1830 - Poles, Towers and Fixtures - $622,357 variance

1835 — Overhead Conductors and Devices - $511,972 variance

1840 — Underground Conduit - $383,991 variance

1860 — Meters - $121,363 variance

Variance in account 1830, 1835, 1840 and 1840 is the result of fully depreciated gross assets
cost and related accumulated depreciation being adjusted in 2006.

1850 — Line transformers - $75,724 variance
Line transformers variance is a result of normal system replacements.

1920 — Computer Equipment - $35,807 variance

1925 — Computer Software - $21,925 variance

1930 — Transportation Equipment - $141,237 variance

1940 - Tools, shop and garage equip. - $98,003 variance

1955 — Contributions and Grants - $26,150 variance

Variance in accounts 1920, 1925, 1930, 1940, 1955 are due to the corporate structure in the
board approved year. The assets above were in Espanola Services Company in the Board
approved year.

2007 Bridge from 2006 Actual

O w>

1830 - Poles, towers and Fixtures - $22,740 variance

1835 — Overhead Conductors and Devices - $20,535 variance
1850 — Line Transformers - $32,158 variance

1930 — Transportation Equipment - $26,917 variance

The variances from 2006 Actual to 2007 Bridge are a function of annual depreciation calculated on
fixed assets and %2 year rule applied to current year additions. The procedure is in accordance with
the accounting procedures handbook and no unusual accounting treatment was applied to
accumulated depreciation in the Bridge year or 2006 Actual year.
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Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

2008 Test from 2007 Bridge

A 1830 — Poles, Towers and Fixtures - $25,645 variance

B 1835 — Overhead Conductors and Devices - $21,153 variance
C 1850 - Line Transformers - $32,933 variance

D 1930 — Transportation Equipment - $26,917 variance

The variances from 2007 Bridge to 2008 Test are a function of annual depreciation calculated on
fixed assets and Y2 year rule applied to current year additions. The procedure is in accordance with
the accounting procedures handbook and no unusual accounting treatment was applied to
accumulated depreciation in the Bridge or Test year.
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Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

CAPITAL BUDGET BY PROJECT

2006 Actual
Project Account Amount Reference
Description $
Building and 1808 9,170
Fixtures
Underground
Conduit 1840 5,397
Line 1850 18,933
Transformers
Services 1855 23,295 B
Meters 1860 9,497
Computer
Equipment - 1920 3,932
Hardware
Tools shop
and Garage 1940 1,081
Equipment
Contributions
and Grants 1955 1.524

69,781

Total
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Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

Exhibit: 2

2007 Bridge
Project Account Amount Reference
Description $
Distribution
Station 1820 9,260
Equipment
Poles
Towers and 1830 47,050 A
Fixtures
Line 1850 38.716 B
Transformers
Services 1855 47,635
Computer
Equipment - 1920 4,147
Hardware
Total 146,308
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Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

2008 Test
Project Account Amount Reference
Description (€3]
Distribution
Station 1820 19,793 A
Equipment
Poles
Towers and 1830 98,196 B
Fixtures
Overhead
Conductors 1835 30,883 C
and Devices
Underground 1840 41,644 D
Conduit
Services 1855 12,883
Office
Furniture and 1915 1,000
Equipment
Total 204,399
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Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

MATERIALITY ANALYSIS ON CAPITAL BUDGETS

The calculation of the Materiality Threshold on Capital Budgets is shown in the following table:

Materiality threshold = 1% of net fixed assets

2006 Actual 2007 Bridge 2008 Test
Gross Cost 3,445,465 3,574,259 3,778,658
Accumulated Amortization | (1,531,854) (1,691,901) (1,871,355)
Net Fixed Assets 1,913,611 1,882,358 1,907,303
1% of Net Fixed Assets | 19,136 18,824 10,073

ERHDC has selected the lowest materiality threshold of $18,824 to allow for the most detailed review of

Capital Budgets.

The following list represents projects where the materiality threshold of 1% of the total net assets is

exceeded.

ERHDC has no major capital projects planned. The capital program is based on upgrading existing

infrastructure to maintain reliability.

2006 Actual

A — Line Transformers $18,933 — upgrading existing infrastructure.

B Services $23,295 — Installing new services to meet customer demand.

2007 Bridge

A — Poles Tower and Fixtures

Pole replacement (10 Poles)

Annual replacement of deteriorated poles to be

done through out the year.

B — Line transformers
Replacement of 44kV line (Centre Street)

27

$47,050

$38,716




Exhibit: 2

Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

C — Services
New Services $47,635
Install new services to meet customer demand.

2008 Test

A — Distribution Station Equipment
Replace Substation Equipment $19,793
Upgrade to substation equipment to maintain service
reliability.

B — Poles Towers and Fixtures
Pole Replacement (20 poles) $98,196
Annual replacement of deteriorated poles to be
completed through out the year

C — Overhead Conductors and Devices
Construct misc. lines (250m) $30,883
To construct miscellaneous lines based on
customer demand.

D — Underground Conduit
Replace underground primary cable
(residential distribution) $41,644
Replace 30 year old underground residential
distribution lines to maintain reliability.
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SYSTEM EXPANSIONS

ERHDC has no system expansions in 2006 Actual, 2007 Bridge year or 2008 Test year.
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CAPITALIZATION POLICY

A capital expenditure is defined as any significant expenditure incurred to acquire or improve land,
buildings, plant, engineering structures, machinery and equipment used in providing services to customers.
Improvement or “betterment” includes increasing capacity, reliability, efficiency or economy of operation
or extending the useful life of a previous capital expenditure. It includes electric plant, vehicles, office
furniture, computer equipment and other equipment. A capital expenditure normally provides a benefit
lasting beyond one year and results in the acquisition of or extends the life of a fixed asset.

Expenditures for repairs and/or maintenance designed to maintain an asset in its original state is not a capital
expenditure but should be charged to an operating account.

Definition Accounting
Treatment
Capital Expenditure | An expenditure to acquire or add to a capital Capitalize if above
asset — an expenditure yielding enduring benefits | the materiality limit
Improvement An expenditure made for the purpose of Capitalize if above

enhancing a fixed asset and which is an addition | the materiality limit
to the cost of the asset

Maintenance The cost of keeping a property in efficient Current operations
working condition expense
Repair The cost of replacement of parts or other Current operations

restoration of plant and machinery, designed to | expense
restore normal working efficiency

The following are materiality limits for the listed category of assets. Items with a cost less than the
materiality levels as listed below should be charged to operations whether they are of a capital nature or of a
repairs/maintenance nature.
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Account # Description Limit
Electric Distribution
1705, 1805, Land All
1905
1706, 1806, Land Right $300
1906
1708, 1808, Buildings $300
1908
1715, 1815 Transformer Station Equipment $300
1820, 1825 Distribution Station Equipment $300
1720, 1725, Poles, Towers and Fixtures $300
1830
1730, 1835 Lines & Feeders - O/H $300
1735, 1840 Conduit — U/G $300
1740, 1845 Lines & Feeders - U/G $300
1850 Distribution Transformers $300
1850 Distribution Transformers $300
1855 Services All
90 Meters All
1915 General Office Equipment $300
1920, 1925 Computer Equipment $300
1935 Stores Warehouse Equipment $300
1930 Rolling Stock $300
1940, 1945 Miscellaneous Equipment $300
1955 Communication Equipment $300
1980 System Supervisory Equipment $300
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WORKING CAPITAL ALLOWANCE CALCULATION BY ACCOUNT
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Working Capital Allowance Calculation by Account

3350-Power Supply Expenses

3350-Power Supply Expenses Total
3500-Distribution Expenses - Operation

3500-Distribution Expenses - Operation Total

3550-Distribution Expenses - Maintenance Total

3650-Billing and Collecting

3650-Billing and Collecting Total
3700-Community Relations

3700-Community Relations Total

3800-Administrative and General Expenses Total

Exhibit: 2

2006 Board 2006 2007 2008
Approved 15% Actual 15% Bridge 15% Test 15%
4705-Power Purchased 3,294,748 3,616,485 3,904,000 3,700,000
4708-Charges-WMS 423,033 333,112 356,000 412,209
4714-Charges-NW 342,043 316,097 - -
4716-Charges-CN 260,571 303,318 - -
4730-Rural Rate Assistance Expense - - 330,000 334,165
4710-Cost of Power Adjustments - - 200,000 -
4712-Charges-One-Time - - - 244,300
4720-Other Expenses 2,085 - - -
4750-Charges-LV - 16,843 119,393 139,296
4,322,480 648,372 4,585,854 687,878 4,909,393 736,409 4,829,970 724,496
5005-Operation Supervision and Engineering 16,383 36,289 36,840 37,392
5012-Station Buildings and Fixtures Expense 44,307 15,961 14,168 3,931
5016-Distribution Station Equipment - Operation Labour 2,386 10,498 12,015 12,815
5017-Distribution Station Equipment - Operation Supplies and E 138 16,330 11,000 11,225
5020-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Lab 53,344 23,521 30,102 53,268
5025-Overhead Distribution Lines & Feeders - Operation Suppl! 3,380 15,344 10,700 10,915
5035-Overhead Distribution Transformers- Operation 5,991 15,474 13,302 14,203
5040-Underground Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation | 24,903 8,135 12,425 6,039
5045-Underground Distribution Lines & Feeders - Operation Su 1,345 6,729 5,663 3,980
5055-Underground Distribution Transformers - Operation - 10,765 3,900 15,682
5065-Meter Expense 4,744 14,665 13,142 13,426
5070-Customer Premises - Operation Labour 27,199 14,492 25,085
5075-Customer Premises - Materials and Expenses 1,245 23,167 2,040
5085-Miscellaneous Distribution Expense 20,772 18,541 2,000 13,726
5095-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Rental Paid 11,100 15,474 13,700 13,700
188,793 28,319 236,171 35,426 216,616 32,492 237,427 35,614
3550-Distribution Expenses - Maintenance 5105-Maintenance Supervision and Engineering 36,289 36,840 37,392
5110-Maintenance of Buildings and Fixtures - Distribution Static 13,229 4,784 5,863 6,239
5114-Maintenance of Distribution Station Equipment 964 8,628 14,580 15,235
5120-Maintenance of Poles, Towers and Fixtures 2,978 5,122 3,167 6,972
5125-Maintenance of Overhead Conductors and Devices 18,675 29,626 37,566 38,288
5130-Maintenance of Overhead Services 410 150 150
5135-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Right of Way 34,241 54,564 63,378 59,944
5145-Maintenance of Underground Conduit 1,126 1,450 1,426
5150-Maintenance of Underground Conductors and Devices 7,041 18,561 17,204 17,301
5155-Maintenance of Underground Services - - -
5160-Maintenance of Line Transformers 4,820 2,973 2,567 2,709
5175-Maintenance of Meters 6,990 1,099 789 836
5170-Sentinel Lights - Labour 719 - 836
5172-Sentinel Lights - Materials and Expenses - 789 -
88,938 13,341 163,899 24,585 184,343 27,651 187,328 28,099
5310-Meter Reading Expense 33,129 36,626 38,089 39,276
5315-Customer Billing 119,355 146,242 138,917 142,446
5320-Collecting 67,771 69,477 70,822 68,965
5335-Bad Debt Expense 3,390 15,121 - -
5325-Collecting- Cash Over and Short - 4,000 4,000
223,645 33,547 267,466 40,120 251,828 37,774 254,687 38,203
5410-Community Relations - Sundry - 1,000 2,000 2,000
5515-Advertising Expense 1,253 - - -
1,253 188 1,000 150 2,000 300 2,000 300
3800-Administrative and General Expense 5605-Executive Salaries and Expenses 39,319 16,686 16,700 18,600
5615-General Administrative Salaries and Expenses 6,101 16,367 64,065 7,555
5630-Outside Services Employed 35,926 136,080 16,139 95,842
5635-Property Insurance 8,753 5,071 57,819 5,350
5655-Regulatory Expenses 3,805 4,349 100,411 6,000
5665-Miscellaneous General Expenses 12,800 4,970 5,200 1,500
5680-Electrical Safety Authority Fees 1,012 2,279 7,991 2,500
5610-Management Salaries and Expenses 51,035 78,045 9,000 67,229
5620-Office Supplies and Expenses 46,317 47,113 6,000 60,431
5640-Injuries and Damages 20,557 6,614 - 8,230
5645-Employee Pensions and Benefits 9,018 1,000 9,550
5660-General Advertising Expenses 2,255 - 2,500 -
5685-Independent Market Operator Fees and Penalties - - - -
227,880 34,182 326,591 48,989 286,825 43,024 282,787 42,418
757,948 837,147 877,651 869,130

Total Working Capital
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

OVERVIEW OF OPERATING REVENUE

This exhibit provides the details on ERHDC's operating revenue for Historical, Historical
Board Approved, Bridge and Test years. This exhibit also provides a detailed variance
analysis by rate class of the operating revenue components.

Distribution revenues have been calculated using the most recently approved rates. In
particular, delivery rates are based on the EB-2007-0525 Tariff of Rates and Charges, dated
April 12, 2007.

Throughput Revenue

Information related to ERHDC'’s throughput revenue include details such as weather
normalized forecasting methodology, normalized volume and customer counts forecast
tables. Detailed variance analysis on the forecast information is also provided.

Other Revenue

Other revenues include revenues such as Late Payment Charges, Miscellaneous Service
Revenues and Retail Services Revenues. A summary of these revenues is presented in this
Exhibit.

Revenue Sharing
ERHDC does not engage in revenue sharing.
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SUMMARY OF OPERATING REVENUE TABLE

Variance
Variance form
form 2007
2006 2006 Bridge
Board 2006 Board 2007 2008 to 2008
Approved | Actual Approved | Bridge Test Test
($'s) ($'s) ($'s) ($'s) ($'s) ($'s)
Distribution Revenues
Residential 591,315 599,810 8,495 706,165 751,327 45,162
General Service <60kW 265,871 268,766 2,895 287,209 346,577 59,368
General Service >50kW 49,659 50,393 734 60,145 83,958 23,813
Un-metered Scattered Loads | 2,404 2,313 (91) 2,223 2,402 179
Sentinel Lighting 641 709 68 475 758 283
Street Lighting 7,399 7,583 184 8,310 8,731 421
917,289 929,574 12,285 1,064,527 | 1,193,753 | 129,226
Other Distribution Revenue
88,615 172,305 83,690 156,075 146,651 (9,423)
Total Operating Revenue 1,005,904 | 1,101,879 1,220,602 | 1,340,404
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VARIANCE ANALYSIS ON OPERATING REVENUE TABLE

ERHDC's distribution revenue has been calculated using the most recently approved
rates. In particular, delivery rates are based on the EB-2007-0525 Tariff of Rates and
Charges, dated April 12, 2007. Distribution revenue does not include commodity related
revenue.

2008 Test Year

ERHDC's operating revenue is forecast to be $1,340,404 in Fiscal 2008. Distribution
revenue totals $1,193,753 or 89% of total revenues. ERHDC'’s other operating revenue
(net) accounts for the remaining revenue of $146,651 or 11% of total revenues.

Comparison to 2007 Bridge Year
As shown in the above Exhibit, the total operating revenue is expected to be $119,802
above the bridge year level in fiscal 2007.

2007 Bridge Year

ERHDC's operating revenue is forecasted to be $1,220,602 in fiscal 2007 as shown in the
above Exhibit. Distribution revenue totals $1,064,527 or 85% of total revenues. The
remaining revenue of $156,075 or 13% is from other operating revenue.

Comparison to Fiscal 2006 Actual
As shown in the above Exhibit the total operating revenue is expected to be $118,723
above the Actual 2006 revenue of $1,101,879

2006 Actual

ERHDC's operating revenue was $1,101,879 in fiscal 2006 as shown in the above Exhibit.
Distribution revenue totals $929,574 or 84% of total revenues. The remaining revenue of
$172,305 or 16% is from other operating revenue.

2006 Board Approved

ERHDC'’s operating revenue was $1,005,904 in board approved 2006 as shown in the
above Exhibit. Distribution revenue totals $917,289 or 91% of total revenues. The
remaining revenue of $88,615 or 9% is from other operating revenue. In the historical
Board Approved year a portion of other distribution revenue was allocated to the Services
Company which resulted in the percentage of other operating revenue being lower than in
2006 Actual, 2007 Bridge and 2008 Test years. Refer to the draft issued list in Exhibit 1
page 35 for additional information on historical board approved year.
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WEATHER NORMALIZED FORECASTING METHODOLOGY

This exhibit discusses the methodology used to determine ERHDC'’s customer and load forecast.
A projection for the number of customers in each customer class is provided for both the Bridge
Year (2007) and the Test Year (2008). Historical data for the annual number of customers in each
rate class is available for 2002 through to 2006. Due to significant restructuring, accurate
customer data prior to 2002 is not currently available. As a result of the limited amount of data
available, time series techniques that are often used to help estimate forecast values cannot be
used. Rather, ERHDC has used a simple trend growth in customer connections, by class, to
forecast Bridge and Test Year customer numbers. Given the slow growth and consistent trend in
customer numbers in ERHDC'’s service territory over the past five years, the resulting customer
forecast is likely not materially different than what would result from using more sophisticated time
series techniques. In recent history, there has been very little year-to-year variation in customer
growth by class. Historical and forecast customer numbers, by class, are displayed in the next

section.

As required by the OEB Filing Requirements for Transmission and Distribution Applications, we
are providing normalized historical and forecast (Bridge Year and Test Year) throughput data.
Weather normalization (where required) is based on normalized average use per customer
(“NAC”) calculated from the weather-normalized throughput of the utility from 2004. This weather-
normalized throughput was generated by Hydro One using their weather normalization model for
the Cost Allocation process previously undertaken by the Board. The process to obtain these
weather normal data was an intensive effort for all parties involved, and we are leveraging the

value of this work by using it for this process.
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Customer Forecast

Table 1 below presents historical and forecast customer numbers, by class, for ERHDC.

Exhibit: 3

Table 1 — Customers by Class

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Residential 2,910 2,848 2,837 2,832 2,829 2,823 2,817
-0.9787 -0.9961 -0.9982 -0.9989 -0.9979 -0.9979
Per cent
chg
GS < 50kW 330 421 431 431 427 429 431
Per cent chg 1.2758 0.0000 0.0000 -0.9907 0.9954 0.9954
GS (>50 to 5000) 37 16 16 16 16 16 16
Per cent chg -0.4324 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000
USL 4 4 7 7 11 11 11
Per cent chg 0.0000 1.7500 0.0000 1.5714 0.0000 0.0000
Sentinel Lighting 29 27 27 27 27 27 27
Per cent chg -0.9310 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000
Street Lighting 1,016 1,016 1,016 1016 1,013 1,012 1,011
Per cent chg 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 -0.9970 -0.9900 -0.9901

Annual percentage change is presented for all customer classes listed in the table above. For
Residential and GS<50 customer classes, the blue highlighted percentage change for 2007
represents the annual average geometric mean growth rate for 2002 to 2006. The annual trend
growth rate is used to project customer growth into 2007 and 2008. For the GS>50 customer
class, an annual growth rate of 0% was assumed for 2007 and 2008. From the table above, it can
be seen that 2002-03 were anomalous years for growth. This anomalous growth was excluded
from the trend line.

Customer numbers for Sentinel Lighting, Street Lighting, and USL classes in 2007 also represent
current (early 2007) number of connections in each of these classes. The Applicant does not
expect the number of customers in the Sentinel and USL classes to change within the next year
and the 2007 current figures are used for 2008. Customer growth for the Street Lighting Class is

calculated based on the annual average geometric mean of growth.
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The figure below illustrates the historical and forecast customer trend in all rate classes.

ERHDC Customer Forecast

3,500

3,000

2,500

—o— Residential
—#— GS < 50kW

GS >50
—»—USL
—¥— Sentinel Lighting
—&— Street Lighting

2,000

1,500

Customer numbers

1,000

500

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Years

Load Forecast

Weather sensitive load (Residential, GS<50, and GS>50 classes) is calculated by using a retail
normalized average use per customer (“retail NAC”). This is calculated by dividing the class
weather normal retail kWh for 2004 by the number of customers in class in 2004. Class weather
normal retail kWh for 2004 is determined by dividing the class weather normal wholesale kWh for
2004 reported in the Hydro One weather normalization analysis by the class loss factor. The
class loss factor is calculated for 2004 by dividing the class weather actual wholesale
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consumption for 2004 (Hydro One file) by the class weather actual retail consumption (utility
data). Weather sensitive class weather actual wholesale and retail kWh and associated loss

factors are reported in the following table below.

2004 Weather Actual kWh and Loss Factors for Weather Sensitive Load

Class Weather Actual Weather Actual Retail | Loss Factor
Wholesale kWh kWh

Residential 35,801,460 33,389,034 1.072

GS <50 15,154,410 14,622,643 1.036

GS >50 to 5,000 15,978,772 14,633,409 1.092

Weather sensitive class wholesale weather normal kWh, number of customers, and retail NAC for
2004 is reported in the table below.

Class Weather Normal Customer Retail NAC
Wholesale kWh (2004) | Connections (2004)

Residential 35,733,349 2,837 11,747

GS <50 15,164,656 427 34,268

GS >50 to 5,000 16,108,537 16 922,016

Annual class kWh for weather sensitive load (Residential, GS<50, GS>50) for Bridge Year and
Test Year are calculated by multiplying retail NAC by forecast number of customers in class.
Class kwh for Unmetered Scattered Load (“USL”), and Sentinel Lighting is not weather sensitive
and is not expected to differ in 2008 from current 2007 levels. Utility budgeted throughput for
these classes based on year-to-date consumption is used to estimate Bridge Year and Test Year
values for these classes. Consumption for Street Lighting is not weather sensitive. Street Lighting
kWh is estimated using forecast number of connections for the Bridge Year and Test Year

multiplied the average use per connection.

Several classes are billed based on demand charges (GS>50, LU, Sentinel, Street Lighting) and

require an estimate of billed kW. Billed kW is estimated based on a load factor calculated using a
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ratio of historical billed kW to historical retail kWh, by class. The following table summarizes the

results of ERHDC'’s customer and load forecast.

Historical Historical Historical Bridge Year - | Bridge Year | Test Year
Actual Board Actual Est. Forecast Normalized
Approved Normalized Normalized Forecast
Year 2006 2004 2006 2007 2007 2008
Customer # 2,829 2,843 2,829 2,823 2,823 2,817
Class
Residential kwh | 31,897,736 | 32,760,423 | 33,231,538 | 32,713,932 33,161,058 33,090,578
GS < 50 kW # 427 450 427 429 429 431
kKWh | 14,232,071 | 12,354,944 | 14,632,529 | 14,551,187 14,701,715 14,771,227
GS > 50 kW # 16 16 16 16 16 16
kWh | 14,308,194 | 17,873,889 | 14,752,248 | 14,744,627 14,752,248 14,752,248
kW 36,698 38,723 37,837 37,561 37,580 37,580
USL # 11 6 11 11 11 11
kwWh | 125,709 99,798 125,709 125,709 125,709 125,709
Sentinel Lights | # 27 27 27 27 27 27
kWh | 27,890 24,233 27,890 27,890 27,890 27,890
kW 77 42 77 77 77 77
Street Lighting | # 1,013 1,016 1,013 1,012 1,012 1,011
kWh | 582,876 680,425 582,876 582,301 582,301 581,870
kW 1,721 1,488 1,721 1,719 1,719 1,718
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NORMALIZED VOLUME FORECAST TABLE
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Variance Variance Variance
2006 2006 form 2006 form form
Board Board 2006 2006 Board 2006 2006 2007 2006 2007 2007 2008 2007
Approved | Approved | Actual Actual | Approved | Actual Actual | 2007 Est. Est. Actual Bridge Bridge | 2008 Test Test Actual
(kWh) (kW) (kWh) (kW) (kWh) (kW) (kWh) (kW) (kWh) (kW) (kWh) (kW)
Rate Classes
Residential 32,760,423 31,897,736 862,687 31,897,736 32,713,932 816,196 | 33,161,058 33,090,578 70,480
GS <50 kW 12,354,944 14,232,071 1,877,127 | 14,232,071 14,551,187 319,116 | 14,701,715 14,752,248 50,533
GS > 50 kW 38,723 36,698 | 2,025 36,698 37,561 | 1,163 37,580 37,580 0
Sentinel Lights 24,233 27,890 | 3,657 27,890 27,890 | 0 27,890 27,890 0
Street Lights 1,488 1,721 233 1,721 1,719 2 1,719 1,718 1
USL 99,798 125,709 25,911 125,709 125,709 0 125,709 125,709 125,709 | O
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VARIANCE ANALYSIS ON NORMALIZED VOLUME FORECAST

The purpose of the evidence contained in the above Exhibits, is to provide the Board with
a review of ERHDC's actual and forecasted customers, consumption and revenues for the
historical, bridge and test years.

The exhibits provide a summary of the normalized throughput and customer numbers
from the schedules noted above.

Residential
We have projected a growth in kWh of 3.7% from 2006 Actual to 2008 Test.

GS< 50 kW
We have projected a growth in kWh of 3.7 % from 2006 Actual to 2008 Test.

GS>50 kW
We have projected a growth in kW of 2.4 % from 2006 Actual to 2008 Test.

Sentinel Lights
We have projected a growth in kW of 0.0% from 2006 Actual to 2008 Test.

Street Lights
We have projected a decrease in kW of 0.18 % from 2006 Actual to 2008 Test.

USL
We have projected a growth in kW of 0.0% from 2006 Actual to 2008 Test.

11
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CUSTOMER COUNT FORECAST TABLE

Variance form Variance Variance
2006 Board 2006 2006 Board 2006 form 2006 2007 2008 form 2007
Approved Actual Approved Actual 2007 Est. [ Actual Bridge Test Actual
Customers Count

Residential 2,843 2,829 14 2,829 2,823 6 2,823 2,817 6

GS < 50 kW 450 427 23 427 429 2 429 431 2

GS > 50 kw 16 16 0 16 16 0 16 16 0

Sentinel Lights 27 27 0 27 27 0 27 27 0

Street Lights 1,016 1,013 3 1,013 1,012 1 1,012 1,011 1

USL 4 11 7 11 11 0 11 11 0

12
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VARIANCE ANALYSIS ON CUSTOMER COUNT FORECAST

The purpose of the evidence contained in the Exhibits, is to provide the Board with a
review of ERHDC's actual and forecasted customers.

Residential
We have projected a decrease in customer numbers of 0.4% from 2006 Actual to 2008
Test.

GS< 50 kW
We have projected an increase in customer numbers of 0.9 % from 2006 Actual to 2008
Test.

GS>50 kW
We have projected an increase in customer numbers of 0.0 % from 2006 Actual to 2008
Test.

Sentinel Lights
We have projected an increase in customer numbers of 0.0% from 2006 Actual to 2008
Test.

Street Lights
We have projected a decrease in customer numbers of 0.2% from 2006 Actual to 2008

Test.
USL

We have projected an increase in customer numbers of 0.0% from 2006 Actual to 2008
Test.

13
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OTHER DISTRIBUTION REVENUE

Variance form
2006 Board 2006 2006 Board 2006 2007 Variance form 2007 2008 Variance form
Approved Actual Approved Actual Bridge 2006 Actual Bridge Test 2007 Actual
($'s) ($'s) ($'s) ($'s) ($'s) ($'s) ($'s) ($'s) ($'s)
Other Distribution Revenue
Distribution Services Revenue
Retail Services Revenues 852 5,610 4,758 5,610 5,760 150 5,760 8,650 2,890
Service Transaction Requests (STR) Revenues | 2 262 260 262 100 (162) 100 125 25
Electric Services Incidental to Energy Sales
Transmission Charges Revenue
Transmission Services Revenue
Interdepartmental Rents
Rent from Electric Property 27,791 40,283 12,492 40,283 38,900 (1,383) 38,900 39,500 600
Other Utility Operating Income
Other Electric Revenues 28,397 68,951 40,554 68,951 41,895 (27,056) 41,895 28,957 (12,938)
Late Payment Charges 9,185 11,378 2,193 11,378 12,200 822 12,200 12,200 |0
Sales of Water and Water Power
Miscellaneous Service Revenues 22,388 45,821 23,433 45,821 57,220 11,399 57,220 57,220 | O
Provision for Rate Refunds
TOTAL 88,615 172,305 | 83,690 172,305 | 156,075 | (16,230) 156,075 | 146,652 | (9,423)
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MATERIALITY ANALYSIS ON OTHER DISTRIBUTION REVENUE

The materiality threshold of 1% based on 2006 Board Approved rate base equals (1% x $2,735,952) or
$27,359. The following represents Revenue accounts that exceed the materiality threshold.

2006

Board 2006

Approved | Actual | Variance
Other Electric Revenues 28,397 68,951 | 40,554
Explanation:

In 2006 Actual year ERHDC had additional income of approximately $43,000 due to ERHDC
contracting crew workers to a neighbouring utility.
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RATE OF RETURN ON OTHER DISTRIBUTION ACTIVITIES

In this application, ERHDC has applied for the same Specific Service Charges previously
approved in the OEB approved 2007 Tariffs of Rates and Charges (EB-2007-0525). The
specific Service Charges schedule follows the OEB recommended charges and as such
ERHDC has no further information related to the rate of return on non-core delivery

activities.

16
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DESCRIPTION OF REVENUE SHARING

ERHDC does not engage in revenue sharing.
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation(ERHDC)

OVERVIEW OF OPERATING COSTS

Operating Costs
The operating costs presented in this exhibit represent the annual expenditures required to sustain
ERHDC'’s Distribution Operations.

OM&A Costs

The OM&A costs in this exhibit represents ERHDC’s integrated set of asset maintenance and
customer activity needs to meet public and employee safety objectives; to comply with the
Distribution System Code, environmental requirements and Government direction; and to maintain
distribution business service quality and reliability at targeted performance levels. These costs also
include providing services to customers connected to ERHDC's Distribution system, and to meet the
service levels stipulated in the Standard Supply Service Code and the Retailer Settlement Codes.

The proposed OM&A cost expenditures for the 2008 test year result from a rigorous business
planning and work prioritization process that reflects risk-based decision making to ensure that the
most appropriate, cost effective solutions are put in place.

OM&A expenditures totaled $1,125,215 in 2006 Board Approved, $1,439,658 in 2006 Actual and are
forecast to be $1,278,162 in 2007 and $1,276,059 in 2008.



Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation(ERHDC)

SUMMARY OF OPERATING COSTS

Exhibit: 4

2006 Board 2006 2007 2008 Test
Approved Actual Bridge
$ $ $ $

Operation 188,791 233,568 216,616 237,426
Maintenance 88,939 163,899 184,343 187,328
Billing and 223,645 267,466 251,828 254,687
Collections
Community 1,253 1,000 2,000 2,000
Relations
Administrative and 227,879 326,591 286,325 282,788
General Expenses
Amortization 216,028 188,561 178,061 179,455
Expenses
Other Operating 173,677 245,971 133,025 132,375
Costs
Taxes other than 5,003 12,602 25,964 0
income
Total Operating 1,125,215 1,439,658 1,278,162 1,276,059
Costs




Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation(ERHDC)

Operation
5005-Operation Supervision and Engineering
5012-Station Buildings and Fixtures Expense
5016-Distribution Station Equipment - Operation Labour
5017-Distribution Station Equipment - Operation Supplies and Exper
5020-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Labour
5025-Overhead Distribution Lines & Feeders - Operation Supplies ar
5035-Overhead Distribution Transformers- Operation
5040-Underground Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Labot
5045-Underground Distribution Lines & Feeders - Operation Supplies
5055-Underground Distribution Transformers - Operation
5065-Meter Expense
5070-Customer Premises - Operation Labour
5075-Customer Premises - Materials and Expenses
5085-Miscellaneous Distribution Expense
5095-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Rental Paid

OM&A COSTS TABLE

2006 Board 2006 Actual 2007 Bridge 2008 Test

2006 Actual Ref.

Exhibit: 4

2007 Bridge Ref. 2008 Test Ref.

Sub-Total

Maintenance
5105-Maintenance Supervision and Engineering
5110-Maintenance of Buildings and Fixtures - Distribution Stations
5114-Maintenance of Distribution Station Equipment
5120-Maintenance of Poles, Towers and Fixtures
5125-Maintenance of Overhead Conductors and Devices
5130-Maintenance of Overhead Services
5135-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Right of Way
5145-Maintenance of Underground Conduit
5150-Maintenance of Underground Conductors and Devices
5160-Maintenance of Line Transformers
5170-Sentinel Lights - Labour
5175-Maintenance of Meters

Sub-Total

Billing and Collections
5305-Supervision
5310-Meter Reading Expense
5315-Customer Billing
5320-Collecting
5335-Bad Debt Expense

Sub-Total

Approved from Board from 2006 from 2007
Approved Actual Bridge
16,383 36,289 36,840 37,392 19,906 A 551 552
44,307 15,961 14,168 3,931 (28,346) B (1,793) (10,237)
2,386 10,498 12,015 12,815 8,112 1,517 800
138 16,330 11,000 11,225 16,192 C (5,330) 225
53,344 23,521 30,102 53,268 (29,823) D 6,581 23,166 A
3,380 15,344 10,700 10,915 11,964 E (4,644) 215
5,991 12,871 12,425 14,203 6,880 (446) 1,778
24,903 8,135 5,663 6,039 (16,768) F (2,472) 376
1,345 6,729 3,900 3,980 5,384 (2,829) 80
10,765 13,142 15,682 10,765 2,377 2,540
4,744 14,665 14,492 13,426 9,921 (173) (1,066)
27,199 23,167 25,085 27,199 G (4,032) 1,918
1,245 2,000 2,040 1,245 755 40
20,770 18,541 13,302 13,725 (2,229) (5,239) 423
11,100 15,475 13,700 13,700 4,375 (1,775) -
188,791 233,568 216,616 237,426 44,777 (16,952) 20,810
36,289 36,840 37,392 36,289 H 551 552
13,229 4,784 5,863 6,239 (8,445) 1,079 376
964 8,628 14,580 15,235 7,664 5,952 655
2,978 5,122 3,167 6,972 2,144 (1,955) 3,805
18,675 29,626 37,566 38,288 10,951 7,940 722
410 150 150 410 (260) -
34,241 54,564 63,378 59,944 20,323 | 8,814 (3,434)
1,126 1,450 1,426 1,126 324 (24)
7,041 18,561 17,204 17,301 11,520 J (1,357) 97
4,820 2,973 2,567 2,709 (1,847) (406) 142
719 789 836 719 70 47
6,990 1,097 789 836 (5,893) (308) 47
88,938 163,899 184,343 187,328 74,961 20,444 2,985
33,129 36,626 38,089 39,276 3,497 1,463 1,187
119,355 146,242 138,917 142,446 26,887 K (7,325) 3,529
67,771 69,477 70,822 68,965 1,706 1,345 (1,857)
3,390 15,121 4,000 4,000 11,731 L (11,121) -
223,645 267,466 251,828 254,687 43,821 (15,638) 2,859
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Community Relations
5405-Supervision
5410-Community Relations - Sundry
5515-Advertising Expense

Administrative and General Expenses
5605-Executive Salaries and Expenses
5610-Management Salaries and Expenses
5615-General Administrative Salaries and Expenses
5620-Office Supplies and Expenses
5630-Outside Services Employed
5635-Property Insurance
5640-Injuries and Damages
5645-Employee Pensions and Benefits
5655-Regulatory Expenses
5660-General Advertising Expenses
5665-Miscellaneous General Expenses
5680-Electrical Safety Authority Fees

Amortization Expenses

Sub-Total

Sub-Total

5705-Amortization Expense - Property, Plant, and Equipment

5710-Amortization of Limited Term Electric Plant

Other Operating Costs
6030-Interest on Debt to Associated Companies
6035-Other Interest Expense

Taxes other than Income
6105-Taxes other than Income Taxes

Total Operating Costs

Sub-Total

Sub-Total

Sub-Total

Exhibit: 4

1,000 2,000 2,000 1,000 1,000 -
1,253 (1,253) - -
1,253 1,000 2,000 2,000 (253) 1,000 B
39,319 16,686 16,700 18,600 (22,633) M 14 1,900
51,035 78,045 64,065 67,229 27,010 N (13,980) A 3,164
6,101 16,367 16,139 7,555 10,266 (228) (8,584)
46,317 47,113 57,819 60,431 796 10,706 2,612
35926 136,080 100,411 95,842 100,154 O (35,669) B (4,569)
8,753 5,071 5,200 5,350 (3,682) 129 150
20,557 6,614 7,991 8,230 (13,943) P 1,377 239

9,018 9,000 9,551 9,018 (18) 551
3,805 4,349 6,000 6,000 544 1,651 -
2,255 (2,255) - -
12,800 4,970 500 1,500 (7,830) (4,470) 1,000
1,011 2,278 2,500 2,500 1,267 222 -
227,879 326,501 286,325 282,788 98,712 (40,266) (3,537)
194,164 188,561 178,061 179,455 (5,603) (10,500) 1,394
21,864 (21,864) Q - -
216,028 188,561 178,061 179,455 (27,467) (10,500) 1,394
163,074 164,324 84,625 84,625 1,250 (79,699) C -
10,604 81,647 48,400 47,750 71,043 R (33,247) D (650)
173,678 245971 133,025 132,375 72,293 - (112,946) (650)
5,003 12,602 25,964 7,599 13,362 | (25,964) B
5,003 12,602 25,964 B 7,599 13,362 (25,964)
1,125215 1,439,658 1,278,162 1,276,059 314,443 (161,496) (2,103)
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation(ERHDC)

VARIANCE ANALYSIS ON OM&A COSTS TABLE

2006 Actual to Board Approved

Refer to Draft Issues List in Exhibit 1 Page 35 for an overall explanation on the comparability of
2006 Actual data to Board Approved (2004).

A

5005 — Operation Supervision and Engineering - $19,906

In the Board Approved year a portion of the Management salary was charged to the Services
Company. In 2006 Actual the Service Company is no longer active and all costs are charged
to the distribution company.

5012 — Station Buildings and Fixtures Expense - $(28,346)
Decrease in the expenditure is a result of labour being allocated and expensed to different
accounts than in the previous year.

5017 — Distribution Station Equipment — Operations Supplies and Expenses - $16,192
Increase is due to property taxes being reallocated from and Admin. to OM&A expenditure
for substations and a supplementary tax bill due to properties being reassessed in 2006.

5020 — Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders — Operation Labour $(29,823)
Decrease in the expenditure is a result of labour being allocated and expensed to different
accounts than in the previous year.

5025 — Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders — Operation Supplies and Expenses -
$11,964. Variance is due to PUC and USF training in 2006 Actual.

5040 — Underground Distribution Lines and Feeders — Operation Labour - $(16,768)
Decrease in the expenditure is a result of labour being allocated and expensed to different
accounts than in the previous year.

5070 — Customer Premises — Operation Labour - $27,199
Increase in the expenditure is a result of labour being allocated and expensed to different
accounts than in the previous year.

5105 — Maintenance Supervision and Engineering - $36,289

In the Board Approved year a portion of Management salary was charged to the Services
Company. In 2006 Actual the Service Company is no longer active and all costs are charged
to the distribution company.
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation(ERHDC)

I 5135 — Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders — Right of Way - $20,323
Increase in the expenditure is a result of labour being allocated and expensed to different
accounts than in the previous year. In 2006 there was also an increase in tree trimming
expenditures.

J 5150 — Maintenance of Underground Conductors and Devices - $11,520
Increase in the expenditure is a result of labour being allocated and expensed to different
accounts than in the previous year.

K 5315 — Customer Billing - $26,887
In Actual 2006 there were additional Harris support costs.

L 5335 — Bad Debt Expense - $11,731
Bad debts sent to Debt Collector up to December 31, 2005 (not done previously).

M 5605 — Executive Salaries and Expenses - $(22,633)
General Manager’s hours posted in part to this account prior to 2006.

N 5610 — Management Salaries and Expenses - $27,010
Increase in Management Salaries charged to the distribution company since the services
company is no longer active.

0 5630 — Outside Services Employed - $100,154
Consulting fees for rate application , audit fee, legal and PUC Management services have
increase from the Board Approved year.

P 5640 - Injuries and Damages - $(13,943)
Reduction in charges such as insurance from the Services Company which is no longer
active in 2006 Actual.

Q 5710 — Amortization of Limited Term Electric Plant - $(21,864)
Reclassification required to account 5705 Amortization Expense Property Plant
and Equipment.
R 6035 — Other Interest Expense - $71,043
Recalculation of carrying charges from 2002 to 2006 (revenue offsets majority of expense).

2007 Bridge from 2006 Actual

A 5610 — Management Salaries and Expenses - $(13,980)
In 2007 Bridge there was a reallocation of contract expenses.
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B 5630 — Outside Services employed — $(35,669)
Variance due to reduction in 2007 consulting fees and rate application costs.

C 6030 — Interest on Debt to Associated Companies - $(79,699) - Reduction due to the
proposed move in the debt to equity structure.

D 6035 — Other Interest Expense - $(33,247)
Recalculation of carrying charges in 2006 from the period 2002 to 2006.

E,F,G,H — no variance analysis required
I 6105 — Taxes Other than Income Taxes - $13,362

Estimated as per 2006 rate application.

2008 Test from 2007 Bridge

A 5020 — Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders — Operations labour $ 23,166
Variance is due to additional allocation of labour to overhead lines.

B 6105 — Taxes Other than Income Taxes - $(25,964)
Taxes allocated to different accounts in 2008.
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation(ERHDC)

MATERIALITY ANALYSIS ON OM&A COSTS

A written explanation is required for operating costs related information where there is a variance
greater or equal to 1% of the total distribution expenses before PILS.

Determination of Materiality Threshold for OM&A Costs

Distribution Expense 2006 Actual 2007 Bridge 2008 Test
OM&A 1,005,126 967,076 964,229
Amortization 188,561 178,061 179,455
Distribution Expenses 1,193,687 1,145,137 1,143,684
Before PILS

1% of Distribution 11,937 11,451 11,437

Expenses before PILS

ERHDC has selected $11,437, the lowest level of materiality for the most effective review of costs.
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation(ERHDC)

SHARED SERVICES

ERHDC does not have any shared services with any affiliates.
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation(ERHDC)

CORPORATE COST ALLOCATION

ERHDC does not allocate any corporate costs to affiliates.

11



Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation(ERHDC)

PURCHASE OF SERVICES

Exhibit: 4

2006 Actual 2007 Bridge

2008 Test

PUC Services Inc.

$121,367 $132,400

$134,390

Management Services

Tender

PUC Services Inc.

$111,981 $118,426

$119,372

Billing and Collecting Services

Tender

PUC Services Inc.

$40,107 $40,000

$44,152

Retail Settlement Services

Tender

PUC Services Inc.

$35,423 $33,394

$29,149

Software Support

Cost Approach

Freelandt Caldwell Reilly

$35,500 $25,000

$30,000

Audit

Cost Approach

Requlatory Services

$35,020 $30,000

$20,000

Regulatory Compliance Service, Elenchus,

PUC Services

Tender

L. Houle Construction

$39,554 $42,000

$43,260

Meter Reads/Disconnects

Cost Approach

J. Gagne

$5,872 $6,400

$6,592

Janitorial Services

Cost Approach

12
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation(ERHDC)

MANAGEMENT AND CUSTOMER SERVICE/BILLING AGREEMTENTS WITH PUC SERVICES INC.

13
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Management Services Agreement
NS AGIREEMENT 15 AT TWELN:
FINC SERVICES TN
Thereinafes referred to oz *ServiceCo'')
- i =
ESPANUGLA HEGIONAL MY DR IMSTRIEUTION CORPOEATION
(heremalier retarrzd to as the “Client™)

T womesiderat o o the putes] covenants contained (0 his Agrcenint and the sun ol e dollas oow paid Ty e iy
ta t1e ather, roocipt of which is horchy acknowcdged, the =ariza ageee as follows:

L Inefinitoms and Inrc rpretation

I thiz Agrecment, umless othorense cxpressly defined or the eonow: sthorwisc reguites

(k1 Agteament” means this Management Services Acreement and the Menapemene Servioes Schedule

‘hj “Canfdential Information” means sy oral written orelecimorec data and imformation oot o Bereafter
existing during the currensy of this Agreemen, relating o the business and managemeart of eithar pamy
welinch 18 bealod by soch paity as conficential o whicl access is grated oi cblaimed by tee ot
oary, Tl does ma inglude any disa or Cuane@en which wies Snown wodhe recipient pric o the
isclosuge to it xy the other pary, or (i) was Ddependently developed 3y the recipient a8 evidzneed by
revonds; eriin s subseyuently Lew(lly obtained by the recipient fromo iz zang, wideut breceh of
this Agroement By the seciziont: o (iv) beeomes publicly availablc other thar theough a brooeh of this
Agreemenit: or (%) i disolesed whens the other pery has provided its prior wriden comsert Lo sudh
disclosure b the redizient) or [wi] 15 discloszd by legpl requirement.

1ol “Faarn™ means all e formntion in Bard oy orin electrenie form which s nzed Inthe perfimreanee of
Services under this Agrezment.

idy *Thic Minbe” memns Ihiﬁ:,.' rln:ﬁ fifiar the divte of The invnise

i FRavie” means a service as specilicd o the Managznent Seivices Schedile, which SciviceCo
pecacldes i O iemt imder this Agpréement

in “Service Lewel means a service level agresd Inowriting by the parties as applicable to a pa-ticular
measarable component of o Service

14 "h.'l*_-umuq rrenl Sepyces Scbedude” the Schedole aitzched lerels winch descn bes e Serveces o be
recwdod by ServiceToeo Clicnr and any addivional wwrm: and cendivons relang specicically ro soch
Rorvices,

il Stdanaermcnl Servicss agrecment” means T aproeme berwest ServiesOn ard the Client asmay he

amseaded from time o tinee as providad o this Agesienl.

3 Interpretation

Inthis Agroement, unfoss otaereise cxprossly provided o as the conlent obacruese oquises:

(a] hcadings ars solzly for converienes of rofcroaoe and are ol imtended to be complele araccurate descnptions of
vuniemd or i be puides 1o imerpreiation of this Agreement or amy pert of it
[hi an accouting ferm ot atherwiac defined ‘v this Aproemenr has the meaning assigned 1o f, fre every

caleukution (o Ze made under this Arreerment is o be mzde, in accordance with accounting prineiples penerzliy
noeepled it Candcda applicd o 4 consistent hasis:
[ referonee o currency means Canadinn curmency;

14
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2

arsterenoe o oastatnie inc odes all regulabions made thereunder, all eemdments bo the st2ioe of reguletions in
forie M tlies 1o dma and avery amime of fogulathen thar copplements af sdperssdes aich dahie oF
regulaticas,

o reference o an entity include: any sueees:ar to S enbity;

aowund nopeocting the mescelios gender mgeees b laononee and reuier, aoword mothe songudar includes the
plural, = woee imparing o eorporme criity includes on individia !, and viee vorsa:

o relerence W approsval™, Cauthoreation™ ur Soensenl” meses writlen spproval, suthoriaion e consent;

il there is any cenflict o neonsiceacy berwsen the terms of this Mansaemer! Secvices Agreament and the
Manigenmenl Secvives Sehedule, e wns ol e Masgeooemi Sevices Schwdu ¢ will prevail;

the woowd = inc luding”, when follow ing a general statesne o or e, s ool o be consorosc as lmitiong Use geneial
STARCITAE OF 10 o any spoct o fem or manse sot forth oF tosimdlze irerms or mamers, bub rther as nermiting
the peneral statement o 12rm to refer also to all other itens or matters tal eould reasomacly fall within it
hrcwasie st p'h-iihl:' scnpes Elatal

a relengrve Wi Pacl or Section is 6o 3 Pator Saaion of this Agraenmol,

Term

Subject w0 provision of paragraph L4040, dhe Tenn o this Apresient shall be G g petiod of five years
cemmencing or the laber of Vebruary 17 2006 or the date when the [ast of the two parizs bo s Aareemert
pxocuies same [the “Term™ L

ServieeUn Respansihilities

In the merfymorce of Service:, ServlceCo agrees o:

(&) perform ths Sere ces as deserlbed [n -he Mamaeomen Serviess Schedube and othe=w!ae 1= accoramer
wit the 1erms o7 this Agreemem and the zollzles and procedures in pluce by the Cllam:

‘hj =nsiire that expesienced and propery qualifies personns| zerfonm e Seovices by ServiceUo,

W liwise with Client Gorowgh Client's Board o Darector Clairman or his designae on matems of 2
material mature refared te the Management Services Schedule and opeation of the Cleeut,

dy Glily Chenl, whaneser pravivable, Megpenses beyind e chienges sel forth within he Moragenen
Services Schodule moy be incumed (ogether with any cxplanatiare therefos

&) imvonee Clienl sooondng do e wrns of the Menogement Services Echedule for the Serviecs
zerfarmed

(f Aty Clignt, 25 appropeince, of ey flaooe o onieipeod metern | chonges o ServieeCo proceduses
i the provision of Services;

(£ wiork cocperntively with CHent and @15 customers ns mey be reasona®lc o foeilitate the efficient
crunisiun ol e Services;

[t periorm the Services corsempinted Forein on fomms not loss Svourable Dan those providod 1o s st
[ TR EH

R hseeee and srmmply with any g all analicahle eoverriend laws anc reilations now or Dercafier in
Lt o gl Tel;

i ahszrve the Client’s reasonahle policies and procedurss in ez atonto the perfocmeice ol Ui Servies

sich thar Client®s customers will pot encowter gay noticeasle difference in the service: formerky
plow ded by e Clicrt aed the Services now |.l|-.lv|dtl.' I.sr_v SepveeelU o i accerdance wilh s
Apreerrent; wml

1K) mainizii ad=cuate l.'LIL'I.l.'l'C'II:.'IEi\': _sbl.'.ll:.|'3| HsLllhl: iisuiaiee sliowind U Ozl ax an msddeliomal
INGUEC.

15

Exhibit: 4



5.

131

(4

Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation(ERHDC)

Ulhient’'s Kespongibilities
Chemt asmees i

{a) provide all necessary Date or other required materials 1o ServiceCo on schedule or in a time by fashion
o eackle ServiceCa te provide the Servdees:

[ s with ServiceCo throwgh the Clicwt's Boaid of Drivector Clsabrmman oo desipnate W make decisions
on behelf of Client in reletion to the implementation of this Agreement and the Scrvices and any
:,:Il.:.ll!lq Lo,

(c) reasomably provide odvance consent or direction for the rolense ef Client's ropors and other
miormation by Servacelo lo any third party, as required m the performance of the Service;

(el restricr CHert's emplayoes and agents from inicricring with, and from any urortharized usc of
equipment which iz oemed by BenvicelUo, m Barvicel'o's poszession, of under Servicelo’s conmal;

{r) craure the accureey, legibility, and complotemess of nll Do suzzlisd 1o ServiesCo sed be responaihls
lior the resulis obtaimed (o Cligos use ol any of be Services;

i provide miormabion in addibon o that specified 1n the Management Services Schedule as Servicela
may reasonakly requira from time o time t= perform the Servize:

':I]!] allow Servicel'o the soke respons i 21 ity and authonity 1o make amv and all decisions with respectia the
dzy-ta-day operatiens of The Client as sutlined in the Manyrement Services Schedals:

th) putharize ServiceCo to meke expenditures and enter mibo contracts for ibems as approwved 0 the anmual
huiclget subsjact o agraed upon expendinre fimis:

il wiblinn @ ressomalyle Lime period provide a dzcision on the acceptance or rz2jection of reconmme nd ations
from ServiceCs pertaining to the operution of the Client

|_‘|J prur.ij,b: adegguals wllice AL, Jarnbnnes, cuppule:, sllice cquguenl, sapplies, od oo TEILT T, o 1
dewices for ServiecCo 1o perform it: obligotions under the Agreement: and

ikl prerlonn any olfer acbvibies & deloed o e Masagemenl Sevices Scheduabe.

Draiee

Al Craia supplied by Chenl related 1o the per lonmice v a Service rensaiins Clwnt"s esclasive property, All
supplicd Dota must be on medin competible with Servies o proecssing equipment end, where azelicable. s the
[wrmmal whivh ServiceCu, sty resonebly, preseribes,

If Clieat provides Software for use by ServieaCo in the provision of Servees, Client warrants that:

(ad Clicant leas wrlbsiaminge] ony mecessary permnssion, rigll and licenee o gnable the Sollware w be copisd,
modified and mn by ServiceCo on cquipmens under ServieeCo’ s control without infrimging any third
parly mghls

k] in using the Snfrwars o fumish the Serviecs, ServieeCao will ant be infringing the dghts of amy third
parties: ancd

{c) the disclosure bo ServiceCo or the use by ServiceCo of the Software will not involdve a breach of any

confidential or controctual relationship.
Clhient agrees wo defend, indemnify and hold hanless Servicel_o apamst all bosses, dameges, costs, expenses and
ligkilities, including reasonoble legal expenses, incurned in relation te such clodm arismg from ooy breech of e
warranlies staled aoder (2)abwwve,
Al D, Sofoware, methsdology. know-how, ideas, technigues. caneeps, informetion ond processes suppliod
ar deveboped by Servicel o in the serformance of a servce remauns bervicelo's exclusmve property.
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation(ERHDC)

Confudeatiality

Fach of the partics agrocs:

{ub lw keep all Conlidential Information ol e other party to which acces: s or has been granted to or
ohraired in strictes confidence and nor i disclose or permit disclosure of all or amy portion of such
Confidential Infarmarion w any person, firm, corporetion, business or other entity, except as otherwise
=xpressly permittzd by this Agreement or with the prior written consent of the other party which
comsesil miry be unreasonably withheld;

] o exercise a degree of cave in profecting the confidentiality of ihe Coaldential Dnfooaton of s
other party which s at leasi equivalent w that which the party uses 1o protea its own Canfidemiiol
Inbormationg

() A 10 s all o any porion of the Condldenrial Informacion of the sther party in amy wey which may
be reasonably considered detrimental to the business operations of the other pary,

() not ta repraduce any Confidential Informr ation of the other party without the priar wrtticn consent of
gl Ay, wlich consent nay b i E:M‘la.H_lf withield, gacupl Lo mnake avallable tle Conl denisal
Information to sech oF ts directaoss, afficers, employess, agents and subcomtraetors who necd to use the
Comlidential Infommslivn in e perfamamne of Savices aod who have agreed 1o be bound by e
terms of this Section; and

G ] o pravide accees to the Confidential Information of the other party only o sach of its directors,
offscers, agznts and subcontractors with a reed tonse the Confidential Information in the performance
of Sesvices and wha hava agread v be hound by the terms of this Section.

Modwiths 2ol any thing to the contrary in this Apreement, ServiceCo will not be required to keep confidential,

omd miy wsa or lieense withou rastriction, any ideas, concepts, know how or wechnlguas relatzd o information

provessing wioch are developed by ServiceCo in the perfonmance of services.

L harges

Charges for ServiceCo’s seraices will be specihed in the Management Sseraces Schedule, Servicelo will, attes
the sacrnd anriverssry af the date of this Agreemem, increase the charges specified in tha Manngament
Services Schedule by 3.0 percent etlective on the first day of each coniracs vear duning the Term

The szrvices 1> be provided and the fees quoted reflect the applicable current legislared. regul=iory requirements
and suidelimes specified by the Municipality, ederal and Untano Provinoal Covemment. by the Ontano
Frierzy Raard and the: Independen Flecmiciy Sysem Operator. 1f there should ke a marerial change in the
legis lation, regulations or guidelines that affects the nature of the management services provided., the fezs shall
he adjusted nccordingly afier agroement with the Cliat

sz wll e bee nespeae e bo ServiceCo bor s ceasonabily expensss ssvnabed wil any sl servnss
ar incrementr| oasts inenmed by ServiceCo m prowiding the services eansed by Clicnr's falhiee wo pesfien any
uliis ooligations under this Apreement, where the Cligny bas been advised in writimg ol il failure w pertonmm is
ahligations under this Agroement and fas boena glven a reanonahle apporminity wa eormaer any defeloney

Inweicing &nd Payment

Unless edherwiss stated within the Serviee Schedule, ScrviccCo will imvoiec Client in advence thirty days prior
o Lhe beyrmmang o cach oot for eherges far il 3ervives wbe proviskad i that forthosming month, Papmen:
af invoiced smaunts will ke due on the Tme Diate. Amounts remaining unpaid will beer intesest from the Dhae
Drare an an annual raie that is the leszer ol

[a]  the rate of interest set farth on the applicable mowmes; and
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b

(b the caiz fhar s (ve perowtum: pomds above the prime commerelal annua) lending rote of imerest
de=ignared by the Reval Fank of Canada tn et in Canada From fime to time for it Giest o2 Lweriby
cormrnercial Clierts on Canadizr dolar Dans,

Ay other amount mayabls under this Agmzement will bear nterest &) We rube sel vl above

Taxes
Client will make timely nzyment of any mue dutls or eaverment levies reiated t this Sereerent,
Warrinmv

BerloeCo represeats ond wormants thas the sorvioe [ovel peovided by it under Ss agreermnent shall be as gocd as,
on supmrior o those service levels generully enjored by SecviceCo®s own cuszomers and other oilices of o
simila= s #c within the Prosance of Ulntarn

Cxcept as sxprasely stated in this Secoon. Servicel o makcs Do waimanly, ivpresenlatoo, cood il oo coveranl
ofany <ind, expre:s 2= [mpllad, onl of writlei, statulory or otherwise, inglodimg buk not lirm e to, the mpled
wasratics, ropresemations, condilions or covetams o Dooerchan ez quilily oo Slmess [or e pantioular pumpose
o warrungics arising from o eourse of dealing srusage oF rade

Inllern miy

Clizar wil | indemnify sel hald Se-viceCo ha-mlees. 1o the =xiemt that Client is respossible, aoeamst anv Lases,
claims, daeages. judzments, abilibe: or eapenses (ineluding reasonasle legal fees mmd expenscs) zsufting
frare nitiom tnken or pormitted w0 2 taken by ServiecCo v good faith i reliance an crstroctions o orders
recacved fron Clienl arisng im conmestion with ServiceCo's perfiemance of i oblgasions under this
Apreerient ServiceUCoow | Ze without lability to Chend with raspect to aryinre dons ar amitied e o¢ done, in
acenrdance with the rerme o7tz Agraemend ar amaesines properly received pursnent o thi= agreemert, if
done in epod faith and with reasconabde skill e0d cane amd witlout willllul ve waoion mcondeet on ServiceCo's
e

Bubjec: to ection 12(10, Servicelo wil indznnify and Told Clent, i cMesrs, cireeiors, smploveas and
e ants harmiaas, mhe axfert 11a1 Servieedn is fesaansible, naninst ans [oescs, claims, damaces, judgrents,
lizbilities or exenszs [including reasonable 2gal legy wid enpensss) resulling lrom acton tom or permitied t
bz mken by Clizal in good foith in relicnee on natreetions or ordecm feceived =am Serocel o aiomg ©
Conprey b vkl Clicnl s pesborpsme: ol it cbligabons under this Agreement. Clientwill be without Tahiliy ta
ScrviccUo wth reapcdT o 2rsthing dore ar cevifted 10 5o dons i sccondance with the terms of this Agreemer
orinstructions properly received pursuzr 17 this Agresment, if dane in goad faitk ond witheva: aeglizence or
wil Ful or warten misconduct on Cliznt s g,

Snices

Amy noties ar demand t be given by erther zary to the other unden this Apreemein will b in wiling amd may
b delivered personally, 5y facsimile ar by fies class peepsbd ma i o e fBllowng addresses:

If to Rervicaln: LT SERVICES [MC
703 Oumeen Sureed Easl
PO B 000D
Souli Sie. Mariz, Ontario
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G

54 677
Aleitive, Ve Pres et oD Customer Servives

1t the Client LSPANCLA LG IOMNAL (1Y DHL

i

i1

{3}

DISTRIELTION COEPORATION

SUH ool A vamse

Expannkn, Cnrs

P5SE 1C4

Anentiom® Chairman, Boerd of Dhircetors

Mitieez defivered in personar by fosimile wii | be offective on tie date af such delivery. Moticzs issned il
will be effective on the third busme:s day lollvwing the date tel the envelope comaining the noticz is post-
marked iRl between the Hime oF mailing and the ime the antice is deemed affective there i= a0 intermption in
possal service, in which cace, the notice will 1o be effective untll acrually received. Inthe ¢vent of a posia
sTike of ockart. notices ar demands onder thes Apreement most Se debivered sersanally or by facsimile.

Verming i

Inihe event of a malerial breach, as defined hercin, of the Agreemcrt by a perty (the "Diefaulting Party” ), the
acher pary (e "Mon-DefRalorg Poty ") will have the right w0 give written notice o the Defouking Parry 1o
renwedy thee breach within tharty days ater the date of such nobge (the "Mobce ™) The Lstaultng Party will
mice all rensonible ¢ffors B reetify the beench ia the catlafnerion of rhe Man-Tefnlrine Poay at the encliest
proesibde e, e D faitiog Faimy fails o remedy the breach specitTed in the Motics oo the satiabe o ol e
Man-Diefrnting Porty within shirey divvs afer tbe dote ofthe Mesies, thies the Nom-Diefi s Pary ol e the
vight Lo levimineie e Agrecmen: on giving 30 days' sotce o the Defaultiog Paty, 15 the Deladiiog Pay
eorrees the hrench o the satisfetion oF the Non-Diefiolting Pary within the sime preacrined inthe Motiee, the
mobie ol Lo o ths Agreennet will S vond

Inthe cwvend thar the & zroement is iorminated inoaconrcanc: with [ hor (did) thent

{a] ServiceCo will cooperate fully with the Client and act in good faith toward the Client and s costomes
in arder wr allow for the smodch snd orderly tran:icon of'the Servicas to Client or I nominee. 11 additdon,
Service o will meke reasonable o fforts o costinne the Service s to the sxtemt mimimlly Aareed to by she
pariies ab mutus]ly apveed W poces, sl

[hy  SerwiceCo will return to the Cliend, the Client®s Diets and suppies

Far the pumposes of this soreement mulerin] breagh shedl oclodz withuol Deowon Gailure by ServiceCo by

porform any of its oaligatiors statod in scetion & of this Aarcement bo the stande-ds eomtainzd heesin,

I the Cliem devermines o sell fis business und the purchmszr i nol creponed w0 mcepl o assiznenes o tis

Agrezment or m the evenl of regulstory changg which resulis i the frustration of this Agrezment, ihe Ulieni

:hall have 1he optéon o erminate tis Agreemam at anytime aftar nre vecr an A0 dasvs prioe wrinen natica 1n

Sernnc:Uo and upon pavment of the tollowing amounts as hquideaiec damagss:

1 Durdng years 2 and 3 100% of te anmel 2oa sen Tk in the Mannzemer: Servdeas Sehzcnle
b Ponng years 4 ano 5 5P of the anmasl cost set torth in the Managemen: Services Schedule,

Il iom

I e vl @ dospute anses oul ol or wl cosnection walh Cos Agreement, meluding o depule as o what
constimees a maierial hecach frr the pumasza of Sceion 14 o in respect of any deflned lepsl relationship
assogigled Wil o derived [Fem Gis Agreement, e partie: will lollow ihe siep-by-sier cormection and
Agsnhition precerhire set oo heloase

Stap 1, Thee wroi-breasliing gty will sdvise the wher sany nowriling of e alleged breach
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Step 2, The party allegecly in breach will investizgats the allegation aid provide & wiillen reporl @
the other paery wirhin e husiness dnvs of receiving the noetioe elleging brench giver inder
Step 1w e eflect that
(10 the irvestigation reveals thet the albegrd breach was pot commitied;

b the breach has been suned; or
ici tae bpeach remains uncnred.
Srop 3 If the rary allaging the ==ach
i) 15 el salmleed Dl toe olber gy s ol o s oo leoger o breachy; or

by wica to pursie the dispute, then the porty will mmediztely notify te other pany
1ot bt Uit ot wislies o esialate e Jdispule b Sisp 4
Smep 4. Fach parry, will within twa business deys after reecipr of the natice bn Sca 3, sl o the
lllowine peaple, or their delegates, a wrilten report on the facs of the dispute, any nelevani
rrovislons of this Agrecment and ary ather relesnnr aformarion:
SarviveCu - Viee-Fresident Custondr S«ivives
Client; -Chairman, Board of Directors

Step 5. IF the porties referved o in Stex 4 carret resolve oz dispee through medimion, the dispoe
may bs relermed to arbirztion @ accordance wath the arbiation provisions of this
Agreemem
16 Arbitmlive

(n

(3
(4]

(5]

Escepe for applications fer i uectiens or resiraining ercers, sry dispuies asising out el or in connecticn with
this Agreereml or in pessect of any defincd begel relationship asseciates therewith or derived therefrom,
including any Gilure of the parties i nach aereemenid will be refiemed (o and finally resolved or determined by
arhtratenr under the Arheirathens Act (Ulntana). I the evend thal this Apreement has been fermimated im
accordance with section 14 showve and an arbitrior undes this aricke determines that a mseral breach did not
exist. the arivitrator’s jurisdiction shall be limited to the extent of awarding compensation for damages resulting
from (12 fallure w zive proper notiee of rerminacion,

Geenpen |

Neither parry will be reaponsible forany fulore 1 0 s ressective oblizations ander this A greemens due
RELS Lnr:ﬂu:uJ k= reasamalle dhi“l_'. o coatrod pluvi:]-ll eat e pauly alTecte! |.l_'\.- sueh vause hos wed and
cosntin s for s all reasamable o porform i obliparions and makes reasorakle anemprs o notify the
uﬂ:| g by i|| wl:iL:.lg wil]lill I-u.'l.-. Lusiness d.i}':ﬁ. -»,'ffl_h i.:u|1||i'._'|. W |L||ﬁ| iL:. d.:]jp;.iiuu-_u ul;kﬂ ﬂli:}- .ﬁu wenrril,

Repardlesa of the 'F1rr.‘l_=,n-'in§_ Servieed o will ennfinue W provide a1l Services deemod by Clicnt to be eritical o
il busmess, oubwilistaonding amy stk by or laboar dispale with ServicelCo's peronnel,

Ife Clent ard Servicel’d egres nod 10 assign or Sanader this Agrésment ar gy of thar respective rghis or
wbkigntions under=nis Arreament. withou the prior writken consant ofthe cthar parry. which sueh consam shell
not e unreasonably or arbifranly withaeld, not withstanding the foregom in the eventof a sals of'its busimess
the Cliemt shall have tha right m axipn thiz Agresment withoum the consam of ServiesCn providad ther the
Purchases agrees to assume the Client’s obhgations under this Agrzement
If cither parfy bocames insalvent or bankrupt within the meaning of the Basrupany ond Mesaivenoy Aot
(Caruda), the piher party mgy, wikh nocice m woiing, immediiie y lemminste this Agreemen.

Maochan gea s the temms and comditions of this Agreement will be cfFeetive onless specified inan amend-rest 1o
the Apraemen: sipoed by coih pard s,

I any portica of rthis Apreertent §s fomnd By 8 oo of coraetent urséiction o b invelid. illegal or
unenforczable, tha: portion will te sevared rom this Agreement and will not affecs the valldity, lzgaliy or
enforceshility of the remaining provisions of this Agreement and the remainder of the Agpecment will comtinue
i full force and el
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B

~lathing cortained Serelnand no acricma mEien i aceosdinee wird this Agreernent shall comst e Se~vice o or
any of i15 oificers. director:, emploveas, or servams i emplovees of tha Client &rd the pasies agree thar the
natare of Servicel o' s relatinnship with the Client is that of independent comtractor

Ay waiver by withver pasty olany obligatcon wder Uiz Agreee onet be ioowiting wod wall oo be Jeemal or
constitute 8 waiver of that or any other provision cwiether or not stmilary mor will suck waiver comstitur: &
vomilinew: waived aoless vilerwise enpresaly movidel

O termination of this Agreemcnt, all pocrued obligztions or linkilitics and the provisions that by thoi= nature are
imended 3 cndure beynnd sueh termination will remein in cffect including withou: limimtion, obligarons of
contidentahty,

This A fresment will b ?"El‘ll"l'r'_g am g fnes e the bedann arbath |'|'|rlir'f. 1T ] Ih:"rrrﬁpl-nl ive: spacessory nmid
pennitied assigns.

This Agrecment will he govemcd by the lnws of the Preadnes of Ontario and 1 the event tat the pastics ane
reguined to ke appliceiion L cogel, the perties apree o be sulject w Gie juisdiction of G cours of e
Frowinoe of Cinfario

Eacdy prariy will exocube wid detiver such lariber and ollhizer agreemmenis, docusienids and osbrupenls avl Jo sach
firrther aeks and thinps at are within it5 power and 25 may be neecssary of desitable o fmlly implement and earry
e the intene of this Agreemnent.

Agcepronce

Br.n;h puni-;l:.'.. i;l:.' aul,huri,p:'_: siwmlu.‘us Llr.|l..|'.4\. o gl liul. s ."|.5_| wrnwrl i:.ﬂ'll.: umql]r;xag_luu.l-ulll ].m.wl.:uu da=
parties and replaces 211 prior commumicatinns, agresrients and nnderstan dime s related oo the suject matter of
this Apreement. There wre no wizmanlie:, represenations, condilions, covenants or olher apreements between the
parties it commection with the subpect matter of this Agreement cxerpt thase speaafically sel out berein, [he
execmtiom of this Agreemenr Ans not been indeeed fy. nor do citer of e panties rely on or egord os maerial,
awy repeseintations not included in this Agreement. Ma supplzment, modifkation of waiver o ot this Agrezment
will he hiriding unless exscaed by thi p:rrler.
PUC SERYICES [NE,

Per: ey A
Moma: TERLY L&D
I"-:rsinun vE Frdancg

Per: ..-"" oy

‘-l.. I Cafwid st

Braltinn: &= &+ Led e s Ha
We have the suthority o bimd the Corporasion

E= P‘dﬁl.! AL HYDRD
ISTRIT I“.I‘J ‘.II] ATHIN

Per:
I‘w}nﬁﬂi ').LL'- lw-,]uh-,
Poair lB{I‘ [ % |
Per: o r=Ji
T AFTRES F;..;_ |L| 'ﬁﬁ‘ﬂ'n‘l"
Position: wee =
Wi have the authoriry ta hind the Carscmnor

TaldrL L
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Bervices Agreement

TS AGIRLEMUMNT IS 3L TWEEY

PLC SERVICES T,
(hemeinzttar refesred o s *ServieeTn )
- A -
FAFANDLA REGIONAL Y DRD DISTRIBUTION CORFORATION

[hereinafter veferred to as e “Clienl™

A consideratiom of the mutval covenants contwme o his Agreemant and the 0m o7 en dallars v peid by each nomy

i U erlhier, receipt o which is -

1.

crchy acinaw ledges, 1re panies agres a5 follows
Trefimitians and Imterpretation

In this Agrzement, wnlzss cthere se axpressly delimed or the context otheraize ]equ[rgs:

[EH Agrvemem” means thiz Services Agreeme and the Seovicss Schadue.

L] “Canfdential Infarmzten”™ means ary cral, welten o ¢ ecionic Ji omd (rfometior now or hercarter
exiating during the currzaey of tis Asreement, relaring to e Dusioess aod e o] itber party
whrch s freated by such party as conlidenlicl, Lo whick soces i= gomcd or abmivcd =5 ke ather
paety, boim does nnt inelude any dota or ofamation which (1) was knowm be Gw arigiem pricr w e
disehos o v it Ty the other party; oz (5 was independently deviloped by the recipent 25 eviderced liy
records: ar {ti) is subsequantly lawtully cztained Dy e sevizienl from athind party, withou: hreazk of
thiz Agreenrent by tha racdpiens o iiv] beoomes publicly svailable ciher than througl abeeacl ol b s
Agrzement; or [v) is discluse] wiere the othes porey has pravided 2 prios written consent to such
Alselnsurs oy the roeipien o (vik & disz ossd oy egal 1equinenne

ok “Drata” wnees all inforciation mhand copy or inelzoraiofirs which i3 nsed inthe perfonmance of
Servicos uncor this Agrecme

[N} "D D™ means thiny days after the d=ra af-he inveics

icl UEhervice” means aservice as specifisd i e Service Sciedule, whoch ServiceCe provides 1 Client
under this Azreement.

(r; “Service Level” means a service 12vel ayrewy in writing by the parties as appizahle 1oon particular
measurabile compongnl ¢ Servize.

= “Hervice Scheduis” Qe Sohedule alached hereto which deseribes the Servieea 1o be provided by
EerviceCo o Client and ery additksiial *2<ms and condificas selabing specilicully v such Servicas,

{ny “Servews Apreemort” means this agreamert berwesn ServiceCo and the Clear as may be 2riended
fenr tme oo time as provided in ks Agresment.

(i “Eoftvane’ means vompuler progrums, regardiess of format or mediun theis documens v gy

specifications

Inberprefation

Inthis Agroement, unlzss ctrerwisz expressly provided oo e e cunlest otherwiss =ooul=os:

in

(hi

lel

headings ape selele bor convenienes ot efarenoe sl nol intenuded 1o be compler: ar acourare descriptions of
surient oF 10 be guides 1@ imerpraration of this Azreament o any part of it;

£ acoimmting e 107 otherwiss delioed o this Agrecmem has the mean'vg nssigned do it and cvers
aaleiletian tebe mace undzre this Agreesent is fo be made, 1o accurJanee with accounting pringiples gereral by
acczpied i Candy azzlied on a eomgistart hasis:

refesenze o eurrency mizans anzadian cuirsncy;

22

Exhibit: 4



Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation(ERHDC)

& ve farame 1o a Statabe includaes all repulations mads theveunder, all amendmizots to the statute or regulal
fores from time to time md every stanae or regulavion thar supplemeris or sopersedes such sia
regulmions;

B referenoe bo &n cntity includes nmy successor tocthot entity;

&ward irrporing the mascuiing pender imchudes e ferningis e newler, @ word m the singubar nxle
slural, a word impartng @ corzorete entity includes i mdividual, and vice verss:

£ reforonee to Papprown!”, *rutharimion™ ar “eonsent™ means wriner approwal smhorization or enrs
il thers i any gonlBict or meonsastency bebween e o of s Servaoes Aenoone] s the Servece 5S¢
the terma of the Serviec Schadale will prevatl;

the vrond " including™, whin lalluvwing e gensral stalzisi2ol vr e, i@ ool o be comslrusd as lniling Gee |
staterient of term 1o any specific femoar mames <ot fasth oe o siredlae fems or meners, bt rather 25 por
H1e general ssaament or tema 1o refer alse 1o 2!l other items or matets that cocls reasanably Jall wi
sroedes) possible scope, 2nd

b rzforenee o B Par or Seetion is oo Part or Section of this Agreement.

Term

Suhject o prosision o poragraph 6 1G4 the Terrt ol 1his Agreemart shall = for a =eriod of fiv
commmensing um the leter ol Tume 1", 2006 oo e date when e st of the two pasties 1w ihis Agreenent e
same (the “ Term' L

Seivieel'o Respons ibilitics

I thee canFrnmance of Services, ServiceCo agress tod

(i perlorm the Services as desciibed in tbe 32rvice Schedule and otherwisz inaccordance with th
of this Agreement end the policics and proccdures i place by the Clisnt:

iyl ensure thar experienced and properiv qualified persornel perform the Services by ServiceCo

{ch lisse witli L lient through Chent's Financal Cificer or designate on matters -=(z21ed o the Se

ity retify Client, whenever =moleable, i7 expenses bepend the defined charzes within the :
Soledule may be eusied together witl ey explacation Uerelon

el inwsice Client acéording o the terme af the Service Sehedule far the Serviees performad:

in robily Uloend, s appropsale, o gy plenaed o enbcipaled materiol changes Lo ServiveCo pru
In the provision of Sorvices;

) wark, copperatively with Client and nis customers a5 may e reasonable o Teolifze the ¢
mrowisied of the Services

h serlorn the Scrvices contemplute. Lerein o errs wl les favoorable thir these provded o
CHs LTS,

] chscrve and eomply with ony znd all epslicable govemment biws srd regulotions new or he=t
fores or effect; and

i abacrve 1he Cllept's reasnnable pollcies and procedures inorelation 1o the erfarmance of the

sucl that Clisat's custemsns will pol ewowibe ciny poliveable dillaence i e seovioes [
proviczd by the Clicnt and he Serviecs mow proviced by ServiccCo in socorcancs w

Agreemmil,

e maintain ndequet: comprehensive gencral lisbility insurence showing the Client a5 pa ad.
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Ulient’s Hesponsibalities

Llismt apress to:

{a) provide all necessary Data and any special forms or other requirsd matedials to ServicesUo o sclwedule
or in atmely fashion 1o znable SeviceCo o provide the Services;

il s wthy ServiceUo tloough the Clent's Finencial Offeer or desigiabe 1o nake decisions on cehall
of Clicn: 0 relation to th: implemenietion af this Agreement and the Services and eny changes fheret;

() reacomably provide advame conssnl or dirsction [ur the release of Client’s reporis and other
inferrrarar By Cerdicrl o 1 Ay third party, as reqiired in the serformance af 1he Bervice:

() eslablish zod maintam a beckup provedure [ the recosstruetion of Jost Data and of lust Soflwane;

&) restrict Cliend’s employess and agemts from interferimg with, ard from amy cnaotborized use of

Soltware and equiprmem which is owmed by ServieeCo, 0 ServiceCo's pomession, or unkler
Servicelo’s confral;

i cnaure the oecu-ocy, legibility, and comple.eness of all Dt supplied to ScrviceCo ond be respomsibie
tor te results ootamed from Chent™s use of any of the Sezrvices;

e proveide inforrmation ineddirian 1o thar specified i1 the Servies Schedu e as ServiesCo mey rensanahly
reguare [ruen e Lo dme G perlonn e Secvive,
h) provide roasorakle acecis to Client s computcs basdwars and saltware sinetly for the purposes of

comecting nd repairing any problems with ihe squipment, hardwzre and/or software a5 they relate o
this Agrocment;

m provide mformation, in addition o that specified in the Service Schedule, as RarviceCo may
reasonabby request Fom tme snobime related do the perbormanes o- the Services: and

J perfarm amy other activities & dofinad in the Se-vice Schedule

Tiata

All Prama supplicd by Cllem rclmed 1o the performance of a Serviee remalng Cliemrs exclusive properny. All
supplied Datamue. be onmedia compatible wich BervicelCo procescing scuipment and, where applicebla, inthe
format which ServiceCo, netifa reasonably, prescribes

Clent will mrange transpotation of Data aod reports tetwesn Cliwoat’s locaticn amd ServioeCo's processing
cemire Bt iEs EXpen s Clienr may v.]'rriFr in u.'riring an apent far the collection of Thata and TEpaTts Frinm
ServieeCu's lecation and S viceCo will use such secvice an Client"s behal [ All risk of less o diomage during:
transporation (save end cwecpt for sitnations where ScevicoCo is negligent or willfially reckless] wall remain
Client™s responsibiliy.

I Clacsr prowades Software for use by ServierCa in the stovision of Services, Uhient warrznts that:

Al {Cliemt has o ktained any neceszary permision, right and licence w ena®lz the Softuware m he mopied,
modified and run by Servicel o on squipment under szrviceCo’s contee] withowt infr ogiog any thind
nary right;

|1,1'| i ._pill.g l]w Suﬂwalz Lo Fuminish the ._':-u'.im. S-En-iuel.':,_- '.'\.-j'l i {:g‘. j|1_|‘:|'iru_gi_'|g_ (T TETE u_['a_u‘ Lh:n]
parties; and

&b e diselusur lu ServivelCo ur Lhe use by ServiceCo ol the Software will noat invalve abrezch of any

cimfidential ar controctual relationship.
Cliemt agrees 10 delend. indemnily and hodd harmless ServiceCo agrinst all keeses, demages, ensts, evpanees and
lakiliries, Incheding reasonahle bezal expenses, ineomed o orelation ba such claim arising from any breach of e
warraiies stated under {37 above.
all Taace, Soctwars. merhndodogy, saow-kow, ideas, rechniques, corcepts, information and proc=sses supplie
or develeped by SevieeCo i ths perfnasce of 8 Savice reusing ServiceCo's enclusi ve property.

Saltware
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In the performance of Services, citier party may provide Softwars to the other. Both patties cgroe o the
ollowing with respect to to2 handlmg of the ather's bottwars:

(£ rot oo madify the Saftwarzs, cxcept as permitted under ©ie terms of this Agrzement

by 1o copy the Software only s required for uss on a processon under the control of either party;

iy 12 nse the Sofrware orly s required for the applizable Service;

(uy Lo caniiog the use of the Sotbwars to the employvess or agents of either party woo require it faor the
Scrvices;

IE} 1 maintain and disalliow de remesval of any propricary or copyrizhl nodces; aod

it to returm the Soltware 1o the other pary prompily on the tenuination of the applicazle Ssovics

Soheduale and werrant in wrting thar all copies have heer revirmad and removad from cll compurars &
which they were installzd and that no Buather nse will be made of them.
Servoeda mry inspect any of Client's Sefteare requirad in the perfarmance of this Agresrent and which
regun s aciess Loosyslec contiol progiam imsectbons, systemn Lbrangs o other seouge dala 17 egsonzbly
rcquirad by Client from time @ time, Client may rapect any of ServiceCa’s Softwere ssed in reletion ta the
perivrmance of this Agresmenl.

Confidentality

Eacliol ihe pmarlies sgree:

12h 1o seep all Confidential Informaticn of the other party to which access is or has be=n gramed to o
chwined in srictest confidence and nol L dischose or permie doselosure of all or any porticn of suwih
Confidenteal Inforrnat.or to any persan, Simm, SCTpomation, usiness or sther entibv, excapt az otherwiss
cxpeesaly pormites by this Agrecrront or with the prine wrirer corscnr of the other pamy which
cansent may e wrreasona 2|y withbeld;

b} 1o zwereisc o degroe ef coare tn prosooting the eonfidentieliny of the Confidential Infermation of the
cler arky which is ol lest equivalenl W el which Ui pagly dses b sooted s veas Cundeo.al
[rFormation;

[ net e uss all ar any perion of the Conliential Infermaion o s other panty in any way whivh may
ke reasanably considered detrimentzl to the busincas cperations of the sther pasty:

iy net e rapraduce any Cenfidential Information of the other party withour the pricr written consam of

sichk rary which comsent meyy be nnreasone =1y withheld, sxcepd tooma e svailasle the Clansideneal
Information o soch &7 1= directors, n7ficzrs, employaes, azams and mbeorracsors who need mroratha
Conflidential LoFomomison b te pecdoomanee of B2vices o0 wlo Dave asgeed by e boaod by Le
1eres of this Section; and

(2 I provide meoess b e Conlideniia! ulvrozaticn ol e vl parly only o such ol e direeors,
afflzors, agonta end sehoamrzetors woik anced mouse the Coafldznca’ infarmarkon (r the perfermanc:
ol Barvices wid who ve aureed b by bovd By e erme ol his Seclion.

Horeithstanding aryth =2 w the contrary In thks Agrecment, SorwiceCa will vt be =cgulrzd e soep cotifideacial,

wnd sy ueG o liewise witlout restrivtion, ay idsas, coocspts, know-dwew o Lecluigues velated 10 iala at.on

processing wrich are developad by ServiceCe in the pesformance of Services.

Patents and Copyrighls

1Fa third party clams thet myy Softwere or o Seevies providod by cither party (the “T'rov.cing Party™) infringss a
palen . copynighil, tads seorel or otz mtellabaal propenty nigo, e Froviding Party will delend, noemmify
and hnld harmless the acher paety (he “IndenesSad M=y 2gainst 21l Insses, damazes, costs, =xpenses and
liahilines eolnding eeanneakla legs| avpenses, inesrrad in relition in soch clzim The Indommificd Pty wall
pronpdly ool e Froviduwg Paly of any such clenns and the Froveding Parly will have the righn in
consulation with the Indemnificd Paty. to defond ar settle sueh elaim. The: Tidermnifaed 178y may nod s=Hle or
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ucnprwnise iy clain, acticn ar=eeceding in respect ef which iLmay seeb indeciticaton without the prios
wrimen somsens of e Providing Pary

If suzk elaim tamess, the Praviding Pany my modily Qe Savice deliverzd by it or the pavments made oy it as
it deerntines nevessa v or pdvisable to addreas tae elpim, provided that any such modificatian will ned resuli in
anarer 2. deteriore=ion e Scrvicss or szourily shndanks,

Charges

Chergss for Servieele's Services woll be specified in the Services Suhedule. SereiceCu woll, after the first
annivzrsary of the 2ate of this Agresmsil, irease the ehargss specizd m the berviers Schedule by 2.0 perecm
ellective on the tirst dey of ach contract yeor during rhe Term
The scrvees 1 ke provided and the fees cueoled relle, Uie applice Dle comens legislmted, meanlatory veoircments
amd puidelings is of the Zate of the signme of this Agreerant, specified by the Fzceral and Cnraric Prowvingial
Liovestmcnt, The Ommrin Frargy Roard :nd the ndependent Eleclmaty Sysiemn Opesator. 1 there shonld be 3
material chamge 0 (e vegulalions o guidelines thetaffeers the raniec afthe services provided, the fees ladlise
adijnst=d accodinely Ffer agrezrment with the Cllent.
elient wi'l alen he respunsible o servicelo for is reasonable sxpenses assriEred with amy addf omal Sorvices
0 mzrzmental costs incomed by SeeviesCo in praviding e Servives vauses Dy Client’s Bilure to:

meowide seeurare Data inoa prescribed Boroat,

cerlsen any ol its ooligations wnd=r this Agrecrort: of
(eh ~epwide Dot ot the me regairad loe processing
where the Clignt b advissd nwriting of its filuse ro porform its nbligation: under this Agreament wod Tas
een ofver A Feasarable oppoeniunily W eorr2e aoy Jel ey

Divoicing and Fayment

L nless plherwise stated within 1e Service Schedola, ServiceCn may myeice el in advimws ity davs prior

ta 14 begrring of coct month for chacges fue the Services to be provided m that fortheaming wonth. Fmmer

ol invoiced amvounts will be doe on the Dme Date Acvncers remaining unmaid will beas imlersst e s Lae

Cite a0 amnasal raee thas iz the lesser ofs

fa)  therate of intorest set torh on the applicable invoice; and

(k) the ruz that i Hve pervenlage poos above De prime commercial amnual lending mre of imerest
designated by 22 Kaya' Hank nf Carada in erec in Canadz from dme 1z time for i maest credivwothy
cowmmpesein] Cliamms on Canadizn dullar loans

Ay ciher ansount peyakle under this & groement will hzar interes: an e e se. oul above,

Tawes
et willl sakc rimsy perement of uny Loves, Jdutias o geveneot levies csleted 10 s Acresment,
Warranty

Servicoa warrnnts that #t will nse recsonahla skill and eare in prosiding amy Sereove aod thal it owill, at its

ERPEbL

(a)  make commercinlly rensonahle anempes i correct 4y srrors forwhich ServiceUo o dueclly aed solelv
r:w-\_.:t'; l;r_v ner mu|ij|,3' e Servie, poovides that e 1 hatn mesce, suary in comect such oroes is avallokle
t2 ServiceCo;

(hy v ar fervizeCas oprion provoide @ cradil b Clieol equivalznt o the chargs that would have deen
applicabls far corresaing that port on of the Sorvice thet is in ermor, such ereditwil be oely for errors due
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sobely 1o malfination of a svscom or Saoware provided by Service(n ar amy crrer maode oy ServieeCe
=] WI:IIII,‘.I i the [RLET) fomnsince of the Euuiu;, ana

ZServiceCo provides hardwars. Sofrware or fimrware 25 pert of the Services, it will make conmersia
rensonzhie elfors wooblun assuramees Fon O vendors of such bardware and Sellwars thel su
harcware and 3obtware 12 capenls of srocessing date sensitive information.

Tix abrradn the rern Screce ar 112 eredit, Clizar st notify ServieeCn in writing of such errers within thin
days of rewwipt of the Data or repoirts believed to contain the emors,

F_:-n:{-cprn'g cxplu:'qﬂ_'.' =tated im thiz Section, Sorvicel s mokes no WAty ru:'l'a'u,'-'.nrl.1lir-r_ eonditinn or covenr
ol ury kind, exoress oo implied, ural or wiilien, stawciery or clherwise, incheading bul oo lmied oo, the impli
warransigs, representations, condifions or covenzts of mecchantable quality ar tiness fora '|.1:|..'t|n:|,:|i'.r prarpa
or warranies arising from a cowrse of dealing or uszge of rzde.

Service Co represents and warrants that the service leve. provoded bry it vindes this asieonieot slall e s goal
or superior 10 thase seevize lavils geeerally enjirved by ServiceCo’s ovwn eustorcrs and other wtilites ol
siciilar siee withion ie Frovimee of Cotano,

Indemnity

Clemt will indkermrify 522 hold ServicaCr harmless, i tha extert 71 Clien? iz resaonsible, @ zaing: o loss:
claiims, dd.u.'ldg,{‘:-. _ill.llg,u.'ltl'.T;, liabilities o EXPETSES {i.l-.':u:l.lg veadoaale Il:ﬁal Dees amd z.\pﬂ_ws_: resuliy
from action taken or wermiticd o be taken by ScrviceCo in poond fatk in reliance or insdre etions or ordi
rec ivisd from Cliert as 12 anything arising in cenmec:ion with ServieeCo’s performanze of its oblicarions uné
this Agreemen ServiceCo will be withoot lishility 10 Client with resoeot 10 anvthing done or caitted 1o
derz, in accordanca with the term: of thiz Agresment or rotructions proparly received pursuam 1ot
Agrzement, if done in good faith and with reasonazle skill znd cere and without willful or wanton misconds
sn ServieaCo's parl

Subjectte Section 14, ServiceCo will indewaify and bhold Clicist, ws efficers, diseclons, enplevess md srvig
hzrrlzes o e eaenn thar ServiceCo laresponsible, apaiva ary losses claims dama g judements, lasilit
wespanses (oelading remonalile legal fees and expensest resulling o acdon aben o permitbed o be ok
by Client i good faitls io eliance on instractions o orders peczved oo S2iviceUo s o any Ly, ansing
venneetivn witk Clienl's perfomunce ol i obligutions unde- this Agrecmem. Clicrt will be without lizhility
SeowiczUoowith respeci ta anyting dane o2 omittzd to be dane, in accordance with the terms ofthis darseme
o instuctions proper’y reecived parsuamt to this Azrzemens, if done in good feith and withoue neglizonee

wilbul or wies

on misconduct on Clent’s part.

ServiceCo agrees 10 indewmify and save Client, its officers, disecions, enp oyees aod senviands, hacomlaz Too
damages, svpenscs or losses an asenunt of the misuse, lozs, thefl or forgery of any documents or ath
Conficentzal Infurmetian,

Matlces

Ay potice ar demand fo be given by either party to the other imder this Agreement will =e i writing 2nd m
be delivered persanally, by facsimile or by firer class prepeid mal oo tha milvwing sddrasses:

1o Servieelo:

PUC SERVICES INC

Tod Uucen Streel basl

a0 Fow 4000

Eault Ste, [Varie, Ontatio

PaA 6l

Altecnivr Yove Frosident of Customer Services
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IF tov the Clienr ESFANOLA ROCICHAL LIYTIRT
DISTRIBUTION CORPORATION
SOE Secumd Avzooe
Fa4: rola, Ontario
P3E 1T
Arzator: Chaimman Pnard of Tiirzctors

[ poerzes delivered in person oo by Tacsimile will be etfective enthe date of seh Selvery r*" rices insusd by mi
will by wlisetive on the thind business day ) reving the daze tha the envelupe conlaivicg the moties s pas
marszd umlcas ~erwesr (e Lime o Cmailing and the time the notce is dezmed ffecsive there. & nintErTapinn
prstal seviee, in which case, the wocice will ned he effective umil zeroalky ressived. D lle event of a post
stribe ar Ltk notices: or el wder Oais Apreemert rrust b2 dziveezd personzily or by fresimila

141 Termumatian

(L I the svent of o mataral heeach, as defined erein, ol e Agoesoend Ly a party ithe "Tiefaoling Paemy 7, 1l
ather pucty (il *WoeDreeeling Py will have the right to give written notice t0 tha Defakting Party
remedy th2 Ereach within thirmy davs 3%~ the Sae ol sue noiae Cle "Nolee™]l The Cefmlting Tarty »
mrka all vaneanable @iors w ety e biezch o the satisfoeton of rhe Mon-Tefaolting Poty oo the eclic
pos siblz ¥t s Fan tie g Pty fails wo remedy he breazh specilied i Uiz Molws o e s2Ustaztion of 2
Bon-L = Barry within thirny days -ler Sedalz ol e St ce, hzn e Mon-Tiefalrg Pary willhave s
rphl o wmnineiz e Agieerent on giving 30 days natee oo the Defauing Poty. 17 he Delaulieg Pa
eoeriets the hreach to the saisferion of fe Mon-Defaalting Parly wilhin e s prescabel in the Xotice, o

mobice o ermninatisn o e Agreenwen: will e woid

[ 101 the evene that The Agrozment i torminaed inavsondame with Ta {0y oo e 1{40, than:

(a7 ServiceTo will caspoeare ATy with the Slient eond acl o gusd Gaill iowand the Clicat and cts cusbeme
i ucder wallow fon the amoeoth are orders transion ofthe Serviess to Clienn orims nomea. T addicis
Sepviee Lo will maks reasoreble el 1o eoncinnz 11e Services o the extan mubslly agieed de by t
partie: i mutilly sprved o prices, and

{21 Service Uo will votwrr o oo Client, tha Cler's Tatz znd supplizs.

7 Frve the purpesies of U s agreeusn aterial breach shall meluds wiingys limimton filure by Servieeln
peifzrm amy of its obligations sated i7 sector 4 07018 A 2 eement 10 the standards contaiee) Lara.
T I t70 Cliens dererrlaes o sell b businss amd dbe puchase: is pol poesacd 12 2oceps an assipnmens of th

Appgeoient or in the event of regulatory eharge whizk =rsulte o the Susparne of this Agreement. b Clis
shi ] =ove tha oprian oo emminate this S gaemen) qL antioee 2 one year on 6 deys priar W Ten naties:
S oeCo s wgmmi peyment of the fallewdng feaonts £3 liguidated Zamage::

o, Dupirgwesrs = andd 5 %0% nf 112 estimated arnual cost se. lonlh o e Serviees Seliedule,

b, Duming vemn 4 amd 5.723%¢ uf (1 estinated annual cost s=- Forth in the Serviers Sehoiitle.

14,2 Medration

1 the eves a disporz aslkeg eut of ar in commecsor with the Agzeanenl, vcluding 2 dispute 2 to vt
comsti.aies @ ke el breash for the purposes of Seetion |7 er in respret of any define Izanl relavinnsh
associzeed with or derivar from this Agreemert tbe pardes will klvw the sep-by-siep corection a
resclution provec. s set ol belxa:

Hoep L The sov-breaching pary wwill pivise rra ether party inwrivng ol the alkeped breadh,
S 2. The: nary @ lepedly in brecch will investigate s allegation and provice a writksn

die ollwt party within tvs busingss days of reeciving the nntier alleging hreach Ziven unc
&rap 1t tha elffect dal
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fa] the investization veveals tel e alleged ezl was . conanitad;
(ki the breeh haz recn ourcd: or
{5 e bresicaly renisdog aneured,
Slep 5. 1f 7ac pary alleging thz arzach
fan; is nul satisizd Lman the other party is not, or is no longer in breach; or
(ki wighes to pursue e dispose, then fhs party will immeciztely notity the other pa
In writing thar it wi=hes - escalare taz dispore 1o Sep 4
Sep 2, Ezschy pacty, will weiCoin tovw Business dieys aller ez p o[ s motive in Step 3, suami o
feellewing poole, or thedr delezmes. nwritten ropert o the facts of the dispute, amy relow:
pravvisions O fos Apresnend and amy other relevan: imfenmation:
Gervieeln - Yice-Uresidort Cusramer Soroees

Client: - Chairman, Boarc of THractars

Sep 5. If the parties referred toin Sep 4 canrot resslve the dispure through mediazion, the dis 2
may 22 cefeved o arbiwarien in accordzrce with the ebliratbon provision: of ol
Agoez e,
Arbivrativn

Exceot Jovaselicators for ) vretions or restraining orces, any dispules arigiog oul ol o0 o commec oo w
thi= .-'\5n-.-mrnr nr N respect |'I'-.H'I}' defines 'Irf_-' rekation 'l'hiF Assaciated therewith or derived therefo
i el gy Falone ol Ui prarties do r2an] ameesveol will be celarrad toand linglly raselyved ur delermine.
arbitration omder the Achitemtions Act (Ointaria] Tnoche ceent that <his Agroement bas boen termiented
seeordance with sectisn 16,1 aboyve und anubitrator under hisorsele determines thu o materiyl breach didr
= at, the arbitrater's (enzdichon shall be lrated to the exteas ar awvarding compensatom tor damipges result:
frrm the fdlore o give proper natica &7 EminETian

General

h'i”‘e‘l""\ﬂl‘l:. il b e it i i my Trii e vy 10l s nn_—.:-.:liw*. '|--.IiE_i'1i.-.'|-;.||nr|r1'r"'-'. .'-:,-:&rmmr doe
camses Dmavoind ol reasomeole sl WO conbol poowesded (hal il gea iy alleeled Dy sucls caase les wsed o
softiies oocas Al refsamablc offorts ta porfiorm its phligesinna and makes =casonah oo atbempts toonotify ©
wlher pucly in writing within Uve busings Jaws ol vabilie v Lulli] s obligaiion: aoder ois Agneame
Regzrdless of the foreacing. ServiesCo will eantive s w prerdde 810 Services deemed by Clicria be eritoal
Itz Ewsirzss, novwinths:zding any ewrike By or lzbour disputs with ServiceCo s persprrs

The Client and ServiceCo 2gree not to assizn or transfer this Agrezment or any of their respective rights
soligoions Lncer oy Agreement, sicboul the ooier wrillen consent of the o her party, which sech consent sk
107 b= unreascnabhy o abicrenly withield.

If citker pany bevomes insclvenl or badrapt wocin the meoning of e Samkripicy ane fResdvoncy -
'Uamade), the otner party may, wath wolics # wril:‘._:._ immediats v terminate this Agrzement

™ ehanges i the o= and conditions of this Agroemen: will be ofzotive unless specificd incn Amendmom
hie Agiesinzit signes by kot partias,

If p1y powrtion of thiz Aegreement i@ feund 9y o court of competent jorisdiaias o be invalid, egpal

avenfuryesibele, Wi, portion will e severed trom this Agreamment and will ot affact the validity, kgaln,

crforeoakilit: of the remaining presvisinns of this Agreament s the reraieder ofthe azraemes will enetle
it Tull foree sl elT=ut,

“ething enntacred herein and noonetions ke in aceardanze wirk reiz A greement sho! Lennarinme 2arleao,
any al s ollivers, digeclos, snp apess, or servass as eogloyezs o0 ke 2ot and the perties agres that 1
raare of Sendiceln’s relaticship with Tc Clier: is that of indepondent contractor.

Any waiver by oilner pany ofany bl galnon weder Uos Apeeeone: oost e ool sod wll 2wl be deaoed
woimsalule o warver o Wias oe aoy other provision Cadether or not similacs nor willl sech waives constitie
comrinogs waiver umless athorw s aapresly provided.
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i termination of this Agreement, all noervad oblizations or linailitizs and the presisions that b their an
intended to endure beyond such ermunetor will remam m elfec ncludiog withewl lmeiacen, oblipat
renlidenhality

Thix Agraemen: will be binding on 2nd enuse o the berefic af bodh parties snd their respective suceess:
permitted assigns

This Agrzement will be governed by the laws of the Previnee of Onrario and In the evern that the pan
rezuived to maks epplication o cours the parties agree to be subject to the jusisdiction of the courts
PFrovinee af Onmrio,

Eal pmirty woll exeguls wmd deliver sucl furilis and othsr agressmenis, docurneanis and imsinamenis and
fiirthics acts and things a2 arc within 3 power and 23 may be necesany or desi=anle 1o fitl ly mplesient an
out the imtent of this Acresment.

Avweplanvy

Buth puslies, by auilionieed siguiares Selow, sgree thilihos Agreement iz the complete agreemen: berw
zartca and roplaces all peier communicationg, agscoments and undesstandmgs r=leted to the subjecs m
this Agreement. There are no warrantiss, represeriations, condizions, covenanis or other agreamants hemy
partiss m connection with the subiect matler of this Agresmoznt excep! those specilically sel oul lisie
axec ion af Tris A greamem has not been induced by, aoe do = tker o %the parties rely onor regard 23 m
any jepesciations wol prchaded i 1his Agreement. No scpelemenl, modilicalion or waiver of this Apr
will he himding iinles Funciifed by e parfies

PUC b:lhl' CES M o

P _-th.,_ 43’%\.
MNaiiie: T‘E." fuy \.F 'Jiil 5_
ll:ﬂﬁ-l ||'I‘I. 'l-'.lr F'“.Hh.u A0
Pz | ey _{_ ?_C.; S
MNamer &&=

i‘:rrl' or; -
]

E [
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation(ERHDC)

EMPLOYEE DESCRIPTION

Number of employees (Full-time equivalents (FTE’'s):

2006

Board 2006 2007 2008

Approved Actual Bridge Test
Executive 0 0 0 0
Management 1 1 1 1
Non-Unionized 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5
Unionized 4 4 4 4
Number of employees (Part-time equivalents (PTE'Ss):

2006

Board 2006 2007 2008

Approved Actual Bridge Test
Executive 0 0 0 0
Management 0 0 0 0
Non-Unionized 0 0 0 0
Unionized 0 0 0 0

Compensation (Total Salary and Wages ($)):

Exhibit: 4

2006 2007 2008
Actual Bridge Test
Total Compensation 344,317 354,646 365,285
Compensation (Total Benefits ($)):
2006 2007 2008
Actual Bridge Test
Total Benefits 134,155 138,178 142,323
Compensation (Total Incentives ($)):
2006 2007
Actual Bridge 2008 Test
Executive 0 0 0
Management 0 0 0
Non-Unionized 0 0 0
Unionized 0 0 0
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation(ERHDC)

Total of Costs charged to O&M ($)):

2006 2007 2008
Actual Bridge Test
TOTAL 397,467 409,391 421,672

Status of pension funding

ERHDC and its employees contribute to Ontario Municipal Employee’s Retirement System (OMERS), a
defined benefit pension plan for employees. As ERHDC is only liable for the contributions, a defined
contribution plan accounting is used by ERHDC. ERHDC's contribution for employee’s current service for
the year ended December 31, 2006 was $18,815.
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Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation(ERHDC)

DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION AND DEPLETION

ERHDC has included continuity schedules for all fixed assets for the 2006 Actual, 2007 Bridge and
2008Test years in Exhibit 2.
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Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation(ERHDC)

LOSS ADJUSTMENT FACTOR CALCULATION

Exhibit: 4

2004 2005 2006 Total
A | “Wholesale" kWh (IESO) 68,766,596 | 68,878,486 | 66,220,789 | 203,865,871
B | Wholesale kWh for Large Use customer(s) (IESO) 0 0 0
C | Net "Wholesale" kWh (A)-(B) 68,766,596 | 68,878,486 | 66,220,789 | 203,865,871
D | Retail kwh (Distributor) 64,789,576 | 65,748,316 | 63,711,725 | 194,249,617
E | Retail kWh for Large Use Customer(s) (1% loss) 0 0 0
F | Net "Retail" kWh (D)-(E) 64,789,576 | 65,748,316 | 63,711,725 | 194,249,617
G | Loss Factor [(C)/(F)]
H | Distribution Loss Adjustment Factor 1.0614 1.0476 1.03938 1.0495
Supply Loss Factor 1.0045 0.0048
Distribution loss Adjustment Factor and Supply Loss Factor 1.0543

Total Utility Loss Adjustment Factor

LAF

Total Loss Factor

Distribution Loss Factors

Secondary Metered Customer

Total Loss Factor - Secondary Metered Customer < 5,000kW

1.0543

Total Loss Factor - Secondary Metered Customer > 5,000kW

n/a

Primary Metered Customer

Total Loss Factor - Primary Metered Customer < 5,000kW

1.0443

Total Loss Factor - Primary Metered Customer > 5,000kW

n/a
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation(ERHDC)

MATERIALITY ANALYSIS ON DISTRIBUTION LOSSES

ERHDC distribution loss factor decreased from 1.0724 in the May 2007 approved OEB rates to 1.0543 as
calculated in the schedule above. The decrease in the loss factor applied for in this application is 1.7%.
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation(ERHDC)

INCOME TAX, LARGE CORPORATON TAX AND ONTARIO CAPITAL TAXTABLE

ERHDC has no Income Tax payable due to loss carry forwards applied to the 2008 projected income.
ERHDC has no Large Corporate tax or Ontario Capital Tax payable.

ERHDC has a non-capital loss carry forward at the end of 2006 of $457,257.
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation(ERHDC)

2007 Bridge Year Taxable Income Projections
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation(ERHDC)

Exhibit: 4

Line Item T2S1 line| Total for Legal Non-Distribution Utility
# Entity Eliminations Amount
Income before PILs/Taxes A -3,059 0 -3,059
Additions:
Interest and penalties on taxes 103 0 0 0
Amortization of tangible assets 104 178,061 0 178,061
Amortization of intangible assets 106 0 0 0
Recapture of capital cost allowance from 107 0 0 0
Schedule 8
Gain on sale of eligible capital property
from Schedule 10 108 0 0 0
Income or loss for tax_ purposes- joint 109 0 0 0
ventures or partnerships
Lo_s_s in equity of subsidiaries and 110 0 0 0
affiliates
Loss on disposal of assets 111 0 0 0
Charitable donations 112 0 0 0
Taxable Capital Gains 113 0 0 0
Political Donations 114 0 0 0
Deferred and prepaid expenses 116 0 0 0
Scientific research expenditures
deducted on financial statements 118 0 0 0
Capitalized interest 119 0 0 0
Non-deductible club dues and fees 120 0 0 0
Non-deductible meals and entertainment 121 0 0 0
expense
Non-deductible automobile expenses 122 0 0 0
Non-deductible life insurance premiums 123 0 0 0
Non-deductible company pension plans 124 0 0 0
Tax reserves beginning of year 125 0 0 0
Reserves from financial statements- 126 0 0 0
balance at end of year
Soft cogts on co.ns.tructlon and 197 0 0 0
renovation of buildings
Book Ioss_ on joint ventures or 205 0 0 0
partnerships
Capital items expensed 206 0 0 0
Debt issue expense 208 0 0 0
Development expenses claimed in 212 0 0 0
current year
Financing fees deducted in books 216 0 0 0
Gain on settlement of debt 220 0 0 0
Non-deductible advertising 226 0 0 0
Non-deductible interest 227 0 0 0
;\(lazr;-deducnble legal and accounting 208 0 0 0
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Exhibit: 4

Recapture of SR&ED expenditures 231 0 0 0
Share issue expense 235 0 0 0
Write down of capital property 236 0 0 0
Amounts received in respect of
qualifying environment trust per 237 0 0 0
paragraphs 12(1)(z.1) and 12(1)(z.2)
Interest Expensed on Capital Leases 290 0 0 0
Realized Income from Deferred Credit 291 0 0 0
Accounts
Pensions 292 0 0 0
Non-deductible penalties 293 0 0 0
Debt Financing Expenses for Book 294 0 0 0
Purposes
Other Additions (see OtherAdditions 205 133,025 0 133,025
sheet)
Total Additions 311,086 0 311,086
Deductions:
Gain on disposal of assets per financial 401 0 0 0
statements
Dividends not taxable under section 83 402 0 0 0
Capital cost allowance from Schedule 8 403 187,913 0 187,913
Terminal loss from Schedule 8 404 0 0 0
Cumulative eligible capital deduction
from Schedule 10 405 0 0 0
Allowable business investment loss 406 0 0 0
Deferred and prepaid expenses 409 0 0 0
Scientific research expenses claimed in 211 0 0 0
year
Tax reserves end of year 413 0 0 0
Reserves from.ﬂn.anual statements - 414 0 0 0
balance at beginning of year
Contributions to deferred income plans 416 0 0 0
Book income of joint venture or 305 0 0 0
partnership
Eq_u_|ty in income from subsidiary or 306 0 0 0
affiliates
Interest capitalized for accounting
deducted for tax 390 0 0 0
Capital Lease Payments 391 0 0 0
Non-taxable |mputed interest income on 392 0 0 0
deferral and variance accounts
‘l:llr:?.\lll:\lllly\ FrCTCTOo TUIN TAA UTTUTT 393 0 0 0
Other Deductions (see OtherDeductions 304 128,033 0 128,033
sheet)
Total Deductions 315,946 0 315,946
Net Income for Tax Purposes -7,919 0 -7,919
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Charitable donations from Schedule 2 311 0 0
section 112 or 113, from Schedule 3 (item 320 0 0
Non-capital losses of preceding taxation 331 0 0
years from Schedule 7-1

Net-capital losses of preceding taxation 332 0 0
years from Schedule 7-1

Limited partnership losses of preceding 335 0 0
taxation years from Schedule 4

TAXABLE INCOME -7,919 -7,919
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation(ERHDC)

2008 Test Year Taxable Income Projections

41
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Line ltem T2S1 line| Total for Legal Non-Distribution Utility
# Entity Eliminations Amount
Income before PILs/Taxes A 112,088 0 112,088
Additions:
Interest and penalties on taxes 103 0 0 0
Amortization of tangible assets 104 179,455 0 179,455
Amortization of intangible assets 106 0 0 0
Recapture of capital cost allowance from 107 0 0 0
Schedule 8
Gain on sale of eligible capital property
from Schedule 10 108 0 0 0
Income or loss for tax_ purposes- joint 109 0 0 0
ventures or partnerships
Lo_s_s in equity of subsidiaries and 110 0 0 0
affiliates
Loss on disposal of assets 111 0 0 0
Charitable donations 112 0 0 0
Taxable Capital Gains 113 0 0 0
Political Donations 114 0 0 0
Deferred and prepaid expenses 116 0 0 0
Scientific research expenditures
deducted on financial statements 118 0 0 0
Capitalized interest 119 0 0 0
Non-deductible club dues and fees 120 0 0 0
Non-deductible meals and entertainment 121 0 0 0
expense
Non-deductible automobile expenses 122 0 0 0
Non-deductible life insurance premiums 123 0 0 0
Non-deductible company pension plans 124 0 0 0
Tax reserves beginning of year 125 0 0 0
Reserves from financial statements- 126 0 0 0
balance at end of year
Soft cogts on co_ns_truct|on and 127 0 0 0
renovation of buildings
Book Ioss. on joint ventures or 205 0 0 0
partnerships
Capital items expensed 206 0 0 0
Debt issue expense 208 0 0 0
Development expenses claimed in 212 0 0 0
current year
Financing fees deducted in books 216 0 0 0
Gain on settlement of debt 220 0 0 0
Non-deductible advertising 226 0 0 0
Non-deductible interest 227 0 0 0
][\é(;r;-deducnble legal and accounting 208 0 0 0
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Recapture of SR&ED expenditures 231 0 0 0
Share issue expense 235 0 0 0
Write down of capital property 236 0 0 0
Amounts received in respect of
qualifying environment trust per 237 0 0 0
paragraphs 12(1)(z.1) and 12(1)(z.2)
Interest Expensed on Capital Leases 290 0 0 0
Realized Income from Deferred Credit 291 0 0 0
Accounts
Pensions 292 0 0 0
Non-deductible penalties 293 0 0 0
Debt Financing Expenses for Book 294 0 0 0
Purposes
Other Additions (see OtherAdditions 205 132,375 0 132,375
sheet)
Total Additions 311,830 311,830
Deductions:
Gain on disposal of assets per financial 401 0 0 0
statements
Dividends not taxable under section 83 402 0 0 0
Capital cost allowance from Schedule 8 403 186,297 0 186,297
Terminal loss from Schedule 8 404 0 0 0
Cumulative eligible capital deduction
from Schedule 10 405 0 0 0
Allowable business investment loss 406 0 0 0
Deferred and prepaid expenses 409 0 0 0
Scientific research expenses claimed in 211 0 0 0
year
Tax reserves end of year 413 0 0 0
Reserves from.f|n.anC|aI statements - 414 0 0 0
balance at beginning of year
Contributions to deferred income plans 416 0 0 0
Book income of joint venture or 305 0 0 0
partnership
Eq_u_|ty in income from subsidiary or 306 0 0 0
affiliates
Interest capitalized for accounting
deducted for tax 390 0 0 0
Capital Lease Payments 391 0 0 0
Non-taxable |mputed interest income on 392 0 0 0
deferral and variance accounts
‘l:llr:?.\lll:\lllly\ rCCTo TUlI TAA UTTUCTT 393 0 0 O
Other Deductions (see OtherDeductions 3094 127,383 0 127,383
sheet)
Total Deductions 313,680 0 313,680
Net Income for Tax Purposes 110,238 0 110,238
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Charitable donations from Schedule 2 311 0 0
section 112 or 113, from Schedule 3 (item 320 0 0
Non-capital losses of preceding taxation 331 110,238 110,238
years from Schedule 7-1

Net-capital losses of preceding taxation 332 0 0
years from Schedule 7-1

Limited partnership losses of preceding 335 0 0
taxation years from Schedule 4

TAXABLE INCOME 0 0
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation(ERHDC)

INTEREST EXPENSE

The following table represents the Interest expense for ERHDC.

Exhibit: 4

2006 Board 2006 Actual 2007 Bridge 2008 Test
Approved
Interest on Debt 163,074 164,324 84,625 84,625
to Associated
Companies
Other Interest 10,604 81,647 48,400 36,210
Capitalized 0 0 0 0
Interest
Total Interest 173,678 245,971 133,025 120,835
Deemed Interest 84,633 84,633
Excess Interest 48,392 36,202
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

CAPITAL COST ALLOWANCE

1/2 Year Rule

Class Class Description UCC Opening Additions Dispositions uce Before L2 {1/2 Additions Reduced UCC | Rate % CCA UCC Ending Balance
Balance Adjustment .
Less Disposals}
Distribution System - 1988 o
1 110 22-Feb-2005 1,985,647 0 0 1,985,647 0 1,985,647 | 4% 79,426 1,906,221
Distribution System - pre o
2 1088 0 0 0 0 0 0 6% 0 0
8 General Office/Stores Equip 66,438 1,000 0 67,438 500 66,938 20% 13,388 54,050
10 |Computer Hardware/ 57,560 0 0 57,560 0 57,560 | 30% 17,268 40,292
Vehicles
10.1 |Certain Automobiles 0 0 0 0 0 0 30% 0 0
12 |Computer Software 0 0 0 0 0 0| 100% 0 0
131 |Lease#1 0 0 0 0 0 0 43,240 0
132 |Lease #2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
133 |Lease#3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
134 |Lease#4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
14 |Franchise 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

New Electrical Generating
17 |Equipment Acq'd after Feb 0 0 0 0 0 0 8% 0 0
27/00 Other Than Bldgs

Certain Energy-Efficient
43.1 |Electrical Generating 0 0 0 0 0 o 30% 0 0
Equipment

Computers & Systems
45 |Software acq'd post Mar 8,753 0 0 8,753 0 8,753 45% 3,939 4,814
22/04

Data Network Infrastructure
46 |Equipment (acq'd post Mar 0 0 0 0 0 0 30% 0 0
22/04)

Distribution System - post

47 22-Feb-2005 261,267 203,399 0 464,666 101,700 362,967 8% 29,037 435,629
98 |[No CCA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 2,379,664 204,399 0 2,584,063 102,200 2,481,863 186,297 2,441,005
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Exhibit 5

5 — Deferral and Variance Accounts
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Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

EXISTING DEFERRAL AND VARIANCE ACCOUNTS

COMMODITY ACCOUNTS ARE CLASSIFIED AS FOLLOWS:

1588
1589

Retail Settlement Variance Account — Power
RSVA Power, Sub-account Global Adjustments

NON-COMMODITY ACCOUNTS ARE CLASSIFIED IN TWO CATEGORIES AS FOLLOWS:

Wholesale and Retail Market Variance Accounts

1518
1548
1580
1582
1584

1586

1588
1588

Retail Cost Variance Account — Retall

Retail Cost Variance Account — STR

Retail Settlement Variance Account - Wholesale Market Service Charges
Retail Settlement Variance Account - One-time Wholesale Market Service
Retail Settlement Variance Account - Retail Transmission Network
Charges

Retail Settlement Variance Account - Retail Transmission Connection
Charges

Retail Settlement Variance Account - Power

Retail Settlement Variance Account - Power Sub-Account Global

Utility Deferral Accounts

1508
1508
1508
1525
1550
1555
1555

1565
1562

Other Regulatory Assets

Other Regulatory Assets - Sub-account OEB Cost Assessments
Other Regulatory Assets - Sub-account Pension Contributions
Miscellaneous Deferred Debits

LV Variance

Smart Meter Capital and Recovery Offset Variance

Smart Meter Capital and recover Offset Variance — Sub-Account
Stranded Meter Costs

Smart Meter OM&A Variance

Deferred Payments in Lieu of Taxes
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Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

1563 PILs contra account

1565 Conservation and Demand Management Expenditures and Recoveries
1566 CDM Contra

1572 Extraordinary Event Losses

1574 Deferred Rate Impact Amounts

1590 Recovery of Regulatory Asset Balances

1592 PLS & Tax Variance

2425 Other Deferred Credits

Closed Accounts not classified are as follows:
1570 Qualifying Transition Costs (closed December 31, 2002)

1571 Pre-Market Opening Energy Variances (closed April 30, 2002)
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Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

CALCULATION OF BALANCES BY ACCOUNT

Opening Balance

Carrying Costs

Ending Balance

Dec. 31, 2006 April 30, 2008
Commodity accounts are classified as follows:
1588 Retail Settlement Variance Account - Power 233,910 14,255 248,165
Non-commodity accounts are classified in two categories as follows:
Wholesale and Retail Market Variance Accounts
1580 Retail Settlement Variance Account - Wholesale Market Service Charges (6,845) (1,441) (8,286)
1584 Retail Settlement Variance Account - Retail Transmission Network Charges | (60,163) (3,280) (63,443)
1586 Retail Transmission Connection Charge (20,496) 746 (19,750)
Utility Deferral Accounts
1508 Other Regulatory Assets 53,081 3,084 56,165
1525 Miscellaneous Deferred Debits 1,671 91 1,762
1550 LV Variance 59,077 3,604 62,681
Closed Accounts not classified are as follows:
1570 Qualifying Transition Costs (closed December 31, 2002) 4,625 0 4,625
TOTAL 264,860 17,059 281,919

ERHDC proposes to dispose of the December 31, 2006 balance of $264,860 over a two

year period May 1, 2008 to April 30, 2010.

ERHDC proposes to clear the residual balance in account 1590 of ($31,700) as of April

30, 2008.
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Ending Balance

Allocation

GS>50

Sentinel

Street

Dec.31, 2006 Basis Residential GS<S0KW KW USL | [ighting | Lighting Total
1588 Retail Settlement Variance
Account — Power 233,910 KWh 122,183 54,541 54,471 464 103 2,148 233,910
1580 Retail Settlement Variance
éﬁ;‘r’;gg Wholesale Market Service (6,845) KWh (3,575) (1,596) (1,594) | (14) ®) 63) (6,845)
1584 Retail Settlement Variance
A t - Retail T issi
Nomork Chgrg'es ransmisston (60,163) KWh (31,426) (14,028) | (14,010) | (119) (26) (553) (60,162)
1586 Retail Transmission Connection
Charge (20,496) KWh (10,706) (4,779) (4,773) (41) 9) (188) (20,496)
1508 Other Regulatory Assets 53,081 Dx revenue 33,408 15,411 3,733 107 34 388 53,081

) ) # Customers
1525 Miscellaneous Deferred Debits 1,671 w/Rebate 1,450 291 1,671
Cheques
1550 LV Variance 59,076 KWh 30,858 13,775 13,757 117 26 543 59,076
1570 Qualifying Transition Costs # of
(closed December 31, 2002) 4,625 3,943 603 22 15 38 3 4,625
Customers
Total 146,135 64,147 51,606 530 162 2,278 264,860
Clear Residual 1590 Balances (22,410) (4,968) (4,082) (42) (137) (61) (31,700)
Total 123,725 59,180 47,524 487 24 2217 233,159
Per year 61,863 29,590 23,762 244 12 1,109 116,580
Total Year Consumption 33,090,578 14,771,227 | 37,580 | 125,709 77 1,446
P KWh KWh KW KWh KW KW

2008 Rate Rider $0.0019 $0.0020 $0.6323 | $0.0019 | $0.1591 $0.7666
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

METHOD OF RECOVERY

An appropriate allocator (e.g. number of customer, kW’s, kWh’s) is assigned to each variance/deferral account (“Account”). The actual
Account balance as at December 31, 2006 is then apportioned to each customer class based on Test Year volume projections for the allocator.
Example: if kWh’s are assigned as the allocator for an account, and the Load Forecast for the Test Year indicates that 30% of kWh’s will be
consumed by the Residential customer class, then 30% of the Account balance is allocated to the Residential class.

The projected residual balance in account 1590 as at April 30, 2008 is allocated to each customer class based on the recoveries projected in
the Bridge Year for that class, from the date the current rate rider came into effect. Example: if current rate riders came into effect on May 1,
2007 and based on these rates, the Residential customer class is expected to account for 20% of all recoveries from May 1 to December 31,
2007, then 20% of the projected residual balance in account 1590 is allocated to the Residential class.

For each customer class, the sum of allocated balances over all Accounts selected for disposition is calculated. Example: if two Accounts are
selected for disposition and the amounts allocated to the Residential customer class were $50,000 for Account #1 and $30,000 for Account
#2, then the sum of allocated balances for the Residential class would be $80,000.

For each customer class, the sum of allocated balances is divided by two to derive the annual recovery amount needed to clear the balances
over two years. Example: if the sum of allocated balances for the Residential class is $80,000, the annual recovery amount to clear the
balances over two years would be $40,000.

For each customer class, the rate rider is calculated as the annual recovery amount divided by the Test Year forecast for the distribution rate
volume metric, with the result rounded to the nearest one-hundredth of a cent,. Example: if the distribution rate volume metric for the
Residential customer class is kwh’s, and 100,000,000 kWh’s are forecast for the Residential class in the Test Year, then the rate rider for the
Residential class would be $0.0004 (=$40,000 divided by 100,000,000).
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

OVERVIEW

The purpose of this evidence is to summarize the method and cost of financing
ERHDC's capital requirements for the 2008 test year.

Capital Structure

ERHDC has a deemed capital structure of 50% debt, 50%, equity as approved by the
Ontario Energy Board in RP-2005-0020, and a return on equity of 9.00%, consistent with
the return specified in the Board’s Decision in EB-2005-0362, dated October 18, 2006.
ERHDC is requesting Board approval of a capital structure of 53% debt, 47% equity.

The change in the capital structure complies with the Ontario Energy Board’s Report on
Cost of Capital and 2™ Generation Incentive Regulation for Ontario’s electricity
Distributors dated December 20, 2006. The OEB report indicates that Distributors will be
required to phase-in a 60% debt and 40% capital structure that must be completed by
2010.

Cost of Debt
Exhibit 6 provides the detailed calculation of ERHDC's forecasted long-term debt costs.

Return on Equity
ERHDC is requesting an 8.69% return on equity for the 2008 rates.




Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

2006 Board Approved

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Exhibit: 6

Elements Capital Structure

%) g/co;ual (Do/i)emed g/g)st Rate Return (%)
Long-term debt 3,261,000 | 106.00 50.00 5.00 2.50
Common equity (186,000) | (6.00) 50.00 9.00 4.50
Total 3,075,000 | 100.00 100.00
2006 Actual
Elements Capital Structure

%) ,(A(\J/(;)tual (I?J/tz)emed (Co/co))st Rate Return (%)
Long-term debt 3,450,803 | 109.00 50.00 5.00 2.50
Common equity (297,817) | (9.00) 50.00 9.00 4.50
Total 3,152,986 | 100.00 100.00
2007 Bridge
Elements Capital Structure

$) ,(6(\)/00;(ual (Doz)emed g/(;)st Rate Return (%)
Long-term debt 1,473,979 | 51.91 50.00 5.00 2.50
Common equity 1,365,916 | 48.09 50.00 9.00 4,50
Total 2,839,895 | 100.00 100.00
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2008 Test
Elements Capital Structure

%) g/co;ual (Do/i)emed g/g)st Rate Return (%)
Long-term debt 1,473,979 | 54.77 49.33 5.82 2.87
Common equity 1,217,114 | 45.23 46.67 8.69 4.06
Short-term debt 4.00 4.77 0.19
Total 2,691,093 | 100.00 100.00

ERHDC intends to reduce the long-term debt that is held by the municipal corporation
shareholder to move the actual capital structure closer to the deemed capital structure of
60% debt and 40% equity to be in effect by 2010. The reduction of the long-term debt is
being negotiated with the municipal shareholder at a rate of 5.82%.




Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

COST OF DEBT
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2006 Board Approved 2006 Actual 2007 Bridge 2008 Test
Carrying | Calculated Carrying | Calculated Carrying | Calculated Carrying | Calculated
Principle | Costs Cost Rate Principle | Costs Cost Rate Principle | Costs Cost Rate Principle | Costs Cost Rate
Long-Term Debt
Town of Espanola 2,542,883 5.0% 2,680,649 5.0% 1,134,964 5.82% 1,134,964 5.82%
Twp. Sables-Spanish River | 718,591 5.0% 770,154 5.0% 339,015 5.82% 339,015 5.82%
Total | 3,261,474 3,450,803 1,473,979 1,473,979
Short-Term Debt
Prime-2%
Customer Deposits 261,390 200,732 Prime-2% 200,000 Prime-2% 200,000 Prime-2%
Total | 261,390 200,732 200,000 200,000
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RETURN ON EQUITY

The calculations used to determine the return on equity and the debt are taken from
the “Report to the Board on Cost of Capital and 2™ Generation Incentive Regulation
for Ontario’s Electricity Distributors” issued December 20, 2006.

Excerpt from the Report of the Board on Cost of Capital and 2nd Generation Incentive
Regulation for Ontario’s Electricity Distributors Appendix A and Appendix B

Method to Update the Deemed Long-term Debt Rate

The Board will use the Long Canada Bond Forecast plus an average spread with
“A/BBB” rated corporate bond yields to determine the updated deemed debt rate.

The following approach is consistent with the ROE method. As per the approach
adopted in the 2006 EDRH, the ROE and the long-term debt rates are based on the
same risk-free rate forecast. Therefore, they differ only through the risk premiums that
reflect their distinct natures and for which lenders/investors seek commensurate returns.
This approach simplifies the calculations and aims to make it easier to understand the
numbers. Specifically, the Long Canada Bond Forecast (LCBFt) used will be the same
as that used for updating the ROE. The average spread between “A/BBB” rated
corporate bond yields and 30-year (long) Government of Canada Bond yields will be
calculated as the average spread over the weeks of the month corresponding to the
Consensus Forecasts.

The deemed Long-Term Debt Rate (LTDRt) will be calculated as follows:

> (CorpBonds ,,,—3,CB,,,)
LTIDR, = LCBF, + -~

I

Where:
o CorpBonds w, is the average long-term corporate bond yield from Scotia Capital
Inc. for week w of period t [Series V121761];

o 30CBw tis the 30-year (long) Government of Canada bond yield for week w of period
t [Series V121791]; and

e n is the number of weeks in the month for which data are reported.
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Method to Update ROE - ROE Update for any Period

Using March 1999 as the starting calculation and substituting for the initial ROE and
Long Canada Bond Forecast approved by the Board in the Decision RP-1998-0001 the
following is the adjustment formula for calculating the ROE at time t:

ROE, =9.35% +0.75x(LCBF, —5.50%)

The ROE must be set in advance of the approved rates. The final ROE will be factored
into rates using the Long Canada Bond Forecast based on Consensus Forecasts (as
detailed below) and Bank of Canada data three months in advance of the effective date
for the rate change. Therefore, for May 1 rate changes, the ROE will be based on
January data — effectively Consensus Forecasts published during that month and Bank
of Canada data for all business days during the month of January. The necessary data is
available within the first or second business days after the end of the month and thus
poses no delay for determining rates.

Long Canada Bond Forecast for any Period

For any period t the Long Canada Bond Forecast LCBFt can be expressed as:
Z (3CB;,—,,CB,,)
4 i

2 ' 1

[CBF = _ 10 CBFs.r _mCBFl:..v _.

Where:
10CB3,T is the 3-month forecast of the 10-year Government of Canada bond yield as
published in Consensus Forecasts at time t;

10CB12t is the 12-month forecast of the 10-year Government of Canada bond yield
as published in Consensus Forecasts at time t;

30CBit is the actual rate for the 30-year Government of Canada bond yield at the
close of day i (as published by the Bank of Canada) [Series V39056] during the
month (this is the previous month data, the same as used for updating the ROE for
natural gas distribution) corresponding to time t;

10CBi t is the actual rate for the 10-year Government of Canada bond yield at the
close of day i (as published by the Bank of Canada) [Series V39055] during the
month corresponding to time t; and

It is the number of business days for which published 10- and 30- Government of
Canada bond yields are published during the month corresponding to time t.
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Return on Equity

Exhibit: 6

Government of Canada Bond Yields Rate

3-month forecast of the 10-year bond yield 4.60%
12-month forecast of the 10-year bond yield 4.80%
Average actual prior month 30-year bond yield | 4.04%
Average actual prior month 10-year bond yield | 4.12%
Long Canada Bond Forecast 4.62%
Return on Equity 8.69%

Return on Capital

Deemed Portion

Effective Rate

Long-Term Debt 49.33% 5.82%
Short-term Debt 4.00% 4.77%
Return on Equity | 46.67% 8.69%
Regulated Rate of | 100.00% 7.12%

Return
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DETERMINATION OF NET UTILITY INCOME AND CALCULATION OF REVENUE

DEFICIENCY

2008 Test at 2007
Existing Rates

Revenue

Distribution Revenue 1,064,527
Other Operating Revenue (Net) 156,075
Total Revenue 1,220,602
Costs and Expenses

Distribution Costs

Operation & Maintenance 964,229
Depreciation & Amortization 179,455
Property & Capital Taxes 0

Interest 120,835
Total Costs and Expenses 1,264,519
Utility loss Before Income Taxes 43,917
Income Taxes 0

Utility loss 43,917
Utility proposed rate base 2,763,963
Required Return @7.12% 196,720
Required Return 196,720
Utility loss 43,917
Revenue Deficiency 240,637
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COST ALLOCATION OVERVIEW

MANAGER’S SUMMARY
March 31, 2007

COST ALLOCATION FILE NO: EB-2007-0003
EDR 2006 FILE NO: EB-2005-0362

1. Introduction

On September 29, 2006 the Ontario Energy Board (the "OEB") issued the Board
Directions on Cost Allocation Methodology for Electricity Distributors (“the Directions”).
On November 15, 2006 the OEB also issued the Cost Allocation Information Filing
Guidelines for Electricity Distributors (“the Guidelines”), the Cost Allocation Model (“the
Model”) and User Instruction (“the Instructions”) for the Model. ERHDC has prepared this
information filing consistent with ERHDC's understanding of the Directions, the
Guidelines, the Model and the Instructions.

The main purpose of this cost allocation filing is to provide evidence to show the ERHDC
rate classifications that are being subsidized by other classes and those rate
classifications that are over contributing based on the assumptions of the Model.

In the mid 1980's, Ontario Hydro, the regulator at the time, completed the last cost
allocation study that reflected the distribution function but this was an integrated cost
study. An integrated study reviewed the full costs of providing electricity to customers
which included energy, transmission and distribution. Distribution represented only
around 15% of the total costs reviewed. The results of this study assisted Ontario Hydro
in developing the Rate Setting Guidelines that were used by Municipal Electric Utilities to
develop the bundled rates they charged customers up until around 2000.

Under the Energy Competition Act, 1998, the electricity industry in Ontario was
separated into Generation, Transmission and Distribution companies. Along with this
separation the rates also needed to be unbundled to reflect the structure of the new
companies. The unbundling of distribution from generation and transmission was
completed in the 2000 to 2001 timeframe using the Electricity Distribution Rate
Handbook Rate and the Rate Unbundling and Design Model (i.e. the RUD model). The
Rate Handbook and RUD model provided a method to unbundle distribution rates from
the other rates by rate classification but it did not determine whether the unbundled rates
collected the cost of providing service to the rate classification. The current cost
allocation process is the first time a cost allocation study has been conducted in Ontario
that focuses completely on distribution to determine whether or not the distribution rates
are collecting the cost of providing service to the rate classifications.
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In accordance with the Directions, ERHDC expects the OEB will give significant weight
to the results of these filings when deciding upon specific cost allocation matters in
future rate hearings. ERHDC understands that after reviewing the results of the cost
allocation filings from all distributors, and considering the overall regulatory context
including results from the forthcoming distribution rate design consultations, the OEB will
decide upon the priorities for, and timing of, any adjustments to future cost allocations,
rate classifications or rate design. ERHDC also understands the information in this filing
will be made public.

ERHDC is in the 3rd tranche of filers, due by March 31, 2007. This filing comprises a
Run 1 and a Run 2. An optional Run 3 was not conducted. For ERHDC, Run 1 reflects
the rate classifications as they were prior to May 1, 2006. Prior to May 1, the Unmetered
Scattered Load (“USL”") customers were included in the General Service < 50kW rate
classification. Run 2 has the USL customers pulled out of the General Service < 50kW
rate classification to form a class of their own which is consistent with the current rate
classifications used by ERHDC.

In order to prepare the cost allocation filing, ERHDC used the services of Hydro One to
prepare load data profiles by rate classification. ERHDC was determined to be
compatible with PUC Distribution Inc. and utilized their Appliance Saturation Survey
results. The results of the survey were used by Hydro One to prepare the load data
profiles for ERHDC.

The cost/financial data used in the Model is consistent with the cost data that supports
the current approved distribution rates for ERHDC. A reclassification was done on the
trial balance to properly reflect the amortization expense of organization costs and
capital/non-capital transition costs recorded in accounts 5705 ($29,325) and 5710
($21,864) to account 5740 (Amortization of deferred charges) to be in accordance with
the Uniform System of Accounts. The breakout of assets, capital contributions,
depreciation, accumulated depreciation, customer data and load data by primary, line
transformer and secondary categories were developed from the best data available from
ERHDC's customer and financial information systems. In accordance with the OEB
guidelines ERHDC determined the unit costs of installing primary and secondary assets
and then applied the kilometers of line to primary and secondary assets to these unit
costs. The result from each type of asset was divided by the total of all assets and this
percentage used to determine costs by asset type.

2. Summary of Results

2.1 Revenue to Cost Ratios

The results of a cost allocation are typically presented in the form of revenue to cost
ratios. The ratio is shown by rate classification and is the percentage of distribution
revenue collected by rate classification compared to the costs allocated to the
classification. The percentage shows the rate classifications that are being subsidized
and those that are over contributing. A percentage of less than 100% means the rate
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classification is under collecting and is being subsidized by other classes. A percentage
of greater than 100% indicates the rate classification is over collecting the cost assigned
to the classification and is subsidizing other classes.

The following outlines the revenue to cost ratios for the Run 2. The results for Run 1 are
similar. In Run 1, the USL rate classification is combined with the General Service <50
kW rate classification. As a result, the cost to revenue ratio in Run 1 for General Service
<50 kW customer is 113.42% an there is no ratio for USL.

Revenue to Cost | ($Being Subsidized)/

Rate Classification Ratio $Over Contributing
Residential 108.87% 64,930

General Service <50 kW | 112.93% 36,104

General Service >50 kW | 56.97% (49,148)

Street Lights 15.91% (50,541)

Sentinel Lights 31.82% (1,095)

USL 92.30% (250)

With regards to Street Lights and Sentinel Lights, it is assumed in the cost allocation
study that a street light or sentinel light connection is equivalent to a customer. This
appeared to be reasonable because in the case of other rate classifications each
connection is essentially a customer. This means the customer costs allocated to street
lights and sentinel lights are based on 1,016 and 27 connections, respectively which is
the biggest driver that is causing the results for these two classes.

The question is: should streetlights, in particular, be allocated costs based on the
number of connections or customers? There are arguments for both sides. On one hand,
it could be argued that it should be connections because it would be consistent with the
other rate classifications. On the other hand, it could be justified that a streetlight is like
any other appliance or outside light on a home. It just happens to be outside on the
street. In this case, a streetlight would be incremental load much like a stove or
refrigerator and it would attract very little customer costs if any at all. The only customer
costs it might attract would be the cost of sending a bill to the customer.

ERHDC understands that a very low revenue to cost ratio for street lights has occurred
with other distributors. In ERHDC's view, this is a provincial issue that needs to be
discussed with the OEB and other market participants. As a result, changes should not
be made to streetlight or sentinel light pricing until this issue has been resolved.

2.2 Monthly Fixed Charge Comparison

The Model produces customer unit costs per month for each rate classification. To assist
with reviewing the range of current fixed monthly service charges, the Model generates
three scenarios of reasonable cost-based customer unit costs for each rate
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classification. These unit costs are determined by the Model and compared to the
current approved monthly service charge.

Scenario 1: Avoided Costs

With a strict “avoided cost” approach, only meter related costs, billing and collection
costs are included. This approach has the advantage of focusing on the immediate costs
of an additional customer. But no administration and general overhead are applied.

Scenario 2: Directly Related Customer Costs

The directly related customer costs are those cost included in the avoided cost version
but an allocation of administration and general overhead is included.

Scenario 3: Minimum System Approach

The minimum system approach assumes that a minimum-size distribution system can
be built to serve the minimum load requirements of the customer. For the purposes of
this filing the minimum load requirement is assumed to be 400 watts per customer. The
minimum system method involves determining the minimum size pole, conductor, cable,
transformer, and service that is currently installed by the distributor. Once determined for
each plant account, the minimum size distribution system is classified as customer-
related costs and then used to define the monthly unit customer cost.

There are various approaches to define the minimum system. Moreover, judgment is
required to address various implementation details with this methodology. The OEB cost
allocation project did not seek to develop a common minimum system methodology for
use by the Ontario electricity distribution sector. Instead, the results of humerous past
Ontario minimum system studies were examined and approved for use in the Model.

The minimum system results are applied to the following accounts:
e Line Transformers (Account 1850)
e “Distribution” which includes poles and conductors, and is defined as Accounts
1830 -1845
e Related O&M accounts.

The density of the distributor (i.e. customers/route kilometer of line) is the major factor
that determines the percentage of the above costs which are included in the customer
costs. The density of ERHDC is 33 customers/km. This means ERHDC is classified as
a medium density urban distributor. As a result, 40% of ERHDC'’s distribution costs (i.e.
lines and poles) and 40% of ERHDC'’s line transformers are defined to be customer
related cost.

The monthly customer unit cost under the minimum system approach includes the
directly related customer costs plus 40% of distribution costs and 40% of line
transformers along with any administration and general overhead associated with
distribution and line transformers. In ERHDC's view, of the three scenarios, the minimum
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system approach appears to be the most reasonable approach to determine the
customer unit costs per month as it better reflects the fixed costs of providing service to
a customer.

The following outlines the monthly fixed cost comparison.

Approved | Minimum Directly
Rate Classification Fixed System Fixed | Related Avoided Cost
Charge Charge Fixed Charge | Fixed Charge
Residential 10.30 9.23 7.12 4.84
General Service <50 kW | 13.07 18.17 18.02 12.85
General Service >50 kW | 122.27 53.15 61.71 44.16
Street Lights 0.41 4.73 0.01 0.00
Sentinel Lights 0.45 4.74 0.02 0.01
USL 6.41 10.99 10.89 7.30

Although the above results suggest the monthly fixed charge should be reduced for the
General Service > 50 kW rate classification this is a reasonable outcome. Under the
three scenarios provided by the Model, the main cost drivers that produce a difference in
the monthly unit customer cost is the difference in cost between rate classifications for
meters, meter reading, billing and collecting. In other words, it would be hard to justify a
monthly fixed charge that is ten times higher for General Service > 50 kW customer
compared to a General Service < 50 kW customer, when the only significant difference
between the two rate classifications is the cost to install and maintain meters, read the
meter, send out a bill and collect the bill.

2.3 Transformer Ownership Allowance

Currently, ERHDC provides a transformer ownership allowance to those customers that
own their transformation facilities. ERHDC'’s present transformer ownership allowance is
$0.60 per KW and this same charge is applied consistently across the province. The
amount of the allowance has not been reviewed on a generic basis in recent years. The
filings will be used by the OEB to review this allowance from a cost based perspective.

The present allowance is intended to reflect the costs to a distributor of providing step
down transformation facilities to the customer’s utilization voltage level. Since it is
assumed that the distributor provides electricity at utilization voltage, the cost of this
transformation is captured in and recovered through the distribution rates. Therefore,
when a customer provides the step down transformation from primary to secondary, it
should receive a credit of these costs already included in the distribution rates.

In ERHDC'’s case, the customers that currently receive a transformer ownership
allowance are all in the General Service > 50 kW rate classification. The Model is
suggesting the allowance for these customers should be $0.5728 per kW. In ERHDC's
view, this amount appears to be reasonable but suggest the OEB review this issue on a
provincial basis before the current transformer ownership allowance is adjusted.
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3.0 Conclusion

In accordance with the directions, ERHDC expects the OEB will give significant weight to
the results of these filings when deciding upon specific cost allocation matters in future
rate hearings. ERHDC understands that after reviewing the results of the cost allocation
filings from all distributors, and considering the overall regulatory context including
results from the forthcoming distribution rate design consultations, the OEB will decide
upon the priorities for, and timing of, any adjustments to future cost allocations, rate
classifications or rate design. ERHDC also understands the information in this filing will
be made public.
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PROPOSED CHANGES

In reviewing the results produced by the Cost Allocation Model, ERHDC proposes the
following revenue to cost ratios, base revenue requirement % allocation and monthly
fixed charges. The proposed changes are the first step in bringing the cost ratios within
the bands as proposed by the Board.

The main change is in the GS>50 class. The existing revenue to expense ratio as
determined in the cost allocation study is well below the Board’'s proposed acceptable
ratio. ERHDC requested, in 2005, that it be allowed to adjust its GS>50 that it believed
were incorrectly set when the rates were unbundled. At the time of the request, the
Board found that they could not determine from the evidence whether the rates resulted
in a net deficiency or sufficiency from a revenue requirement perspective but
encouraged ERHDC to bring a fresh application to the Board which provided better
rationale for the request. ERHDC submits that the results of the cost allocation study
provide evidence justifying the proposed change.

Rate Classification | Existing Ratio Proposed Ratio
Residential 109% 102%

GS<50 113% 109%

GS>50 57% 100%

Street Light 16% 29%

Sentinel Light 32% 47%
Unmetered 92% 92%

Scattered Load

Migrating to the revenue to cost ratios in the previous table results in revenue
requirement % allocations as presented in the following table.

Rate Classification Cost Existing Proposed
Allocation Allocation Allocation
Residential 59.65% 62.94% 61.95%
GS<50 23.63% 29.03% 26.00%
GS>50 10.59% 7.03% 10.24%
Street Light 5.77% 0.73% 1.53%
Sentinel Light 0.15% 0.06% 0.07%
Unmetered Scattered 0.21% 0.20% 0.21%
Load
Total 100% 100% 100%
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The following is a summary the proposed fixed charges:

Rate Classification Approved Minimum System | Proposed
Fixed Charge Fixed Charge per | Fixed Charge
Cost Allocation
Study
Residential $10.13 $9.23 $10.13
GS<50 $12.93 $18.17 $18.17
GS>50 $123.11 $53.15 $123.11
Street Light $0.41 $4.73 $0.82
Sentinel $0.45 $4.74 $0.90
Unmetered Scattered | $6.47 $10.99 $8.53
Load

Smart Meter Rate Adder

ERHDC has not included the smart meter rate adder requested in this application to the
proposed fixed service charges above. Exhibit 9 — Rate Design includes the proposed
smart meter rate adder of $0.26 for residential, GS>50 and GS<50 customers and the
bill impacts with the adder included.

Residential

ERHDC proposes to maintain the current monthly fixed service charge which falls within
the minimum system fixed charge plus 20% approach in the cost allocation study. The
proposed cost allocation decrease is a minimal decrease of 0.99% for the residential
class resulting in revenue to expense ratio of 102%.

GS<560

ERHDC proposes an increase in the monthly fixed service charge of $5.24 to move
toward the minimum system fixed charge approach in the cost allocation study. The
proposed cost allocation decrease to the GS<50 class is 3.21% resulting in a revenue to
expense ratio of 109%.

GS>50

ERHDC proposes to maintain the fixed monthly service charge in order to minimize the
reduction in the percentage of class revenue derived from the fixed charge. The
proposed increase in the percentage allocation to the GS>50 rate class is 3.03%. This
increase reflects a move in the direction of the cost allocation study and results in a
revenue to expense ratio of 100%.

Street Lights
ERHDC proposes an increase in the monthly fixed service charge of $0.41 to move

toward the minimum system fixed charge approach in the cost allocation study. A
percentage allocation increase of 0.8% is also proposed to move towards the direction of
the cost allocation study but not over burden the rate class. The increase results in a
revenue to expense ratio of 29%.
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Sentinel Lights

ERHDC proposes an increase in the monthly fixed service charge of $0.45 to move
toward the minimum system fixed charge approach in the cost allocation study. ERHDC
proposes a minimal increase of 0.01% in the cost allocation to the sentinel lights rate
class resulting in a revenue to expense ratio of 47%.

Unmetered Scattered Load

ERHDC proposes an increase in the monthly fixed service charge of $2.06 to reflect a
move toward the minimum system fixed charge approach in the cost allocation study.
ERHDC proposes a 0.01% increase in the costs allocated the unmetered scattered load
rate class resulting in a revenue to expense ratio of 92%.

ERHDC acknowledges that the streetlight and sentinel light rate classes fall outside the
proposed revenue to expense ratio bands and will monitor future developments
regarding cost allocation and move toward attaining the proposed ratios.

Transformer Ownership Allowance

ERHDC provides a transformer ownership allowance to those customers that own their
transformation facilities. ERHDC'’s present transformer ownership allowance is $0.60
per kW and this same charge is applied consistently across the province. The
customers that currently receive a transformer ownership allowance are all in the
General Service > 50 kW rate classification. The cost allocation study suggested the
allowance for these customers should be $0.5728 per kW. ERHDC notes the comments
in the Board’s cost allocation filings discussion paper and does not propose to change
the current transformer ownership allowance at this time.

10
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Exhibit 9

9 — Rate Design

Rate Design

Existing Rate Classes
Existing Rate Schedules
Proposed Rate Schedules

Bill Impacts
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RATE DESIGN

This exhibit documents the calculation of ERHDC’s proposed distribution rates by rate
class for the 2008 test year, based on the allocation of revenue proposed in Exhibit 8 —

Cost Allocation.

The total base revenue requirement of $1,193,752 is used to determine the proposed

distribution rates. That base revenue requirement is derived as follows:

Calculation of Base Revenue Requirement

Description Amount
OM&A Expenses 964,229
Amortization Expenses 179,455
Regulated Return on Rate Base 196,720
PILs (with gross-up) 0
Total Service Revenue Requirement 1,340,404
Less: Revenue Offsets (146,652)
Base Revenue Requirement 1,193,752

The base revenue requirement is allocated to the various rate classes using the

following proposed proportion of revenue as outlined in the Exhibit 8 — Cost Allocation.

Proposed Apportionment of Revenue to Rate Classes

Rate Classification Proposed Proportion of Revenue
Residential 61.95%
GS <50 kW 26.00%
GS>50 kW 10.24%
Street Light 1.53%
Sentinel 0.07%
Unmetered Scattered Load 0.21%
Total 100.0%
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The following table outlines the results of this allocation.

Base Revenue Requirement applied to Rate Classes

Rate Class Proposed Revenue

Residential $739,529
GS <50 kW $310,375
GS>50 kW $122,240
Street Light $18,264
Sentinel $836
Unmetered Scattered Load $2,508
Total 1,193,752

Exhibit: 9
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Proposed Monthly Fixed Charges:

The current approved monthly fixed charges for the ERHDC's rate classes are as

follows:
Current Monthly Fixed Charges

Rate Class Current Monthly Fixed Charge
Residential $10.13

GS <50 kW $12.93

GS>50 kW $123.11

Street Light $0.41

Sentinel $0.45

Unmetered Scattered Load $6.47

Using the existing approved distribution rates, the following table outlines the portion of

the current distribution revenue obtained from the current monthly fixed charge.

Percentages of Current Class Revenue from
Current Monthly Fixed Charges

Rate Class % of Current Class Revenue from
Current Monthly Fixed Charge
Residential 44.02%
GS <50 kW 18.54%
GS>50 kW 26.56%
Street Light 53.66%
Sentinel 18.12%
Unmetered Scattered Load 33.48%

When these proportions are applied to the proposed revenue by rate class and then

divided by the forecast number of customers by rate class the following monthly fixed

charges are produced
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Monthly Fixed Charges Using % of
Current Fixed Charge Revenue Applied to Proposed Class Revenue

Rate Class Monthly Fixed Charges
Using Existing % of Fixed
Charge Revenue

Residential $9.63
GS <50 kW $11.12
GS>50 kwW $169.13
Street Light $0.74
Sentinel $0.47
Unmetered Scattered Load $6.36

In the cost allocation study the “minimum system” approach was used to classify those
costs that were customer related. The minimum system approach assumes that a
minimum-size distribution system can be built to serve the minimum load requirements
of the customer. For the purposes of the cost allocation filing the minimum load
requirement was assumed to be 400 watts per customer. The minimum system method
involves determining the minimum size pole, conductor, cable, transformer, and service
that is currently installed by the distributor. Once determined for each plant account, the
minimum size distribution system is classified as customer-related costs and then used

to define the monthly unit customer cost.

The density of the distributor (i.e. customers/route kilometer of line) is the major factor
that determines the percentage of the above costs which are included in the customer
costs. The density of ERHDC is 33 customers/km. This means ERHDC is classified as a
medium density distributor. As a result, 40% of ERHDC's distribution costs (i.e. lines,

poles) and 40% of line transformers are defined to be customer related cost.

The following table outlines the monthly fixed charge determined in the cost allocation

study based on the minimum system approach.
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Monthly Fixed Charges Using Minimum System Approach

Rate Class Monthly Fixed Charges Using
Minimum System Approach
Residential $9.23
GS <50 kW $18.17
GS>50 kW $53.15
Street Light $4.73
Sentinel $4.74
Unmetered Scattered Load $10.99

Board staff recently released a Board Staff Discussion Paper on the implications arising
from a review of the electricity distributors’ cost allocation filings. In the paper Board
staff suggested the monthly fixed charge for a rate class should be limited to the monthly
fixed charge determined using the minimum system approach plus 20%. The following

table outlines the monthly fixed charge for the minimum system approach plus 20%:

Monthly Fixed Charges Using Minimum System Approach plus 20%

Rate Class Monthly Fixed Charges Using
Minimum System Approach + 20%
Residential $11.08
GS <50 kW $21.80
GS>50 kW $63.78
Street Light $5.68
Sentinel $5.69
Unmetered Scattered Load $13.19
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ERHDC has reviewed the various levels of monthly fixed charges by rate class and is

proposing the following monthly fixed charges for the 2008 test year.

Proposed Monthly Fixed Charges

Rate Class Proposed Monthly Fixed Charge
Residential $10.13

GS <50 kw $18.17

GS>50 kw $123.11

Street Light $0.82

Sentinel $0.90

Unmetered Scattered Load $8.53

Smart Meter Rate Adder

ERHDC has not included the smart meter rate adder requested in this application to the
proposed fixed service charges above. In the bill impacts and proposed rate schedule an
adder of $0.26 for residential, GS>50 and GS<50 classes are added to the monthly
service charge.

Residential

ERHDC proposes to maintain the current monthly fixed service charge which falls within
the minimum system fixed charge plus 20% approach in the cost allocation study. The
proposed cost allocation decrease to the residential class is a minimal decrease of
0.99% resulting in a revenue to expense ratio of 102%.

GS<50

ERHDC proposes an increase in the monthly fixed service charge of $5.24 to move
toward the minimum system fixed charge approach in the cost allocation study. The
proposed cost allocation decrease to the GS<50 class is 3.21% resulting in a revenue to
expense ratio of 109%.

GS>50

ERHDC proposes to maintain the fixed monthly service charge in order to minimize the
reduction in the percentage of class revenue derived from the fixed charge. The
proposed increase in the percentage allocation to the GS>50 rate class is 3.03%. This
increase reflects a move in the direction of the cost allocation study and results in a
revenue to expense ratio of 100%.
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Street Lights
ERHDC proposes an increase in the monthly fixed service charge of $0.41 to move

toward the minimum system fixed charge approach in the cost allocation study. A
percentage allocation increase of 0.8% is also proposed to move towards the direction of
the cost allocation study but not over burden the rate class. The increase results in a
revenue to expense ratio of 29%.

Sentinel Lights

ERHDC proposes an increase in the monthly fixed service charge of $0.45 to move
toward the minimum system fixed charge approach in the cost allocation study. ERHDC
proposes a minimal increase of 0.01% in the cost allocation to the sentinel lights rate
class resulting in a revenue to expense ratio of 47%.

Unmetered Scattered Load

ERHDC proposes an increase in the monthly fixed service charge of $2.06 to reflect a
move toward the minimum system fixed charge approach in the cost allocation study.
ERHDC proposes a 0.01% increase in the costs allocated the unmetered scattered load
rate class resulting in a revenue to expense ratio of 92%.

ERHDC acknowledges that the streetlight and sentinel light rate classes fall outside the
proposed revenue to expense ratio bands and will monitor future developments
regarding cost allocation and move toward attaining the proposed ratios.
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

Proposed Volumetric Charges:

The proposed monthly fixed charges are expected to generate the following revenues by

rate class.

Revenues by Rate Class from Proposed Fixed Charges

Rate Class Proposed Fixed Charge
Revenue
Residential $342,435
GS <50 kW $93,972
GS>50 kW $23,640
Street Light $9,948
Sentinel $288
Unmetered Scattered Load $1,128
Total $471,411

With the expected level of revenue from the monthly fixed charges determined, the
proposed revenue from distribution volumetric charges represents the total proposed
revenue by rate class minus the proposed fixed charge revenue. The resulting revenue

that the Applicant proposes to recover from volumetric charges is shown below.

Proposed Volumetric Charge Revenue

Rate Class Proposed Volumetric
Charge Revenue
Residential $397,094
GS <50 kW $216,403
GS>50 kwW $98,600
Street Light $8,316
Sentinel $548
Unmetered Scattered Load $1,379
Total $722,340

These proposed volumetric charge revenues by rate class are then divided by the

projected volume and the following proposed volumetric charges are produced.



Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

Proposed Volumetric Charges

Exhibit: 9

Rate Class Proposed Volumetric Charge
Residential ($/kWh) $0.0120
GS <50 kW ($/kWh) $0.0146
GS > 50 kW ($/kW) $2.9686
Street Light ($/kW) $4.8391
Sentinel ($/kW) $7.0653
Unmetered Scattered Load ($/kWh) | $0.0110
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

Transformer Ownership Allowance:

The amount of transformer ownership allowance expected to be provided to those
GS > 50 kW customers that own their transformers has been included in the GS > 50 kW
volumetric charge. This means the GS > 50 kW volumetric charge has been increased
by the amount of transformer ownership allowance. Once the transformer allowance is
applied to this charge the resulting revenue will recover the full base revenue

requirement for the GS > 50 kW rate class.

Currently, ERHDC provides a transformer ownership allowance to those customers that
own their transformation facilities. ERHDC's current approved transformer ownership
allowance is $0.60 per kW. The present allowance is intended to reflect the costs to a
distributor of providing step down transformation facilities to the customer’s utilization
voltage level. Since it is assumed that the distributor provides electricity at utilization
voltage, the cost of this transformation is captured in and recovered through the
distribution rates.  Therefore, when a customer provides its own step down
transformation from primary to secondary, it should receive a credit of these costs
already included in the distribution rates.

In the GS > 50 kW class, some customers own their transformers but the majority use
the transformation facilities of the ERHDC. For those customers that use the ERHDC's
facilities, the cost allocation model suggests that the ERHDC's cost to provide this
service is $0.5728 per kW. This in turn means that if a GS > 50 kW customer was to
own its transformer it should receive $0.5728 per kW as a transformation ownership
allowance. ERHDC notes the comments in the Board’s cost allocation filings discussion
paper and does not propose to change the current transformer ownership allowance at

this time.

11
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

Recovery of Low Voltage Costs:

Consistent with the approach in the Board’'s 2006 EDR model, ERHDC's LV costs of
$139,296 have been allocated to each rate class based on the proportion of retail
transmission connection revenue collected from each class. This calculation is outlined

in the following table:

Allocation of LV Costs

Customer Class Retail Transmission Allocation Allocated LV
Connection Revenue | Percentages (%)
(%)
Residential 304,433 54.21% 75,525
GS <50 kW 124,078 22.10% 30,782
GS>50 kW 127,285 22.67% 31,577
Street Light 4,434 0.79% 1,100
Sentinel 201 0.04% 50
Unmetered Scattered Load 1,056 0.19% 262
TOTAL 561,487 100.00% 139,296

These proposed LV costs by rate class are then divided by the projected volumes and
this produces the proposed adjustments to the distribution volumetric charges set out in

the table below:

LV-Related Adjustments to Volumetric Charges

Customer Class LV Adjustment | LV Adjustment
($ per kWh) (% per kW)

Residential 0.0023 -

GS <50 kW 0.0021 -
GS>50 kw - 0.8403
Street Light - 0.6402
Sentinel - 0.6477
Unmetered Scattered Load 0.0021 -
Back-up/Standby Power - -

12
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

Proposed Distribution Rates:

The following table sets out the ERHDC’s proposed 2008 electricity distribution rates

based on the foregoing calculations, including adjustments for the recovery of LV costs:

Proposed 2008 Electricity Distribution Rates

Customer Class Customer/ $/kWh $/kW
Connection

Residential $10.13 $0.0143

GS <50 kW $18.17 $0.0167

GS>50 kW $123.11 $3.8089
Street Light $0.82 $5.4793
Sentinel $0.90 $7.7130
Unmetered Scattered Load $8.53 $0.0131

13
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

EXISTING RATE CLASSES

Residential

This classification refers to an account taking electricity at 750 volts or less where the
electricity used exclusively in a single family unit, non-commercial. This can be a
separately metered living accommodation, town house, apartment, semi-detached,
duplex, triplex or quadruplex with residential zoning.

General Service Less Than 50kW

This classification refers to a non residential account taking electricity at 750 volts or less
whose monthly average peak demand is less than, or is forecast to be less than, 50kW.

General Service 50 to 4,999kW

This classification refers to a non residential account whose average peak demand is
greater than, or is forecast to be greater than, 50kW but less than 5,000kW.

Unmetered Scattered Load

This classification refers to an account taking electricity at 750 volts or less whose
monthly average peak demand is less than, or is forecast to be less than, 50 kW and the
consumption is unmetered. Such connections include cable TV power packs, bus
shelters, telephone booths, traffic lights, railway crossings, etc. The customer will provide
detailed manufacturer information/documentation  with regard to electrical
demand/consumption of the proposed unmetered load.

Sentinel Lights

This classification applies to safety/security lighting with a Residential or General Service
customer. This is typically exterior lighting, and unmetered. Consumption is estimated
based on the equipment rating and estimated hours of use.

Street Lighting

This classification refers to an account for roadway lighting with a Municipality, Regional
Municipality, Ministry of Transportation and private roadway lighting operation, controlled
by photo cells. The consumption for these customers will be based on the calculated
connected load times the required lighting times established in the approved OEB street
lighting load shape template.

14
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

EXISTING RATE SCHEDULE:

Residential UOM Rate
Service Charge $ 10.39
Distribution Volumetric Rate $/kwh  0.0135
Regulatory Asset Recovery $/kwh  0.0030
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate $/kwh  0.0053
Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate $/kwh  0.0039
Wholesale Market Service Rate $/kwh  0.0052
Rural Rate Protection Charge $/kwWh  0.0010
Standard Supply Service — Administration Charge (if applicable) $ 0.25

General Service Less Than 50 kW

Service Charge $ 13.19
Distribution Volumetric Rate $/kwh  0.0203
Regulatory Asset Recovery $/kwh  0.0015
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate $/kwh  0.0049
Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate $/kwh  0.0035
Wholesale Market Service Rate $/kwh  0.0052
Rural Rate Protection Charge $/kwh  0.0010
Standard Supply Service — Administration Charge (if applicable) $ 0.25

General Service 50 to 4,999kW

Service Charge $ 123.37
Distribution Volumetric Rate $IkwW 1.7424
Regulatory Asset Recovery $/kW 0.4822
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate $/kW 1.9902
Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate $/kW 1.3968
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate — Interval Metered $/kwW 2.2535
Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate — Interval Metered $/kW 1.9603
Wholesale Market Service Rate $/kwh  0.0052
Rural Rate Protection Charge $/kWh  0.0010
Standard Supply Service— Administration Charge (if applicable) $ 0.25

Unmetered Scattered Load

Service Charge (per connection) $ 6.47

Distribution Volumetric Rate $/kwh  0.0135
Regulatory Asset Recovery $/kwh  0.0015
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate $/kwh  0.0049
Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate $/kwh  0.0035
Wholesale Market Service Rate $/kwh  0.0052
Rural Rate Protection Charge $/kWh  0.0010
Standard Supply Service — Administration Charge (if applicable) $ 0.25

Sentinal Lighting

15



Distribution Volumetric Rate

Service Charge (per connection) $
$/IkW
Regulatory Asset Recovery — Effective May 1, 2007 to October 31, 2007 $/kW
Regulatory Asset Recovery — Effective November 1, 2007 $/kw
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate $/kwW
Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate $/kW

Wholesale Market Service Rate
Rural Rate Protection Charge

Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

Standard Supply Service — Administration Charge (if applicable) $

Street Lighting

Distribution Volumetric Rate
Regulatory Asset Recovery

Service Charge (per connection) $
$/kW
$/kW

Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate $IkwW

Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate $/kW

Wholesale Market Service Rate
Rural Rate Protection Charge

Standard Supply Service — Administration Charge (if applicable) $

Specific Service Charges

Arrears Certificate $
Account History $
Returned Cheque (plus bank charge) $
Account Set-up charge/change of occupancy charge (plus credit agency costs if applicable) $
Special Meter Reads $
Meter dispute charge plus Measurement Canada fees (if meter found correct) $
Late payment - per month %
Late payment — per annum %
Collection of account charge — no disconnection $
Disconnect/Reconnect Charges for on payment of account -At Meter During Regular Hours $
Disconnect/Reconnect at pole — during regular hours $
Temporary service install & remove — overhead — no transformer $
Temporary service install & remove — underground — no transformer $
Specific Charge for Access to the Power Poles — per pole/year $
Allowances

Transformer Allowance for Ownership — per kW of billing demand/month $/kwW
Primary Metering Allowance for transformer losses — applied to measured demand and energy %

Loss Factors

Total loss Factor — Secondary Metered Customers <5,000 kW

Total loss Factor — Secondary Metered Customers > 5,000 kW

Total loss Factor — Primary Metered Customers > 5,000 kW

Total loss Factor — Primary Metered Customers > 5,000 kW
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0.45
8.5578
6.5503
12.0503
1.5085
1.1024

$/kwh  0.0052
$/kwh  0.0010

0.25

0.41

29711
0.1879
1.5009
1.0798

$/kWh  0.0052
$/kwh  0.0010

0.25

15.00
15.00
15.00
30.00
30.00
30.00
1.50
19.56
30.00
65.00
185.00
500.00
300.00
22.35

(0.60)
(1.00)

1.0724

N/A
1.0617
N/A
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

PROPOSED RATE SCHEDULE:

Residential UOM Rate
Service Charge $ 10.39
Distribution Volumetric Rate $/kwh  0.0143
Regulatory Asset Recovery $/kwh  0.0019
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate $/kwh  0.0053
Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate $/kwh  0.0039
Wholesale Market Service Rate $/kwh  0.0052
Rural Rate Protection Charge $/kwWh  0.0010
Standard Supply Service — Administration Charge (if applicable) $ 0.25

General Service Less Than 50 kW

Service Charge $ 18.43
Distribution Volumetric Rate $/kwh  0.0167
Regulatory Asset Recovery $/kWh  0.0020
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate $/kwh  0.0049
Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate $/kwh  0.0035
Wholesale Market Service Rate $/kwh  0.0052
Rural Rate Protection Charge $/kwh  0.0010
Standard Supply Service — Administration Charge (if applicable) $ 0.25

General Service 50 to 4,999kW

Service Charge $ 123.37
Distribution Volumetric Rate $/IkW 3.8089
Regulatory Asset Recovery $/kw 0.6323
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate $/kW 1.9902
Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate $IkW 1.3968
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate — Interval Metered $/kwW 2.2535
Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate — Interval Metered $IkW 1.9603
Wholesale Market Service Rate $/kwh  0.0052
Rural Rate Protection Charge $/kWh  0.0010
Standard Supply Service— Administration Charge (if applicable) $ 0.25

Unmetered Scattered Load

Service Charge (per connection) $ 8.53

Distribution Volumetric Rate $/kwh  0.0131
Regulatory Asset Recovery $/kWh  0.0019
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate $/kwh  0.0049
Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate $/kwh  0.0035
Wholesale Market Service Rate $/kwh  0.0052
Rural Rate Protection Charge $/kwh  0.0010
Standard Supply Service — Administration Charge (if applicable) $ 0.25
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

Sentinal Lighting

Service Charge (per connection) $ 0.90

Distribution Volumetric Rate $/kW 7.7130
Regulatory Asset Recovery $/kW 0.1591
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate $IkwW 1.5085
Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate $IkW 1.1024
Wholesale Market Service Rate $/kwh  0.0052
Rural Rate Protection Charge $/kWh  0.0010
Standard Supply Service — Administration Charge (if applicable) $ 0.25

Street Lighting

Service Charge (per connection) $ 0.82

Distribution Volumetric Rate $kwW 5.4793
Regulatory Asset Recovery $/kW 0.7666
Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate $kwW 1.5009
Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate $/kW 1.0798
Wholesale Market Service Rate $/kwh  0.0052
Rural Rate Protection Charge $/kwh  0.0010
Standard Supply Service — Administration Charge (if applicable) $ 0.25

Specific Service Charges

Arrears Certificate $ 15.00
Account History $ 15.00
Returned Cheque (plus bank charge) $ 15.00
Account Set-up charge/change of occupancy charge (plus credit agency costs if applicable) $ 30.00
Special Meter Reads $ 30.00
Meter dispute charge plus Measurement Canada fees (if meter found correct) $ 30.00
Late payment - per month % 1.50
Late payment — per annum % 19.56
Collection of account charge — no disconnection $ 30.00
Disconnect/Reconnect Charges for on payment of account -At Meter During Regular Hours $ 65.00
Disconnect/Reconnect at pole — during regular hours $ 185.00
Temporary service install & remove — overhead — no transformer $ 500.00
Temporary service install & remove — underground — no transformer $ 300.00
Specific Charge for Access to the Power Poles — per pole/year $ 22.35
Allowances

Transformer Allowance for Ownership — per kW of billing demand/month $/kwW (0.60)
Primary Metering Allowance for transformer losses — applied to measured demand and energy % (1.00)
Loss Factors

Total loss Factor — Secondary Metered Customers <5,000 kW 1.0543
Total loss Factor — Secondary Metered Customers > 5,000 kW N/A
Total loss Factor — Primary Metered Customers > 5,000 kW 1.0443
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Espanola Reqgional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

Total loss Factor — Primary Metered Customers > 5,000 kW N/A
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Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

BILL IMPACTS:

This schedule presents the results of the assessment of customer total bill impacts by

level of consumption by customer per rate class.

The bill impacts compare the distribution rates arising from the proposed 2008 revenue
requirements to the current distribution rates applicable May 1, 2007. The rates are
assessed on the basis of moving to the proposed distribution rates in this Exhibit
including the Rate Rider for the recovery of regulatory asset variance accounts derived
from Exhibit 5.

Due to the proposed adjustments in the portion of revenue to be recovered from the
GS>50 class to rectify the issue previously brought before the Board, a more detailed
analysis was undertaken for the customer accounts affected. The following chart
provides the bill impacts for the 16 GS>50 class customers based on their average

monthly consumption over the last several years.

Customer % Bill Increase $ Bill Increase
Customer #1 8.7% $245.28
Customer #2 6.7% $312.03
Customer #3 6.2% $378.23
Customer #4 5.8% $197.44
Customer #5 5.7% $288.19
Customer #6 5.7% $130.96
Customer #7 5.1% $288.57
Customer #8 4.5% $281.69
Customer #9 4.3% $161.23
Customer #10 4.2% $224.03
Customer #11 3.8% $441.91
Customer #12 3.7% $169.56
Customer #13 3.6% $360.42
Customer #14 2.7% $503.40
Customer #15 2.6% $279.12
Customer #16 2.4% $169.44
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Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

Residential
100 kh Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume R;te Ch:;rge Volume D Ch;rge Cha$nge Chg:ge % of Total Bill
Ionthly Service Charge 10.39 10.29 0.0 0.0% 0.0%
Distribution kil 100 001250 135 100 001430 143 008 59% 04%
Sub-Tofal 11.74 11.82 0.08 0.7% 0.4%
Requlatory Asset Recovery kvh 100 0.00200 030 100 0.00190 0.19 (0113 -36.7% -0.5%
Retail Transmission - Network ki 107 000530 057 105 000530 056 (oon -1.7% 0.0%
Retail Transmission - Line and it 107 000330 042 105 000390 041 (00N -1 7% 00%
Wholesale Marlket Service kivh 107 0.00520 056 105 0.00520 055 (0.01) -1.7% 0.0%
Rural Rate Protection Charge kvh 107 0.00100 0.11 105 0.00100 0.1 (0.007 -1.7% 0.0%
Debt Retirerment Charge kitvh 100 0.00700 070 100 000700 070 000 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Commodity LA 107 005704 6§12 105 005704 56.01 (010} “17% -05%
Total Bill 20.51 20.35 (0.18) £0.8% -0.8%
Residential
250 kvh Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume R;te Ch;rge Volume Rgte Ch;rge Cha$nge Ch?nge % of Total Bill
o
Ionthly Service Charge 10.39 1029 000 0.0% 0.0%
Distribution kivh 250 001350 338 250 001430 358 0.20 50% 06%
Sub-Total 13.77 13.97 0.20 1.5% 0.6%
Regulatory Asset Recoveny kih 250 0.00200 075 250 0.00190 048 (0.28) -3B.7% -0.8%
Retail Transmission - Metwork Kitvh 268 0.00530 142 264 0.00530 140 {0.02 -1.7% -0.1%
Retail Transmission - Line and ik 268 000330 105 264 000390 103 (0.0 S1T% -01%
Wholesale Market Service kit 268 000520 139 264 000520 137 (0.02) -1.7% -0.1%
Rural Rate Protection Charge kivh 268 0.00100 027 264 0.00100 026 (0.00} -1 7% 0.0%
Debt Retirement Charge kivh 250 0.00700 175 250 0.00700 175 000 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Commodity kvh 268 005704 15.29 264 005704 1503 (0.26] -17% -07%
Total Bill 35.69 35.28 (0.40) -1.1% 1.1%
Residential
500 kwvh Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume R;te Ch;rge Volume R;te Ch;rge Cha$nge Chfnge % of Total Bill
o
Ionthly Service Charge 10.39 10329 000 0.0% 0.0%
Distribution KA 500 0.01350 675 500 0.01430 715 040 5.0% 0.7%
ub-Total " 1714 17.54 0.40 2.3% 0.7%
Requlatory Asset Recovery kiin 500 0.00300 150 500 0.00160 095 (0.55) -36.7% -0.9%
Retail Transmission - MNetwork litvh 536 0.00530 2.84 527 0.00530 279 (0.05) -1.7% -0.1%
Retail Transmission - Line and Kh 536 000330 209 527 000390 206 (0.04Y 1T7% -01%
Wholesale Market Service kvh 536 000520 279 527 0.00520 274 (0.05) -1.7% -01%
Rural Rate Protection Charge livh 536 000100 054 527 0.00100 053 (0.01} -1 7% 0.0%
Debt Retirement Charge kit 500 0.00700 350 500 0.00700 3.50 0.00 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Cormmodity kvh 536 005704 2056 927 005704 2007 (0.52 -1.7% -0.9%
Total Bill 60.98 60.18 081) 1.3% -1.3%
Residential
750 kh Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume R;te Cha$rge Volume R;te Cha$rge Cha$nge Ch::/nge % of Total Bill
o
Ionthly Service Charge 10.39 10329 000 0.0% 0.0%
Distribution Kvh 750 001250 1013 750 001430 1073 050 5.0% 07%
Sub-Total 20.52 21.12 0.60 2.9% 0.7%
Regulatory Asset Recovery kitvh 750 0.00300 225 750 0.00180 143 (0.83) -36.7% -1.0%
Retail Transmission - Netwark ldh 804 000530 4726 79 000530 419 {0.on -1 7% -01%
Retail Transmission - Line and ki 804 000330 314 791 000390 308 (0.05) -1.7% -0.1%
Wholesale Market Service kvh 804 000520 418 791 000520 411 (0.07) -1.7% -01%
Rural Rate Protection Charge kivh 804 0.00100 030 791 0.00100 079 (0.01) -1.7% 0.0%
Debt Retirernent Charge kvh 750 0.00700 525 750 0.00700 525 0.00 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Cormmodity kh 804 005704 4588 791 005704 4510 (077} 1% -0.9%
Total Bill 86.28 85.07 (1.21) 1.4% 1.4%
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Residential
1,000 KiWh Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume R;te Chz;rge Volume Rate Cha$rge Change Chfnge % of Total Bill
Monthly Service Charge 10.39 10.39 0.00 0.0% 0.0%
Distribution kivh 1,000 0.01350 13.50 1,000 0.01430 14 .20 0.80 5.9% 0.7%
Sub-Total 23.89 24.69 0.80 3.3% 0.7%
Regulatary Asset Recovery kivh 1,000 0.00300 3.00 1,000 0.00190 1.80 (110} -36.7% -1.0%
Retail Transmission - Netwiork kitvh 1,072 0.00530 568 1,054 0.00530 559 (0.10) -17% -01%
Retail Transmission - Line and KWh 1,072 000330 418 1,054 0.00390 411 (0.07) -1.7% -0.1%
Wholesale Market Service kvh 1,072 0.00520 558 1,054 0.00520 548 (0.09) -17% -0.1%
Rural Rate Protection Charge kivh 1,072 0.00100 1.07 1,054 0.00100 1.05 (0.02) -1.7% 0.0%
Debt Retirement Charge kwvh 1,000 0.00700 7.00 1,000 0.00700 7.00 0.00 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Commodity Kitvh 1,072 0.05704 61.17 1,054 0.05704 60.14 (1.08) -1.7% -0.9%
Total Bill 111.57 109.96 (1.61) -1.4% -1.5%
Residential
1,500 Kih Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume Ra$te Cha$rge Volume R;te Cha$rge Cha$nge Ch:mge % of Total Bill
o
Ionthly Service Charge 10.29 1039 000 00% 00%
Distribution Kb 1,500 0.01350 20.25 1,500 0.01430 2145 120 5.9% 0.8%
Sub-Total 30.64 31.84 1.20 3.9% 0.8%
Requlatory Asset Recavery kiwh 1,500 000300 4.50 1,500 0.00190 285 (165} -36.7% -1.0%
Retail Transmission - Network kiWh 1,609 000530 853 1581 0.00530 8238 (0.14) -1.7% -0.1%
Retail Transmission - Line and kiWh 1,609 0003390 6.27 1581 0.00390 617 (a11) -1.7% -0.1%
Wholesale Market Service kitvh 1,609 000520 8.36 1,581 0.00520 822 (014} -17% -0.1%
Rural Rate Protection Charge kitvh 1,609 0.00100 1.61 1,581 0.00100 1468 (0.03) 17% 0.0%
Debt Retirement Charge kitvh 1,500 0.00700 10.50 1,500 0.00700 1050 0.00 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Commadity Kywh 1,609 005704 9175 1.581 005704 9031 (1551 “17% -1.0%
Total Bill 162.17 159.75 (2.42) -1.5% -1.5%
Residential
2,000 Kith Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume R;te Ch;rge Volume R;te Ch;rge Cha$nge Ch‘::ge % of Total Bill
Monthly Service Charge 10.38 10.39 0.00 0.0% 0.0%
Distribution kb 2,000 0.01350 27.00 2,000 0.01430 28,60 1.60 59% 0.8%
Sub-Total T_37.39 38.99 1.60 4.3% 0.8%
Regulatory Asset Recovery kitvh 2,000 0.00300 6.00 2,000 0.00190 3.80 (220} -36.7% -1.0%
Retail Transmission - Netwiork Kivh 2,145 0.00530 11.37 2,108 0.00530 1118 (0.19) -1.7% -0.1%
Retail Transmission - Line and Kivh 2,145 0.00390 8.36 2,108 0.00390 822 (014 -1.7% -0.1%
Wholesale Market Service Kivh 2,145 0.00520 11.15 2,108 0.00520 1096 (0.19) -1.7% -01%
Rural Rate Protection Charge Kitvh 2,145 0.00100 2.14 2,108 0.00100 211 (0.04) -1.7% 0.0%
Debt Retirement Charge Kitvh 2,000 0.00700 14.00 2,000 0.00700 14,00 0.00 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Commodity Kih 2145 005704 13234 2109 005704 12027 (2.06) -17% -1.0%
Total Bill 212.76 209.54 (3.22) -1.5% -1.5%
GS <50
1,000 KiWh Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume R;te Chz;rge Volume Rate Cha$rge Change Chfnge % of Total Bill
o
Monthly Service Charge 1319 1843 524 397% 4.4%
Distribution ki 1.000 002030 2030 1.000 001670 1670 (3801 17 7% -3.0%
Sub-Total ”_33.49 35.13 1.64 4.9% 14%
Reaqulatory Asset Recovery Kitvh 1,000 000150 1.50 1,000 0.00200 2.00 0.50 333% 04%
Retail Transmission - Netwiork kitvh 1,072 0.00490 525 1054 0.00490 517 (0.09) -17% -01%
Retail Transmission - Line and kitvh 1,072 0.00350 NS 1054 0.00350 369 (0.06) -17% -01%
Wholesale Market Senvice kitvh 1,072 000520 558 1054 0.00520 543 (0.09) -17% -01%
Rural Rate Protection Charge kitvh 1,072 0.00100 107 1,054 0.00100 105 (0.02) -17% 0.0%
Debt Retirement Charge kitvh 1,000 0.00700 7.00 1,000 0.00700 7.00 0.00 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Commaodity Kh 1,072 005704 6117 1.054 005704 56014 (103 “17% -0.9%
Total Bill 118.82 119.66 0.84 0.7% 0.7%

22



Exhibit: 9

Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

GS <50
2,000 kwh Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume R;te Ch:;rge Volume R;te Ch;rge Cha$nge Ch?:ge % of Total Bill
Manthly Service Charge 1319 1843 524 397% 24%
Distribution kb 2,000 002020 40.60 2,000 001670 2240 (7.20) 17 7% -3.3%
Sub-Total 5379 51.83 (1.96) -3.6% 0.9%
Requlatory Asset Recovery kivh 2,000 000150 200 2,000 0.00200 4.00 1.00 333% 05%
Retail Transmission - Network kivh 2,145 0.00490 10.51 2104 0.00490 10.33 (0.18) -1.7% -0.1%
Retail Transmission - Line and litvh 2145 0.00350 751 2109 0.00350 738 (0.13) -1.7% -0.1%
Wholesale Marlket Service kivh 2,145 0.00520 11.15 2109 000520 10.96 (0.19) -1.7% -0.1%
Rural Rate Protection Charge kvh 2145 0.00100 214 2,109 0.00100 2.11 (0.04) 1.7% 0.0%
Debt Retirement Charge kitvh 2,000 0.00700 14.00 2,000 000700 14.00 0.00 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Commodity KA 2145 005704 12234 2109 005704 12027 (2.08) “17% -0.9%
Total Bill 224.44 220.89 (3.55) -1.6% -1.6%
GS <50
5,000 kvvh Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume R;te Ch;rge Volume R;te Ch;rge Cha$nge Ch::nge % of Total Bill
Ionthly Service Charge 13.19 1843 524 397% 1.0%
Distribution kil 5,000 002020 10150 5,000 001670 8250 (1800) 17 7% -34%
Sub-Tofal 114.69 101.93 (12.76) -11.1% 24%
Requlatory Asset Recovery kivh 5,000 000150 750 5000 0.00200 10.00 250 333% 05%
Retail Transmission - Network kit 5362 000430 26.27 5272 000490 2583 (044) -1.7% -0.1%
Retail Transmission - Line and ltvh 5,362 000350 1877 5272 000350 1845 (032) -1 7% -0.1%
Wholesale Market Service kivh 5362 0.00520 2788 5372 0.00520 2741 (047} -1.7% -0.1%
Rural Rate Protection Charge kvh 5362 0.00100 5.36 5272 0.00100 5.27 (0.09) -1.7% 0.0%
Debt Retirement Charge kivh 5,000 0.00700 35.00 5000 0.00700 35.00 000 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Commodity Kvh 5362 005704 20585 5272 005704 300 69 (5.16] “17% -1.0%
Total Bill 541.32 524.58 (16.74) -3.1% -3.2%
GS <50
10,000 kvh Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume R;te Ch;rge Volume R;te Ch;rge Cha$nge Ch?nge % of Total Bill
o
Ionthly Service Charge 1319 1843 524 397% 05%
Distribution ) 10,000 002030 203 00 10,000 001670 167 .00 (3600 -177% -35%
Sub-Total " 21619 185.43 (30.76) -14.2% -3.0%
Regulatory Asset Recovery [t 10,000 0.00150 15.00 10,000 0.00200 20.00 500 333% 05%
Retail Transmission - Network kvh 10,724 0.00430 52.55 10542 0.00490 51.66 (0.89) -1.7% -01%
Retail Transmission - Line and ik 10,724 000350 3753 10543 000350 3630 (0.63) S1T% -01%
Wholesale Market Service ki | 10,724 000520 55.76 10,543 000520 54.82 (0.94) -1.7% -0.1%
Rural Rate Protection Charge kivh 10,724 000100 1072 10542 0.00100 10.54 (0.18) -1 7% 0.0%
Debt Retirement Charge kivh 10,000 0.00700 70.00 10,000 0.00700 70.00 000 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Commodity kvh 10,724 005704 61170 10,543 005704 60127 (1022 -1.7% -1.0%
Total Bill 1,069.46 1,030.73 (38.73) -3.6% -3.8%
GS <50
15,000 kh Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume R;te Ch;rge Volume R;te Ch;rge Cha$nge Chi:/nge % of Total Bill
o
Ionthly Service Charge 13219 1843 524 397% 0.2%
Distribution ki | 15,000 0.02030 30450 15.000 0.01670 25050 (54000 17.7% -3.5%
Sub-Total T 31769 268.93 (48.76) -15.3% -3.2%
Requlatory Asset Recovery kiin 15,000 0.00150 2250 15,000 0.00200 30.00 750 333% 05%
Retail Transmission - Network kvh 16,086 0.00480 78.82 15815 0.00490 7749 (1.33) -1.7% -01%
Retail Transmission - Line and kivh 16,086 0.00350 56.30 15,815 000350 5535 (0.95) -1.7% -0.1%
Wholesale Market Service kvh 16,086 000520 83.65 15815 0.00520 82.24 (.41 -1.7% -01%
Rural Rate Protection Charge kitvh 16,086 0.00100 16.09 15,815 0.00100 15.81 (0.27) -1 7% 0.0%
Debt Retirement Charge ki [ 15,000 000700 105.00 15,000 000700 105.00 0.00 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Cormmodity kvh 16,086 005704 917 .55 15815 005704 902 06 (15 49) -1.7% -1.0%
Total Bill 1.597.59 1.536.88 (60.71) -3.8% 4.0%

23



Exhibit: 9

Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

GS>50-Regular
60 kW Consumption

15,000 kvvh Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume R;te Ch;rge Volume R;te Che;rge Cha$nge Ch:nge % of Total Bill
o
Ionthly Service Charge 12337 123 37 Q.00 0.0% 0.0%
Distribution kK 50 1.74240 104.54 60 380890 22853 12399 118.6% T3%
Sub-Total 227.91 351.90 123.99 54.4% 1.3%
Requlatory Asset Recovery kv 60 048220 2893 60 062220 3793 9.00 31.1% 05%
Retail Transmission - Network la 64 199020 12806 63 199020 12590 (2.18) -1.7% -01%
Retail Transmission - Line and ke 64 1.39680 89.88 63 1.39680 8836 (152) -1 7% -01%
Wholesale Market Service kah | 16,086 000520 83.65 15815 000520 82.24 (141 -1.7% -0.1%
Rural Rate Protection Charge kvh 16,086 000100 16.09 15815 000100 1581 (0.27) -1.7% 0.0%
Debt Retirement Charge kivh 15,000 0.00700 105.00 15,000 0.00700 105.00 000 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Commodity kvh 16,086 005704 917 55 15815 005704 902 06 (1549 -17% -0.9%
Total Bill 1.597.06 1.709.20 112.14 7.0% 6.6%
GS>50-Regular
100 KW Consumption
40,000 kah Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume R;te Ch:;;rge Volume R;te Cha$rge Cha$nge Chf/nge % of Total Bill
o
Ionthly Service Charge 12337 123 37 000 0.0% 0.0%
Distribution Ly 100 174240 174.24 100 380890 38083 20665  1186% 53%
Sub-Total 297.61 504.26 206.65 69.4% 5.3%
Regulatory Asset Recovery by 100 048320 4822 100 083220 6322 15.00 3% 04%
Retail Transmission - Network L 107 1.99020 21343 105 1.99020 209.82 (2.60) -1.7% -01%
Retail Transmission - Line and ki 107 1.38680 14979 105 1.39680 147 26 (2.53) -1.7% -0.1%
Wholesale Market Service kvh 42,896 000520 22306 42172 0.00520 219.29 (2.76) -1.7% -01%
Rural Rate Protection Charge kitvh 42896 0.00100 4390 42172 0.00100 4217 (072} 1. 7% 00%
Debt Retirement Charge kah | 40,000 000700 280.00 40,000 000700 280.00 0.00 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Cormmodity kivh 42,896 005704 2446 79 42172 005704 240549 (41.20 -1.7% -1.1%
Total Bill 3.701.79 3.871.53 169.73 4.6% 4.4%
GS>50-Regular
500 KW Consumption
100,000 Kywh Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume R;te Ch;rge Volume R;te Ch;rge Cha$nge Chfnge % of Total Bill
Ionthly Service Charge 12337 123 37 000 0.0% 0.0%
Distribution Ly 500 174240 871.20 500 380890 100445 | 103325 1186% 9.0%
ub-Total T 90457 T 202782 103325 103.9% 9.0%
Requlatory Asset Recovery kv 500 048220 24110 500 063220 316.10 75.00 311% 07%
Retail Transmission - MNetwork L 536 1.99020 1,067.15 527 1.99020 1,043.13 18.01) -1.7% -0.2%
Retail Transmission - Line and K 536 1.39630 748 96 527 1.39630 736.32 (12 64} -1 7% -01%
Wholesale Market Service kiath | 107,240 000520 557 .65 105430 000520 54824 (841 -1.7% -01%
Rural Rate Protection Charge kiavh | 107,240 0.00100 107.24 105430 0.00100 10543 (181 -1 7% 0.0%
Debt Retirement Charge lvh [ 100,000 000700 700,00 100,000 000700 700.00 0.00 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Commodity ki | 107240 005704 611697 105430 005704 601373 10324y -17% -0.9%
Total Bill 10.533.64 11.496.77 963.13 9.1% 8.4%
GS$>50-Regular
1,000 K Consumption
400,000 k¥h Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metrie| Volume Rate Charge Volume Rate Charge Change Ch::nge % of Total Bill
$ $ $ $ $ Yo
Monthly Service Charge 12337 12337 000 0.0% 0.0%
Distribution N 1,000 174240 174240 1,000 3.80890  3,808.90 | 206650 118.6% 55%
Sub-Total " 186577 7393227 [206650 110.8% 55%
Requlatory Asset Recovery T 7000 045220 487 20 7000 062220 532 20 15000 31 1% 04%
Retail Transmission - Network ki 1,072 1.88020 213429 1,054 1.99020 209827 (36.02) -1.7% -0.1%
Retail Transmission - Line and L 1,072 1.29680 1497.93 1,054 1.39680 1472.65 125.28) -1.7% -01%
Wholesale Marlket Service kv | 428960 0.00520 233059 421,720 000520 219294 (37 65) -1.7% -0.1%
Rural Rate Protection Charge kv | 428,960 0.00100 42896 421,720 0.00100 42172 (7.24) 1.7% 0.0%
Debt Retirement Charge lewh [ 400,000 0.00700 2,800.00 400,000 000700 2,800.00 0.00 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Commodity kinh | 428960 005704 2446788 421720 005704 2405491 | (412971 -17% 1%
Total Bill 35,907.62 37,604.96 | 1,697.34 4.7% 4.5%
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Exhibit: 9

Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

GS>50-Regular

3,000 kW Consumption
1,000,000 kvvh Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume R;te Ch;rge Volume R;te Che;rge Cha$nge Ch:nge % of Total Bill
o
Ionthly Service Charge 12337 123 37 Q.00 0.0% 0.0%
Distribution i 3,000 1.74240 537720 2,000 380890 1142670 | 619950 118.6% 6.3%
Sub-Tofal " 535057 " 1155007 [6.19950 115.9% 6.3%
Requlatory Asset Recovery kv 3,000 048220 144660 2000 062220 1,896.60 45000 31.1% 05%
Retail Transmission - Network la 327 199020 640287 3163 199020 5,294.80 (108.07)  -17% -0.1%
Retail Transmission - Line and L 3217 1.39680 449378 3,163 1.39680 4417.94 (7585} -1 7% -0.1%
Wholesale Market Service vk | 1,072,400 0.00520 557648 1,054,300 0.00520 548236 (94.12) -1.7% -0.1%
Rural Rate Protection Charge ldh [ 1,072 400 0.00100 1,07240 1,054,200 0.00100 1,054.30 18.10) -1.7% 0.0%
Debt Retirement Charge lesvh [1,000,000 0.00700 7.00000 1,000,000 0.00700 7,000.00 000 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Commodity kvt | 1,072 400 005704 61.168.70 1,054,200 005704 6013727 10102242 -17% 11%
Total Bill 92.512.40 97.833.34 | 5.320.94 5.8% 5.4%
Street Light
143 kY Consumption
48489 kh Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume R;te Ch;rge Volume R:te Ch%;rge Cha$nge Chi:/nge % of Total Bill
o
Ionthly Service Charge 041 0az2 041 100.0% 0.0%
Distribution Ly 143 287110 42536 143 547930 78445 35809  344% 7.3%
Sub-Total 425.77 785.27 359.50 84.4% 1.3%
Regulatory Asset Recoveny vy 143 018790 26.90 143 1.14050 16328 13638 507.0% 28%
Retail Transmission - MNetwork A0 154 1.50080 23044 151 1.50080 22655 (2.89) -1.7% -01%
Retail Transmission - Line and l 154 1.07980 16578 151 107980 162 .93 (2.80) 1 7% -01%
Wholesale Market Service kah | 52,000 000520 27040 51,122 000520 265 .84 (4.56) -1.7% -01%
Rural Rate Protection Charge kitvh 52,000 0.00100 52.00 51,122 0.00100 5112 (0.88) -1 7% 0.0%
Debt Retirement Charge lah | 48489 000700 33942 45489 000700 33942 0.00 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Commodity K 52,000 005704 296607 51122 005704 291601 (50 081 1 7% -1.0%
Total Bill 447678 491047 433.69 97% 8.8%
Sentinel
285 KW Consumption
1033 kvh Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume R;te Ch;rge Volume R;te Ch;rge Cha$nge Ch;nge % of Total Bill
o
Ionthly Service Charge 045 040 045 100.0% 04%
Distribution kA &) 855780 24 39 3 771300 2198 (2413 -9.9% _2.2%
Sub-Total 2484 T 2288 (1.96) -1.9% -1.8%
Regulatory Asset Recoveny ke &) 1205030 2434 3 010170 029 (3405)  -992% -318%
Retail Transmission - Network by ) 1.50850 461 3 1.50850 453 (0.08) 1.7% -01%
Retail Transmission - Line and ke 3 1.10240 337 3 1.10240 331 (0.08) S1T% -01%
Wholesale Market Service kit 1,108 000520 576 1,089 000520 566 (0.1 -1.7% -0.1%
Rural Rate Protection Charge lh 1,108 000100 1.11 1,089 0.00100 1.09 (0.02} -1 7% 0.0%
Debt Retirement Charge lewh [ 1033 0.00700 733 1,033 0.00700 723 0.00 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Commodity kvh 1108 005704 6219 1,089 005704 6212 (1.07} 1.7% -1.0%
Total Bill 144.45 107.12 (37.33) -25.8% -34.8%
Sentinel
075 KW Consumption
50 kah Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume R;te Ch:;;rge Volume R;te Cha$rge Cha$nge Chf/nge % of Total Bill
o
Ionthly Service Charge 045 040 045 100.0% 16%
Distribution Ly 1 855780 542 ) 7.71300 2198 1556 242 5% 54.2%
Sub-Total 6.87 T 2288 16.01 233.2% 55.8%
Regulatory Asset Recovery kv 1 1205030 9.04 1 0.10170 003 (8.96)  -99.2% -31.2%
Retail Transmission - MNetwork J 1 150850 121 1 150850 1.19 (0.02) -1.7% -0.1%
Retail Transmission - Line and vy 1 1.10240 083 1 1.10240 087 (0.01) 1T7% -01%
Wholesale Market Service kh 54 0.00520 0.28 53 0.00520 0.27 (0.00) -1.7% 0.0%
Rural Rate Protection Charge livh 54 000100 005 53 0.00100 005 (0.00} -1 7% 0.0%
Debt Retirement Charge kah [ 50 000700 035 50 000700 035 000 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Cormmodity kdtvh 54 005704 206 53 005704 301 {0.05) -1.7% -0.2%
Total Bill 2175 2871 6.96 32.0% 24.2%
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Exhibit: 9

Espanola Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation (ERHDC)

Unmetered Scattered Load

5 WY Consamptia
1000 kvvh Consumption
2007 BILL 2008 BILL IMPACT
Metric| Volume pate Ch;rge Volume R;te Ch;rge Cha$nge Chfnge % of Total Bill

Ionthly Service Charge 647 853 206 318% 25%
Distribution kY S 001350 0.07 S 001210 0.07 (0.00] -3.0% 0.0%
Sub-Total © 654 MY 2.06 31.5% 25%
Requlatory Asset Recovery [ 5] 0.00150 0.01 3 0.00190 001 000 26.7% 0.0%
Retail Transmission - Netwark ke ) 000430 003 S 000490 003 (0.00) -1 7% 0.0%
Retail Transmission - Line and b 5 000350 002 5 000350 0.02 (0.0 -1.7% 0.0%
Wholesale Market Service lh 1.072 000520 558 1,054 000520 548 (0.09) -1.7% -01%
Rural Rate Protection Charge kivh 1,072 0.00100 1.07 1,054 0.00100 1.05 (0.02) -1.7% 0.0%
Debt Retirement Charge lavh [ 1,000 0.00700 7.00 [ 1,000 0.00700 7.00 000 0.0% 0.0%
Cost of Power Cormmodity kh 1,072 005704 6117 1.054 005704 6014 (1.03 17% -1.3%
Total Bill 81.41 82.32 091 1.1% 1.1%
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